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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
State of Hawaii 

$350,000,000 
General Obligation Bonds 

of 2006, Series DI 

The pmpose of this Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the inside cover page hereof and 
the appendices hereto, is to set forth information concerning the State of Hawaii (sometimes hece.in referred to as the 
"State") and its $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds of 2006, Series DI, (the 
"Bonds"), in connection with the sale of the Bonds by the State of Hawaii. 

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance with the provisions, 
restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and the laws of the State, including Part I ofChapter 39 of the Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, as amended (''HRS"), and pursuant to the authority of certain acts of the Legislature of the State 
and a Certificate of the Director of Finance of the State (the "Bond Issuance Certificate"). 

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used (i), to finance, or to reimbW'Se the State for, certain 
expenditures for public purposes for which appropriations have been made in certain Acts of the State Legislature 
and which the Legislature may from time to time approve, including the Hawaiian Home Lands Settlement effected 
by Act 14, Session Laws of Hawaii ("SLH")l995 (Special Session) and the costs of acquisition, construction, 
extension or improvement of various public improvement projects, among which are public buildings and facilities, 
elementary and secondary schools, community college and university facilities, public libraries and parla!, certain 
other public purposes, including payment of $30 million during fiscal year 2006 in connection with the Hawaiian 
Home Lands Settlement, as authorized by Act 41, SLH 2004, and (li} to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. See 
''DEBT STRUCTURE- Outstanding Indebtedness and Debt Limit" in Part I of Appendix A. 

TBEBONDS 

Details of the Bonds 

The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery, and will be issued in fully registered form without coupons, 
in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000. The Bonds will mature serially on March 1 of the 
years, and will bear interest at the rates ( calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day 
months), as shown on the inside cover page hereof, payable on March I and September 1 of each year, commencing 
September 1, 2006 (each an "interest payment date''). 

The Bonds, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York (''DTC''). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual 
purchases of the Bonds will be made in Book•Entry form only under the Book-Entry system described herein (the 
"Book-Entry System''), in the principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. Purchasers will not receive 
certificates representing their interests in the Bonds. Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid by the 
Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds (initially the Director of Finance of the State of Hawali) to DTC, which 
will in turn remit such principal and interest to its Participants (as hereinafter defined), for subsequent distribution to 
the Beneficial Owners (as hereinafter defined) of the Bonds, as described herein. The Bonds may be transferred or 
exchanged in the manner described in the Bonds and as referenced in related proceedings of the State. See "Book• 
Entry System" in Appendix G hereto. If the State ceases to use the Book•Entry System, the Director of Finance 
may select a different Registrar and Paying Agent to perform such payment and registration functions. 



Optional Redemption ofBonds 

The Bonds maturing after March 1, 2016 will be subject to redemption at the option of the State at any time 
on and after March 1, 2016, in whole or in part, in any order of maturity selected by the State and by lot within a 
maturity, at a price equal to the principal amount thereofplus accrued interest to the redemption date. 

In selecting such Bonds for redemption by lot, each Bond in a denomination of $5,000 and each $5,000 
principal portion of a Bond in a denomination in excess of $5,000 will have equal probability of being selected for 
redemption. If any Bond is of a denomination in excess of $5,000, portions of the principal sum thereof in 
installments of$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof may be redeemed. 

If any Bond ( or any portion of the principal sum thereof) shall be redeemable and shall have been duly 
called for redemption and notice of such redemption shall have been duly given as provided in the Bond Issuance 
Certificate, and if on or before the date fixed for snch redemption the State shall have duly made or provided for the 
payment of the principal sum thereof to be redeemed, the premium, if any, payable upon such redemption and the 
interest accrued on the principal sum to be redeemed to the date fixed for such redemption, then such Bond ( or the 
portion of the principal sum thereof to be redeemed) shall become due and payable upon such date fixed for 
redemption and interest shall cease to accrue and become payable from and after the date fixed for such redemption 
on the principal sum thereof to be redeemed. 

Notice of redemption will be mailed, not fewer than 30 days prior to the fixed date for redemption, to each 
holder of a Bond in whose name such bond is registered upon the Bond Register as of the close of business on the 
forty-fifth day (whether or not a business day) next preceding the date fixed for redemption at such Holder's address 
as shown on such Bond Register. Failure of the Holder of a Bond to receive such notice by mail or any defect In 
such notice will not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond. 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

Secnrlty Provisions 

Under the Constitution and the laws of the State, the payments of principal of and interest on general 
obligation bonds of the State, including the Bonds, shall be a first charge on the General Fund of the State. Under 
said laws, the full faith and credit of the State are pledged to the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on 
general obligation bonds of the State, including the Bonds. At the beginning of each month, the Director of Finance 
of the State transfers from the General Fund into a special reserve account the amount of interest due and principal 
maturing during that month on the issued and outstanding general obligation bonds of the State, including the 
Bonds. The special reserve account is used to pay the debt service on such general obligation bonds, including the 
Bonds, and any balance in said account is held for that sole purpose. 

Market Risk 

There can be no assurance of continued marketability of the Bonds at the current price level. V arlous 
factors affect the market value of municipal securities, including the Bonds, over most of which the State has no 
control, such as general economic conditions, inflation, federal economic policies, interest rate trends and proposed 
or actual changes to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. State finances, future State legislative actions and bond 
ratings may also affect the market value of the Bonds. 

Sovereign Immunity 

Under the doctrine of sovereign immunity, a state of the Union (including the State) cannot be sued by its 
own citizens. Under the United States Constitution, a state of the Union (including the State) cannot be sued by 
citizens of another state of the Union or by citizens or subjects of any foreign state. A state (including the State) 
may waive its immunity and consent to a suit against itself. However, such waiver and consent may subsequently be 
withdrawn by the state. Such immunity from and constitutional prohibition against suits against a state extend to 
officers of a state acting in their official capacity. Therefore, there can be no assurance that, in the event the State 
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fails to make timely payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, a right of action would lie against State 
officials to enforce such payment. The State has never defaulted in the payment of either principal of or interest on 
any indebtedness of the State. 

BOND INSURANCE 

The following information bas been furnished by Financial Security Assurance Inc. for use in this Official 
Statement. Reference is made to Appendix H for a specimen of the policy to be issued by Financial Security 
Assurance Inc. 

Bond Insurance Policy 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Financial Security") will 
issue its Municipal Bond Insurance Policy for the Bonds (the "Policy"). The Policy guarantees the scheduled 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due as set forth in the form of the Policy included as an 
exhibit to this Official Statement. 

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New York, 
California, Connecticut or Florida insurance law. 

Financial Security Assurance Inc. 

Financial Security is a New York domiciled financial guaranty insurance company and a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. ("Holdings"). Holdings is an indirect subsidiary of Dexia, 
SA., a publicly held Belgian corporation, and of Dexia Credit Local, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia, 
S.A. Dexia, S.A., through its bank subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the business of public finance, banking and 
asset management in France, Belgium and other European countries. No shareholder of Holdings or Financial 
Security is liable for the obligations of Financial Security. 

At September 30, 2005, Financial Security's combined policyholders' surplus and contingency reserves 
were approximately $2,451,658,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $1,773,571,000 
in accordance with statutory accounting principles. At September 30, 2005, Financial Security's consolidated 
shareholder's equity was approximately $2,867,978,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was 
approximately $1,448,209,000 in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The financial statements of Financial Security included in, or as exhibits to, the Current Report on Form SK 
filed on November 22, 2005 by Holdings with the Securities and Exchange Commission are hereby incorporated by 
reference into this Official Statement. All financial statements of Financial Security included in, or as exhibits to, 
documents filed by Holdings pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
after the date of this Official Statement and before the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall be deemed 
incorporated by reference into this Official Statement. Copies of materials incorporated by reference will be 
provided upon request to Financial Security Assurance Inc.: 31 West 52nd Street, New York, New York 10019, 
Attention: Communications Department (telephone (212) 826-0100). 

The Policy does not protect investors against changes in market value of the Bonds, which market value 
may be impaired as a result of changes in prevailing interest rates, changes in applicable ratings or other causes. 
Financial Security makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in the Bonds. 
Financial Security makes no representation regarding the Official Statement, nor bas it participated in the 
preparation thereof, except that Financial Security has provided to the Issuer the information presented under this 
caption for inclusion in the Official Statement. 
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THE STATE OF HAWAIi 

Certain general infonnation concerning the State of Hawaii is contained in Appendix A to this Official 
Statement. Selected financial infonnation concerning the State of Hawaii, including infonnation about the State's 
outstanding indebtedness and its revenue projections, is contained in Part I of Appendix B to this Official Statement. 
Part II of Appendix B contains the General Pmpose Fmancial Statements and related General Fund schedules 
excei:pted from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of Hawaii for the State's fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2005. The State of Hawaii and other sources considered reliable have furnished the infonnation set forth In 
Appendices A and B. The Underwriters and their counsel have not Independently verified any of such infonnation, 
nor have they made an independent determination of the financial position of the State. There can be no assumption 
that the infonnation is indicative of the current financial position or future financial performance of the State. 

PENDING LfflGATION 

There is currently no pending litigation seeking to restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance, execution or 
delivery of the Bonds or in any other manner affecting the validity of the Bonds or the proceedings or authority 
pursuant to which they are to be sold and issued. 

Office of Hawaiian Affairs and Ceded Lands 

In 1898 the former Republic of Hawaii transferred certain lands to the United States. Upon Hawaii's 
admission to the Union in 1959, the United States reconveyed title to those lands (collectively, the "Ceded Lands") 
to the State of Hawaii (the "State") to be held as a public trust for five pui:poses: (1) public education; (2) 
betterment of the conditions of native Hawaiians; (3) development of farm and home ownership; (4) making public 
improvements; and (5) provision of land for public use. In 1978, the State Constitution was amended expressly to 
provide that the Ceded Lands were to be held as a public trust for native Hawaiians and the general public, and to 
establish the Office of Hawaiian Affairs ("ORA") to administer and manage the proceeds and income derived from 
a pro rata portion of the Ceded Lands to better the conditions of native Hawaiians. 

In 1979, the State legislature (the "Legislature") adopted HRS Chapter 10 ("Chapter 10"), which, as 
amended in 1980, specified, among other things, that ORA expend 20% of all funds derived by the State from the 
Ceded Lands for the betterment of native Hawaiians. 

In 1987, in Trustees of the Office ofHawaiian Affairs v. Yamasaki, 69 Haw. 154 (1987) ("Yamasala~), the 
Hawaii Supreme Court concluded that Chapter 10 was insufficiently clear regarding the amount of monies OHA 
was entitled to receive from the public trust lands. 

In 1990, in response to Yamasaki, the Legislature adopted Act 304, SLH 1990, which (i) defined "public 
land trust" and ''revenue,» (ii) reiterated that 20% of the now defined "revenue» derived from the "public land trust" 
was to be expended by OHA for the betterment of native Hawaiians, and (iii) established a process for OHA and the 
Director of Finance of the State jointly to determine the amount of monies which the State would pay OHA to 
retroactively settle all of OHA's claims for the period June 16, 1980 through June 30, 1991. Since fiscal year 1992 
and until the fust quarter of fiscal year 2002, the State, through its departments and agencies, paid 20% of 
''revenues" to OHA on a quarterly basis. 

In 1993, the Legislature enacted Act 35, SLH 1993, appropriating $136.5 million to pay the amount 
determined to be OHA's claims, with interest, for the period June 16, 1980 through June 30, 1991. 

On January 14, 1994, OHA and its Board of Trustees (the ''Plaintiffs") filed suit against the State ( OHA, 
et al v. State of Hawaii, et aL, Civil No. 94-0205-01 (1st Cir.)("OHA f')), claiming that the amount paid to OHA 
was inadequate and alleging that the State bad failed to account for and fully pay the pro rata share of proceeds and 
income derived from the public land trust. Among other things, the Plaintiffs sought an accounting of all proceeds 
and income, funds and revenue derived from the public land trust since 1978, and restitution or damages amouoting 
to 20% of the proceeds and income derived from the public land trust, as well as interest thereon. In its answer to 
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OHA's complaint, the State denied all of the Plaintiffs' substantive allegations, and asserted i!Jl sovereign immunity 
from suit and other jurisdictional and claim-barring defenses. 

The Plaintiffs thereafter filed four motions for partial SUIIll'.llllcy judgment as to the State's liability to pay 
OHA 20% of monies it receives from (i) the Department of Transportation Airports Division's in-bound duty free 
aiiport concession (including receiplB from the concessionaire's off-aiiport sales operations), (ii) the State-owned 
and operated Hilo Hospital, (ill) the State's public rental housing projects and affordable housing developmenlB, and 
(iv) in1erest Income, including investment earnings (collectively, the "Sources"). In response, the State filed a 
motion to dismiss on the basis of sovereign immunity and opposed Plaintiffs' four motions on the merits and raised 
several affirmative defenses. 

On October 24, 1996, the circuit court filed an order denying the State's motion to dismiss and rejecting ilB 
affirmative defenses. Also on October 24, 1996, the circuit court filed an order granting Plaintiffs' four motions for 
partial SUIIll'.llllcy judgment with respect to the State's liability to pay OHA 20% of the monies it receives from each 
of the Sources, and deferred establishing amounts owed from those Sources for further proceedings or trial. The 
State's motion for leave to file an interlocutory appeal from both the order denying its motion to dismiss and the 
order granting Plaintiffs' four partial SUIIll'.llllcy judgments was granted and all proceedings in the suit were stayed 
pending the Hawaii Supreme Court's disposition ofthe State's appeal. 

On September 12, 2001, the Hawaii Supreme Court concluded OHA I by holding In OHA v. State of 
Hawaii, 96 Haw. 388 (2001) that Act 304 was effectively repealed by ilB own terms, and that there was no judicially 
manageable standard, i.e., a legal standard, by which to determine whether OHA was entitled to the revenues it 
sought from the Sources because the repeal of Act 304 revived the Jaw which the court in Yamasaki had previously 
concluded was insufficiently clear to establish how much OHA was entitled to receive from the Ceded Lands. The 
Supreme Court dismissed OHA I for lack of justiciability, that is, that the case was not appropriate for review by the 
Court, noting that it was up to the Legislature to enact legislation to give effect to the right of native Hawaiians to 
benefit from the Ceded Lands under the State Constitution. Immediately thereafter, agencies ceased paying OHA 
any receipts from the Ceded Lands. 

The Legislature took no action during the 2002, 2003, and 2004 legislative sessions to establish a new 
mechanism for establishing how much OHA was entitled to receive from the Ceded Lands. On January 10, 2003, 
and pending legislative action to establish such a mechanism, the Governor issued Executive Order No. 03-03 
directing state agencies to resume transferring 20% of receipts from leases, licenses and permits indisputably paid 
for the use of improved or unimproved parcels of Ceded Lands to OHA, if federal or state law did not preclude all or 
any portion of the receipt from being used to better the conditions of native Hawaiians, and the transfer of all or any 
portion of the receipt to OHA would not cause the agency to renege on a preexisting pledge, rate covenant, or other 
preexisting obligation to holders of revenue bonds or other indebtedness of the State or the agency. During the 2003 
legislative session, the Legislature appropriated moneys from the various funds into which the Ceded Lands receiplB 
had been deposited after the decision in OHA I was issued and agencies ceased making payments to OHA, and 
directed the agencies to pay them to OHA. 

OHA continues to pursue claims for a portion of the revenues from the Sources and other Ceded Lands that 
were made in OHA I. On July 21, 2003, OHA filed a new lawsuit, OHA et al. v. State ofHawai~ et al., Civil No. 
03-1-1505-07 ("OHA If'). In September 1996, the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation ("DOT") issued a report (the "IG Report'') concluding that payments to OHA between 1992 and 
1995 of $28.2 million by the Hawaii Department of Transportation was a diversion of airport revenues in violation 
of applicable federal law as OHA provided no aiiport services in return. The Attorney General of Hawaii disagreed 
with tbe 1G Report's conclusion, stating in November 1996 that the payments to OHA were an operating cost of the 
airporlB and not a diversion of aiq,ort revenues. In April 1997, tbe Acting Administrator of the FAA concurred in 
writing (the "FAA Memorandum'') with the 1G Report and opposed the Hawaii Attorney General's position. In 
support of its appeal of the circuit court's OHA I decision to the Hawaii Supreme Court, but differing with the 
original position of the Attorney General, the State noted in its May 1997 amended opening brief that "unless the 
federal government's position set forth in the 1G Report changes, Act 304 prohibits the State from paying OHA 
aiiport-related revenues." In ilB June 1997 reply brief, the State stated that the ''DOT Inspector General's 
determination shows that the lederaI government is on its way to finding such payments illegal and requiring the 
State to reimburse past payments of airport-related revenues to OHA." In October 1997, the Department of 
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Transportation and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1998, PL 105-66, 1997 HR 2169 (the ''DOT Appropriation 
Act'') was enacted into federal law. Section 340 of the DOT Appropriation Act ("Section 340") essentially provides 
that in exchange for there being no further payments of airport revenues for claims related to Ceded Lands, any such 
payments received prior to April 1, 1996 need not be repaid. The Hawaii Attorney General submitted enactment of 
Section 340 to the Hawaii Supreme Court in December 1997, "for the Court's use" in conjunction with the OHA I 
appeal, whereupon the Court requested the parties to submit supplemental briefs to address whether Section 340 
affected the Court's interpretation of Act 304. The State, in its March 1998 supplemental brief, stated, inter alia, 
that paying OHA a pro rata share of airport monies violated federal law, and that there was no live, ripe controversy 
regarding those payments because the DOT Appropriation Act relieved the State and OHA of any obligation to 
return improper past payments. 

Despite the adverse OHA I decision, the Plaintiffs in OHA II sued the State for alleged breaches of 
fiduciary duties as purported trustee of the Ceded Lands public trust, alleged violations of Act 304, Chapter 10, and 
Article XII, Sections 4, 5 and 6 of the Hawaii Constitution, violations of the Contract Clause of the U.S. 
Constitution, and misrepresentation and non-disclosure, by the following alleged acts (but not limited to these acts): 
(1) failing to oppose the positions set forth in the FAA Memorandum; (2) resolving its dispute with the FAA by 
obtaining a forgiveness of the prior $28.2 million payment in exchange for a promise not to make future airport 
revenue payments to OHA and not to appeal the positions set forth in the FAA Memorandum; (3) breaching the trust 
duty of impartiality by not opposing the positions set forth in the FAA Memorandum in order to use them as a sword 
in OHA I; (4) failing to timely advise OHA that the State was not going to continue to oppose the positions set forth 
in the FAA Memorandum or IO Report, and that it was planning to settle with the federal government, in order to 
provide OHA with a fair opportunity to take measures to step into the State's position to oppose the FAA; and 
(5) failing to obtain instructions from the Court on how to proceed given the State's conflict between defending the 
State against OHA in OHA I, and having a duty to oppose the positions set forth in the FAA Memorandum. 

OHA further alleges that these alleged "breaches, errors and omissions" were substantial fuctors that 
resulted in the passing of Section 340 and the issuance of the Hawaii Supreme Court's opinion in OHA I. Plaintiffs 
claim that, accordingly, the State is liable to OHA for damages including, but not limited to: (1) the damages 
alleged by OHA in OHA I, and (2) amounts payable under Act 304 that have not been paid, including but not limited 
to, airport landing fees. Plaintiffs also sought declaratory and injunctive relief ordering the State to reinstate Act 
304, pay airport-related revenues to OHA from sources other than airport revenues (and enjoining the State and its 
agents, employees, and officials from opposing any of the above), and sought appointment of an independent trustee 
to replace the State as trustee of the native Hawaiian public trust with respect to matters relating to reinstatement of 
Act 304 and the payment of airport-related revenues to OHA from sources other than airport revenues. On 
December 26, 2003, the court granted the State's motion to dismiss OHA' s complaint in OHA II. The court entered 
a final judgment on May 19, 2004, encompassing the order dismissing the complaint and several procedural orders. 
On June 8, 2004, OHA filed a notice of appeal from the portions of the May 19, 2004 judgment dismissing its 
complaint in OHA II, denying leave to amend the complaint and denying a request for bifurcation of OHA's claims 
for liability and damages. The Hawaii Supreme Court affirmed the circuit court's order dismissing OHA's 
complaint in a decision issued September 9, 2005. OHA filed a motion for reconsideration that the court granted in 
an order filed on December 23, 2005. 

The State intends to defend vigorously against all of OHA's claims. It is currently unable to predict with 
reasonable certainty the magnitude of its potential liability, if any, for such claims. The Attorney General is of the 
view that the claims asserted by OHA in OHA II are without merit. Resolution of all of OHA' s claims in OHA' s 
favor could have a material adverse effect on the State's financial condition. 

In a second lawsuit, OHA and four individuals filed complaints for declaratory and injunctive relief on 
November 4, 1994, and November 9, 1994 (OHA v. Housing Finance and Development Corporation et aL, Civil 
No. 94-4207-11 (1st Cir.)) to enjoin the State from alienating any Ceded Lands and extinguishing any rights 
Hawaiians may have in Ceded Lands that may be alienated. Alternatively, OHA sought a declaration that the 
amowits paid to OHA by the Housing Finance and Development Corporation (now, the Housing and Community 
Development Corporation of Hawaii or the "Corporation") and the State for Ceded Lands that the Corporation 
planned to use to develop and sell housing units pursuant to Act 318, 1992 SLH, were insufficient. Act 318 
established a sepsrate process for valuing the Ceded Lands the Corporation used for its two housing developments at 
Kealakehe and Lahaina, and quantifying the amounts of income and proceeds from the Ceded Lands that the 
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Corporation and State were required to pay to OBA for conveying and using the parcels for the Corporation's two 
projects. 

In December, 2002, following a trial on the issues, the trial court confirmed the State's authority to sell 
Ceded Lands, denied the declaratory ruling that the sale of Ceded Lands did not directly or indirectly release or limit 
Hawaiians' claims to those lands which the plaintiffs requested, and ordered that judgment be entered in the State's 
and Corporation's favor as to Counts I, II, and m of the Amended Complaint The plaintiffs moved for and were 
granted leave to file Immediate appeals from the court's rulings to the Hawaii Supreme Court. Those appeals are 
now pending. Trial to determine the sufficiency of the proceeds paid to OHA by the Coiporation and the State from 
the sale of the particular parcels ofCeded Lands at issue has not been scheduled. 

In a third lawsuit, OBA filed suit against the Hawaii Housing Authority ('1illA" and now, the 
Corporation), the executive director of the HHA, the board members of the HHA and the Director of Finance on 
July 27, 1995 (OHA v. HHA, et al, Civil No. 95-2682-07 {1st Cir.)) to secure additional compensation and an 
itemized accounting of the sums previously paid to OHA for five specifically identified parcels of Ceded Lands 
which were transferred to the HHA for its use to develop, construct and manage additional affordable public rental 
housing units under HRS Chapter201G. On January 11, 2000, all proceedings in this suit were stayed pending the 
Hawaii Supreme Court's decision in the State's appeal in OHA I. OHA disagrees that the repeal and revival of the 
pre-Yamasaki law by the Hawaii Supreme Court's September 12, 2001 decision in OHA I should also require 
dismissal of the claims OBA makes in OHA v. HHA, and the case remains pending. 

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 

In 1991, the Legislature enacted HRS Chapter 674, entitled ''Individual Claims Resolution Under the 
Hawaiian Home Lands Trust," which established a process for individual beneficiaries of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission Act of 1920 (the ''HHCA") to file claims to recover actual economic damages they believed they 
suffered from a breach of trust caused by an act or omission of an official of the State between August 21, 1959, 
when Hawaii became a state, and June 30, 1988. Claims were required to be filed no later than August 31, 1995. 
There were 4,327 claims filed by 2,753 individuals. 

The process was a three-step process which: (1) began with informal proceedings presided over by the 
Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Individual Claims Review Panel (the "Panel") to provide the Legislature with 
non-binding findings and advisory opinions for each claim; (2) provided for the Legislature's review and 
consideration of the Panel's findings and advisory opinions, and appropriations of funds to pay the actual economic 
damages the Legislature deemed appropriate by October 1, 1999; and (3) allowed claimants to bring de novo civil 
actions by December 31, 1999 if they were not satisfied with the Panel's findings and advisory opinions, or the 
Legislature's response to the Panel's recommendations. 

Legislation to allow the Panel and the Legislature until September 30, 2000 to act on all claims, and 
postpone the deadline for unsatisfied claimants to file suit until December 31, 2000, was adopted by the Legislature, 
but vetoed by the Governor in the 1999 regular session, and the Panel sunsetted on December 31, 1999. As of 
September 30, 1999, the Panel had not reviewed claims from 1,376 claimants, and all but the claims of 
two claimants had not been acted upon by the Legislature. In 1997, the Legislature declared its intent to postpone 
acting upon the Panel's recommendations until all claims had been reviewed and forwarded to it. 

On September 30, 1999, three claimants filed a suit for declaratory and injunctive relief in the U.S. District 
Court for the District of Hawaii to secure an injunction prohibiting the enforcement of the notice and suit filing 
deadlines specified in HRS Ch. 674. Kalima et al. v. Cayetano, Civil No. 99-00671HG/LEK. A motion for 
preliminary injunction was heard on November 15, 1999 and denied as moot on September 28, 2000. By stipulation 
filed on November 13, 2000, the action was dismissed without prejudice. 

On December 29, 1999, the same three claimants filed a class action lawsuit in the state circuit court for 
declaratory and injunctive relief and for general, special and punitive damages for breach of lrust or fiduciary duty 
under HRS Chs. 674 and 673, violation of the due process, equal protection and native rights clauses of the State 
Constitution, and breach of contract under HRS Ch. 661. Kalima et al. v. State ofHawaii et al., Civil No. 99-4771-
12VSM {1st Cir.) ("Kalima f'). Five other claimants filed similar individual claims actions for themselves on or 
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before December 31, 1999. Aguiar v. State ofHawai~ et al., Civil No. 99-612 (3rd Cir.); Silva v. State ofHawai~ 
et al., Civil No. 99-4775-12 (1st Cir.); Wilhelm v. State of Hawaii, et al., Civil No. 99-4774-12 (1st Cir.); 
Williamson v. State of Hawaii, et al., Civil No. 99-4TI3-12 (1st Cir.); Hanohano v. State ofHawaii, et al., Civil No. 
99-4TI2-12 (1st Cit.). The plaintiffs in these othet actions have stipulated to stay all proceedings in their actions 
pending the resolntion of all questions of law in Kalima I that are common to the questions of law presented in their 
suits. Plaintiff Hanohano has since stipulated to the dismissal of her action without prejudice. 

On March 30, 2000, the three named plaintiffs in Kalima I filed a second class action lawsuit in the state 
circuit court for declaratoi:y and injunctive relief, and fot damages under HRS Ch. 673, for the Panel's and 
Legislature's alleged failure to remedy their breach of trust claims under HRS Ch. 674. Kalima et al. v. State of 
Hawaii, et al., Civil No. 00-1-1041-03 (1st Cit.) ("Kalima If'). All proceedings in this action were stayed by 
stipulation, pending the resolution of those questions of law in Kalima I that are common to both Kalima I and 
Kalima/I. 

On August 30, 2000, the circuit court entered an order in Kalima I granting plaintiffs' motion fot summary 
judgment and declaratoi:y relief as to Count I of the Complaint, and denying the State's motion fot judgment on the 
pleadings. Essentially, the circuit court rejected the sovereign immunity, lack of subject mallet jurisdiction, and no­
cause of action defenses the State asserted, and ruled that the plaintiffs and those similarly situated to them (by an 
order filed on August 29, 2000, a class was so certified for purposes of Count I) could pursue their claims fot 
damages and other relief under HRS Chs. 674 and 661. 

The circuit court allowed the State to take an interlocutoi:y appeal from the August 30, 2000 order to the 
Hawaii Supreme Court and entered an order staying all proceedings in Kalima I pending the Supreme Court's 
disposition of the appeal. By an order entered on September 20, 2001, the Supreme Court dismissed that appeal fot 
lack of appellate jurisdiction. Since then, the State bas secured a certification of finality for the August 30, 2000 
order from the circuit court, and filed another notice of appeal of the order so that the questions of law the circuit 
court decided can be reviewed by the Supreme Court prior to trial. All briefs have been filed and the parties are 
awaiting otal argument ot a decision from the court in this second appeal. All proceedings in Kalima I in the circuit 
court remain stayed, and no trial date has been set in either Kalima I ot any of the other individual claims cases. 

Employees' Retirement System 

In Kaho'ohanohano, etaL v. State of Hawaii, Civil No. 02-1-1001-04 (GWBC) (1st Cir.), the plaintiffs 
challenged certain legislation enacted by the State Legislature in 1999 ("Act 100"). Act 100 authorized the State to 
apply the Employees' Retirement System's ("ERS'') actuarial investment earnings in excess of ten percent fot fiscal 
years 1997 and 1998 toward the State and county employees' annual contributions to tbe pension accumulation of 
the ERS fund. The plaintiffs asked the court to declare Act 100 unconstitutional, to enjoin the State from taking 
future actions inconsistent with Article XVI, §2 of the Hawaii Constitution, and to require the State to pay damages 
to the ERS in the amount of $346.9 million plus lost earnings and pre- and post-judgment interest, costs, and 
attorneys' fees. 

The Plaintiffs were allowed to amend their complaint to add two state civil service employees as plaintiffs, 
and their motion to certify a class, consisting of all current and fotmer public employees otber than members of the 
legislature, judges and attorneys in the Department of the Attorney General, was granted. Motions made by the 
trustees of the ERS to intervene as plaintiffs and by the City and County of Honolulu to intervene as a defendant 
were granted. The Court made the counties of Hawaii, Maui, and Kauai intervenor defendants. 

Plaintiffs filed two motions for partial summary judgment (as to liability only), and the State filed a motion 
to dismiss and a motion for summary judgment against the claims of the Plaintiffs as well as tbe ERS' trustees. The 
State's motion to dismiss was denied in an order filed on May 16, 2003. An order granting summai:y judgment in 
favor of the State and against all of the claims of the Plaintiffs and ERS trustees, and denying the Plaintiffs' two 
motions, and a final judgment were entered on June 24, 2003. The county lntervenot defendants filed a motion to 
alter ot amend the order and judgment on June 27, 2003. By court rule, the motion was deemed denied on 
September 25, 2003, and notices of appeal from the June 24, 2003 order and judgment were filed by Plaintiffs and 
the ERS trustees on October 27, 2003. The State cross-appealed the order denying its motion to dismiss on 
November 7, 2003. On December 10, 2003, the circuit court entered an order granting the county intervenor 
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defendants motion to alter or amend the June 24, 2003 order and judgment, and filed an amended summary 
judgment order and an amended final judgment. The Plaintiffs and the ERS trustees filed notices of appeal from the 
amended order and amended judgment on December 23, 2003. The appeals from the amended order and amended 
judgment were dismissed on April 30, 2004. The appeals from the June 24, 2003 order and judgment are fully 
briefed and await oral argument or a decision from the Hawaii Supreme Court. 

A description of the ERS and Act 100 is provided under '1™PLOYEE RELATIONS: STATE 
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - State Employees' Retirement System" in Appendix A. 

Other 

The State has also been named as a defendant in numerous other lawsuits and claims arising in the normal 
course of operations. 

TAXMATTERS 

In the opinion of Katten Muchin Rosenman 1LP ("Bond Counsel"), based upon an analysis of existing 
laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain 
representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for 
federal income tsx purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"), and the Bonds 
and the income therefrom are exempt from all taxation by the State or any county or other political subdivision 
thereof, except inheritance, transfer, estate and certain franchise taxes. Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that 
interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individoal or corporate alternative 
minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when 
calculating corporate alternstive minimum taxable income. A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of 
Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix F hereto. 

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of 
soch Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Bonds), the 
difference constitutes "original issoe discount," the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each 
beneficial owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income 
tsx purposes and State of Hawaii tax purposes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds 
is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond 
houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or 
wholesalers). The original issue discouut with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to 
maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compouuded semiannually (with straight-line 
Interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue discouut is added to the adjusted basis of 
such Bonds to detelllline taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) 
of such Bonds. Beneficial owners of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax 
consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of beneficial owners who 
do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of 
such Bonds is sold to the public. 

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amouut higher than their principal 
amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) ("Premium Bonds") will be treated as having 
amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond premium in the case of bonds, like 
the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a beneficial owner's basis in a Premium Bond, will be 
reduced by the amouut of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such beneficial owner. Beneficial 
owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable 
bond premium in their particular circumstances. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tsx purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The State has made certain 
representations and covenanted to comply with certain restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure 
that interest on the Bonds will not be included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or 
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failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for 
federal income tax pmposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel 
assumes the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Bond Counsel has not 
undertaken to determine ( or to inform any person) whether any actions taken ( or not taken), or events occuning ( or 
not occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel's attention after the date of issuance of the Bonds may 
adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds. 

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Ordinances authorizing the Bonds, the 
Authorizing Certificate, the Tax Certificate of the State relating to the Bonds, and other relevant documents may be 
changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or omitted under 
the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents. Bond Counsel expresses no 
opinion as to any Bond or the interest thereon if any such change occurs or action is taken or omitted upon the 
advice or approval of bond counsel other than Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for 
federal income tax pmposes and that the Bonds and the income therefrom are exempt from taxation by the State or 
any political subdivision thereof, except inheritance, tnlnsfer, estate and certain franchise taxes, the ownership or 
disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds may otherwise affect a beneficial owner's federal, 
state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax 
status of the beneficial owner or the beneficial owner's other items of income or deduction. Bond Counsel expn,sses 
no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences. 

Future legislation, if enacted into law, or clarification of the Code may cause interest on the Bonds to be 
subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation, or otherwise pn,vent beneficial owners from realizing the 
full current benefit of the tax status of such interest The introduction or enactment of any such future legislation or 
clarification of the Code may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective purchasers 
of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation, as to 
which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not directly 
addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel's judgment as to the proper treatment of the Bonds for 
federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") or the courts. Furthermore, 
Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about the future activities of the State, or 
about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the 
enforcement thereof by the IRS. The State covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the Code. 

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, unless 
separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the State or the beneficial owners regarding the tax• 
exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. Under current procedures, parties other 
than the State and their appointed counsel, including the beneficial owners, would have little, if any, right to 
participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an 
audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with which the 
State legitimately disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of 
the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may 
affect the market price for, or the marketability of, the Bonds, and may cause the State or the beneficial owners to 
incur significant expense. 

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

All legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to the approval of 
Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP, Bond Counsel to the State. The form of the opinion Bond Counsel proposes to 
render is set forth in Appendix F hereto. Copies of the approving opinion of Bond Counsel will be available at the 
time of delivery of the Bonds. Bond Counsel undertakes no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness 
of this Official Statement. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel, 
McCorriston Miller Mukai MacKinnon LLP. 
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RATINGS 

Fitch Ratings, Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The 
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., are expected to rate the Bonds "AAA", "Aaa" and "AAA," respectively, with the 
understanding that upon delivery of the Bonds, the municipal bond insurance policy insuring payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds, will be issued by Financial Security Assurance Inc. Such ratings reflect only 
the respective views of such rating agencies, and any explanation of the significance of such ratings should be 
obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same. There is no assuraoce that any of such ratings will be retained 
for any given period of time or that the same will not be revised downward, suspended or withdrawn entirely by the 
rating agency furnishing the same if, in its judgment, circumstances so wammt The State undertakes no 
responsibility to oppose any such downward revision, suspension or withdrawal. Any such downward revision, 
suspension or withdrawal of such ratings, or any of them, may have an adverse effect on the market price of the 
Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Underwriters have agreed to purchase the Bonds at an aggregate purchase price equal to the principal 
amount of the Bonds, plus a net premium of$19,516,673.40, and less and an aggregate underwriting fee of$1,183,635.00 
The Underwriters will be obligated to purchase all of the Bonds ifany are purchased. 

The Underwriters reserve the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the Bonds to the 
public. The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers depositing such Bonds into 
investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices appearing on the inside cover, and the public 
offering prices may be changed from time to time. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING 
FORWARl).LOOKJNG STATEMENTS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference In this Official Statement constitute "forward­
look:ing statements." Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as ''plan," "expect," 
"estimate," "budget" or similar words. 

The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward looking statements 
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, performances or 
achievements described to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed 
or implied by such forward looking statements. The State does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those 
forward looking statements if and when changes to its expectations, or events, conditions or circumstances on which 
such statements are based, occur, unless such updates or revisions are made in the course of fulfilling its continuing 
disclosure obligation. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The State will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") in the form set 
forth in Appendix E hereto, for the benefit of the holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, agreeing to provide 
certain financial information and operating data relating to the State to certain information repositories annually and 
to provide notice to the Municipal Securities Rulemak:ing Board of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if 
material, pursuant to the requirements of Section (b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 
(17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the "Rule"). See "APPENDIX E - FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
CERTIFICATE." 

The State has not failed to comply with any of its previous continuing disclosure certificates under the 
Rule. A failure by the State to comply with the Disclosure Certificate will not constitute an event of default of the 
Bonds, although any Bondholder or any Beneficial Owner may bring action to compel the State to comply with its 
obligations under the Disclosure Certificate. Any such failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and 
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must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale 
of the Bonds in the secondary market. Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and 
liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The General Purpose Financial Statements and additional information as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2005, included as Part II of Appendix B, have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors, as stated in their 
report appearing therein, which is based in part on the reports of other auditors. The State has neither requested nor 
obtained the consent of KPMG LLP to include their report, and such firm has perlonned no procedures subsequent 
to rendering their report. There can be no assurance that the infonnation is indicative of the current financial 
position or future financial performance of the State. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

To the extent any statements made in this Official Statement involve matters of opinion or of estimates, 
whether or not so expressly stated, they are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation 
is made that any of the estimates will be realized. Neither this Official Statement, nor any statement that may have 
been made verbally or in writing, is to be construed as a contract with the holders of any of the Bonds. The 
Department of Budget and Finance, State of Hawaii has prepared this Official Statement and has duly authorized the 
delivery hereof. 
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APPENDIXA 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT 
THE STATE OF HAWAD 

The statistical information presented by this Appendix A is the most current information available to the 
State. Because such information becomes available at different times, the dates of such information, as presented 
herein, are not the same. 

INTRODUCTION 

General 

The State was admitted into the Union on August 21, 1959, as the fiftieth state. It is an archipelago of eight 
major islands, seven of which are inhabited, plus 124 named islets, totaling 6,425 square miles in land area, located 
in the Pacific Ocean in the Northern Hemisphere, mostly below the Tropic ofCancer, about 2,400 starute miles from 
San Francisco. The State is slightly larger than the combined area of the States of Connecticut and Rhode Island and 
ranks forty-seventh of the fifty states in land area, being also larger in area than the State of Delaware. The island of 
Hawaii is the largest island, with 4,028 square miles in area The other inhabited islands, in oo:ler of size, are Maui, 
Oahu, Kauai, Molokai, Lanai and Niihau. Accoo:ling to the U.S. Census, the total population of the State was 
422,770 in 1940, 499,794 in 1950, 632,772 in 1960, 769,913 in 1970, 964,691 in 1980, 1,115,274 in 1990, and 
1,211,537 in 2000, making the State the forty-second most populous state in the Union as of 2000. The City and 
County of Honolulu consists of the island of Oahu (plus some minor islets) with a land area of599.8 square miles. 
The capital of the State and the principal port are located on Oahu. Accoo:ling to the 2000 U.S. Census, about 
72.3% of the population of the State lives on Oahu. Hawaii's population exhibits greater ethnic diversity than other 
states because it is descended from immigrants from the Far East as well as from Europe and the mainland 
United States. Based on the 2000 U.S. Census, approximately 41.6% of the State's population is of Asian descent 
and about 24.3% of the State's population is Caucasian. Native Hawaiians and other Pacific Islanders constirute 
9.4% of the population. The balance consists of people of mixed races and other races, such as African Americans 
and American Indians. 

State Government 

The Constirution of the State provides for three separate branches of government: the legislative branch, the 
executive branch and the judicial branch. The legislative power is vested in a bicameral Legislature consisting of a 
Senate of twenty-five members elected for four-year terms and a House of Representatives of fifty-one members 
elected for two-year terms. The Legislature convenes annually. The executive power is vested in a Governor 
elected for a four-year term. In the event of the absence of the Governor from the State, or his or her inability to 
exercise and discharge the powers and duties of bis or her office, the Lieutenant Governor, also elected for a four. 
year term, serves as the chief executive. Under the Constitution, the judicial power is vested io a Supreme Court, 
one iotermediate appellate court, circuit courts, district courts, and such other courts as the Legislature may from 
time to time establish. Pursuant to starute, the Legislature has established four circuit courts, four district courts and 
an intermediste appellate court. The executive and administrative offices are limited to not more than twenty 
principal departments under the supervision of the Governor. The executive functions have in fact been grouped 
into eighteen departments. The heads of the departments are appointed by the Governor, with the advice and 
consent of the Senate, and hold office for a term to expire with the term of the Governor. The Department of Budget 
and Finance is one of the principal departments permitted by the Constirution of the State, with the head of said 
department being designated as the Director of Finance. Under the general direction of the Governor, the 
Department of Budget and Finance administers the State's proposed six-year program and financial plan, the State 
budget, and financial management programs of the State. 
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The Counties and Their Relationship lo the State 

There are four counties in the State: the City and County of Honolulu, the County of Maui, the County of 
Hawaii and the County of Kauai (and one quasi-rounty, Kalawao). Each of the counties has a separate charter for 
its government, each of which provides for an elected mayor and an elected council, The mayor is the chief 
executive and the council is the legislative body. There are ,w independent or separate cities or other 
municipalities, school districts or townships. The State government of Hawaii has total responsibility for many 
functions that are performed by or shared by local governments In most other parts of the United States. For 
example, the State pays all costs in connection with the public school system, libraries, public welfare, and judiciary. 
The greatest expenditures by the State in past years have been in the areas of education and public welfare. The 
counties' major areas of responsihility and expenditure are in police and fire protection, waste disposal, water and 
sewer facilities, and secondary streets and highways. 

DEBTSTRUCTURE 

Types of Bonds Authorized by the Constitution 

The Constimtion of the State empowers the Legislature to authorize the issuance of four types of bonds 
(defined by the Constimtion as bonds, notes and other instruments of indebtedness): general obligation bonds 
( defined by the Constimtion as all bonds for the payment of the principal and interest for which the full faith and 
credit of the State or a political subdivision are pledged and, unless otherwise indicated, including reimbursable 
general obligation bonds hereinafter defined); bonds issued under special improvement stamtes; revenue bonds 
( defined by the Constimtion as all bonds payable from revenues, or user taxes, or aoy combination of both, of a 
public undertaking, improvement, system or loao program and any loan made thereunder and secured as may be 
provided by law); and special purpose revenue bonds (defined by the Constimtion as all bonds payable from rental 
or other payments made to ao issuer by a person pursuant to contrnct and secured as may be provided by law). 
Under the Constitution, special purpose revenue bonds shall only be authorized or issued to finance facilities of or 
for, or to loan the proceeds of such bonds to assist, manufacturing, processing or industrial enterprises, certain not­
for-profit private schools, utilities serving the general public, health care facilities provided to the general public by 
not-for-profit corporations, early childhood education and care facilities provided to the general public by not-for­
profit corporations, or low and moderate income government housing programs. All bonds of the State other than 
special purpose revenue bonds must be authorized by a majority vote of the members to which each house of the 
Legislature is entitled. Special purpose revenue bonds of the State must be authorized by two-thirds vote of the 
members to which each house of the Legislature is entitled. 

Outstanding Indebtedness and Debt Limit 

The Constitution provides that determinations of the total outstanding indebtedness of the State aod the 
exclusions therefrom shall be made annually and certified by law or as prescribed by law. General obligation bonds 
may be issued by the State, provided that such bonds at the time of issuance would not cause the total amount of 
principal and interest payable in the current or any future fiscal year, whichever is higher, on such bonds aod on all 
outstanding general obligation bonds in the current or any future fiscal year, whichever is higher, to exceed a sum 
equal to 18.5% of the average of the General Fund revenues of the State in the three fiscal years immediately 
preceding such issuance. For the purposes of such determination, General Fund revenues of the State do not include 
moneys received as grants from the federal government and receipts in reimbursement of any reimbursable general 
obligation bonds which are excluded in computing the total indebtedness of the State. 

In order to carry out the provisions contained in the Constitution, the Legislature enacted Part IV of 
Chapter 39, HRS ("Part IV"), to require the Director of Finance to prepare statements of the total outstanding 
indebtedness of the State and the exclusions therefrom and of the debt limit of the State evidencing the power of the 
State to issue general obligation bonds and, prior to the issuance of any general obligation bonds, to find that the 
issuance of such bonds will not cause the debt limit of the State to be exceeded. Part IV provides that such 
statements shall be prepared as of July 1 of each year and submitted to the Legislature no later than December 1 of 
such year. The July 1, 2005 statement is the most recent such statement prepared and submitted to the Legislature. 
See "INFORMATION ABOUT INDEBTEDNESS" in Part I of Appendix B for a tabular summary of the 
statement of total outstanding indebtedness of the State and exclusions therefrom as of July 1, 2005, including 
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general obligation bonded indebtedness, revenue bonded indebtedness, special assessment bonded indebtedness and 
special purpose revenue bonded indebtedness, and the permitted exclusions from the general obligation bonded 
indebtedness. See "APPENDIXD - GENERAL OBLIGATION FUNDED DEBT OF THE STATE OF 
HAWAD." 

Tbe summary statement of debt limit of the State evidencing the power of the State to incur indebtedness 
sets forth the General Fund revenues of the State, exclusive of federal grants, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2003, 2004 and 2005 and the net General Fund revenues after required exclusions, the average of the said three 
fiscal years, and the limit of total principal and interest which may be payable in any fiscal year. See ''SUMMARY 
STATEMENT OF THE DEBT LIMIT OF THE STATE OF HAWAII" in Part I of AppendixB. The greatest 
amount of principal and interest payable in any fiscal year on the outstanding general obligation indebtedness as of 
July 1, 2005 and on the Bonds, after exclusions therefrom permitted by the Constitution, is $533,619,678 in the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2009. A summary of debt service on all general obligation bonded indebtedness of the State is 
set forth in the under "SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE" in Part I of Appendix B; however, the debt service 
excluded in that table includes all general obligation bonds for which reimbursement is made regardless of whether 
such bonds may be excluded under the Constitution. 

As calculated from the State Comptroller's Bond Fund report as of October 31, 2005, the amount of 
authorized but unissued general obligation bonds is $1,305,057,989. Act 178, SLl:12005 appropriated an additional 
$182,869,000 for fiscal year 2006-2007. The authori2:ed but unissued bonds currently total $1.49 billion. The bonds 
are scheduled to be issued prior to June 30, 2009. 

Exclusions 

The Constitution contains nine general provisions excluding certain types of bonds (including certain 
general obligation bonds) when determining the power of the State to issue general obligation bonds or the funded 
debt of any political subdivision. Six of these exclusions are described below. As stated above, the limitation on 
indebtedness of the State under the Constitution applies only to the power to issue general obligation bonds, and the 
limitation is measured by the debt service on general obligation bonds against the three year average of General 
Fund revenues. The three exclusions relating to revenue bonds, special purpose revenue bonds, and bonds issued 
under special improvement statutes for which the only security is the properties benefited or assessments thereon are 
chiefly of concern to counties when computing the funded debt of such counties. Accordingly, those provisions will 
not be discussed in this Official Statement. However, the complete provisions of Sections 12 and 13 of Article VII 
of the Constitution relating to the incurring of indebtedness by the State and its political subdivisions are set forth in 
Appendix C to this Official Statement. 

One of the nine exclusionary provisions excludes bonds that have matured, or that matunl in the then 
current fiscal year, or that have been irrevocably called for redemption and the redemption date has occurred or will 
occur in the then current fiscal year, or for the full payment of which moneys or securities have been irrevocably set 
aside. 

Another of the exclusionary provisions exclndes reimbursable general obligation bonds ( defined in the 
Constitution as general obligation bonds issned for a public undertaking, improvement or system from which 
revenues, or user taxes, or a combination of both, may be derived for the payment of the principal and interest as 
reimbursement to the General Fund and for which reimbursement is required by law, and, in the case of general 
obligation bonds issued by the State for a political subdivision, general obligation bonds for which the payment of 
the principal and interest as reimbursement to the General Fund is required by law to be made from the revenues of 
the political subdivision) issued for a public undertaking, improvement or system, but only to the extent that 
reimbursements to the General Fund are made from net revenues, or net user tax receipts, or both, derived from the 
particular undertaking, improvement or system for the immediately preceding fiscal year, with the result that the 
amount of reimbursable general obligation debt excluded will vary from year to year. A "user tax" is defined by the 
Constitution as a tax on goods or services or on the consumption thereof, the receipts of which are substantially 
derived from the consumption, use or sale of goods and services in the utilization of the functions or services 
furnished by a public undertaking, improvement or system. Thus, for example, the aviation fuel tax is a user tax 
insofar as the airports system of the State is concerned, since the tax is substantially derived from the sale of a good 
(aviation fuel) in the utilization of the functions of the airports, but the aviation fuel tax would not be a user tax so 
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far as schools or a stadium is concerned, since the tax is not derived from the consumption or use or sale of goods in 
using schools or a stadium. 

Two other exclusionary provisions exclude (a) reimbursable general obligation bonds of the State issued 
for any political subdivision, but only if reimbursement by the political subdivision to the State for the payment of 
the principal aod interest is required by Jaw and (b) general obligation bonds issued for assessable public 
improvements to the extent reimbursements to the General Fund for the principal and interest on such bonds are in 
fact made from assessment collections available therefore. 

One other exclusionary provision excludes bonds constituting instruments of indebtedness under which the 
State incurs a contingent liability as a guarantor, but only to the extent the principal amount of such bonds does not 
exceed 7% of the principal amount of outstanding general obligation bonds not otherwise excluded by the 
exclusionary provisions of the Constitution and subject to the condition that the State shall establish a reserve in an 
amount in a reasonable proportion to outstanding loans guaranteed by the State. This exclusion is intended to permit 
the exclusion of such items as general obligation guarantees of loans under State loan programs to the extent the 
principal amount of such items does not exceed 7% of the outstanding principal amount of general obligation bonds 
not otherwise excluded. At such time as the principal amount of such items exceeds 7% of the outstanding principal 
amount of general obligation bonds not otherwise excluded, the potential debt service on all such items in excess of 
7% of the outstanding principal amount of general obligation bonds not otherwise excluded would be included in 
determining the power of the State to incur indebtedness. 

A final exclusionary provision excludes bonds issued by or on behalf of the State or a political subdivision 
to meet appropriations for any fiscal period in anticipation of the collection of revenues for such period or to meet 
casual deficits or failures of revenue, if required to be paid within one year, and bonds issued by or on behalf of the 
State to suppress insurrection, to repel invasion, to defend the State In war or to meet emergencies caused by disaster 
or act of God. 

Other Constitutional and Statutory Provisions 

General obligation bonds of the State must be authorized pursuant to the Constitution by a majority vote of 
the members to which each house of the Legislature is entitled. The Legislature from time to time enacts laws 
specifying the amount of such bonds (without fixing any particular details of such bonds) that may be issued and 
defining the pmposes for which the bonds are to be issued. 

The Constitution requires that general obligation bonds of the State with a term exceeding two years shall 
be in serial form maturing in substantially equal installments of principal, or maturing In substantially equal 
installments of both principal and interest, the first installment of principal to mature not later than five years from 
the date of the issue of such series and the last installment to mature not later than twenty-five years from the date of 
such issue, except that the last installment on general obligation bonds sold to the federal government, on 
reimbursable general obligation bonds and on bonds constituting instruments of indebtedness under which the State 
or a political subdivision incurs a contingent liability as a guarantor shall mature not later than thirty-five years from 
the date of such issue. 

Part I of Chapter 39, HRS, as amended, is the general law for the issuance of general obligation bonds of 
the State. Sucb part sets forth limitations on general obligation bonds, such as interest rates and maturity dates, and 
also sets forth the provisions for the sale and form of such bonds. Such part provides that the Director of Finance, 
with the approval of the Governor, may issue from time to time general obligation bonds of the State in accordance 
with acts of the Legislature authorizing the issuance of such bonds and defining the pmposes for which such bonds 
are to be issued. 

The Governor determines when the projects authorized by the acts authorizing bonds shall commence. 
General obligation bonds are sold from time to time pursuant to the authorization of such acts and Part I of 
Chapter 39, HRS, as amended, in order to finance the projects. The Governor then allots the proceeds of the bonds 
so issued to the purposes specified in the acts authorizing bonds. 
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Section 11 of Article VIl of the Constitution provides that all appropriations for which the source is general 
obligation bond funds or the General Fund must be for specified periods which may not exceed three years, except 
for appropriations from the State educational facilities improvement special fund. Any appropriation or any portion 
of an appropriation which is unencumbered at the close of the fiscal period for which the appropriation is made will 
lapse, provided that no appropriation or portion thereof for which the source is general obligation bond funds shall 
lapse if the Legislatnre determines that such appropriation is necessary to qualify for federal aid financing and 
reimbUt!lelilent. A general obligation bond authoril:ation, to the extent such authoril:ation is dependent on a specific 
appropriation, mnst be reduced in an amount equal to the amount of appropriation lapsed by operation of law or 
Section 11 of Article VD of the Constitntion. 

Set forth in Appendix C to this Official Statement are the provisions of Sections 11, 12 and 13 of 
Article VIl of the Constitntion applicable to the incurring of indebtedness by the State and its political subdivisions. 

Flnanciug Agreements (Including Leases) 

Chapter 37D, HRS, provides for financing agreements (including leases and installment sale agreements) 
for the improvement, use or acquisition of real or personal property which is or will be owned or operated by the 
State or any State agency and specifies that any such financing agreement shall not be an obligation for which the 
full faith and credit of the State or any state agency is pledged, and that no moneys other than amounts appropriated 
by the Legislature or otherwise held in trust for such purposes shall be required to be applied to the payment thereof. 
The Legislature is not required to appropriate moneys for such pmpose, and financing agreements do not constitute 
"bonds" within the meaning of Sections 12 or 13 of Article VD of the Constitution. Chapter 37D does provide that 
the Governor's Executive Budget shall include requests to the Legislature for appropriation of moneys to pay 
amounts due each fiscal period under financing agreements. 

Reimbursement to State General Fund for Debt Service 

As indicated above, all general obligation bonds of the State are payable as to principal and interest from 
the General Fund of the State. Acts of the Legislature authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds for 
certain purposes frequently (but not always) require that the General Fund be reimbursed for the payment from such 
fund of the debt service on such bonds, such reimbursement to be made from any income or revenues or user taxes 
derived from the carrying out of such purposes. Such income or revenues or user taxes are not pledged to the 
payment of such bonds. There are now outstanding general obligation bonds (including general obligation 
refunding bonds) issued for highway, harbor and airport facilities, for land development, for economic development 
projects, for university revenue projects, and for State parking facilities, where the General Fund of the State is 
required to be reimbursed for all debt service, and for the housing program, where the General Fund is required to be 
reimbursed for interest only. Reimbursement is made from the income or revenues or user taxes derived from or 
with respect to such highways, harbor and airport facilities, land development, economic development projects, 
university projects, parking facilities and housing programs. Of the bonds referred to in this paragraph: 
(a) reimbursement to the General Fund of general obligation bonds issued for highways is made exclusively from 
the tax on motor fuel and does not include any revenues such as toll revenue; and (b) reimbursement to the General 
Fund of general obligation bonds issued for airports is made from the aviation fuel tax as well as from airports 
system revenues. See ''TAX STRUCTURE; GENERAL AND SPECIAL FUNDS; FEDERAL MONEYS; 
BUDGET SYSTEM; EXPENDITURE CONTROL-Speclal Fund" for a description of such taxes. 
Reimbursement to the General Fund of all the other general obligation bonds referred to in this paragraph is made 
from non-tax revenues, such as from wharfage and dockage charges, pier rentals and other charges for harbor 
facilities; from land sales or rentals; and from dormitory and dining hall revenues and income from other ancillary 
facilities. 

Some of the bonds referred to in the immediately preceding paragraph do not constitute "reimbursable 
general obligation bonds" excludable from the debt limit because they are not issued for the type of public 
undertaking, improvement or system to which the constitutional provisions for such exclusion pertain. See "DEBT 
STRUCTURE - Exclusions," See "GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OUTSTANDING" in Partl of 
Appendix B for a tabular summary of reimbursable and non-reimbursable general obligation bonds. 
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TAX STRUCTURE; GENERAL AND SPECIAL FUNDS; 
FEDERAL MONEYS; BUDGET SYSTEM; EXPENDITURE CONTROL 

lntrodnctlon 

The State Constitution requires the establishment of a tax review commission to be appointed as provided 
by law every five years. The pwpose of such commission is to submit to the Legislature an evaluation of the State's 
tax structure and to recommend revenue and tax policy, after which such commission is dissolved. The Constitution 
does not require action by the Legislature with respect to the recommendations as submitted. The Legislature has 
the option of accepting or rejecting all or portions of the commission's findings. The third tax review commission 
convened on September 26, 1995, and issued its report in final form on December 16, 1996. As a result of a 
proposed Constitutional amendment to have the tax review commission appointed every ten years, a commission 
was not appointed in 2000. The proposed amendment failed to pass and a commission was appointed in 2001, and 
issued its final report in December 2002. A new commission has been appointed for 2005. The findings and 
recommendations of the commission are merely recommendations and the Legislature is not required to adopt the 
findings. 

The taxes described below account for substantially all of the tax revenues of the State and are subject in all 
cases to subsequent legislation. The Department of Taxation, headed by the Director of Taxation, is charged with 
the responsibility of administering and enforcing the tax revenue Jaws and the collection of all taxes and other 
payments payable thereunder. All tax revenues of the State are credited to one or the other of the two operating 
funds maintained by the State, designated respectively as the General Fund and the Special Fund. The revenues and 
expenditures for the last five fiscal years of these two funds are set forth hereinafter. 

The State Constitution does not prohibit or limit the power of taxation and reserves all taxing power to the 
State, except to the extent delegated by the Legislature to the political subdivisions of the State and except all the 
functions, powers and duties related to real property taxation, which shall be exercised exclusively by the counties. 
The State cannot predict the impact, if any, of proposed changes in the federal individual and corporate income tax 
laws on the tax revenues of the State. 

General Fund 

The General Fund is used to account for resources not specifically set aside for special purposes. Any 
activity not financed through another fund is financed through the General Fund. The appropriations acts adopted 
by the Legislature provide the basic framework in which the resources and obligations of the General Fund are 
accounted. The operating appropriations and the related General Fund accounting process complement each other 
as basic control functions in the general administration of the government. 

The Constitution provides that whenever the General Fund balance at the close of each of two successive 
fiscal years exceeds 5% ofGeneral Fund revenues for each of the IWO fiscal years, the Legislature in the next regular 
session shall provide for a tax refund or tax credit to the taxpayers of the State, as provided by law. The fiscal 
year 2002 and fiscal year 2003 fund balances did not exceed 5% of the General Fund revenues; accordingly, the 
2004 Legislature did not provide for a tax refund or tax credit. The fiscal year 2004 fund balance also did not 
exceed 5% of the General Fund revenues; accordingly, the 2005 Legislature did not provide for a tax refund or tax 
credit. Although the fiscal year 2005 fund balance exceeded 5% of General Fund revenues, the two successive 
fiscal year criteria was not met and the 2006 Legislature will not be required to provide for a tax refund or tax credit. 
Based on current projections, it is expected that the fiscal year 2006 fund balance will exceed 5% of General Fund 
revenues. If this occurs, the two successive fiscal year criteria will be met and the 2007 Legislature will be required 
to provide for a tax refund or tax credit. 

As part of the annual fmancial planning and executive budgeting process, the Department of Budget and 
Fmance makes projections of the General Fund revenues and expenditures for each fiscal year and revises such 
projections from time to time dwing the fiscal year. See "REVENUE PROJECTIONS; CERTAIN TAX 
COLLECTIONs-General Fund Financial Plan" in Part I of Appendix B for further information. 
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Taxes and Other Amounts Deposited in General Fund 

The proceeds of the taxes described below are deposited in the General Fund. See "REVENUE 
PROJECTIONS; CERTAIN TAX COLLECTIONS - Actual Tax Collections and Distributions" in Part I of 
AppendixB. 

Individual and corporate income taxes, general excise and use taxes, public service company taJtes, estate 
and certain transfer taJtes, a franchise tax on financial corporations, liquor and tobacco taxes, and certain insurance 
premium taxes, which for fiscal year 2005 represented approximately 89% of all tax revenues of the State, are 
deposited to the General Fund. The individual income tax rates for married or llllllllUried individuals, including 
Head of Household as well as. estates and 1rnsts, range from 1.4% to 8.25% of taxable income. Corporate income 
tax rates range from 4.4% to 6.4%. The general excise (gross income) tax is a business privilege tax measured by 
the application of rates against values of products, gross proceeds of sales or gross income. The use tax is an excise 
tax levied on tangible personal property, contracting, or services imported or purchased from an unlicensed seller for 
resale or use in the State. The tax is based upon the purchase price or value of the tangible personal property, 
contracting, or services purchased or imported, whichever is applicable. The Public Service Company tax is a tax 
measured by the gross income from public utility business of public utilities. The estate and transfer tax is a tax on 
the transfer of a taxable estate and a generation skipping transfer equal to the federal credit for state death taJtes 
allowed by the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 2011 and a federal credit for state taJtes allowed by IRC 
Section 2604. From January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2010, the federal credit was repealed and replaced with a 
deduction for the state death taxes. Hawaii's estate and transfer tax is currently not effective for decedents dying 
after December 31, 2004 and before December 31, 2010. The franchise tax is a tax measured by the taxable income 
of banks and other financial corporations, There is an excise tax on those who sell or use tobacco products and a 
gallonage tax imposed on dealers who sell or use liquor. 

Other amounts deposited to the General Fund are derived from non-tax sources, including investment 
earnings, rents, fines, licenses and permits, grants, charges for administrative services and other sources. In fiscal 
year 2004, these non-tax revenues comprised approximately 12% of total deposits to the General Fund. 

In addition, transient accommodations, conveyance and fuel taxes are allocated among various funds and to 
the counties. The transient accommodations tax of7.25% is levied on the furnishing of a room, apartment, suite or 
the like customarily occupied by the transient for Jess than 180 consecutive days for each letting by a hotel, 
apartment, motel, horizontal property regime or cooperative apartment, rooming house or other place in which 
lodgings are regularly furnished to transients for consideration, including the fair market rental value of time share 
vacation units. 

Special Fund 

The Special Fund, which for accounting purposes is actually composed of several separate accounts, is used 
to account for revenues designated for particular purposes. The Special Fund is often of the same nature as the 
General Fund, the distinguishing characteristic being that the accounts in the Special Fund have legislative or other 
limitations imposed upon their use. The Special Fund is not a source of payment for the Bonds. The Special Fund 
is used primarily and extensively with regard to highway construction and maintenance, harbor and airport 
operations, hospital operations, housing and homestead programs, and certain programs in the area of education. 
The types ofrevenues credited to the various accounts in the Special Fund are user tax receipts (fuel taxes), revenues 
from public undertakings, improvements or systems (airports, harbors and university revenue-producing 
undertakings, among others), and various business, occupation and non-business licenses, fees and permits. 

The proceeds of the taxes described below are deposited in the Special Fund. See "REVENUE 
PROJECTIONS; CERTAIN TAX COLLECTIONS-Actual Tax Colleetions and Distributions" in Part I of 
AppendixB. 

Fuel taxes, rental motor vehicle and tour vehicle surcharge taxes, motor vehicle taxes and unemployment 
insurance taxes are deposited into the Special Fund. In fiscal year 2005 those taxes were 7.2% of the total tax 
revenues of the State. Distributors are required to pay taxes on aviation foe!, diesel oil, alternative fuels for 
operation of an internal combustion engine and on liquid foels other than the foregoing, e.g., on gasoline used to 
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operate motor vehicles upon the public highways. There is a rental motor vehicle surcharge tax on a rented or leased 
motor vehicle. The tax is levied on the lessor. There is also a tour vehicle surcharge tax for each tour vehicle in the 
over 25-passenger seat category and for each tour vehicle in the 8- to 25-passenger seat category. The tax is levied 
on the tour vehicle operator. The State has a vehicle weight tax that varies from $.75 per pound to $1.25 per pound, 
depending on the weight of the vehicle. The unemployment insurance tax is a tax on wages paid by employing units 
with one or more employees with certain exemptions. The unemployment tax rate is determined according to a 
multi-contribution schedule system. There is an additional employment and training fund assessment on taxable 
wages paid to an employee. The percentage rate for this additional tax is .01%. 

Federal Grants 

State departments, agencies, and institutions annually receive federal grants. These amounts account for 
about 15% of the total State budget for each year, but are not a source of payment for the Bonds. Approximately 
51% of the federal grants are awarded to human resources programs in public health, vocational rehabilitation, 
income maintenance, services to the blind, and other social or health services. Approximately 27% of such federal 
funds are used to support programs in the public schools, community colleges, and the university system. 
Transportation and highway safety activities received about 7% of all federal funds, primarily for interstate highway 
construction. Employment programs, including unemployment compensation benefit payments, account for about 
5% of such federal receipts. Other programs account for the balance of such receipts. In fiscal year 2004, the State 
received a one-time federal grant of $50 million from the Jobs and Growth Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2003. 
The following table details the annual federal grants for the indicated fiscal years to the State's departments, 
agencies and institutions. 

FlscalYau- Grant Amount 
Ended June 30 (in millions) 

1999 $1,181.2 
2000 1,142.3 
2001 1,213.4 
2002 1,382.2 
2003 1,590.8 
2004 1,724.9 
2005 1,830.6 

Budget System 

Pursuant to the Executive Budget Act of 1970, the Planning, Programming and Budgeting System of the 
State was adopted. The purpose of this act is to integrate the planning, programming and budgeting processes to 
improve decisions on the allocation of resources. The act established a comprehensive system for State programs 
and their related costs over a time frame of six years. The operating and capital improvement requirements are 
evaluated together to insure compatibility and mutual support. Systematic evaluations and analyses are conducted to 
ascertain the attainment of program objectives and alternative means or methods of improving current State services. 
The act provides that the Director of Finance and the Governor may modify or withhold planned expenditures if 
such expenditures would be in excess of anthorized levels of service or in the event that State receipts and surpluses 
would be insufficient to meet authori:red expenditure levels. 

The Legislature convenes annually in regular session on the third Wednesday in January. Regular sessions 
are limited to a period of 60 days, and special sessions are limited to a period of 30 days. Any session may be 
extended by no more than 15 days. At least 30 days before the Legislature convenes in regular session in an odd­
numbered year, the Governor shall submit to the Legislature the Governor's proposed State budget of the executive 
branch for the ensuing fiscal biennium. The budgets of the judicial branch and the legislative branch are submitted 
by their respective leaders to the Legislature for its consideration. In such regular session, no appropriation bill, 
except bills recommended by the Governor for immediate passage, or to cover the expenses of the Legislature, shall 
be passed on final reading until the bill authorizing the operating expenditures for the executive branch for the 
ensuing fiscal biennium, to be known as the general appropriations bill, shall have been transmitted to the Governor. 
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In each regular session in an even-numbered year, the Governor may submit to the Legislature a bill to 
amend any appropriation for operating expenditures of the cU1Tent fiscal biennium, to be known as the supplemental 
appropriations bill. In such session to which the Governor submits to the Legislature a supplemental appropriations 
bill, no other appropriations bill, except bills recommended by the Governor for immediate passage, or to cover the 
expenses of the Legislature, shall be passed on final reading until the supplemental appropriations bill shall have 
been transmitted to the Governor. To become law, a bill must pass three readings in each house on separate days. 

Each bill passed by the Legislature shall be certified by the presiding officers and clerks of both houses and 
thereupon be presented to the Governor. If the Governor approves and signs the bill, it becomes law. If the 
Governor does not approve a bill, the Governor may return it, with the Governor's objections, to the Legislature. 
Except for items appropriated to be expended by the judicial and legislative branches, the Governor may veto any 
specific item or items in any bill that appropriates money for specific purposes by striking out or reducing the same; 
but the Governor shall veto other bills only as a whole. 

The Governor has ten days to consider bills presented to the Governor ten or more days before the 
adjournment of the Legislature sine die, and if any such bill is neither signed nor returned by the Governor within 
that time, it shall become law in like manner as if the Governor had signed it 

The Governor has forty-five days, after the adjournment of the Legislature sine die, to consider bills 
presented to the Governor less than ten days before such adjournment, or presented after adjournment, and any such 
bill shall become law on the forty-fifth day unless the Governor by proclamation shall have given ten days' notice to 
the Legislature that the Governor plans to return such bill with the Governor's objections on that day. The 
Legislature may convene on or before the forty-fifth day in special session, without call, for the sole purpose of 
acting upon any such bill returned by the Governor. In case the Legislature shall fail to so convene, such bill shall 
not become law. Any such bill may be amended to meet the Governor's objections and, if so amended and passed, 
only one reading being required in each house for such passage, it shall be presented again to the Governor, but shall 
become law only ifthe Governor shall sign it within ten days after presentation. 

Emergency and Budget Reserve Fund 

Chapter 3281.., HRS, relating to the Hawaii Tobacco Settlement Special Fund, which established a special 
fund for moneys received from the settlement between the State of Hawaii and various tobacco companies, also 
established the Emergency and Budget Reserve (''EBR") Fund, a special fund for emergency and ''rainy day" 
pmposes. The EBR Fund will receive 24½% of the moneys received from the tobacco settlement All interest 
earned from moneys in the EBR Fund is credited to the General Fund. Appropriations from the EBR Fund require a 
two-thirds majority vote of each house of the legislature. The EBR fund balance was $54.0 million as of June 30, 
2004. Projected fund balances, after appropriations, are $54.lmillion, $55.lmillion, and $64.7million for fiscal 
years 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Legislation will be submitted to the 2006 Legislature to appropriate $55 
million in general funds in fiscal year 2007 to strengthen the EBR Fund. This would increase the estimated balances 
of the fund to $110.1 million at the start of fiscal year '1007 and to $119.7 million by the end of fiscal year 2007. 

The annual proceeds from the tobacco settlement were $36.1 million for fiscal year 2001, $45.4 million for 
fiscal year 2002, $44.8 million for fiscal year 2003, $37.8 million for fiscal year 2004, and 38.3 million for fiscal 
year 2005. PricewaterhouseCoopers UP, independent auditor for the Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement, has 
estimated that the State will receive annual proceeds from the tobacco settlement ranging from $42 to $63 million a 
year for fiscal years 2005 to 2027. Under the Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement, the State's proceeds are 
estimated to total $1.5 billion. The amount of future annual proceeds is not guaranteed and is subject to adjustment 

Of the tobacco settlement moneys received by the State each fiscal year, $350,000 is deposited in the 
Tobacco Enforcement Special Fund to enforce the provisions of the Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement. 

In addition to allocating 24½% of the tobacco settlement moneys to the EBR Fund, Chapter 328L allocates 
35% of the tobacco settlement funds to the Department of Health for health promotion and disease prevention 
programs (including up to 10% for the Department of Human Services to provide health insurance for needy 
children); and allocates 28% to the univemty revenue-undertakings fund to be applied to finance the University of 
Hawaii Health and Wellness Center; provided that to extent such 28% is greater than the amount needed to pay debt 
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service for such financing, 80% of the excess will be transferred to the EBR Fund and 20% of the excess will be 
transferred to the Hawaii Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. The remaining 12½% is allocated to the 
Hawaii Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund to reduce cigaretre smoking and tobacco use. The allocations 
contained in Chapter 328L are subject to change by the Legislature at any time. 

Expenditure Control 

Expenditure Ceiling. The Constitution provides that, notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, 
the Legislature shall establish a General Fund expenditure ceiling which shall limit the rate of growth of General 
Fund appropriations, excluding federal funds received by the General Fund, to the estimated rate of growth of the 
State's economy as provided by law and that no appropriations in excess of such ceiling shall be authorized during 
any legislative session unless the Legislature shall, by a two-thirds vote of the members to which each house of the 
Legislature is entitled, set forth the dollar amount and the rate by which the ceiling will be exceeded and the reasons 
therefor. Pursuant to such Constitutional provision, Part V of Chapter 37, HRS, provides, in general, that 
appropriations from the General Fund for each year of the biennium or each supplementary budget fiscal year shall 
not exceed the expenditure ceiling for that fiscal year. The expenditure ceiling is determined by adjusting the 
immediate prior fiscal year expenditure ceiling by the applicable "state growth." State growth means the estimated 
growth of the State's economy and is established by averaging the annual percentage change in total State personal 
income for the three calendar years immediately preceding the fiscal year for which appropriations from the General 
Fund are to be made. The Governor is required to submit to the Legislature a plan of proposed aggregate 
appropriations for the State which includes the executive budget, proposed grants to private entities, any specific 
appropriation measures to be proposed by the executive branch and estimates of the aggregate proposed 
appropriations of the judicial and legislative branches of government. In any year in which this plan of proposed 
general fund appropriations exceeds the estimated expenditure ceiling, the Governor must declare the dollar amount, 
the rate by which the expenditure ceiling would be exceeded and the reasons for proposing appropriations in excess 
of the ceiling amount. 

Appropriations for recent fiscal years have not exceeded the expenditure ceiling, and the cw:rently 
approved appropriations for fiscal years 2006 and 2007 are also below the expenditure ceiling. 

The Constitution provides that no public money shall be expended except as appropriated by law. It also 
requires that provision for the control of the rate of expenditures of appropriated State moneys, and for the reduction 
of such expenditures under prescribed conditions, shall be made by law and that General Fund expenditures for any 
fiscal year shall not exceed the State's current General Fund revenues and unencumbered cash balances, except 
when the Governor publicly declares the public health, safety or welfare is threatened, as provided by law. 

Operating Expenditures. Maximum limits for operatiog expenditures are established for each fiscal year by 
legislative appropriations. Pursuant to Part II, Chapter 37, HRS, moneys can be withheld by the Governor or the 
Director of Finance to ensure the solvency of each fund. Expenditure plans consisting of quarterly requirements of 
all State programs are prepared at the beginning of each fiscal year by the respective departments of State 
government. After the expenditure plans are evaluated, allotments are made to each department as prescribed by 
Chapter 37, HRS. Allotment transfers between different appropriation items within individual departments can be 
made after approval is obtained from the Governor, or if delegated, the Director of Finance. Unencumbered 
allotment balances at the end of each quarter shall revert to the related appropriation account, except for the 
Department of Education and the University of Hawaii ("UH"). Requests to amend allotments must be approved by 
the Director of Finance. If federal funds allocable to a particular item are greater than had been estimated, the 
general funds are reduced proportionately as allowable, except for the Department of Education. Although the State 
bas a biennial budget, appropriations are made for individual fiscal years and may not be expended interchangeably, 
except for five percent of appropriations to the Department of Education, which by statutory authority may be 
retained up to one year into the next fiscal biennium. The Office of the Governor approves all consultant contracts 
as to scope, justification, need, and cost. Department heads have been delegated authority to review and approve 
certain consultant contracts such as medical services. In order to realize savings from bulk acquisition, central 
purchasing is used for certain office and medical supplies, equipment, and motor vehicles. The Department of 
Accounting and General Services performs pre-audits on each financial transaction before any payment can be 
made, except for the UH and the Department of Education, which have statutory authority to pre-audit payments 
made by them. Fmancial audits of individual programs and organizations are conducted on a periodic basis by the 
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Department of Accounting and General Services. Internal audits are done on a continuous basis by each department. 
Management audits are accomplished on an as-needed basis by the Department of Budget and Finance. In addition, 
the State Auditor performs financial and management audits on a selective basis. 

Capital Improvement Expenditure. Annual capital improvement expenditure plans are also prepared to 
control and monitor allotments and expenditures. Prior to the initiation of a project, it is reviewed for adherence to 
the State's General Plan and other economic considerations, and as to its justification. The Governor must approve 
the release of funds before any action can be taken. Competitive bidding is enforced to ensure that the lowest 
possible costs are obtained. Change orders during construction must be substantiated and approved by the 
expending agency. The need for additional capital improvement fonds for each project must be approved by the 
Governor and must be funded from available balances of other capital improvement project appropriations. An 
assessment of the quality of construction material being used is performed on a continuous basis. Individual 
guarantees and warranties are inventoried and monitored as to the adequacy of stipulated performances. 

In order to avoid any conflicts that may be created by the capital improvement program, the State bas 
developed an overall State Plan and statewide planning system, which identifies both long and short-range goals, 
general implementation directions and coordination of statewide planning. The county general plans are part of this 
State Plan. Additional reviews and assessments are conducted to identify and resolve any environmental concerns 
and to preserve historical and archaeological sites, and coastal areas. 

State Educational Facllltles Improvement Special Fund 

The State bas established a State F.ducational Facilities Improvement Special Fund (SEFlSF). The amounts 
in the SEFISF are to be used solely for capital improvements and facilities under the jurisdiction of the State 
Department of F.ducation, except public libnu:ies. The fund is capitalized by annual appropriations of at least 
$45 million in general obligation bonds or by annual transfers of at least $45 million from the General Excise Tax if 
no general obligation bond appropriations are authorized. 

Act 178, SUI 2005, provides for expenditures of $212.1 million and $62.4 million for fiscal years 2006 
and 2007, respectively, from the SEFlSF. 

EMPWYEE RELATIONS; STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Employee Relations 

The Constitution grants public employees in the State the right to organize for the purpose of collective 
bargaining. Chapter 89, HRS, provides for 13 recognized bargaining units for all public employees throughout the 
State including State and county employees. Each bargaining unit designates an employee organization as the 
exclusive representative of all employees of such unit, which organization negotiates with the public employer. In 
the case of bargaining units for nonsupervisory blue collar positions, supervisory blue collar positions, 
nonsupervisory white collar positions, supervisory white collar positions, registered professional nurses, institutional 
health and correctional workers and professional and scientific employees, the Governor of the State shall have six 
votes, and the mayors of each of the counties, the Chief Justice of the State Judiciary and the Hawaii Health Systems 
Corporation Board shall each have one vote. In the case of bargaining units for police officers and fire fighters, tbe 
Governor shall have four votes and the mayors shall each have one vote. In the case of bargaining units for teachers 
and educational officers, the Governor shall have three votes, the State Board of Education shall have two votes and 
the state superintendent of education shall have one vote. In the case of bargaining units for UH faculty and UH 
administrative professional and technical staff, the Governor shall have three votes, the UH Board of Regents shall 
have two votes and the UH president shall have one vote. Decisions by the employer representatives shall be on the 
basis of simple majority, except when a bargaining unit includes county employees from more than one county. In 
such case, the simple majority sball include at least one county. 

By statute, if an impasse in any negotiation is declared, the parties may attempt to resolve the impasse 
through mediation, fact finding, and, if mutually agreeable to the parties, final and binding arbitration. Although the 
statute characterizes arbitration as "final and binding," it also provides that all cost items are subject to 
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appropriations by the appropriate legislative bodies. If final and binding arbitration is not agreed upon, either party 
may take other lawful action to end the dispute, which, in the case of blue collar workers, public school teachers and 
university professors. could include an employee strike. In the case of the remaining ten bargaining units, including 
fire fighters and police officers, a strike is prohibited by law, and negotiation impasses are subject to mandatory final 
and binding arbitration, subject to appropriation of cost items, as described above. Certain employees are not party 
to a formal labor contract, including elected and appointed officials and certain contractual hires. 

Negotiations for the period from July l, 2005 to June 30, 2007 have been completed. Negotiated 
settlements have been reached for the following bargaining units, providing for the following increases over that 
two-year period: 

Unit l (blue collar workers): 9.73% 
Unit 5 (teachers): 11.09% 
Unit 10 {institutional health and correctional workers): 10.38% 

Arbitrated decisions (which are not subject to ratification) have been reached for the following bargaining 
units, providing for the following increases over that two-year period: 

Unit 2 (blue collar supervisors): 9.06% 
Unit 3 (white collar worlrers): 10.04% 
Unit 4 (white collar supervisors): 9.59% 
Unit 6 (educational officers): 11.24% 
Unit 8 (University of Hawaii administrative professional technical staff): 11.12% 
Unit 9 (registered professional nurses): 13.38% 
Unit 11 {firefighters): 14.16% 
Unit 13 {professional and scientific employees): 9.44% 

A negotiated settlement was reached in 2003 with Unit 7 {UH faculty) for a six-year contract expiring Jnne 
30, 2009, providing for a 34.8% increase over six years. (The State has no employees in Unit 12, which is police 
officers.) 

The 2001 Hawaii State Legislature passed Act 90, which author:iud privatization of government services. 
Act 90 eliminated legal ambiguities regarding the ability to privatize services. Although there are no major specific 
privatization plans, Act 90 provided an important tool to increase productivity. 

Act 88, SUI 2001, Relating to Public Employees Health Benefits {partially codified as Chapter 87A, HRS), 
established the Hawaii Employer-Union Health Benefits Trust Fund ("Trust Fund"). The Trust Fund provides 
health and other benefit plans for public employees, retirees and their dependents. Public employer contributions to 
fund the health and other benefit plans of public employees and their dependents are determined under Chapter 89C, 
HRS, or by way of applicable public sector collective bargaining agreements. Except for reimbursement of 
voluntary medical insurance coverage under Medicare, public employer contributions to fund the health and other 
benefit plans ofretirees are not to exceed certain monthly contribution levels specified in Chapter 87A, HRS. 

Act 245, SUI 2005, temporarily authorizes employee organizations to establish voluntary employees 
beneficiary association (VEBA) trusts to provide health benefits to state and county employees in their bargaining 
units outside of the Hawaii employer-union health benefits trust fund {Trust Fund). Each VEBA trust is to provide 
health benefits to state and county employees who retire after establishment of the VEBA trust (future retirees) and 
is to give state and county employees who were members of applicable bargaining units and who retired before 
establishment of the VEBA trust (existing retirees) a one-time option to transfer from the Trust Fund to the VEBA 
trust. The State and county employers' monthly contributions to each VEBA trust for active employees and future 
retirees are to be established by collective bargaining. Monthly contributions to each VEBA trust. for existing 
retirees are to be equal to the contributions paid on behalf of similarly situated retirees under the Trust Fund. The 
stated pwpose of Act 245 is to allow the establishment of a VEBA trust pilot program for three years so as to enable 
a thorough analysis of the costs and benefits of VEBA trusts against the Trust Fund to determine what actual savings 
could be realized by the State through the VEBA trust mechanism. Act 245 is to be repealed on July 1, 2008. The 
Hawaii State Teachers Association has begun work on a VEBA trust and other employee-organizations have 
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expressed interest in VEBA trusts. No employee-organization to date has actually begon offering health benefits 
through a VEBA trust. 

State Employees' Retirement System 

The Employees' Retirement System of the State of Hawaii (the "System'') began operation on January 1, 
1926. The System is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The System covers all regular 
employees of the State and each of its counties, including judges and elected officials. On March 31, 2005, the 
System's membership was comprised of approximately 63,073 active employees, 4,938 inactive vested members 
and 33,301 pensioners and beneficiaries. The total assets of the System on a market value basis amounted to 
approximately $8.6 billion as of June 30, 2004, and $9.2 billion as of June 30, 2005. Actuarial certification of assets 
as of June 30, 2004 was $8.8 billion (See "State Employees Retirement System" in Appendix B hereto). As of 
June 30, 2005, the System's actuarial certification of assets was $8.9 billion, and its unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability was $4.1 billion. 

The statutory provisions of Chapter 88, HRS, govern the operation of the System. Responsibility for the 
general administration of the System is vested in a Board of Trustees, with certain areas of administrative control 
being vested in the Department of Budget and Finance. The Board of Trustees consists of eight members: the 
Director of Finance of the State, ex officio; four members of the System (two general employees, one teacher, and 
one retiree) who are elected by the members and retiree of the System; and three citizens of the State (one of whom 
shall be an officer of a bank authorized to do business in the State, or a person of similar experience) who are 
appointed by the Governor and may not be employees of the State or any county. 

The System is funded on an actuarial reserve basis. Actuarial valuations are prepared annually by the 
consulting actuary to the Board ofTrustees to determine the employer contribution requirement. In recent years, the 
total actuarially determined employer contribution was reduced by some or all of the investment earnings in excess 
of the investment yield rate applied in actuarial valuations to determine the net employer appropriations to be made 
to the System. Act 327, SLH 1997, amended Section 88-107, HRS, so that, beginning with the June 30, 1m 
valuation, the System retains all of its excess earnings for the pwpose of reducing the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability. However, Act 100, SLH 1999, reinstated the excess eamings credit for the June 30, 1997 and June 30, 
1998 valuations. For those two valuations, the investment eaming in excess of a 10% actuarial return is to be 
applied as a reduction to the employer contributions. In accordance with the statutory funding provisions 
(Section 88-122 of Chapter 88, HRS, as amended by Act 147 SLH 2001), the total actuarially dete:rmined employer 
contribution to the pension accumulation fund is comprised of the normal cost plus the level annual payment 
required to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a period of 29 years from July 1, 2000. The 
contribution requirement is determined in the aggregate for all employers in the System and then allocated to 
individual employers based on the payroll distribution of covered employees as of the March preceding the 
valuation date. The actuarially determined employer contribution derived from a valuation is paid during the third 
fiscal year following the valuation date, e.g., the contribution requirement derived from the June 30, 1998 valuation 
was paid into the System during the 2000-2001 fiscal year. The actuarial cost method used to calculate employer 
contributions was changed by Act 327 from the fromn initial liability actuarial cost method to the entry age normal 
actuarial cost method effective with the June 30, 1995 actuarial valuation. Employer contributions are determined 
separately for two groups of covered employees: (1) police officers, firefighters, and corrections officers; and (2) all 
other employees who are members of the Retirement System. 

Act 181, SLH 2004 established fixed employer contribution rates as a percentage of compensation effective 
July 1, 2005. Employers will contribute 15.75% for their police officers and firefighters and 13.75% for other 
employees. Legislation enacted in I984 created a noncontributory retirement plan for certain members of the 
System who are also covered under Social Security. The noncontributory plan covers most employees hired after 
June 30, 1984 and employees hired before that date who elected to join the plan. Police officers, firefighters, other 
enforcement officials, certain elected and appointed officials and other employees not covered by Social Security are 
excluded from the noncontributory plan. 

As of March 31, 2005, the noncontributory plan covered approximately 54,176 active employees or 86% of 
all active members of the System. The number and percentage of noncontributory plan members may decrease in 
the future because of the implementation of the new hybrid plan discussed below. 
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In 1998 legislation was passed (Act 151, SLH 1998) modifying the administtation of the System, including 
its actuarial valuation methods and actuarla1 assumptions. Since the System is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer 
public retirement system, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability is not allocated to the State and the Counties. Act 
179, SLH 2004 established a new defined benefit hybrid conlributory plan effective July 1, 2006. The new plan 
provides certain cwrent and new employees with the opportunity to participate in a defined benefit conlributory 
plan. It provides portability for shorter-term employees and is expected to improve recruitment for and retention of 
public sector employees. The Employees' Retirement System actuary has determined that the new program is cost 
neutral, an important factor given the escalating costs of the retirement program. 

See "STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM" in Part I of AppendixB for summary of the 
actuarial certification, employer contribution rate and unfunded accrued liabilities information about the Retirement 
System, including employees of the State and each of its counties. 

GENERAL ECONOMIC INFORMATION 

General 

The following material pertaining to economic factors in the State under the captions ''State of the 
Economy" through and including "Table 10" has been excerpted from the Hawaii State Department of Business, 
Economic Development and Tourism ("DBEDT") Fourth Quarter 2005 Quarterly Statistical and Economic Report 
(''QSER") or otherwise prepared by DBEDT some of which may be found at http://www2.hawaii.gov/dbedtllalestl. 
Unless otherwise stated, the following infonnatlon is historical; estimated figures are used only when the definitive 
figures are unavailable. Unless otherwise specifically stated, all references to years and quarters in the following 
information are to calendar years and calendar quarters, respectively. The text refers to certain enumerated tables 
found under "GENERAL ECONOMIC INFORMATION." Following descriptions of the various components of 
the State's economy and DBEDT's outlook for the economy, there is a brief description of the impact of these 
components on the State's fiscal position. See "APPENDIX B -FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE 
STATEOFBAWAIL" 

DBEDT's latest forecast for nominal Gross State Product ("GSP") (the value of all goods and services 
produced and consumed within the State) growth in 2006 is 5.8%. In real terms (adjusting for inflation), DBEDT 
estimates that 2006 GSP growth over 2005 will be 2.8%. 

State of the Economy 

Higher-than-expected rates of growth in employment, personal income, and tax collections are indicative of 
a continuing broad based expansion of Hawaii's economy. The level of permits for construction bodes well for 
future investment activity. Visitor arrivals and average daily visitor census are both up and federal spending 
remains strong. 

In the fourth calendar quarter of 2005, 630,600 civilian people were employed in Hawaii. This 
employment level, 31,400 more than the fourth calendar quarter of 2004, or a 5.2% increase, was the highest 
quarterly rate of growth in civilian employment in Hawaii in fifteen years. According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, Hawaii had the lowest seasooally not-adjusted unemployment rate in the nation in December 2005 at 
2.4%. 

Nominal total personal income rose 6.5% in the third calendar quarter of 2005 compared to the third 
calendar quarter of 2004. Ranked by rate of growth, the greatest increase was seen in Proprietors' Income (10.7%) 
followed by Supplements to Wages and Salaries (8.9%), Wage and Salary Disbursements (6.5%), Personal Current 
Transfer Receipts (5.2%) and Dividends, Interest, and Rent (2.6%). Contributions for Government Social Insurance, 
which is subtracted from personal income, also increased. Year-to-year quarterly earnings increased for all sectors 
except for Information and Fmance and Insurance. 

Tax revenues distributed to the State general fund increased 11.4% to $983 million for the fourth calendar 
quarter of 2005 compared to the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. Revenues from the general excise and use tax 
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increased by 13.7% and net individual income tax collections increased 9.7% in the fourth calendar quarter 2005 
compared to the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. Transient Accommodations Tax (TAT) revenues increased 16.6%. 

The total number of visitors arriving by air was up 5.7% in the fourth calendar quarter of 2005, compared 
with the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. Toe overall quarterly increase in arrivals resulted from a 7.2% increase in 
domestic arrivals and a 2.2% increase in international arrivals. The average daily visitor census was up 6.0% for the 
quarter. Hotel occupancy rates increased 2.9 percentage points to 84.4% for the thin! calendar quarter of 2005, 
compared to a year ago. 

Indicators of the status of Hawaii's construction industry remained positive signaling for sustained StroJl& 
building activity in the future. Construction jobs increased 11.3% to 34,000 jobs in the fourth calendar quarter of 
2005 compared to the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. The value of private building authorizations in the thin! 
calendar quarter of 2005 was up 19.5% from the thin! calendar quarter of 2004, amounting to a total value of over 
$700 million in Hawaii future construction. 

Toe total number of bankruptcy filings increased by 15.8% in the second calendar quarter of 2005 
compared to the second calendar quarter of 2004. This was the first quarterly increase in Hawaii bankruptcy filings 
in fourteen quarters. It is likely that the increase in Chapter 7 filings was in anticipation of the change in the Federal 
bankruptcy law. 

Outlook for the Economy 

DBEDT continues to anticipate solid growth for tourism, personal income, and wage and salary 
employment for 2005 and 2006. Projections of economic growth for the Mainland U.S., Hawaii's primary visitor 
market, are reasonably strong, while Japan is projected to grow, but at a slower pace. 

Prospects for all three main drivers of Hawaii's economy continue to appear positive. Toe visitor industry, 
federal spending, and private construction all remain strong. Current building permit levels are still averaging well 
over $200 million a month, which should mean a healthy construction sector for the foreseeable future. 

Toe future condition of Hawaii's economy is linked to the state of the mainland U.S. and Japanese 
economies. Toe December 2005 Blue Chip Economic Consensus Forecast projects real GDP growth in 2005 of 
3.6% for the U.S. and 2.2% for Japan. Similarly, according to the January 2006 Blue Chip Economic Consensus 
Forecast, real GDP growth in 2006 is expected to be 3.4% for the U.S. and 2.4% for Japan. Toe expectation for U.S. 
consumer price inflation is about 3.4% in 2005 and 2.9% for 2006. 

Hawaii total visitor arrivals and visitor days in 2005 increased 6.8% and 6.9%, respectively. Visitor 
expenditores are estimated to increase 8.4% in 2005. In 2006, visitor days, visitor arrivals, and visitor expenditures 
are predicted to increase 2.9%, 2.9%, and 5.8%, respectively. 

Nominal personal income growth for 2005 and 2006 is forecast at 7.0% and 6.2%, respectively. Real 
personal income growth rates for 2005 and 2006 are forecast at 3.5% and 2.8%, respectively, after deflating the 
nominal projections by the Honolulu CPI-U. 

Hawaii's projected inflation rates for 2005 and 2006 have been forecast at 3.4% and 3.3%, :respectively. 
The recent housing and energy price pressures felt both in Hawaii and the nation as a whole are the basis for these 
forecasts. 
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INFORMATION ON EMPLOYMENT, WAGES AND SALARIES, TAX REVENUES 
ANDTAXBASE 

Tablel 
SELECTED ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES: STATE 

YEARENDING 
4th QUARTER 2005 DECEMBER 31, 2005 

% % 
CHANGE CHANGE 

UNIT NUMBER YEARAGO NUMBER YEARAGO 
Civilian Labor Force 1> ............................................. Persons 647,750 4.9 635,600 3.2 

Civilian Employment............................................ Persons 630,600 5.2 617,950 3.7 
Civilian Unemployment....................................... 

Unemployment Rate 1>2l ........................................... 
Persons 

% 
17,200 

2.6 
-5.0 
-0.3 

17,650 
2.8 

-11.8 
-0.5 

Total Wage &Salary Jobs Jobs 618,100 2.7 606,150 2.8 
Total Non-Agriculture Wage & Salary Jobs............. Jobs 610,550 2.7 598,800 2.8 

Naturlll Resources, M;ning, Construction............. Jobs 34,000 11.3 32,400 10.6 
Manufacturing .................... Jobs 15,250 -1.6 15,350 -0.6 
Wholesale Trade ................................................... Jobs 17,750 2.9 17,500 2.9 
Retail Trade .......................................................... Jobs 71,600 2.5 69,200 3.4 
Transpoltlltion, Warehousing, Utilities ................. Jobs 31,600 8.8 30,500 8.3 
Jnfonnation Jobs 10,800 -2.7 10,800 0.9 
Financial Activities ............................................... Jobs 29,500 2.8 29,250 1.9 
Professional & Business Services Jobs 74,800 4.4 73,300 3.8 
Educational Services Jobs 14,100 2.9 13,400 2.7 
Health Care &Social Assistance Jobs 56,700 2.8 56,100 3.2 
Arts, Entertainment &Recreation Jobs 11,700 0.0 11,600 0.9 
Accommodation Jobs 39,000 1.3 38,950 2.9 
Food Services and Drinking Places ...................... Jobs 57,350 3.9 56,300 3.5 
Other Services ...................................................... Jobs 25,000 4.0 24,550 1.4 
Government.......................................................... Jobs 121,400 -1.0 119,600 -0.4 

Federal.............................................................. Jobs 31,450 0.2 31,200 -0.8 
State.................................. Jobs 72,700 -2.0 71,200 -0.4 
Local ................................................. Jobs 17,250 1.5 17,200 0.6 

Agriculture Wages &Salary Jobs............................. Jobs 7,550 0.0 7,350 0.7 

Stste General Fund Revenues 3>...... $1,000 987,002 11.4 4,252,230 16.4 
General Excise And Use Taxll................... $1,000 549,727 13.7 2,263,393 13.7 
Income-Individual3l 
Transient Accommodations Tax3>............................. 

$1,000 
$1,000 

342,612 
46,052 

9.7 
16.6 

1,447,744 
207,381 

17.2 
9.2 

' 1l.abor[om, andfel,s are based on molllh/y rounded data and seasonally ,wt-o4justed.
21 Change represellls ahso/uJe change in unemployment rotes rother than percentage change in rotes. 
" Preliminary. 
Sm,rces: Hawaii Stale Department ofLabor & Industrial Relations; Hawaii State Department qfTa:liJtion. Compiled l1y Hawaii State Business 
Economic Development & Tourism and Hospitality Advisor.,, UC 
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Key Economic Indicators 

Table2 
ACTUAL AND FORECAST KEY ECONOMIC INDICATORS 

FOR HAWAll: 2003 TO 2008 

2003 2004 2805 2006 2807 2008 
E<onomlc lndlcaton Actuol Foncut Foreeut F..- Foreatl -Total popula1ion (in thOIIS8llds) ........................ 1,249.0 1,263.0 1,2711.0 

Visitor mivaJs (in thousands)........................... 6,442.0 6,992.0 7,446.0 
Visitor expendibires (in million dollars)........... 10,0SS.0 10,862.0 11,610.0 
Honolulu CPl•U (1982-84-100)....................... 184.S 190.6 197.1 
Pemmal income (in million dollars)................. 38,126.0 41,176.0 44,047.0 
Roal Pemonal income (in millions of2000$) ... 36,431.0 38,086.0 39,402.0 
Total wag,, & salaty jobs (in thousands) .......... 574.8 589.6 005.5 
<lroos state product (mmilliondollm} ............ 46,671.0 50,322.0 53,744.0 
Roal gross state product (in millions of2000$) 42,964.0 44,976.o'> 46,545.0 
Gross statepn,duct detlator(2000=100) .......... 108.6 111.9') 115.5 

ANNUAL PERCENTAGE CHANGE 

Pera,nt •-1 Percent 
Economic lndlcaton Chang,Chane Ch~ 

1,292.0 
7,661.0 

12,288.0 
203.7 

46,778.0 
40,495.0 

614.8 
~861.0 
47,856.0 

118.8 

Perc<nt 
Chau&e 

1,306.0 
7,853.0 
12,934.0 

209.4 
49,350.0 
41,551.0 

622.8 
59,875.0 
49,068.0 

122.0 

Per<ent 
Cbang, 

1,319.0 
8,041.0 

13,589.0 
215.1 

51,966.0 
42,587.0 

630.2 
62,928.0 
50,215.0 

125.3 

Per<ent 
Clwlp 

Total popula1ion (in thousands).. 1.2 I.I 1.2 I.I I.I 1.1 
Visitor anivals (m thousands) .......................... --0.2 8.5 6.S 2.9 2.5 2.4 
Visitor ellpeixlitures (in million dollars) .......... 4.6 8.0 6.9 S.8 S.3 S.1 
Honolulu CPl-U (1982-84-100} ...................... 2.3 3.3 3.4 3.3 2.8 2.7 
Pemmal income (in million dollm) ................ 4.8 8.0 7.0 6.2 5.5 5.3 
Rnl Pemma1 incomo (in millioos of2000$)... 2.4 4.5 3.5 2.8 2.6 2.5 
Total wage &salatyjobs (m tho.....SS).......... 1.9 2.6 2.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 
Gross state product (in million dollm)............ 6.5 7.8 6.8 5.8 5.3 5.1 
Roal gross state product (in millions of2000$) 3.8 4.7" 3.5 2.8 2.5 2.3 
Gross state product-(2000=100).......... 2.7 3.0" 3.2 2.9 2.7 2.7 

,, DBEDT-aqjusted U.S. Burem, ofEconomic Analysis accelerated utimote.. 
Source: Hawaii State l/eportmenJ o/Busmess, Economic Development &Tourism, November 14, 2005. 

Labor Force and Jobs 

In the fourth calendar quarter of 2005, 630,600 people were employed in Hawaii, a new all-time quarterly 
employment peak. This employment level was 31,400 more than that for the fourth calendar quarter of 2004, or a 
5.2% increase. This is the highest quarterly rate of growth in employment in Hawaii in fifteen years. For all of 
2005, civilian employment was up 3.7% from 2004. 

Total labor force increased 4.9% in the fourth calendar quarter of 2005 to 647,750. For the year, Hawaii 
civilian labor force was up 3.2% from 2004. 

Hawaii unemployment rate (seasonally not-adjusted) was down in the fourth calendar quarter of 2005 to 
2.6% compared to the 2.9% unemployment rate in the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. This is the fifth straight 
quarter that Hawaii's unemployment rate has been below 3.0%. According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
reports Hawaii had the lowest unemployment rate of 2.4% in the nation in December 2005. For the year, Hawaii 
unemployment rate averaged 2.8% compared 10 3.3% for 2004. 
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Hawaii's total wage and salary jobs increased by 2.7% or 16,000 jobs in !he fourth calendar quarter of 2005 
1han !he fourth calendar quarter of 2004. For all of 2005, wage and salary jobs were up 2.8% from 2004. All private 
sector industries except for Manufacturing and Information showed positive job growth for the fourth calendar 
quarter of 2005. Four private sector industries added more 1han two thousand jobs and two more sectors added more 
than a lhousand jobs in !he fourth calendar quarter of 2005 compared to !he fourth calendar quarter of 2004. 

The Natural Resources, Mining and Construction sector added !he most jobs in !he fowth calendar quarter 
of 2005 with an increase of 3,450 jobs or 11.3% over the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. Professional and Business 
Services contributed the next greatest increase with 3,150 jobs or a 4.4% increase. Visitor-related industries also did 
well, wilh Transportation, Warehousing, and Utilities adding 2,550 jobs or 8.8%, Food Services and Drinking Places 
2,150 jobs or 3.9%, and Retail Trade 1,750 jobs or 2.5%. Wilh an increase of 1,550 jobs (2.8%), Health Care and 
Social Assistance rounds out the list of the sectors with the highest job growlh. 

During !he fourth calendar quarter of 2005, two private sector industries lost jobs compared wilh !he fourth 
calendar quarter of 2004: Information lost 300 jobs or 2.7% and Manufacturing was down 250 jobs or 1.6% of its 
employment 

Compared wilh the fourth calendar quarter 2004, !he number of jobs decreased by 1,200 or 1.0% in the 
government sectors for the fourth calendar quarter of 2005. While Federal government and local government 
expanded !heir jobs by 0.2% and 1.5%, respectively, Stale government lost 2.0% of its jobs, which caused !he total 
government jobs to decrease. 

Table3 

CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE AND EMPLOYMENT 
(Number of persons) 

'!I, Change %Change Civilian 
Civilian Civilian Labor Civilian Civilian Unemployment 

Yeor Labor Force Force Employment Employment Rate 
1996 596,750 1.2 561,700 0.8 5.9 
1997 601,650 0.8 566,750 0.9 5.8 
1998 604,300 0.4 570,150 0.6 5.7 
1999 606,650 0.4 576,300 1.1 5.0 
2000 607,750 0.2 583,200 1.2 4.0 
2001 613,000 0.9 586,750 0.6 4.3 
2002 608,800 -0.7 584,050 -0.5 4.1 
2003 612,500 0.6 588,650 0.8 3.9 
2004 615,800 0.5 595,750 1.2 3.3 
2005·1> 635,600 3.2 617,950 3.7 2.8 

'·'Prel;rninary. 

Source: Hawaii State Depanmenr ofLaborand lndrutria/ Re/anons. 

lneome and Prices 

Hawaii total personal income rose 6.5% during !he third calendar quarter of 2005 (!he period for which the 
latest data are available from the Bureau of Economic Analysis) over !he third calendar quarter of 2004. Ranked by 
rate of growth, !he greatest increase was seen in Proprietors' Income followed by Supplements to Wages and 
Salaries, Wage and Salary Disbursements, Personal Current Transfer Receipts and Dividends, Interest, and Rent. 
Contributions for Government Social Insurance, which is subtracted from personal income, also increased. Year-to­
year quanerly earnings increased fot all sectors except for Information and Finance and Insurance. 
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Nominal personal income, not adjusted for inflation, rose $2.7 billion or 6.5% in the third calendar qnarter 
of 2005 compared to the third calendar quarter of 2004. Wage and salary disbursements grew by about $1.6 billion 
or 6.5% in the third calendar quarter of 2005. Wages and salaries accounted for about 58% of personal income. 

Supplements to Wages and Salaries, consisting of employer payments to retirement plans, private group 
health insurance plans, private wOikers compensation plans, and other such benefits, increased by $586 million or 
8.9% in the third calendar quarter of 2005 compared to the third calendar quarter of 2004. Proprietors' Income, the 
income most closely related to entrepreneurial activity, grew by $304 million orl0.7% in the third calendar quarter 
of 2005 compared to the third calendar quarter of 2004. 

Dividends, Interest, and Rent rose by $162 million or 2.6% in the third calendar quarter of 2005. Personal 
Current Transfer Receipts, consisting largely of retirement and medical payments, grew by $276 million or 5.2% for 
the quarter. Contributions to Government Social Insurance, payments subtracted from personal income, increased 
$197 million or 5.8%. 

Earnings increased across most private sector industries between the third quarter of 2004 and the third 
calendar quarter of 2005. In dollar terms, the largest increases came in Natural Resources, Mining and Construction 
followed by Health and Social Assistance, Retail Trade, and Professional and Technical Services. Federal 
Government earnings increased 4.1% and State and Local Government earnings increased 4.9%. 

Honolulu's inflation rate increased 3.1% in the first six months of 2005 down slightly from the 3.3% 
increase for the second six months of 2004. Honolulu's rate was 0.1% higher than the 3.0% inflation experienced 
for the nation during the first six months of 2005. The Honolulu increase was produced by the Housing component 
increasing 4.0% and Transportation, mostly fuels, increasing 4.4%. 
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Table4 

PERSONAL INCOME FOR HAWAIi BY MAJOR SOURCES 
(in millions of dollars at seasonally adjusted annual rates) 

Third Third 
Quarter Quarter Percent 

Serles 2004 2005 Change 
Personal Income 41,521 44,210 6.S 
Derivation ofPersonal Income 
Earnings by place of work 33,416 35,863 7.3 

Wage and salary disbursements.......................................... . 23,986 25,545 6.5 
Supplements to wages and salaries .................................... . 6,588 7,174 8.9 
Proprietors' income ............................................................. 2,841 3,145 10.7 
Dividends, interest, rent....................................................... 6,226 6,388 2.6 
Personal current transfer receipts ....................................... 5,284 5,560 5.2 

Less: Contributions for government social insurance ........... . 3,405 3,602 5.8 
Earnings by Industry............................................................... 33,416 35,864 13 

Farm................................................................................... . 220 248 12.7 
Nonfarrn ..............--···············...............___ 33,196 35,616 7.3 

Private............................................................................. . 22,808 24,772 8.6 
Forestry, fishery, other................................................ . 55 62 12.7 
Mining......................................................................... . 38 41 7.9 
Utilities ........................................................................ 266 322 21.1 
Construction, etc ......................................................... . 2,293 2,724 18.8 
Manufacturing............................................................. . 810 847 4.6 
Wholesale trade........................................................... . 976 1060 8.6 
Retail trade .................................................................. . 2,248 2,441 8.6 
Transportation and Warehousing ................................. 1,341 1,484 10.7 
Information .................................___................. . 712 686 -3.7 
Finance and Insurance ................................................ . 1,237 1,228 -0.7 
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing ............................ . 1,172 1,309 11.7 
Professional and Technical Services........................... . 1,877 2,048 9.1 
Management of Companies and Enterprises............... . 735 756 2.9 
Administrative and Waste Services ............................ . 1,355 1,514 11.7 
Educational Services................................................... . 459 512 11.5 
Health Care and Social Assistance.............................. . 2,861 3,117 8.9 
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation ........................... . 449 482 7.3 
Accommodation and Food Services ........................... . 2,860 2,979 4.2 
Other Services, except Public Administration ............ . 1,066 1,159 8.7 

Government and govermnent enterprises ....................... . 10,389 10,844 4.4 
Federal, civilian ........................................................... 2,579 2,689 4.3 
Federal, military........................................................... 3,726 3,872 3.9 
State and local .............................................................. 4,083 4,284 4.9 

Source: U.S. Department ofCommerce, Bureau ofEconomic Analysis, Stale Quarterly Personal Income, December 20, 2005. 
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TableS 

PERSONAL INCOME 
(In mllllons or dollars at seasooaDy ,uijusted aooual rates) 

YEAR ANNUAL AVERAGE % CHANGE 
1996 30,122 0.7 
1997 31,002 2.9 
1998 31,757 2.4 
1999 32,646 2.8 
2000 34,451 5.5 
2001 35,126 2.0 
2002 36,371 3.5 
2003 38,126 4.8 

2004 41,176 8.0 

20051> 44,047 7.0 

I) DBEDTForecast based on the di,ta for 1114 first two quarters of2005 (,ee table2~ 
Sourc,,: U.S. De[l(J11mmlt ofComm,rct, Bureau ofEconomic Analysis. 

Table6 
CONSUMER PRICE INDEX, ALL URBAN CONSUMERS (CPl•U), AND 

SELECTED ITEMS, FOR U.S. AND HONOLULU: 1996-2005 
(1!182-1984 =100) 

HONOLULU 
Other 

AD Food& Tnu,spor- Medl..t Education Goods& 
Year U.S. Items Bev~es Housing Apparel talion Care Recratloif &Conun" Services 
1996 "'i's6.'9'" 170.7 156.6 176.8 118.5 167.0 215.0 NA NA 226.5 
1997 160.5 171.9 159.2 177.1 117.3 166.2 217.3 NA NA 239.0 
1998 163.0 171.5 159.1 176.0 112.2 162.5 226.1 100.8 99.1 256.1 
1999 166.6 173.3 162.9 175.8 105.4 162.2 231.3 101.9 104.5 275.6 
2000 172.2 176.3 164.8 177.9 103.5 169.6 239.8 102.8 106.5 279.7 

~2001 177.1 178.4 169.5 179.1 101.0 174.5 101.6 104.6 289.3 
2)2002 179.9 180.3 172.0 181.2 102.6 170.9 99.5 107.8 302.2 

2003 184.0 184.5 174.9 186.2 98.5 176.4 2) 100.4 112.5 307.6 
2004 188.9 190.6 180.2 194.3 101.2 182.4 275.9 102.3 113.5 312.4 

2005 l) 193.2 195.0 184.7 199.9 104.9 188.2 2) 98.5 115.8 318.6 

Data on U.S. CPI or, releosed monthly and Honolulu CPI, twice a year;,, February and August/or 1114 ha/fyeor previou,. 
" New Jndex,is as ofJmwary 1998. Base period 1$ December 1997. Thi, former "Entertommem" inde;c has been discontinued. 
21 No data was available ordata did not meet U.S. Burwn, ofLabor Statistics' publication criteria. 
" First halfyeor. 
S""1'Ce: U.S. Bureau ofI.abor Stat/SJics, Febn,ary 23, 200.5. 

Tourism 

During the fourth calendar quarter of 2005, both the total number of visitor arrivals and the average daily 
visitor census were up from the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. Substantial increases in domestic visitor arrivals 
and days combined with a moderate increase in international visitor anivals and days to produce the gains made 
during the quarter. 

The total number of visitors arriving by air was up 5.7% in the fourth calendar quarter of 2005 from the 
fourth calendar quarter of 2004. This is an increase of about 97,000 visiton compared with the fourth calendar 
quarter of 2004. The overall quarterly increase in arrivals resulted from increases in both domestic visitor arrivals 
and international anivals. Arrivals on domestic flights were up 7.2%, while the number of travelers on international 
flights increased by 2.2%, comparing the fourth calendar quarter of 2005 to that of 2004. 
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Considering the different major IIllll'.'.ket areas, the U.S. West market showed about 55,850 more visitors or 
an 8.2% increase in the fourth calendar quarter 2005 from the fourth calendar quarter 2004. Arrivals from the U.S. 
East market also contributed to growth, increasing 4.1% or by about 16,850 visitors. Toe Japan market was down 
1.8% or about 7,050 visitors over the fourth calendar quarter of 2004. 

Toe total average daily visitor census was up about 10,150 visitors a day or a 6.0% increase in the fourth 
calendar quarter of 2005. This total increase was produced by a 6.9% increase in domestic visitors' daily census, 
those aniving on flights from U.S. Mainland airports, and a 3.3% increase for the international visitors' daily 
census. 

Airline capacity to Hawaii, as measured by the number of available seats flown, was flat in the fourth 
calendar quarter of 2005. For calendar year 2005, total air seats increased 7 .0% from 2004. 

Hotel occupancy rates rose 2.9 percentage points from 81.5% in the third calendar quarter of2004 to 84.4% 
in the third calendar quarter of 2005, the latest quarter for which hotel occupancy data were available. 

Table7 
VISITOR ARRIVALS 1> 

Average Length of Stay, Visitor Days, Average Dlllly Census 
(Percentage Change from the Same Period in Previous Year) 

2003 2004 2005 2l 

% 
Change 

2003-2004 

% 
Change 

2004-2005 

Total Arrivals 

Total .............................. 
Domestic .................... 
International ............... 

6,380,439 
4,531,289 
1,849,150 

6,912,094 
4,892,960 
2,019,134 

7,379,635 
5,255,098 
2,124,537 

8.33 
7.98 
9.19 

6.76 
7.40 
5.22 

Average Length of 
Stay 

Total .............................. . 9.21 9.08 9.09 -1.44 0.16 
Domestic .................... 9.94 9.90 9.92 -0.39 0.21 
International .............. . 7.43 7.09 7.05 -4.59 -0.59 

Visitor Days 

Total .............................. 58,782,699 62,761,989 67,112,195 6.77 6.93 
Domestic .................... 45,036,982 48,441,764 52,134,002 7.56 7.62 
International............... 13,745,717 14,320,225 14,978,193 4.18 4.59 

Average Daily 
Census 

Total ............................. . 161,048 171,481 183,869 6.48 7.22 
Domestic .................... 123,389 132,355 142,833 7.27 7.92 
International .............. . 37,659 39,126 41,036 3.89 4.88 

I) Sraying overnighl or longer. 

2) Pn,liminary. 
Source: Hawaii Slate Depanmem ofBusiness, Economic Develop1118111 &Tourism. 
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Table8 

HOTEL OCCUPANCY RATE 
(in percent) 

Year First Quarter Seoond Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 
1996 81.9 72.3 77.1 70.0 75.2 
1997 79.5 70.8 75.5 69.9 73.9 
1998 77.4 68.7 72.9 67.7 71.5 
1999 77.0 67.7 75.0 68.7 72.1 
2000 79.2 75.2 78.5 73.1 76.0 
2001 80.7 70.7 70.3 57.2 69.2 
2002 71.7 67.9 72.5 67.1 69.7 
2003 74.4 67.1 77.4 71.3 72.5 
2004n 80.2 75.7 81.5 73.4 77.8 
2005 84.2 78.5 84.4 NA NA 

NA Not avai/able. 
JJ Sor,rce data revised. 

Quanerly averages are computed by Hawaii State Department of Bu.wtess, Econmnic Development & Tourism Hospitallty Advisor, UC 
monthly averages. 
Sources: Hawaii State Depanm,,nt ofBusw,ss, Economic Development &Tourism and PKF -Hawaiiand Hospitality Adt>isora UC. 

CoDStruction 

Hawaii's construction industry continued to expand in the third calendar quarter of 2005. Private building 
authorizations were higher than the already high level reached in the third calendar quarter of 2004. Construction 
jobs continued to grow and real estate demand remained high. 

Wage and salary jobs in the construction industry were up 10.6% to 32,400 from the calendar year 2004 to 
2005. The Natural Resources, Mining and Construction jobs category is currently 99% construction jobs and 1.0% 
mining jobs. Construction jobs grew in all four counties in 2005. City and County of Honolulu construction jobs 
increased 10.0%, Hawaii County increased 7.9%, Maui County construction jobs were up 18.0%, and Kauai County 
construction jobs were up 7.4%. 

Median sale prices for both single family and condominium resales in Honolulu continued to increase, 
wbile units sold stabilized in 2005. The single-family median price was up 28.3% to $590,000 and the median -
condominium price was up 29.0% to $269,000. The number of single-family unit resales was down 1.8% and 
condominium unit resales were up 1.3%. 

Total value of private building authorizations increased 75.8% for the third calendar quarter of 2005 from 
the third calendar quarter of 2004. The value of residential permits was up 80.9%, the value of coDllllelcial and 
industrial permits was up 201.6%, and the value of additions and alterations was up 6.2%. 

The value of Maui County private building permits increased 178.9% and the value of Hawaii County 
authorizations increased 104.4% for the third calendar quarter of 2005 from the third calendar quarter of 2004. The 
value of Honolulu's total private authorizations was up 19.6% and that of Kauai permits increased 5.5%. From the 
beginning of the third calendar quarter of 2004, Kauai County permit value data are for residential units only. The 
statewide number of single-family unit authorizations increased 49.1% and that of multi-family units authorized 
were up 106.9% in the third calendar quarter of 2005 compared with the third calendar quarter of 2004. 

Government contracts awarded grew 68.0% from the third calendar quarter of 2004 to the third calendar 
quarter of 2005. The large increase is the result of the awarding of several multi-year Navy contracts. State 
Government Capital Improvement Project expenditures (CIP) were up for the third calendar quarter by 23.1 % to 
$166 million for the third calendar quarter. The largest share of the CIP expenditure was from General Obligation 
bond funds, followed by Federal funds and Special funds. 
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The Honolulu Construction Cost Index for Single Family Residences rose by 8.6% in the third calendar 
quarter of 2005, over the third calendar quarter of 2004, while the comparable index for high-rise buildings rose by 
5.2%. 

Table9 
ESTIMATED VALUE OF COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION, NEW PRIVATE 

BUILDING AUTHORIZATIONS, AND GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AWARDED 
(in millions of dollars and percentage change from the previous period) 

Prlw.te Bulldinl Autborbadom • Govemmenl 
Prl.... Commerdal Addltlonal Conlncls 

Year ~i:, l(, Autllorizatlom l(, Residential • l(, &l.odmttlal• l(, Au..a... l(, Anrdod l(, 

1996 3,285.1 4.8 1,117.8 -27.0 487.0 -34.7 252.8 -31.4 378.0 -9.S 885.S 80.6 
1997 2,944.4 -10.4 1,179.2 5.4 542.S 11.4 264.5 4.4 372.2 -1.S 615.6 -30.S 
1998 3,016.0 2.4 1,054.3 -10.S 485.5 -10.S 205.6 -22.1 3632 -2.4 685.S 11.4 
1999 2,991.2 -0.8 1,320.2 25.2 628.8 29.S 306.2 48.9 385.3 6.1 584.8 -14.7 
2000n 3,613.S 20.8 1,513.1 14.6 800.1 212 246.2 -19.6 466.2 21.1 810.9 38.7 
2001 3,766.4 4,2 1,585.7 4.8 882.4 10.3 329.1 33.7 3742 -19.8 715.7 -11.7 
2002• 4,274.9 13.5 1,m.o 11.8 1,112.9 26.1 254.2 ·22.8 404.9 82 768.3 7.3 
2003•> 4,536.3 6.1 2,352.7 32.8 1,336.0 20.0 507.9 99.8 508.8 25.7 633.4 -17.6 
2004 •> 4,921.S 8.S 2,726.5 15.9 1,767.7 32.3 303.3 -40.3 655.6 28.9 1,384.6 118.6 
2005•> NA NA 3,492.0 28.1 2,259.3 27.8 433.S 42.9 799.1 21.9 725.1 -47.6 

NA Not available 

I) Formerly, "Value ofConstruction Completed," subject wrevision,,, Hawaii State Department ofTaxation. 
2) htclw:ks hotels. 
3) Kauai Coullly data/or November consist ofre.!ldenlial data only. 
4) Beginning 2002, Kouol daUJ ovailoblefor residenlial only. 
Source: Hawaii StaJe Departm,mt ofT=mon; counJy building departments; First Hawaiian Bank, Building Industry Moga,.ine (various 
issuesi and UUlldanon,,,, Hawaii StaJe Department ofliusine,s, Economic Development &Touri,m. 

Table IO 

ESTIMATED VALUE OF PRIVATE BUILDING 
CONSTRUCTION AUTIIORIZATIONS, BY COUNTY 

(In thousands of dollars and percentage change from the previous period) 

City & County Hawaii Kauai Maui 
Year StatA, 'JI, ofHonolulu 'JI, County 'JI, County % County 'JI, 

1996 1,117,760 -27.0 698,697 ~ 171,017 ~ 101,981 29.2 146,065 ~ 
1997 1,179,182 5.5 772,825 10.6 155,776 -8.9 97,808 -4.1 152,773 4.6 
1998 1,054,281 -10.6 624,227 -19.2 178,220 14.4 88,196 -9.8 163,640 7.1 
1999 1,320,218 25.2 706,358 13.2 243,852 36.8 140,846 59.7 229,162 40.0 
2000° 1,512,601 14.6 694,223 -1.7 321,704 31.9 141,313 0.3 355,360 55.1 
2001 1,585,739 4.8 682,660 -1.7 380,248 18.2 210,094 48.7 312,738 -12.0 
2002 1,772,028 11.7 876,051 28.3 449,600 18.2 172,661 28.6 273,716 -12.5 
2003 2,352,720 32.8 1,109,568 26.7 620,634 38.0 153,242 -11.2 469,277 71.4 
2004 2,726,536 15.9 1,320,552 19.0 826,494 33.2 130,659 -14.7 448,831 -4.4 
2005 21 3,491,964 28.1 1,364,030 3.3 1,008,386 22.0 288,132 120.5 831,416 85.2 

I) Kauai County daUlfor November consin ofresidential dala only. 
2) Beginning 2002, Kauai data availoblefor residential only. 
Source: County Building Permits.. 

Federal Government Expendltnres In Hawaii 

Tot.al federal expenditure reacbed $12.2 billion in the federal fiscal year ending September 30, 2004, an 
increase of 8.1% over the previous year. Between federal fiscal years 1997 and 2004, the annual average growth 
rate for Federal expenditures was 5.9%. Overall, federal activity in Hawaii produces about 14% of GSP, much of 
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which is defense-related. Hawaii's Federal government sector employed 30,800 civilian and 53,800 anned forces 
personnel in calendar year 2004. 

According to the U.S. Department of Defense, expenditures on payroll and procurement contracts in 
Hawaii increased from $3.2 billion in fiscal year 1994 to $5.1 billion in the federal fiscal year ending 2004. Military 
spending in Hawaii remains a relatively stable and important source of outside income. Over that period, payroll 
outlays grew from $2.4 billion in federal fiscal year 1994 to $3.4 billion in federal fiscal year 2004. Payroll, 
however, slipped from 75% of total Hawaii Federal defense spending in federal fiscal year 1994 to 66% in federal 
fiscal year 2004. Procurement contracts accounted for $0.8 billion or 25% of total defense spending in federal fiscal 
year 1994, rising to $1.7 billion, or 34% of the total defense spending in federal fiscal year 2004. Between federal 
fiscal year 2003 and 2004, the total military spending rose 5.1% while payroll alone rose 11%. 

The lat.est data from the U.S. Department of Commerce indicakl that the total earnings of Federal 
government personnel in the federal fiscal year 2005 were 7 .2% higher than a year earlier. Total federal government 
jobs increased 1.0% in federal fiscal year 2004 compared to 2003. 

In 2005, the U.S. Senate approved more than $354 million in Federal funds for 16 military construction 
projects in Hawaii during the federal fiscal year beginning October 1, 2005. Hawaii is also expected to receive 
about $413 million nnder the Defense Appropriation Bill. These amounts are in addition to day-to-day defense 
operations and payroll outlays. 

Banks and Other Financial Institutions 

As of June 30, 2005, total assets of all State-chartered financial institutions, including banks, savings and 
loan associations and industrial loan companies were reported at $26.6 billion, a 8.07% increase from June 30, 2004. 
The three State-chartered banks accounted for $26.0 billion of such assets. 

Transportation 

Because the Stakl' s population resides on seven islands, the State is dependent on fast, efficient, low-cost 
transportation, both interstate and intrastate. 

Sea Transponation. The State is dependent on regular shipping service for overseas lifeline support. 
While nearly all visitors to the Stare arrive by air, surface transportation provides the State with the bulk of both its 
imported goods and delivery of exported local products. Overseas and interisland cargo shipments for the fiscal 
years 2003, 2004, and 2005 amounted to 16.2 million short tons, 18.7 million short tons, and 20.2 million short tons, 
respectively. 

Hawaii continues to be an attractive market for the cruise ship industry. The number of cruise visitor 
arrivals has increased from 92,250 in 1996 to 229,400 in 2003 to 239,668 in 2004. Nowegian Cruise Lines (NCL) 
cwrently homeports three cruise ships, the Pride of America, the Pride of Aloha and the Norwegian Wind, providing 
the Stare with year round inter-island service. A fourth ship, the Pride of Hawaii is anticipared to begin operations 
in June 2006. The Stare' s Harbors Division has several projects under design to improve certain rerminal facilities 
statewide to accommodare the increased activity. The construction of a new cruise passenger rerminal at Pier 2, 
Honolulu Harbor, began in April 2005 and is expected to be completed in the spring of 2006. Design of subsequent 
improvements at Pier 2, including construction of a boarding gangway and offices for U.S. Customs is ongoing. 

Hawaii Superferry, Inc., a privare ferry operator, bas secured financing to complete construction of two 
new inrer-island ferry vessels and commence ferry service operations that will initiare a roll on/roll off high-speed 
daily service for the transport of passengers and vehicles, including cars, trucks and buses. Operations are planned 
between the harbors of Honolulu, Kahului, Nawiliwili and Kawaihae. Service is anticipated to begin in the second 
quarter 2007, starting with one vessel during the first year and a second vessel in the following 18 to 24 months. 

The Harbor System is comprised of ren harbors, which are operated and maintained by the Department of 
Transportation as a single inregrated sysrem for financial and management purposes. The harbors are: (1) Honolulu 
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Harbor, Kalaeloa Barbers Point Harbor and Kewalo Basin on the island of Oahu, comprising the Oahu District; 
(2) Hilo Harbor and Kawaillae Harbor on the island of Hawaii, comprising the Hawaii District; (3) Nawiliwili 
Harbor and Port Allen Harbor on the island of Kauai, comprising the Kauai District; (4) Kahului Harbor on the 
island of Maui, Kaunakakai llarbor on the island of Molokai, and Kaumalapau Harbor on the island of Lanai, 
comprising the Maui District. 

The State uses nine harbors, with the exception of Kewalo Basin, to facilitate the movement of goods from 
the mainland, foreign and interisland ports. The number of commercial vesaels entering all ports was 9,134 in fiscal 
year 2003, and 8,993 in fiscal year 2004, and 9,714 in meal year 2005. 

Honolulu Harbor is the hub of the State's Statew.ide System of Harbors, where it serves as a major 
distribution point of overseas cargo to the neighbor islands and a primary consolidation center for export of overseas 
cargo. Overseas and interisland cargo tonnage handled through the Honolulu Harbor was 8.0 million short tons in 
fiscal year 2003, 9.0 million short tons in fiscal year 2004, and 9.6 million short tons in fiscal year 2005. The State 
manages, maintains and operates the statewide harbors system to provide for the efficient movement of cargo and 
passengers. 

Air Transponatlon. The State operates and maintains fifteen airports on six islands w.ithin the State. The 
principal airport, which provides facilities for overseas flights (i.e., other than inter-island flights w.ithin the State) is 
Honolulu International Airport (HNL) on the island of Oahu. HNL is located approximately five miles by highway 
from the center of the downtown area of Honolulu. It has four runways, two of which (12,000 feet and 12,300 feet) 
are among the nation's longest. Approximately 60 aircraft can be handled at one time at the terminal complex, 
including 36 wide-bodied aircraft. With 29 overseas gate positions, 18 inter-island and commuter positions and 
public parking stalls for 4,579 vehicles, HNL is the most important in the State airports system. The airfield at 
Barber Point Naval Air Station became Kalaeloa Airport, a general aviation reliever airport for HNL, in July 1999. 

Kahului Airport on the island of Maui, Hilo International Airport (renamed from General Lyman Field) at 
Hilo, and Kona International Airport at Keahole both on the island of Hawaii and Llhue Airport on the island of 
Kauai, also service direct flights to and from the continental United States. 

According to data from the Airports Council International, HNL is the 56th busiest air terminal in the 
world, ranking 27th in the United States in total passengers serviced in 2004. In 2004, HNL recorded 320,520 
aircraft operations. For the year 2004 there was a 3.6% increase in passengers at HNL to 19,370,796. In meal year 
2005, overseas domestic, international, and inter-island passengers to Hawaii increased. 

Inter-island air travel in Hawaii is primary served by Aloha Airlines and Hawaiian Airlines. Inter-island 
traffic flights were reduced based on a federal exemption to collaborate on schedules to increase yields of passenger 
loads. Aloha Airlines and Hawaiian Airlines filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy on December 30, 2004 and March 21, 
2003, respectively. Aloha and Hawaiian Airlines have exited from bankruptcy. 

Since January 2003, a number of major airlines have announced the addition of new routes to Hawaii. 
American Airlines added a daily flight from Chicago to Kahului, a second daily flight from Chicago to Honolulu, a 
second flight from Los Angeles to Kona and a second flight from Los Angeles to Llhue. Continental Airlines added 
daily service from Houston to Kahului and Delta Airlines added daily flights from Cincinnati and Atlanta 
respectively to Honolulu. Hawaiian Airlines increased frequency to Kahului from Portland and San Diego. 
Hawaiian also added a daily flight from Las Vegas to Honolulu. 

In November 2004, HMY Airways launched new service from Victoria to Honolulu and added capacity in 
its Vancouver routes to Honolulu and Kahului in December 2005 for the peak Canadian winter travel season. Also 
in December 2004, Northwest Airlines started daily Portland-Honolulu; United Airlines launched a daily Chicago­
Kahului•Kona service; Continental Airlines started daily Nagoya-Honolulu service; and Delta Airlines added a 
second daily Atlanta-Honolulu flight. 

In April 2005 ATA Airlines launched Phoenix-Honolulu daily service, increased Los Angeles-Kahului 
service and launched service from Las Vegas to Honolulu and Kona. Aloha Airlines increased service from Orange 
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County to Hawaii to five daily flights and launched San Diego-Honolulu, Las Vegas-Honolulu, San Diego-Kahului, 
Sacramento-Kahului and Oakland-Kona, and suspended service from Burbank and Vancouver. Delta Airlines 
launched service from Salt Lake City to Kahului from Atlanta to Kahului, and from Atlanta to Kona via Salt Lake 
City, Northwest Airlines will offer services from Oakland to Honolulu, Kahului, Kona and Lihue; and Los Angeles, 
Portland and San Francisco to Honolulu. In addition, Northwest Airlines operates seasonal Anchorage-Kahului­
Honolulu service from June 10 to August 22. Hawaiian launched service from San Jose to Honolulu. America West 
resumed service to Hawaii with nonstop flights from Phoenix to Honolulu and from Phoenix to Kahului. A new 
airline, WestJet, began twice a week service from Vancouver to Honolulu and to Kahului. 

In July 2005, Northwest Airlines began service from Seattle to Kahului and Kona. 

In 2006, United Airlines plans to begin service from the West Coast to Hilo. In February, 2006, 
Continental added a Los Angeles stop so it now has daily Houston-Los Angeles-Kahului flights. In March 2006, 
American West will begin service from Las Vegas to Kahului from Phoenix to Lihue, and from Phoenix to Kona. In 
April 2006, Mesa Air plans to begin interisland service. In June 2006, Hawaiian Airlines will begin service from 
San Diego to Kahului. Air Japan Airlines will launch charter services from Tokyo to Honolulu. China Airlines 
Taipei-Honolulu flights will increase from 2 to 3 times daily. EVA Airways resumed Taipei-Honolulu aervice. 
Charter carrier, Harmony Airways, increased service from Vancouver to Honolulu and Kahului and added flights 
from Abbotsford, Kelowna and Victoria, Canada to Hawaii. 

Charter carriers also added service to Hawaii in 2003. Hawaiian Vacations added two new routes to 
Kahului from Boise and Spokane, once a week. Pleasant/ATA added two weekly flights to Lihue from Los Angeles 
and San Francisco. Suntrips added a weekly flight from Oakland to Lihue. The total net domestic air seats added to 
Hawaii in 2003 is estimated at over 332,000. 

Overseas domestic, international, and interisland passengers to Hawaii increased in fiscal year 2005. Inter­
island flights were reduced based on a federal exemption to collaborate on schedules to increase yields of passenger 
loads. Aloha Airlines and Hawaiian Airlines filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy on December 30, 2004 and March 21, 
2003, respectively. Hawaiian Airlines has exited from bankruptcy. 

Land Transportation. In the State, three levels of government have authority to construct and maintain 
public highways, streets and roads. These levels of government are the State, the counties and various federal 
agencies. The State is served by approximately 4,315 linear miles of public highways, streets and roads 
administered by the Department of Transportation and the counties. An additional 168 miles of public highways, 
streets and roads open to the public in national parks and military reservations are the responsibility of various 
federal agencies, including the United States National Park Service and the military services. 

The State Highway System, which is administered by the Department of Transportation, consists of 
940 linear miles of roadways. The most important component of the State Highway System is the 55 miles of 
interstate system on Oahu, which includes Interstates H-1, H-2, H-3 and H-201. 
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The following table shows the motor vehicle registrations in the State for the years 2000 to 2005, inclusive. 

Table 11 

MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRATION 

l'.l4Jl VEHICLES 
2000 941,242 
2001 967,151 
2002 987,598 
2003 1,030,843 
2004 1,070,012 
2005 1,119,838 

Education 

The State operates a statewide public school system for elementary, intermediate, and high schools and 
colleges and universities. In the 2005-2006 school year, system enrollment decreased from the 2004-2005 school 
year to a total of 181,355 in 285 public schools. The public education system at all levels (elementary, int.ennediate, 
high school, colleges and universities) is financed at the State level rather than the local level. This includes both 
capital outlays and costs of operation. Within the total student count, the number of students in regular education 
has decreased, while the number ofcharter school students has increased. 

In the fall of 2004, 50,569 students attended State colleges and universities, 20,549 of them on the UH 
Manoa Campus. The UH offers bachelors, masters, and doctorate degrees, as well as a certificate in teaching. The 
system of community colleges, within the UH system, offers associate in arts and associate in science degrees and 
certificates, including certificates of achievement 

In September 2002, the UH broke ground on the John A. Burns Health and Wellness Center (the "Project") 
in the Kakaako district of Honolulu. The Project is anchored by the $150 million new university medical center. 
The Education Administration building opened in April 2005 and the research facility opened in September 2005. 
The UH is planning the development of phase Il of the John A. Burns Center to provide additional research space. 
In addition, the UH is planning the development of a new facility for the Cancer Research Center of Hawaii. Both 
projects will be located in Kakaako with estimated completion dates of December 2008. The State expects that the 
Project will help to attract privat.e investment in the biotechnology industry and to revitalire further the Kakaako 
area, which lies between downtown Honolulu and Waikiki. The Stat.e supports the Project directly through the 
dedication of a share of its annual tobacco settlement receipts. 

State Housing Programs 

Since 1970, the Stat.e has undertabn a program to alleviate the shortage of housing in the Stat.e under a 
comprehensive housing law. The law recognires that all phases of housing are related to one another and 
consequently attempts to cover all such phases, from construction through permanent financing, and also attempts to 
solve or mitigate the housing problem by using both the public and private sectors. To this end the Stat.e has 
undertaken, among other things, facilitating the development of real property and the construction of dwelling units 
thereon in partnerships with qualified developers and contractors. The Stat.e's participation in such partnerships has 
consisted of construction financing (interim financing), including land acquisition. Other State efforts include 
construction and permanent financing for developers ofresidential housing; development by the Stat.e itself of single 
and multifamily residential housing units on land owned by the State or on land purchased or to be purchased for 
such purpose or on land to be leased from others; and loans to qualified residents of the State who are qualified 
purchasers of affordable dwelling units. 

The State also administers federal and stat.e housing assistance programs for low-income families. Included 
are the management of low-rent public housing units, the administration of the Section 8 tenant-based housing 
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assistance program and other federal and State programs intended to provide very low to low-income residents with 
safe, decent and sanitary housing. 

The State housing programs are carried out by the Housing and Community Development Corporation of 
Hawaii (the "HCDCH"). The HCDCH is empowered to raise funds through the issuance of revenue bonds and to 
use such funds for housing pwposes. The bonds are special obligations of the HCDCH and do not impact the debt 
limit of the State, nor do the bonds constitute general obligations of the State. 

On July 1, 2006. pursuant to Act 196, SLH 2005, the HCDCH will be bifurcated into the Hawaii Public 
Housing Administration and the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Administration. The Hawaii Public 
Housing Administration will perform the function of developing and maintaining public housing. The Hawaii 
Housing Finance and Development Administration will perform the function of housing finance and development. 
The assets, obligations, and functions of the HCDCH will be transferred to the Hawaii Public Housing 
Administration or the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Administration. 
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APPENDIXB 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
ABOUT THE STATE OF HAWAIT 

PARTI 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The statistical information presented by this Part I of Appendix B is the most current such information available to 
the State. Because such information becomes available at different times, the dates of such information, as presented herein, 
are not the same. 

INFORMATION ABOUT INDEBTEDNESS 

The following table sets forth the State's total indebtedness, including reimbursable general obligation bonds 
excludable for the purposes ofcalculating the constitutional debt limit 

SUMMARY OF TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS 
OF THE STATE OF HAWAD 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND INDEBTEDNESS 
As ofJuly 1, 200S 

General obligation bonds outstanding 
Less exclodable reimbursable general obligation bonds 1> 

$ 4,265,903,181 

Highways $ 94,297,444 
Airports 55,550 
Hru:bors 111,256 
University of Hawaii 10,506,922 
Parking facilities 
Hawaiian Home Lands 
Subtotal exclndable reimbursable general obligation bonds 

1,096,295 
),240A73

$107,307,941 
Less all general obligation bonds maturing in the current year $269,778,550 $ 377,Q86,491 
Net general obligation bonds outstanding s3 888 816 690 

REVENUE BOND INDEBTEDNESS 2J 
As of July 1, 200S 

Revenue bonds outstanding: 
Airports: 

Airports system 
Airports special facility 

$673,695,000 
38 860,000 $ 712,555,000 

Housing 
Single family mortgage purchase 363,360,000 
Multifamily 136,846,208 500,206,208 

Harbors: 
Revenue 185,255,000 

Highway: 
Revenue 297,605,000 

Hawaiian home lands 8,650,000 
University revenue projects 

Total revenue bonds outstanding 
178.955.000 

$] 883 226.208 
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SPECIAL ASSF.S.SMENT BONDS ;JJ 
As of July 1, 2005 

Special Assessment Bonds outstanding: 
Improvement district bonds $900,000 

SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUE BOND INDEBTEDNESS 4J 
As of July 1, 2005 

Special Putpose Revenue Bonds outstanding: 
Health care facilities $ 711,745,000 
Utilities serving the general public 742,493,000 
Jndustrial enterprises 19,562,500 
Processing enterprises ZJOO.OOQ 

Total special purpose revenue bonds outstanding $).481,500,500 

1) See "DEBT STRUCI'URE-Exclusions" and "DEBT STRUC'IVRE-Relmbursemenl to Sttm, Genmd Fund/or Debt S•ni<•" inAp~A/Qr 
exclusions and 30urces ofreimbursemmt. 

2) All l'l!lltllue indebU!dness Is payable solely from the revenues derived from rates, rentals, fees and charges exceptfor the revenue bonds Issuedfor the 
airports system, which are payablefrom both the revenues ofthe airports system derivedfrom rotes, rentals, fees and charges and from the aviation 
Jue/ tax, and ex,;eptfQr a part/on Qfthe revenue bonds Issuedfor tM Unive111lty ofHawoii, which Is payable from both the nvenues Qf the University 
dertv«lfrom tuition, fees and charges andfrom tobacco settlementfunds. 

3) All sp,ci<ll assessment Indebtedness is payable wlely from receipts derived from assessments against the real property .specially benejiJ,dfrom tM sale 
ofthe bands. 

4) All sptci<ll purpose revenue indebtedness Is payable solely from r,ceipts derived from paymen,s by specialpu,pos• entides or persons under contMct 
orfrom any securityfor such contract or special purpose revenue bonds. 

The following table presents a summary of the calculation of the State's constitutional debt limit as of July 1, 2005. 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF 
THE DEBT LIMIT OF THE STATE OF HAWAll 

NET GENERAL FUND REVENUES FOR THE STATE OF 
HAWAil FOR THE PRECEDING TIIREE FISCAL YEARS 

2002-2003 2003-2004 2004-2005 

Total General Fund revenues exclusive ofGrants from the 
federal government...................................................................... . $ 3,788,864,069 $ 3,907,745,914 $ 4,486,358,701 

Less: 
Receipts in reimbursement of any indebtedness that is excluded 
in computing the total outstanding indebtedness ofthe 
Stste Agencies .............--....................---····................ 
Net General Fund revenues .......................................................... 

22,8U,8U 
$ 3766 052,192 

13.654,184 
$ 3,894.091.730 

14,898,)19 
$ 4471 M9 582 

Sum of net General Fund revenues for preceding three fiscal years... 
Average ofpreceding three fiscal years...........................____ 

$12,131,604,504 
$ 4,043,868,168 

18½% of average net General Fund revenues ofthe three 
preceding years ended June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005................. . $ 748,)15,611 I) 

1} The gretJtest amoum ofprinclpal and interest payable in a,ry fiscal year on outstanding general ol,ligalion indel,tednes, as ofJuly 1, ZOOS, and on tlu! 
Bonds, a,fter exclusions p,nnitted by the Constillllion, is $533,619,678 In the fiscal year ,ndlng June30, 2()()9. 
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GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OUTSTANDING 
AS OF FEBRUARY 1, 2006 

Principal %of 
Amount Total 

Relmbw:sable General Obligation Bonds Il 
From State Special Funds for 

Highways .....................................................................................___ $ 86,699,125 
Ai.tports ....................................................................................................... . 47,125 
Commercial Harbors ................................................................................... . 100,479 
Small Boat Harbors 2l ................................................................................. . 7,219,753 
Hawaiian Home Lands ................................................................................. 1,170,689 
University of Hawaii .................................................................................... 8,838,980 
Parking Facilities......................................................................................... . 822,281 
Waiahole Water System 2l ........................................................................... 8,251,204 
Conventioo Center 2) ................................................................................... 242,008,162 

Total for Special Funds ..................................................................................... . 
$ 355,157,798 

Total Reimbursable General Obligation Bonds.................................................. S 355,157J98 8.66 

Non-Reimbursable General Obligation Bonds 
From State General Funds for various pwposes......----.............. 
Total Non-reimbursable General Obligation Bonds .....____ 

$3J44,871.Q5t 
$3J44,87!.Q51 91.34 

Total General Obligation Bonds Issued and Outstanding .................................. $4 100 028 842 JWJl! 

I) See discussion above concerning soun:es ofrelmbursemmt, including taxes. The figures in this table should not be rakell a., an indication th/21 in all 
lnsJances the reimbursemtml to Ille General Fund will in fact be mad, or that sw,h relmbur.temmt will be made in whole. 

2) Not exclrJdableford,bt limitpu,poses. 
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SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE 
AS OF FEBRUARY l, 2006 

The following 1llble sets - a SlllllllUIIY oflhe debl serviee payablo on all oolstallding gmeral obligation bonded inde- oflbe Slalc ofHawaii u ofFcbnwy 
2006 and oo tho Boruls. F\utber detail conccming tho $tale's 'Yllriooa -.anding gmeral obligation indobtoduess is se1 - in Appendix D hemo. 

Fiscal Year .......- Total Principal 
"""""dm& .. of 
febnwvl 2006 

Tow-- T,..u, ..... - TOW Debt ScrvicD- ...._ 
..,,_., Net Debt Service 
QeneralFupdl) - Tomi-- Pett Smiso PP Stria D1 21 

Total- Total Debt SerYi- -2007 $3,980,668,852 $310,119,530 $221,553.'739 $531,673,269 $63,363,704 $468,3-09,565 I 0 s1s,940,m.61 $1$,940,773.6 
2008 3,670,549,322 323,825,308 207,843,936 531,669,244 60,766,751 470,902,493 0 16,978,338.76 16,978,338.71 
2009 3,346,724,014 338,569,475 193,099,63S S.31,669,109 55,461,670 476,207,439 0 16,978,338.76 16,978,338.7, 
2010 3,008,154,539 319,909,540 161,174,152 481,083,692 40,431,190 440,652,502 13,925,000 16,978,331.76 30,903,331.7, 
20ll 2,688,244,999 327,225,000 131,649,265 458,174,265 43,219,947 415,654,313 14,43S,OOO 16,416,788.76 30,901,788.7, 
2012 2,361,019,999 285,865,000 115,625,411 401,490,411 35,553,632 365,931,149 IS,100,000 15,303,926.26 30,903,926.i 
2013 2,075,154,999 298,275,000 100,672,999 398,947,999 31,187,797 367,760,202 15,760,000 15,143,926.26 30,903,926.2, 
2014 1,116,'!119,/WJ 267,350,000 35,574,886 3S2,924,Sl6 21,403,617 331,521,199 16,520,000 14,381,766.26 30,901,7= 
2015 1,509,529,999 26S,13S,OOO 71,865,956 337,050,956 20,417,693 316,633,258 17,335,000 13,S71,0S6.26 30,906,0S6.2 
2016 1,244,344,999 195,670,000 58,819,229 254,489,229 13,303,762 241,UB,467 18,165,000 12,736,021.26 30,901,021.2 
2017 1,041,674,999 218,700,000 41,347,186 267,047,186 ll,226,374 255,820,812 19,005,000 11,899,121.26 30,904,121.2 
2018 829,974,999 160,330,000 38,494,571 198,824,571 4,866,558 193,958,013 19,935,000 10,965,921.26 30,900,921.2 
2019 669,644,999 122,080,000 31,802,582 153,882,582 426,158 153,456,424 20,925,000 9,978,021.26 30,903,021.2 
2020 547,564,999 105,510,000 26,027,582 131,537,182 426,494 131,111,088 21,970,000 8,933,827.50 30,903,827.5 
2021 442,054,999 ll2,125,000 20,149,469 ll2,674,469 426,m 468,309,565 23,065,000 7,838,302.50 30,903,302.S 
2022 m,929,999 116,780,000 14,713,291 131,493,291 422,774 131,070,517 24.215,000 6,685,892.50 30,900,892.S 

2023 213,149,999 80,440,000 9,136,086 89,576,086 423,)47 89,152,939 25,425,000 S,476,lSS.OO 30,901,155.0 
2024 132,709,999 75,800,000 5,204,054 81,004,0S4 424,937 80,579,117 26,700,000 4,204,905.00 30,904,905.0 
2025 56,909,999 37,865,000 1,143,448 39,708,448 425,635 39,282,813 28,035,000 2,870,280.00 30,905,280.0 
2026 19,044,999 19,045,000 461,625 19,506,625 426,369 19,080,256 29,435,000 1,468,530.00 30,903,530.0 

I) T/te,ejig,,,,, ,how debt ,ervice on outrtandlng general obligation bonds ofthl, Sime ;,,-Jfor certain acJMtle.r, wtdertak/ng,, lmprow,m,n<, and,,,,.,.,., oftit, S,at, w,..,_ tit, fK'Y"' 

of- deht -.from tit, Ge..,,,/ Ft,JII] 1$ -1"'1 />y -• to h, rtimt,,m,,d to tit, Ge,,,,,,,/ Ft,Jll]_from tit, "'1/<CtlYe -~ - or..., 1""'3 pm,,inblg to tlttt pa,tic,l
activity. undertoking. in,provemenl or $JIIU111 and nlgardlas of whether excludable tllltW ihe provl$lons ofthe Constitulion WM1I determining tM power oftml State to incur indebtedm 
Consequently, ths amount of~tto the Gemmi/ F"nd in the table above is greater than the o:.cludable reimbursement '11111hr the Cmu/ihdiorl. For~ ofthe UJ,363,i 
amount reimbursable to the Geneml Fund;,, the FisCQ/ fem- ending June 30. 2007 only $21,158,916 is an cxcludable reimbursement for purpo3U ofthe debt limiJ caku/otion under 
Ctmsti,.,ti(»1. Stt Debt Structure~ Reimbursement to the State General FuMfor Debt Service in Appendix Afor 1M ~ ofrt!imbunement, including taus. 

2) ,t, oftit, dot• ofdelt,e,y the,eef. 
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BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA 
(Amounts in thonsands except ratio data) 

Net General 
Net General Obligation

General Obligal,ion Less Debt Senice Obligation Bonded Debt 
Fiscal Year Popnladon lJ Bonded Debt 2&3) Monies Available 2l Bonded Debt Per Capita 

1996 1,204 $2,841,069 $240 $2,840,829 $2,399 
1997 1,212 $3,075,862 $435 $3,075,427 $2,580 
1998 1,215 $3,363,517 $338 $3,363,179 $2,824 
1999 1,210 $3,166,880 $223 $3,166,657 $2,670 
2000 1,212 $3,278,479 $258 $3,278,221 $2,705 
2001 1,225 $3,225,635 $110 $3,225,525 $2,629 
2002 1,241 $3,568,001 $79 $3,567,922 $2,884 
2003 1,249 $3,634,738 $148 $3,634,590 $2,910 
2004 1,263 $3,954,192 $72 $3,954,120 $3,128 
2005 1,278 $4,256,633 $184 $4,256,449 $3,331 

1) Source: Hawaii Stat, Departmtmt ofBusiness, Economic Development and Tourism. 
2) Source: Hawaii SIDie Department ofAccounting and Geneml Services, Accounting Dlvlaion. 
3) Excludes ~,prise Funds and Component Unir-UH Geneml Obligation Bonds. 

Certificates of Participation 

In November 1998, the State executed a Lease Purchase Agreement related to the issuance of $54,850,000 
in certificates of participation (COPS), the proceeds of which were used to purchase a state office building in 
Kapolei, and in December 2000, the State executed a second Lease Purchase Agreement for the issuance of 
$23,140,000 in COPS, the proceeds of which were used to purchase the No. 1 Capitol District State Office Building 
in Honolulu. Both buildings are located on the island of Oahu. The COPS are secured by rental payments payable 
from lawfully available funds of the State, including the State's general fund. The rental payments do not constimte 
an obligation for which the State has levied any form of taxation. The COPS do not constimte an indebtedness of 
the State or any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of the Constimtion or any statute of the State. The 
State does not anticipate that it will issue COPS during the current fiscal year, and would require legislative 
authorization to do so. 

INVESTMENT OF STATE FUNDS 

Cash Management Program Policy 

The investment policies of the State's cash management program are: (a) Safety: To safeguard State funds 
by securing cash, personnel and facilities and requiring full collateralization of State deposits; (b) Liquidity: To 
ensure the availability of funds to meet State expenditures by the timely forecasting of cash requirements and the 
selection of securities that can be promptly converted into cash with a minimum risk in principal; and (c) Yield: To 
maximize interest earnings on State investments by investing funds in excess of immediate needs to the maximum 
extent possible. 

Securities in Whlcb State Funds May Be Invested 

The General Fund, the various Special Funds and other funds are held in the State Treasury. The moneys 
held in the State Treasury, which in the judgment of the Director of Finance are in excess of the amounts necessary 
to meet the immediate requirements of the State, are invested in securities prescribed in Section 36-21, HRS. The 
securities in which State funds may be invested include the following: (a) U.S. Treasury obligations, including 
Treasury bills, notes and bonds; (b) obligations for which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged 
for the payment of principal and interest; (c) time certificates of deposit in federally insured financial institutions; 
(d) interest bearing accounts with federally insured financial institutions; (e) repurchase agreements with federally 
insured banks and savings and loan associations; (f) student loan resource securities with a triple A rating; 
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(g) cOIIIJllefcial paper with at least an Al/Pl rating; (h) bankers' acceptances with at least an Al/Pl rating; and 
(i) nwney market mutual funds which invest solely in U.S. Treasucy obligations or obligations for which the full 
faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. Section 36-21, HRS, 
prohibits the State from investing in securities which require the State to make any swap, counter or other payments 
other than the original plll'Chase price plus accrued interest. 

In the investment of State funds, it is the policy of the State to give due regard to depositories doing 
business within the State. This policy takes into account the beneficial effects to the State of using local 
depositories. Deposits are allocated among local financial institutions based upon the yield offered on investments 
and their ability to fully collateralize such investments. 

As of December 31, 2005, 19% of the State's investment portfolio consisted of replll'Chase agreements with 
banks, 4% consisted of time certificates with banks, 6% consisted of student loan reSOIIX'Ce securities with a triple A 
rating, and 71% consisted of Federal Agency Securities. 

Safety ofPublic Funds 

All State funds deposited with financial institutions are deemed, under State law, to be deposited in the 
State Treasucy. Except for that portion of any deposit which is insured by an agency of the federal government, e.g., 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), all deposits of State funds must be fully collateralized by the 
depository with securities deposited with the Director of Finance as provided in Section 38-3, HRS. Pursuant to the 
authority granted the Director ofFmance under Section 38-3, the valuation policy for securities pledged as collateral 
for the protection of State deposits is 90% of the outstanding balance of mortgage-backed pass-through certificates, 
i.e., Collateralized Mortgage Obligations backed by Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), Federal 
National Mortgage Association (FNMA), and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) securities, 
100% of letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank, and 9:5% of par or face value of all other securities 
accepted by the State for protection of State deposits. 

With respect to the types of securities pledged as collateral, Section 38-3 generally requires such securities 
to be investment grade financial instruments with a high degree of liquidity or marketability. Accordingly, the State 
will not accept, as collateral, derivative products or other securities that nwve inversely to the general level of 
interest rates. Collateralized mortgage obligations that do not pass the federal Financial Institutions Examination 
Council test for high-risk securities are also unacceptable as collateral for State deposits. 

The collateral pledged by depositories is monitored by the Director of Finance on a computerized system, 
which detennines the adequacy of the amount of collateral pledged by depositories on a daily basis. Approximately 
70% of the securities used to collateralli:e replll'Chase agreements are marked to market regularly. 

The State utilizes a uniform repurchase agreement in all such transactions. Such form requires sellers to 
mark purchased securities to market on a monthly basis, or more frequently at the State's request. Such form further 
requires sellers to increase the collateral securities in the State's account to maintain market value of the plll'Chased 
securities in an amount equal to or greater than the original plll'Chase price. 

Investment Yield 

Cash positions of State moneys in depositories are reviewed at the beginning of each work day. A 
determination is made as to the amount of moneys needed to meet payment of State obligations, e.g., payroll, debt 
service, vendor and contract payments. Any amounts in excess of those requirements are then committed to 
investment to maximize interest income to the State. Interest earned on moneys in the State Treasucy which are 
requested to be invested by a special fund agency are credited to the special fund agency. All investments of the 
State are made by the Director of Finance. The length or term of an investment is determined by the cash flow 
requirements of the particular program and the general direction of interest rates. 

As of December 31, 2005, the State earned $19.2 million on its General Fund investments. This amount 
represents an average return on investment for the General Fund of 3.15%. 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The following is the balance sheet of the General Fund ending each June 30 from 2000 to 2004. Following 
thereafter is the statement of revenues and expenditures of the General Fund for each such fiscal year including the 
statement of revenues and expenditures for each such fiscal year. See also the schedules relating to the General 
Fund accompanying the General Purpose Financial Statements from the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004, in Part ll of Appendix B. 

The data set forth in the balance sheets and other financial statements have been prepared by the 
Comptroller of the State. The General Fund is presented and reported using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under such basis, revenues are recorded when collected in cash except for (a) revenues susceptible to 
accrual, i.e., measurable and available and (b) revenues received prior to the period of benefit. Revenues for which 
receivables have been recorded (and other noncash assets generally) are fully reserved until such time as they are 
converted to cash. 

Expenditures are recorded at the time vouchers for payment are filed with the Comptroller. At the end of a 
fiscal year, existing liabilities for which payment is due are vouchered and recorded as expenditures as of the end of 
the fiscal year. Other liabilities for which payment is not due, and obligations in the form of open purchase orders, 
are recorded as encumbrances at the end of a fiscal year and are not recorded as expenditures until the encumbrances 
are subsequently liquidated. 

General fixed assets purchased or constructed are recorded initially as expenditures and are subsequently 
reflected at cost in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Depreciation on general fixed assets is not recorded in 
the general accounting records. 
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE GENERAL FUND 
OF TIIE STATE OF HAWAII 

AsofJune30 

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

2001 2002 
ASSETS: 

Cash $217,775 $52,567 
Advances to other funds ......................................................... 

Due from other funds .... ·································•········ 206,878 140,900 

Due from Component Units ................................................... 6,000 6,000 
Receivables 

Taxes .................... ••••••••••••••••••••••• 276,900 288,501 

Notes ................................................................................ 484 404 

Other................................................................................. 161 160 
Total receivables............................................................... 277,545 289,065 

Investments ............................................................................ 265,025 289,143 
TOTAL ASSETS ............................................. $973,223 $777,675 

LlABIUTIBS AND FUND EQUITY 

Liabilities: 

Vouchers payable ....................................................... $82,226 $124,465 

Other 8CCl'Ued liabilities.............................................. 53,518 51,160 

Due to other funds ...................................................... 6,310 79 
Due to Component Units ............. 9,828 11,742 
Deferred revenue ..........................................__ 16,000 11,500 

TOTAL LlABlUTIBS ............................................... $167,882 $198,946 

FUND EQUITY: 

Reserves: 

Unrealized receivables................................................ $ 536 $ 522 
Bncumbrm!ces .................... 195,549 220,501 

Unencumbered allotments .......................................... 8,667 8,929 
Total reserves .... 204,752 229,952 

Unreserved fund balance: 

Designated for future expenditures............................. 74,235 37,670 

Uodesignated .............................................................. 526,354 311,107 

Total fund equity ........................................................ 805,341 578,729 

TOTAL LlABIUTIBS AND FUND EQUITY ...................... $973,223 $777,675 

2003 

$183,955 

113,600 
20,000 

283,300 

386 
73 

283,759 
46,568 

$647,882 

$ 69,116 
55,021 

148 
5,769 

15,000 
$145,054 

$ 400 

202,949 
9,013 

212,362 

23,048 
267,418 
502,828 

$647,882 

2004 
Preliminary 

2005 

$310,117 $153,227 

135,100 
20,000 

131,169 
20,000 

304,900 
423 
71 

305,394 
16,585 

$787,196 

338,300 
6,324 
5,179 

349,803 
478,199 

$ 1,132,398 

$99,545 
55,861 

72 
5,121 
7,500 

$168,099 

$85,918 
57,900 

184 
9,026 

13,800 
$166,828 

$ 435 
208,114 

9,208 
217,757 

$ 6,337 
201,362 

10,802 
218,501 

19,600 
381,740 

619,097 

$787,196 

30,700 
716,369 
965,570 

$1,132,398 
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REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES OF THE GENERAL FUND 
OF THE STATE OFBAWAll 

(FOR THE FISCAL YEARS SHOWN) 
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 

..,., ..,., 'JI, ol' 'JI, ol' 'll,o{~ 
2000-2001 Total 2001-2002 Total 2002-2003 Total 2003-2004 Total 2004-2005 Total 

REVENUES: 
General excise tax $1,626,486 47.46 $1,641,008 S0.60 $1,771,629 51.89 $1,893,916 51.06 $2,139,798 S0.97 
Income tax..COJpOtation 73,857 2.16 33,777 1.04 8,162 0.24 60,653 1.64 90,304 2.15 
lnoome tax-individual 1,113,239 32.48 1,047,946 32.32 1,042,526 30.53 1,193,688 32.18 1,394,360 33.22 
Service companies tax 134,583 3.93 93,406 2.88 114,115 3.34 99,SOS 2.68 108,686 2.S9 
Liquor licea.ses aod taxes 37,783 1.10 39,091 1.21 41,186 1.21 41,250 1.11 43,737 1.04 
Tobacco licenseo and taxes SS,074 1.61 64,469 1.99 71,273 2.09 78,383 2.11 84,068 2.00 
Insurance premiums tax 72,113 2.10 67,941 2.10 73,240 2.14 78,142 2.11 83,(f17 1.98 
Inheritance and estate tax 17,541 0.51 16,624 0.51 15,524 0.45 9,830 0.27 12,712 0.30 
Banks &financial ""JX)1111ion tax (2,794) (.08) 4,664 0.14 20,842 0.61 (533) (0.01) 36,520 0.87 
Transient accommodations tax1> 33,849 0.99 27,271 0.84 766 0.02 6,028 0.15 12,689 0.30 
Conveyance tax 7,174 0.21 5,621 0.17 6,517 0.20 9,851 0.27 12,585 0.30 
Total taxes 3,168,905 92.47 3,04-1,818 93.80 3,165,780 92.72 3,470,713 93.57 4,018,536 95.72 
Ch111Je$ for current service and 
Other revenues 23.IJl ~ 2Q1Jt1l! §.2Q. ~ L2l ~ ~ ~ !.2i 
TOTAL REVENUES U:WPP 1!lll.llll UWH8 1!lll.llll llt14510 1!lll.llll $379?003 1!lll.llll M128 JZJ 1!lll.llll 

EXPl!NDl11.JRE!S: 
General government $432,668 13.26 $369,399 11.50 $332,332 10.04 $315,781 9.39 $384,203 10.52 
Public safety 149,875 4.59 173,544 5.40 187,167 5.66 187,401 5.57 204,390 5.59 
Conservation of IUIIUral ""°""""' 23,028 0.72 27,726 0.86 29,686 0.90 27,151 0.81 26,841 0.73 
Health 307,262 9AI 354,626 11.03 361,804 10.93 368,315 10.95 389,985 10.67 
Welfare 523,820 16.05 SI3,656 15.98 528,519 15.97 565,325 16.81 623,599 17.07 
Education: 

lllgher 450,891 14.03 462,453 13.98 459,640 13.67 510,194 13.96 
Lower and others 886,526 27.16 1,243,363 38.68 1,328,514 40.15 1,367,845 40.67 1,439,059 3939 

Cul111nl-recreation 32,437 0.99 34,537 1.07 35,250 1.07 34,386 1.02 38,485 1.05 
Uroan n:development &housing 1,295 0.04 1,370 0.04 8,347 0.25 8,333 0.25 7,246 0.20 
Economic devol<)J)lllelll and..,;-.,. 42,429 1.30 45,475 1.41 34,674 I.OS 29,332 0.86 29,790 0.82 
Intergovernmental expenditures 25 
Retirement &~on contributi01l ~ 90,765 2.78 
Capital ooday 23,497 0.72 
Miscellaneous 4) 8,l!S 0.25 
Transfon, to: 

Special Revenue Funds 17,714 0.54 
Debt S<rvice Funds 307,326 9.41 

Trust and Agency ISO 0.00 

Component Units: 
Hospital Funds 13,000 0.40 
Housing Funds 6,994 0.21 
Univtt&ity Funds ~ Wl 

TOTAL EXPl!NDITIJR!lS MZMW 1!lll.llll $3214 SR7 1!lll.llll $339§24§ !!lll.00 $Jl§J509 .IOO.llO $36'3Z92 JJWI! 

1) Acr 156, SUI 1998, dimibured the Transien, Accomnwdmions Tax (TAT) ,wenues: 44.8% ro rhe counries, 17.3% w rhe CQl!llenrion Cenrer 
and 37.9% 10 the Tourism Special Fund. On June 30, 2()()(), the Convention Center Capital and Opemrior1$ Special Fund ceased 10 exist, leaving 
<he 17.3% Convention Cenrer share to he dlstribUled w the ge,reraljlmd. On July I, 2002, Act 253, SUI 2002 redlreaed the'4 deposits ID a 
convenrion center special fund; provided that beginning January I, 2002, any such revenues in excess uf $31 million• calendar year shall he 
deposited inlo the general ftmd. Act 250, SUI 2002 redirocted a portwn ofthe Tourism Special Fund deposit, w other rourism-related special 
fi,nds; provided rhal any TAT collected for the Tourism Special Fund and the tourism-related special funds in excess of$63.292 million for rhe 
fiscal year shall be deposiled into the generolfimd. Act 113, SLR 2003 redirected the TAT: 5.3% to the TAT Trust Fund and 32.6% ID the 
Tourism Special Fund; provided that beginning July 1, 2002 the TAT collectedfar the Touri""' Special Fund in exc,a, uJ$62.292 millionforthe 
fiscal year shall be deposited into thefollowing fands: 90% ofthe first $1 million shall be deposited inlD the state parts specialfimd, l(i'll, ofthe 
first $] million shall he deposited into lhe special land and develupnumtfund, and the balance ofthe excess Imo the general jlmd. 
2) For fiscal years 2001-2002, 2002-2003 and 2003-2004, social security, pension contribution, capital ourlay, and miscellaneous 
expenditur,s and tronsfers to compcnent unirs were r,c/assifled ID otherjlmclions. 
3) Forfisool y,ar, 2001-2002, 20<!2-2003 and 2003-2004, Other Revenue, and Tronsfers u, specific Funds were combined in Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) Secticm. 
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REVENUE PROJECTIONS; CERTAIN TAX COLLECTIONS 

Introduction 

The Constitution requires that there be established by law a Council on Revenues to prepare revenue 
estimates of the State government and to report such estimates to the Governor and the Legislature. The revenue 
estimates serve as the basis for the Governor's budget preparation and the Legislature's appropriation of funds and 
enactment of revenue measures. If the Council's latest revenue estimates are not used by the Governor or the 
Legislature for budget preparation or appropriations, respectively, then the party not using the latest estimates must 
publicly state the reasons for using adiffering revenue estimate. Act 278, SUI 1980, provided for the establishment 
of such a council consisting of seven members, with three members appointed by the Governor and two members 
each appointed by the President of the Senate and the Speakec of the House. The Council reports its estimates and 
revisions each June 1, September 10, January 10, and March 15. The Council also revises its estimates when it 
detennines that such revisions are necessary or upon request of the Governor or the Legislature. The Council's 
estimates are used by the Department of Budget and Finance in formulating the State Multi-Year Program and 
Financial Plan, the Executive Budget, and the Executive Supplemental Budget for submission to the Legislature. 

In September of 2003, the Council revised its forecasted general fund tax revenue growth rate for fiscal 
year 2004 from 7.7% to 6.2%. Although the projected growth rate decreased from the May estimate for fiscal year 
2004, collection amounts increased due to higher than projected fiscal year 2003 actual collections (4.4% growth 
venms 1.8% projected growth, including $16.5 million in protested fiscal year 2003 franchise tax payments 
transferred to the litigation claims fund in fiscal year 2004). The Council increased its projected growth rate for 
fiscal year 2005 based on rapid growth in the construction industry and moderate growth in the visitor industry. 
Growth rates for fiscal years 2006 onward were left unchanged. 

In December 2003, the Council reduced its forecasted general fund tax revenue growth rate for fiscal year 
2004 from 6.2% to 5.2%. The Council still believed the primary factors driving Hawaii's economy such as visitor 
arrivals, construction activity, and consumer spending appeared to be growing very rapidly, but revenues were 
impacted by technical factors such as weekend effects and variations in tax payment and refund patterns. The 
impact of recent tax laws changes, especially business incentive tax credits remained unclear. 

In January, March, and May 2004, the Council retained its general fund growth rate forecast. 

In September 2004, the Council increased its forecasted general fund tax revenue growth rate for fiscal year 
2005 from 7.9% to 8.8%. Construction and visitor arrivals are expected to continue to grow. The actual general 
fund tax revenue growth rate for fiscal year 2004 was 8.3%, as compared to the Council's forecast of 5.2%. 

In January 2005, the Council retained its general fund tax revenue growth rate forecast. 

In March 2005, the Council, while not significantly changing its assessment of Hawaii's economic 
condition, revised its forecasted general fund tax revenue growth rates. The fiscal year 2005 increase includes a 
one-time return of $16.5 urillion from the Litigated Claims Fund to the general fund that accounts for a portion of 
the .3% decrease in the fiscal year 2006 projection. The changes for fiscal years 2005 and 2006 are shown below: 

FY0S FY06 
March2005 10.0% 5.0% 
January 2005 8.8% 5.3% 
Difference 1.2% -0.3% 

In May 2005, based on actual collections for the first ten months of the fiscal year, the Council increased its 
general fund tax revenue growth rate for fiscal year 2005 to 14.6%. The Council noted that the revenue increase 
was due to the strong economy, as well as to technical factors, such as changes in the tax laws and fluctuations in tax 
payment patterns. 
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Actual fiscal year 2005 general fund tax revenues increased by 16.0% as compared to the Council's 
forecast of 14.6%. In September 2005, based on the rapidly growing economy with increases in ccmstruction, total 
personal income, and the visitor industry, the Council increased its forecast from 5.3% to 6.0% for fiscal year 2006 
and from 5.2% to 6.6% for fiscal year 2r.xr7. 

In December 2005, as the economy continued to grow at a rapid pace, the Council increased its general 
fund tax revenue growth rate from 6.0% to 8.0% for fiscal year 2006 and from 6.6% to 7.5% for fiscal year '1JXJ7. 

General Fund Financial Plan 

Set forth below are the actual budgetary General Fund resources, expenditures, and balances for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2005, and estimates for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2007. 

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL PLAN 2005-2007 
(Mllllons of Dollars) 

Actual Es-led Estimated 
2005 2006 2007 

Resources 
Tax Revenues 11 ..................................................................................... $3,991.8 $4,316.4 $4,642.0 
Non tax Revenues ................................................................................. 463.2 403.5 406A 
Judicial Branch Revenues..................................................................... . 31.4 31.5 32.0 
Other Revenue 

Sources/Adjustments 21 .................................................................... 2.2 (334.1) 
Total Resoun:es .............................................................................. . $4,486.4 $4,753.7 $4,746.3 

Expenditures: 
Executive 
Operating............................................................................................... 
Capital Investment................................................................................. 

4,106.4 
0.0 

4,555.2 
0.0 

5,050.9 
0.0 

Total Executive ..................................................................................... $4,106.4 $4,552.2 $5,050.9 
Legislative ............................................................................................. 28.6 27.9 27.6 
Judicial .................................................................................................. 119.1 124.7 131.9 
OHA and Counties ................................................................................ 
Appropriation Lapses 31 
Total Expenditures ............._______........................... 

2.5 
(72.0) 

$4,184.6 

2.9 
(45.0) 

$4,665.7 

2.9 
(45.0) 

$5,168.3 
Resources over Expenditures ............................................................... . 301.8 88.0 (422.0) 

=:::!axi~:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 184.6 
486.4 

486.4 
574.4 

574.4 
152.4 

1/ Reflects m:tualfi,cal year 2005 tax revenue collecrl""' as ,..poned by the Depanment ofAccounting andGeneml Service& 
2/ Includes tax credits, rebates, and other measures to be submitted to tlul 2006 Legis/olUre. 
3/ Not included as an item in the jinancia/ statements under "FINANCIAL STATEMENTS" in Pan I of this Appendix B nor in the projectkms 

of tlul Council on R,vmues. FY 2005 lapses inc/udt, $28.2 miUion in lapses due to tlul conversion offtmding for tlul Department of 
Commerce andConsumer Affairsfrom generalfund to specialfunds. 

4/ Fund balances do ""' inc/udt, any Eme,gency and Budget Reserve Fund balmces. See Appendix A "Eme,gency and Budget Reserve 
Fund." 

Note: Totals may not add due to rounding. 
Source: Deponment ofBudget and Finance, December 2005. 

In the general fund financial plan, fiscal year revenues are recogni7.ed based on receipt while fiscal year 
expenditures are recognized when appropriations are expended in that year or encumbered. At the end of the fiscal 
year, encumbrances are not lapsed but are considered to be expenditures. Additionally, the Department of 
Education, by law, is allowed to carry over all of its unencumbered appropriations to the following fiscal year. For 
example, $30.6 million carried over from fiscal year 2005 to fiscal year 2006 by the Department of Education did 
not lapse and was considered to be expended in fiscal year 2005. 
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General Fund Tax Revenues 

Receipts of taxes constitute the largest portion of General Fund revenues for tlte fiscal year ended 1une 30, 
2005, and represent about 89% of tlte total General Fund revenues. Set forth below are tlte actual General Fund tax 
revenoes for tbe fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, and estimated tax revenues for the fiscal years ending June 30, 
2006, and June 30, 2007, based on tlte Governor's revisions to tlte Council on Revenues' December 2005 projection. 

GENERAL FUND TAX REVENUES 

General Excise aod Use 
Income-Individual 
Income-Corporation 
Public Service Company 
Insurance Premiums 
Tobacco &Licenses 
Liquor &Permits 
Banks &Other Financial Corp. 
Inberitance & Estate 
Miscellaneous 
Transient Aroommodation 
TOTAL BEFORE ADJUSTMENTS 
GROWTII RATE 

(Thousands ofDollars) 

Actual 
2003-2004 

$1,900,377 
1,168,570 

56,653 
99,505 
78,142 
78,400 
41,250 

(554) 
9,830 
8,564 
5,628 

$3,446,385 
8.3% 

Actual 
2004-2005 

$2,136,603 
1,381,059 

85,605 
108,686 
83,077 
84,079 
43,737 
36,520 
12,712 
13,072 
12,389 

$3,997,539 
16.0% 

l!stiDl<d 
2005-2006 

$2,312,503 
1,497,617 

127,099 
116,899 
83,885 
83,805 
45,360 
11,548 

21,693 
16,020 

$4,316,429 
8.0% 

Estimated 
200§-200'1 

$2,520,872 
1,624,970 

90,453 
129,161 
87,390 
84,199 
46,642 
13,785 

25,686 
18,831 

$4,641,989 
7.5% 

B-12 



Actual Collecdons and Dlstrlbudons 

Set forth below is an unaudited statement of State tax collections and distributions for the first seven 
months of the 2006 fiscal year and the first seven months of the 2005 fiscal year, in each case as reported by the 
State Director of Taxation. The collections from all sources have exceeded $2.901 billion, an increase of $311.2 
million over that realized during the corresponding period in the previous year. Cumulative general fund accruals 
for the first seven months of fiscal year 2006 are up 12.2% over the same period in fiscal year 2005. 

July 1 to January 31 
2005-2006 2004-2005 

State Tax Collections---Souree ofReveoue 
Banks/Financial coipomtions1>__~ ............................................................................... 7,343,127 4,252,110 
Conveyances•> ---·-------------,............................. 33,632,691 14,453,087 
Employment security contributions ........................... ----------- 81,647,603 73,337,971 
Pn...______________..................................................___ 95,272,684 94,880,080 
General excise, license and ,:egisttation fees ........................................................................... 198,435 258,798 
General excise and use•> ...............___........................................_____ 1,357,983,295 1,196,142,123 
Income-eorporations:

Declaration of estimated taxes _________________ 86,754,167 62,172,764 
Payment with returns.............................................._______...................... 7,352,551 6,350,025 
Refunds ............................................................................................................................ . (27,610,708) (43,213,690) 

Income-individuals: 
Declaration ofestimated taxes........................................................................................... 188,557,254 155,357,789 
Payment with returns......................................................................................................... 50,412,342 34,710,276 
Withholding tllx on wages................................................................................................. 729,699,278 715,424,109
Refunds............................................................................................................................. (72,327,388) (66,788,128) 

Inheritance and estate.............................................................................................................. 3,474,149 8,488,239 
Insurance premiums ................................................................................................................ 38,430,378 36,708,005 
Liquor aod permits.................................................................................................................. 24,288,544 24,908,531 
Motor Vehicle Tax/Fees, etc. 2> ............................................................................................... 62,772,003 55,820,698 
Public Service companies........................................................................................................ 60,096,117 55,517,958 
Tobacco and licenses............................................................................................................... 51,857,940 49,860,094 
Transient Accommodations Fees/Time Share Occupation fees............................................... 6,115 4,620 
Transient Accommodations Tax/Time Share Occupation Tax1> ............................................. 120,899,264 110,658,292 
All other 3>.............................................................................................................................. _.,..,.,...,.8_1'-,5..,,26,... -.,..-,,..,...,.32,..,3'"',6"'99,.... 

Total.................................................................................................................................. 2,900,821,368 2,589,627,450 
1) Gro,s collection-doe, not ~eel a/locatioll to Special FUNJ,. 
2) Includes StaJe Motor Vehicle Weight Tax, Registralion Fee~ Commen:ial Driver's license, Periodic Motor Vehicle Inspection Fees, Rm,al 

Vehicle Regi#ralion Fee, and Rental Velucle Sutcharge Ta.: 
3) Includes fuel mtdl dealer pennils, penaldes and interest on fuel tax. 
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Joly 1 through January 31 

State Tax CollectiontDistrlbutlon 
State General Fund................................................................................. . 
Stale Highway Fund................................................................................ . 
State Airport Fund.................................................................................. . 
Boating Special Fund............................................................................... . 
Environmental Fund................................................................................. 
Cigarette Stamp Administrative Fund ............................................................................. . 
Cigarette Stamp Enforcement Fund................................................................................. . 
Compliance Resolution Fund.................................................................... .. 
Eleciion Campaign Fund.......................................................................... . 
Employment Security Fund....................................................................... . 
Rental Housing Fund.............................................................................. . 
Natural Area Reserve Fund....................................................................... . 
Tourism Special Fund............................................................................. . 
Land Conservation Fund.......................................................................... . 
Transient AccolllDIOdatlon Tax Tn,st Fund..................................................................... . 
Convention Center Entetprlse Fund ................................................................................ . 
School Minor Repairs and Maintenance Fund ................................................................ . 
Public Libraries Fund ...................................................................................................... 

Subtotal........................................................................................ . 
Distributions to Counties•: 

Fuel tax .................................................................................................................. . 
Transient Acconrmodalion Tax............................................................. . 

Counties Total...................................................................................... . 
Total............................................................................................. 

• Refer, to distributions received by du, Counties from the specjfied ttaes. 
Saun:e: $tale D,panm,m1 o{Taxatitm: Tax Ruean:h and Plonn/ng. 

2005-2006 2004-2005 

2,522,349,955 2,248,958,812 
110,273,790 103,158,026 

1,701,258 2,019,051 
925,269 917,455 

1,044,513 1,115,498 
99,878 68,732 

749,099 504,011 
0 0 

34,376 19,888 
81,647,603 73,337,971 
10,089,807 3,613,272 
8,408,173 3,613,272 

39,413,160 36,074,603 
3,363,269 0 
6,407,661 5,864,889 

16,038,589 17,289,755 
6,866 6,552 
5,354 -0 

2,802,558,640 2,496,561,787 

44,099,857 43,490,748 
54,162,870 49,574,915 
98,262,727 93,065,663 

2,900,821,368 2,589,627,450 

Including preliminary February 2006 data, general fund tax collections for the first eight months of fiscal year 
2006 totaled $2.868 billion compared to $2.577 billion collected during the first eight months of fiscal year 
2005. This represents a 11.3% increase. 

STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

A description of the State's Retirement System for employees of the State and the counties is provided 
under ''EMPLOYEE RELATIONS; STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM-State Employees' 
Retirement System'' in Appendix A. The following statistical information addresses the entire Retirement System, 
including both State and county employees. The System issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that may 
be obtained by writing to the Employees' Retirement System of the State of Hawaii, 201 Merchant Street, 
Suite 1400, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. 
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Employer Contribution Rate 

The schedule which follows shows the total actuarially determined employer contribution rate for all 
employees based on the last five annual actuarial valuations. 

Total Calculated Employer Coatributlon 
Actuarial Valuation Rate for All Employees 

asofJune30 ('!I, of total payroll) 

2001 s,91 1> 
2002 11.382) 
2003 14.55 
2004 13,953) 
200S 13,953> 

"RejlecraAcl 104 q/2001 which om,,ukd Seer/on 88-122, HRS. 
' 1Reflects Act 147 of2002 which amended Section 88-122, HRS. 
"RejlectsAct 181 of2{)(U which amended Secrlona 88-105, 88-122, 88-123, 88-124, 88-125 &88-126, HRS. 

Ali, seen above, the calculated total employer contribution rates as a percentage of total payroll have 
fluctuated during the last five actuarial valuations. The increase in 2002 is due to a 3.7% increase in active 
membership and the recognition of investment losses. The 2003 increase is due to the recognition of investment 
losses caused by the poor investment climate over the past several years. The decrease in 2004 is due to the new 
level percentage of pay approach enacted by Act 181. 

Summary of Actuarial Certification Statement 

The SUllllllllt)' of the actuarial certification of the Employees' Retirement System as of June 30, 2004 and 
2005 is set forth below: 

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF 11IE STATE OF HAWAIT 
Summary of Actuarial Certlficadon as ofJune 30, 2004 and 2005 

(Includes all coundes) 

ASSETS 2004 2005 
Total current assets $ 8,797,133,149 $ 8,914,839,263 
Present value of future employee contributions 394,088,926 394,989,779 
Present value or future employer normal cost contributions 1,228,877,859 1,225,316,907 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 3,474,197,741 4,071,149,242 
Present value of future employer Early Incentive Retirement Program contribution & NA 

TOTAL ASSETS $13 894 297 675 $14,606 fQS 191 
LIABILITIES 

Present value or benefits to current pensioners and beneficiaries $ 6,278,596,378 $ 6,641,643,502 
Present value offuture benefits to active employees and inactive members 7 615,701,297 7,964,651,689 

TOTAL LlABruTIES $13 894297675 $14,616295121 

Source: Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company. 

As of June 30, 2005. the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (under the entry age normal actuarial cost 
method) of the Retirement System amounted to approximately $4.071 billion. The Retirement System's funded 
ratios-assets divided by the actuarial accrued liability decreased during fiscal year 2005 as shown below: 

Funded Ratios 

June 30. 2004 June 30. 2005 
71.7% 68.6% 
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PARTD 

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF THE STATE OF BAWAD AS OF JUNE 30, 2005 

AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The following information is excerpted from the State ofHawaii Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 ("CAFR"). For ease of reference, Part/I of AppendixB retains the 
CAFR's pagination as shown on the immediately following excerptfrom the Table ofContents ofthe CAFR. 
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KPMGLLP 
POBox4150 
Honolulu, HI 96812-1150 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Auditor 
State ofHawaii: 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the State of Hawaii as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which 
collectively comprise the State of Hawaii's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility ofthe State ofHawaii's management. Our responsibility is 
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the Department of Transportation - Airports and Harbors Divisions, which are major 
enterprise funds, which represent 85% and 67%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the business­
type activities, and the University of Hawaii, the Housing and Community Development Corporation of 
Hawaii, the Hawaii Health Systems Corporation, and the Hawaii Hwricane Relief Fund, which represent 
all of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial 
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our 
opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Department of Transportation - Airports 
and Harbors Divisions, the University of Hawaii, the Housing and Community Development Corporation 
of Hawaii, the Hawaii Health Systems Corporation, and the Hawaii Hwricane Relief Fund, are based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the State of Hawaii's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Hawaii as of June 30, 2005, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in confonnity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 13, 2006 
on our consideration of the State ofHawaii's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The pwpose of that report is to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results ofour audit 

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 29 is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but is supplementa:ty information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementa:ty 
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the State of Hawaii's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section are presented for pUiposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual fund statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and the statistical 
section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit 
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

January 13, 2006 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2005 

As management of the State of Hawaii (the State), we offer readers of the State's basic financial statements this 
nam.tive overview and analysis of the financial activities of the State for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. We 
encourage readers to consider the infonnation presented here in conjunction with additional infonnation that has 
been furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 3 - 7 of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

Government-Wide llighllghts 

The assets of the State exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2005 by $8.8 billion (net assets). Of this amount, 
$1.9 billion (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the State's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
Net assets of governmental activities increased by $419.1 million and net assets of business-type activities 
increased by $93.0 million for an increase to the State of$512.0 million from the prior fiscal year. 

Fund Highlights 

At June 30, 2005, the State's Governmental Funds reported combined ending fund balances of $2.5 billion, an 
increase of $616.5 million from the prior fiscal year. Of this amount, $767.6 million, or 30.2%, of total fund 
balances are available for spending at the State's discretion (unreserved fund balance) and the remaining 
$1.8 billion represent amounts reserved for specific pwposes. The Proprietary Funds reported net assets at 
June 30, 2005 of$2.5 billion, an increase of $93.0 million during the fiscal year. 

Long-Term Llabffltles 

The State's long-term liabilities increased during the current fiscal year to $6.2 billion, an increase of 
$250.7 million, or 4.2%. During fiscal 2005, the State issued $450.0 million in general obligation bonds for the 
pwpose of financing public improvement projects and $741.3 million in general obligation refunding bonds to 
advance refund $753.9 million of previously issued outstanding general obligation bonds. The State maintained 
its Aaa bond rating with Moody's Investors Service and AAA bond rating with Standard and Poor' s Corporation 
and Fitch IBCA, Inc. 

Overview of tbe Basic Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the State's basic financial statements. The 
State's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide fmancial statements, 
(2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to basic financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the State's 
fmances, in a manner similar to a private sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the State's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator ofwhether the financial position ofthe State is improving or deteriorating. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2005 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the State's net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing ofrelated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement 
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and unused 
vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the State that are principally supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a siguificant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The 
governmental activities of the State include general government, public safety, conservation ofnatural resources, 
highways, health, welfare, education, culture and recreation, urban redevelopment and housing, economic 
development and assistance, and interest on long-tenn debt. The business-type activities of the State include the 
Department of Transportation -Airports Division (Airports), Department of Transportation - Harbors Division 
(Harbors), and the Unemployment Compensation Fund, which are considered to be major funds, while the 
remaining business-type activities are combined into a single aggregate presentation. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the State itself (known as the Primary Government), 
but also the activities of four legally separate Component Units: the Hawaii Health Systems Corporation, the 
Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund, the Housing and Community Development Corporation of Hawaii, and the 
University of Hawaii, comprised of the State's public institutions of higher education, for which the State is 
financially accountable. Financial information for these Component Units is reported separately from the 
financial information presented for the Primary Government itself. The Component Units issue separate financial 
statements containing management's discussion and analysis. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 32 - 34 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping ofrelated accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. The State, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to 
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the State can be 
divided into three categories: (1) Governmental Funds, (2) Proprietary Funds, and (3) Fiduciary Funds. 

G""emmental Funds 

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, Governmental Funds financial statements focus on near-tenn inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the State's near-tenn financing requirements. 

Because the focus of Governmental Funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fmancial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for Governmental Funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the Jong-term impact of the State's near-tenn financing decisions. Both 
the Governmental Funds balance sheet and the Governmental Funds statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between Governmental 
Funds and governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2005 

Information is presented separately in the Governmental Funds balance sheet and in the Governmental 
Funds statement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Capital 
Projects Fund, each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other Governmental Funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
Governmental Funds is provided in the form of combining financial statements in the supplementaly 
information section ofthis report. 

The State adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. A 
budgeta!y comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund and each Special Revenue Fund 
to demonstrate compliance with this budget. The budgetaiy comparison statement for the General Fund is 
located in the basic financial statements and the budgetaiy comparison statements for each of the Special 
Revenue Funds is located in the supplementaiy information section ofthis report. 

The basic Governmental Funds financial statements can be found on pages 35- 39 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietaiy Funds are used to show activities that operate more like those ofcommercial enterprises. They 
are known as Enterprise Funds because they charge fees for services provided to outsiders. They are used 
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide fmancial 
statements. The State uses Enterprise Funds to account for the operations of Airports, Harbors, the 
Unemployment Compensation Fund, and its other business-type activities. 

Proprietaly Funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. The Proprietaiy Funds financial statements provide separate information for Airports, 
Harbors, and the Unemployment Compensation Fund, each of which are considered to be major funds of 
the State. Conversely, the other business-type activities are combined into a single, aggregate presentation 
in the Proprietaly Funds financial statements. 

The basic Proprietaiy Funds financial statements can be found on pages 40 - 44 of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit ofparties outside the State. Fiduciary 
Funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resouroes of those funds 
are not available to support the State's own programs, The accounting used for Fiduciary Funds is much 
like that used for Proprietaly Funds. 

The basic Fiduciary Funds financial statements can be found on pages 45-47 of this report. 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

The notes to basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
basic financial statements can be found on pages 51 - 101 ofthis report. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2005 

Other Supplementary Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents the combining 
financial statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major Governmental and Fiduciary Funds. 
These statements are presented inunediately following the notes to basic financial statements. The total 
columns ofthese combining financial statements carry to the applicable fund financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

The following financial analysis focuses on the Primary Government (governmental and business-type 
activities of the State). Separate financial statements for each of the State's Component Units, including 
their respective management's discussion and analysis, can be obtained from the Department of 
Accounting and General Services. 

Net assets are a useful indicator of a government's financial position. For the State, total assets exceed 
liabilities by $8.8 billion as ofJune 30, 2005, and increased $512.0 million, or 6.2%, over the course ofthis 
fiscal year's operations. The net assets of the governmental activities increased by $419.1 million, or 7.1 %, 
and business-type activities had an increase of $93.0 million, or 3.9%. The following table was derived 
from the government-wide statement ofnet assets. 

NetAosels 

June 30, 2005 and 2004 

(Amounls in thousands) 

Primary Governmeat 

-
Govermnenb,IAdiYitlos 
2005 2004 

--Type AdiYitlos 
2005 2004 2005 

Total 
2004 

Omentand<iher ...... 
Capital"""' 

$ 2,848,673 
9,095,992 

$ 2,156,531 
s,9s1,040 

$ 1,584,894 
2,011,001 

$ 1,S12,SS2 
2,034,661 

S 4,433,567 
11,106,993 

$ 3,669,083 
10,985,701 

Total"""' 11,944,665 11,107.5'71 3,595,895 3,547,213 15,540,560 14,654,784 

Liabilities: 
J..oo,-.,nn liabililics 
Other liabilities 

5,194,709 
409~ 

4,861,410 
324,520 

970,574 
159,910 

1,053,171 
121,601 

6,165,283 
569,164 

5,914,581 
~121 

Total liabililics 5,603,963 5,185,930 1,130,484 1,174,772 6,734,447 6,360,702 

Net"""15: 

,_incapital -
net ofrelatod debt 4,318,111 4,654,693 1,186,703 1,129,619 5,504,814 5,784,312 

Roslricted 1,163,684 1,062,585 189,093 169,816 1,352,777 1,232,401 
Unreiricled 858,907 204,363 1,089,615 1 ►073,006 1,948,522 1,277,369 

Total net"""' $ 6,340,702 $ 51921,641 $ 2~5,411 $ 2~72,441 $ 8,8~113 $ 8,2941082 
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Analysis ofNet Assets 

By far the largest portion of the State's net assets ($5.5 billion or 62.5%) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those 
assets that is still outstanding. The State uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the State's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resoun:es needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities. 

An additional portion of the State's net assets ($1.4 billion or 15.4%) represents resoun:es that are subject 
to external restrictions or enabling legislation on how they may be used. The remaining balance of 
unrestricted net assets ($1.9 billion or 22.1%) may be used to meet the State's ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors. 

At June 30, 2005, the State is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets for both 
governmental activities and business-type activities. 

Changes in Net Assets 

The State's net assets increased by $512.0 million, or 6.2%, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. 
Approximately 60.9% of the State's total revenues came from taxes, while 26.0% resulted from grants and 
contributions (including federal aid). Charges for various goods and services provided l 1.8% of the total 
revenues. The State's expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for higher and lower 
education, welfare, and transportation (highways, airports, and harbors). 
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The following financial information was derived from the government-wide statement of activities and 
reflects how the State's net assets changed during the fiscal year. 

ClumgeslnNetAms 
For the Fucal Years Ended June 30, 2005 and2004 

(Amutts in thousands) 

Primary~ 
G<>vemmental Aahlties 
2005 2004 

--Type-
2005 2004 2005 

Tobol 
2004 

Revenues: 
Prognunrevenues: 

Cltmges fur services $ 355,668 $ 283,459 $ 484,164 $ 482,994 s 839,832 $ 766,453 
~ grants and 

CCl!bibutions 1,667,492 1,687,923 IiJ67~492 1,687,923 
Capit&l granlS and 

oonlnbutions 143,183 40,001 35,048 24,253 178,231 64,254 
CJeneral tev<IIUeS: 

Ta:xt$ 
Interest and inve,tment 

income 
Other 

4,321,167 

64,236 
(2,84:zl 

3,745,883 

41,903 
(6,180! 

27,784 
(297) 

24,759 
~t4z.!2 

4,321,167 

92,020 
Q,144! 

3,745,883 

66,662 
(9,6!2 

Tola! revenues 
Expense$: 

Oeneral g,)V<mmellt 
Public safety 
Highways 
Conservation- ofnatural 

Health 
Welfare 
Lower education 
Higher edu<ation 
Other education 
Culture and recreation 

6,548,899 

494,174 
248,685 
282,339 

79,545 
561,ISS 

1,615,721 
1,758,596 

559,379 
19,667 
72,920 

5,792.,989 

427,820 
239,932 
413,215 

69,693 
520,433 

1,547,732 
1,795,482 

480,296 
23,092 
64,052 

546,699 528,528 7/,1'5~98 

494,174 
248,685 
282,339 

19,545 
561,155 

1,615,721 
1,758,596 

559,379 
19,667 
72,920 

6.321,517 

427,820 
239,932 
413,215 

69,693 
520,433 

1,541,m 
1,795,482 

480,296 
23,092 
64,052 

Urben redevelopment and 
hotmng 

Ecooomic development and 
assistance 

Airports --Harbors 
Unemployment compc,,sation 
Nonmajorproprietmy ftmd 

53,007 

214,842 
169,738 

59,394 

214,206 
179,357 

273,949 
64,568 

112,329 
2,883 

273,546 
54,432 

176,135 
2,496 

53,on 

214,842 
169,738 
273,949 
64,568 

112,329 
2,!!!3 

59,394 

214,206 
179,357 
273,546 
54,432 

176,135 
21496 

Tola! expenses 6,129,838 6,034,704 453,729 5!!!?,609 61583,567 ~1,313 

Oumges in net assets 419,061 !241,71~ 92,970 21919 512,031 ~19,796! 

Net a,sets-beginning, .. 
previously reported 5,921,641 6,163,356 2,372,441 2,337,050 8,294,082 8,500,406 

AqjUSlmentS 13,472 13,472 

Net assets- beginning, as restated 5,921,641 6,163,356 2,372,441 2,350,522 8,294,082 8,:?13,878 

Net - -ending $ 6,340,702 $ 5,921,641 $ 2,465,411 $ 2,3~441 $ 8,806,113 $ 8,294,082 
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The following charts depict revenues ofthe governmental activities for the fiscal year: 

Program Revenues By Soun:e - Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 

Capital grants and 
contnl>llions 

OJarges for services
7% 

16% 

Operating grants and 
contributions 

77% 

Tax Revenues By Source - Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 

Othem 
IS% 

General excise 
SO% 

Net income 
35% 
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Analysis ofChanges in Net Assets 

The State's net assets increased by $512.0 million during the current fiscal year. This increase is explained 
in the governmental and business-type activities discussion below, and is primarily a result of an increase 
in tax revenues brought about by the solid recovery ofthe State's economy. 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities increased the State's net assets by $419.1 million. The key element ofthis increase 
is the result of higher tax revenues. Total governmental activities expenses, net of program expenses, 
remained comparable to the previous year. 

Govel"lllllental Activities 
(Amounts In thousands! 
2005 2004 

General revenues: 
Taxes $ 4,321,167 $ 3,745,883 
Interest and investment income 64,236 41,903 
Other (2,847~ (6,180~ 

•Total general revenues 4,382,556 3,781,606 

Expenses, net ofprogram revenues: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways 
Conservation ofnatural resources 

290,942 
177,590 
137,205 
20,381 

203,939 
174,287 
337,774 

7,466 
Health 305,389 317,158 
Welfare 626,280 562,381 
Lower education 1,487,166 1,531,996 
Higher education 559,379 480,296 
Other education 19,451 22,572 
Culture and recreation 62,484 54,760 
Urban redevelopment and housing 
Economic development and assistance 

(5,362) 
112,852 

44,413 
106,922 

Interest expense 169,738 179,357 

Total governmental activities expenses, 
net ofprogram revenues 3,963,495 4,023,321 

Increase (decrease) in governmental 
activities net assets $ 419,061 $ {241,715~ 
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The general tax revenues increased by $575.3 million, or 15.4%, from the previous fiscal year. The 
increase was primarily due to increases in general excise taxes of $245.8 million and in individual and 
corporate income taxes of $243.8 million. The increase in tax revenues reflects the State's economic 
expansion in tourism, construction, and real estate as well as the growth in employment and personal 
income. 

The increase of$87.0million, or42.7%, for general government is primarily attributed to increases in the 
health benefit premiums, salary adjustments, and related fringe benefit costs. The $200.6 million, or 
59.4%, decrease in highways was a result of higher capitaliz.ed project costs in the current fiscal year. The 
higher education increase of $79.l million, or 16.5%, was related to repair costs from October 2004 
flooding and general repairs and maintenance to various school facilities. The decrease of $49.8 million, or 
112.1%, for Uiban redevelopment and housing was attnbutable to $45.3 million ofcapital contributions. 

A comparison of the cost of services by function of the State's governmental activities is shown below, 
along with the revenues used to cover the net expenses of the governmental activities. This format 
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-fmancing through fees and 
intergovernmental aid or draws from the general revenues ofthe State: 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
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Business-Type Activities 

The following charts depict revenues and expenses ofthe business-type activities for the fiscal year: 

Program Revenues By Source-Busine.Type Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 

Cl!eqies fur ile!Vices 
93% 

7% 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 

l::, 
:ii 
= e 

$300 

$250 

$200 

$150 

$100 

$50 

$0 

■Expenses 

■ Program Revenues 
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Business-type activities increased the State's net assets by $93.0 million, or 3.9%, during the current fiscal 
year. Key elements ofthis increase are as follows: 

• Airport's net assets increased $24.9 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The 
increase was primarily due to $15.2 million of passenger facility charges (PFC) revenues that 
were generated between October 1, 2004 and June 30, 2005. Eflective October 1, 2004, the 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) granted authority to Airports to impose and collect 
passenger facility charges at the Honolulu International Airport, Kahului Airport, Kona 
International Airport, and Lihue Airport. The PFC revenues (including interest) are to be utilized 
for seven FAA-approved projects, which must be implemented by September 30, 2006. 

• Harbor's net assets increased $15.0 million compared to an increase of$25.0 million in the prior 
fiscal year. Operating revenues remained constant; however, operating expenses increased 
$11.4 million, primarily attributed to more repairs and maintenance work performed on state 
harbor facilities. 

• The Unemployment Compensation Fund's net assets increased $53.0 million due primarily to 
lower unemployment benefits paid in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, and was attributed to 
Hawaii's low unemployment rate. Hawaii's seasonally adjusted unemployment rate for June 
2005 was 2.7% compared to 3.2% a year ago and is at least two percentage points below the 
national rate. 

Key elements of the State's business-type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 are as 
follows: 

Bntilam-Im! Acdritles 
(A,anllll In IIIO'hlltdl) 

Op,n.._ .............. .,.,,.,.,..._ 
Grabiaawl Coatrindtl9 'l'olal E, Net ofl::DleUM- - ,... - !l!l!i! - 2005 I!!!! 

s 241,326 s 214,878 $ ,...., I 23,516 s 275,989 $ 238;>.M I 273,940 s 273.>16 $ -2,040 $ (3~1'2) -,..,,.Hubon 74,768 385 737 74,911 64..'l68 54,432 10,W 21,om -~.,,_ """"' 
165,337 190,530 165,137 190$> 112,329 176,135 ,,.... 14,445 

_'"'.,....,,. 
~ 

.... ~975 .,,.. 1m 2768 3.!83 !,496 !'.l 27i 

,.._..,total $ :a164 $ 482.994 I 351048 I 24553 $ $ 5111241 I ii11729 s s 65~ $ilii12 ~ 
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Financial Analysis of the State's Individual Funds 

As noted earlier, the State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the State's Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the State's Governmental Funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $2.5 billion, an increase of $616.5 million over the prior fiscal year. Approximately 
$767.6 million, or 30.2%, of this total amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for 
spending at the State's discretion in the coming fiscal year. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to 
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed (l) to liquidate 
contracts and purchase orders of the prior period or are legally segregated for a specific future use 
($1.3 billion), (2) for notes and loan receivable, advances, and investments ($232.0 million), (3) for federal 
aid highway projects encumbrances ($179.6 million), or (4) for a variety of other restricted purposes 
($51.4 million). 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved 
fund balance of the General Fund was $745.8 million, an increase of $344.4 million, or 85.8%, over the 
prior fiscal year, and the reserved fund balance was $219.8 million, an increase of $2.0 million, or 1.00/o, 
over the prior fiscal year. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance 
represents 20.4% of total General Fund expenditures, an increase of 8.5% over the prior fiscal year, while 
total fund balance represents 26.4% of that same amount, an increase of 8.0% over the prior fiscal year. 

The fund balance of the State's General Fund increased by $346.5 million during the current fiscal year, 
which was due primarily to an increase in tax revenues. The fund balance of the State's Capital Projects 
Fund increased by $202.3 million during the current fiscal year. The increase was due primarily to a 
$450.0 million increase in the issuance of general obligation bonds for financing public improvement 
projects. The fund balance of the State's other nonmajor Governmental Funds increased by $67.7 million 
during the current fiscal year. The increase was due to increases of $26.3 million in the deposit beverage 
container fees and $13.4 million in Medicaid cost reimbursements. Although the bottle recycling bill was 
signed into law in June 2002, retailers could not begin charging the five cents (5¢) deposit on deposit 
beverage containers until November 1, 2004. 

Proprietary Funds 

The State's Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. At the end ofthe current fiscal year, Aiiports had an increase in net 
assets of $24.9 million, Harbors had an increase in net assets of $15.0 million, and the Unemployment 
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Compensation Fund had an increase in net assets of $53.0 million. Other factors concerning the finances of 
Airports, Harbors, and the Unemployment Compensation FWld have already been addressed in the 
discussion ofthe State's business-type activities. 

Fiduciary Funds 

The State maintains Fiduciary Funds for the assets of the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust. As ofthe end ofthe 
current fiscal year, the net assets of the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust totaled $175.2 million, representing 
an increase of$11.4 million in total net assets since June 30, 2004. 

General Fund Budgetary Highllghts 

The General Fund revenues were $232.4 million, or 5.6%, more than the final budget The increase was 
primarily attributed to higher general excise and net income taxes of $103.2 million and $74.9 million, 
respectively. 

The General Fund expenditure budget increased by $257.4 million from the original to the final budget. 
Most of the increase is due to the original budget consisting only of the appropriations contained in the 
general appropriation acts of the executive and judicial branches. Budgets that are not part of this original 
budget include: $94.6 million in employees' salary adjustments, $41.4 million for employees' health 
benefits, $23.1 million in various lower education programs, $22.0 million for the flood damages at the 
University of Hawaii, $18.8 million for the State Legislature, and $12.8 million for substance ahuse 
prevention programs. The difference between the final budget and actual expenditures on a budgetary basis 
was $99.6 million. The positive variance in general government is primarily attributed to $10.6 million of 
appropriations made to the State Legislature that can be carried over to the next fiscal year and 
$9.0 million appropriated for employees' salary adjustments that lapsed. The positive variance in public 
safety resulted when $28.2 million appropriated for consumer protection and regulatocy programs was not 
required because those programs were instead budgeted from Special Revenue Funds. As in previous fiscal 
years, the positive variance in lower education resulted when the Department of Education carried over 
$30.7 million of unencumbered appropriations into the next fiscal year. By law, the Department of 
Education is allowed to carcy over up to 5% ofits unencumbered appropriations. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

The State's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 
2005 amoW1ted to $11.1 billion (net of accumulated depreciation of $6.4 billion). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinezy and equipment, park facilities, roads, 
highways, and bridges. Major capital improvement projects, which received funding in the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2005, included the following: 

• $33.5 million ofadditional funding for a new Judiciary Complex in Hilo, Hawaii 

• $19.6 million for improvements to the Waimanalo Wastewater Treatment Plant 

• $24.0 million for the Ocean Pointe Elementary School, first and second increments 

• $17.0 million for improvements to state park facilities 
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• $30.0 million to repair and upgrade facilities at all University ofHawaii campuses 

• $100.0 million for various capital improvement projects and the repairs and maintenance of 
public school facilities throughout the State. 

Additional information on the State's capital assets can be found in note 4 of the notes to basic financial 
statements. 

Debt Administration 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the State had total bonded debt outstanding of $5.5 billion. Of this 
amount, $4.3 billion comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the State and $1.2 billion (i.e., 
revenue bonds) is revenue bonded debt which is payable from and secured solely by the specified revenue 
sources. A breakdown ofthe State's total bonded debt is shown below: 

Long-Term Debt 

June 30, 2005 and 2004 

(Amounts in 1housands) 

Governmental Activities Business-In!• Activities Total 
June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004 June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004 June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004 

General obligation 
bonds $ 4,256,633 $ 3,954,192 $ 167 $ 196 $ 4,256,800 $ 3,954,388 

Revenue bonds 319.;!05 276,680 918,142 1,006,126 1,237,447 1J821806 

Total $ 415751938 $ 4=301872 $ 9181309 $ 110061322 $ 514941247 $ s,311194 

The State's total long-tenn debt increased by $257.1 million, or 4.9%, during the current fiscal year. The key 
factor in this increase was the issuance of $450.0 million in general obligation bonds for financing public 
improvement projects. 

The State's general obligation bonds have been rated by Moody's Investors Service (Aaa), by Standard and 
Poor's Corporation (AAA), and by Fitch IBCA, Inc. (AAA). The payments of the principal and interest on the 
general obligation bonds are guaranteed under an insurance policy. Highways' revenue bonds have been rated by 
Moody's Investors Service (insured-Aaa, uninsured-Aa3), by Standard and Poor's Corporation (insured-AAA, 
uninsured-AA), and by Fitch IBCA, Inc. (insured-AAA, uninsured-AA-). 

The State Constitution limits the amount ofgeneral obligation bonds that may be issued. As required by law, the 
Director ofFinance has confumed that the State was within its legal debt limit. The legal debt margin at June 30, 
2005 was $231.5 million. 

Additional information on the State's long-term debt can be found in notes 5, 6, and 7 of the notes to basic 
financial statements. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

Unemployment is at record low levels with the statewide seasonally adjusted unemployment rate being 2. 7% for 
the month of October. One year ago, Hawaii's seasonally adjusted unemployment rate stood at 3.1%, while the 
seasonally adjusted national unemployment rate was 5.5%. 

Cumulative tax collections for the first five months of fiscal 2006 exceeded $2.0 billion or $244.4 million more 
than the corresponding period last year. General excise and use tax collections, which is the largest sou:n::e of 
revenue and a good measure ofeconomic growth, increased 13.0% in the same period. 

The Council on Revenues in September 2005 estimated that the General Fund growth rate would be 6.0% in 
fiscal 2006 and 6.6% in fiscal 2007. Actual General Fund tax collections rose by 13.7% in the first five months 
of fiscal 2006 over the corresponding 2005 period. Higher general excise and use tax collections and the 
substantial rise in corporate income tax collections were the primary factors underlying this strong performance. 
In November, the Council on Revenues revised its forecast of Hawaii's growth in 2006 total personal income 
from 7.3% to 8.2%. 

Requests for Information 

Questions concerning any of the infonnation provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Comptroller, Department of Accounting and General Services, 
P.O. Box 119, Honolulu, Hawaii 96810-0119. General infonnation about the State can be found at the State's 
website, http://www.state.hi.us. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Statement of Net Assets 

June30 2005 
(Amounts in th011Sands) 

Pd1,my Go'l'thiiiMool 

~ 
Govemmaolal 

AdMlles 
Blldnu,.Type 

Adhillel Tolal 
Coqoned

UnNII 
Cash and sborl-1enn invostmenls (note 3) s 371,114 s 1,115,686 s 1,486,800 s 300,389 

Jl.ecotvablos: 
raxos 345,400 311,700 384,100 
AoOOllllts and a.,...ed interest, not 13,SOO 25,763 39,263 146,112 
Noles, )OOQJ, and mortgll&tS, Dfll 232,004 232,004 100,217 
Fodonl govommcnt 
Odier, net (no1o 12) 

37,500 
23,874 

S,232 
473 

42,732 
2-4,347 

!1,173 
27,839 

•1numa1 balan... (note 8) 1,239 (1,239) 

Due ftom Com.pom,ntUnits (not.&) l0,000 20,000 

Dll• li:cm Primary Government (note 8) 9.026 
Jnves1monts (note 3) 1,720,341 1,710,341 SGS,686 

Invon1otica: 
Dovolopm"'111 hi pltllfflS and dwelWljl lllW 20,961 
Matorials a,id_suppllos 243 243 22,803 

Not inves1mont in llnancing 1.... 16,841 

Restricted assota (notes 3, 6, 8lld 10) 387,250 387,250 436,.395 

Olbe.r11001s: 
Prepaid~
DoJld i..u., and dof....ct oosta, not 8',700 

24 
6,738 

24 
!I0,43'8 

27,183 
2,706 

Promi..a,y no1o recoivablo - 6,024 6,024 
Olhor I l 

Capital u001s (nm.s 4, S, 6, and I0):
Land and land lmprovemenu 2,379,192 ' 55',118 2,935,010 63,S27 
lnftulnlatorc, 7,731,002 7,731,002 45,308 
C0IIS!nlctim hi progress 
Bu.ildinp. improvements, 8lld equipment 
AcWID1llatod depn,ciation 

79'J,421 
3,173,950 

!4,981,573! 

125,552 
2,700,017 

11~!2,3!!} 

911,973 
S,873,967 

~351,952} 

280,606 
2,3311,333 

(1116~569! 

Total Cspita1 Allllol3, Not 9,095,992 ~011,001 11,106,993 ~ 1,$65~0S 

TotalASSolS $ 11,944,665 $ 3,S951895 s JS1S40,S60 $ 3.250,$36 

Seo accc,mJllllYDIJI 00108 to buic financial s1atlancnts. 
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Ll.Utl1.lTIJtS 
VOl!Choro and C<lDtlllal!I payablo 
Other accrued llabilltios 
Prepaid airpoct me charge llmd (noia I0) 
Doe 1o ComponelllUnits(note B) 
Doe 1o Primary Gomnmont (note 8) 
Do• 1o federal govemmenl 
Defimldrevenue 
EslimaJocl .fulure costs ofland sold 
Unamortized bond premium 
Conlraots payable, accrued lnwost, and Olhor 
Matured bc,ids and interest payable 
Olber 
Long-tonn llabili11ea: 

Duo wl1hin mo )'Ur' 
Payable from resttiotcd ISll4lla: 

Rovonuo bonds payable, not (Dotes 6 and 7) 
Goneral obligalim bonds payablo (nOll:s S and 7) 

Genero.l obliga1ion bonds payable (Doteo S and 7) 
Notes, mortpges, and inS11Jlmeat COD1racts payable 
Acoruod vaca1IOII and rotlrement benofi1J payable (DOIi: 7) 
Rmmt1• bOllds payable, Dell (nOll:a 6 md 7) 
R-.ve for loues and ION adju8""mt oosts (n""'8 7 and 13) 
Cwms andJudgm- payable (aotos 7 and 12) 
Capl18I J.... obligaliODS (Do!Ol 7 and 10) 
I>eAmd commllmmt fees 

Doe in more lban on• i--: 
0--1 obtiptlffl boada payablo (nok:s S and 7) 
NOll:s, mongages, and lanillmont COlllncls payable 
ACC1110d. vocab and rotlremont b•ofits payable (note 7) 
Revenue bonds pay.bl., not (notos 6 and 7) 
Ro$elv<i for Jo,.ca and loss a,ijuRtm..,t ""-"" (Mies 7 And 13) 
Claims and judgments payable (nc>lea 7 and 12) 
Capi111 lease obligatioos (notes 7 snd 10) 
De.ftonod OCllJUllilment fees 

Tot..1 LJabiliti,a 

NETASS,ET§ 

Jnv-d ID capllaJ assets, net otma1ed debt 

•RoslriClod for: 
Capi111 maumman"" projects 
Heal1hmdwolfllre 
Nalrmll resourcos 
Hawaiian programs 
Budget stabilizalion 
Oth<lrJJllll)OSCO 
Bond .rcquiromm1a and Olbor 

.Unremiotcd 

Total Not AsSOIS 

. . P.li;s,:mm,IOIII
GerimiiiiitiiiType 
• Adlvllles Adlvlllos 

s 110,309 
66,419 

9,026 

$ 7o,3!>3 
80,826 
4,208 

$ 

3,530 

223,SOO 
37,725 

73,403 s 
953 

34,690 
21 

212,368 9 

57,689 2,791 
13,0SO 
68,600 1,032 
30,000 
3,305 

3,974,26' 137 

116;439 7,191 
306,255 883,452 
20,500 3,521 

190,800 
SB,035 

5,603,963 1,no,484 

4,318,111 1,1116,703 

246,223 
404,855 
96,983 
90,847 
48,498 

276,278 
'189,093 

858,907 1,089,615 

s ~401702 s :!i46S1411 $ 

Tolol 
110,702 
147,245 

4,2(!8 
9,026 

3,530 

223.SOO 
37,725 
73,408 

953 

34,690 
21 

2112,377 

60,480 
13,0SO 
6M32 
30,000 
3,305 

3"74,402 

123,630 
1,189,707 

24,021 
190,800 
58,035 

6,734,447 

S,S04,814 

246,223 
404,855 
96,983 
90,847 
48,498 

276,278 
1111,093 

1,948222 

8!8061113 

CODlpOlllht 
Unlts 

s 100,947 
96,466 

20,000 
7 

25,037 
30,027 

15,284 

4,241 
1,326 

18,584 
46,009 
29,462 

8,134 
615 

6,267 
18,733 
SS,920 

576,101 
10,035 

42,021 
~3 

1,107,549 

1,248,978 

642,ffi 

251~82 

s ;!i14~87 
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STATE OF HAWAil 

Statement ofActivities 

For 1he Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thO'IISands) 

::1d~eadCINID&811l1Ntl:MIII,...... ~-
l'IJNC'ffl&IL'P'BOGR4MI 

Prfmu:,: Go11111'111'11Mtt __..----
~ --~of.nabnltotOtNld-

s 

!!l!WN 

494,114-19,S45 -
··c:ta.,.. 

fm:SW\lktl 

s 146,242_, 
$,$25...... 

$ 

OhnbllDd--...... $ 
...1711 
<11,102 
'3,078 

cipliii 
0.-...Dd 
~ 

-
91.,., 

a..,. +To 
- -

s (2!IO,!IGJS - s 
(111-""l 
(IJ'I~ 
(20,3fll) 

TOIII 

c.,..,.... 
llnltl 

w-. 
tow,,-:: -Cdbllwond--Urliml.-...,...,11,ll,.... 
l!omulmiodmlopmotlllll---

56JJSS
1,,u;m 
l,ffl,>90,....,. 

ll>,<f7 
'/2,!IIO 
'3,077 

214,142 
IC551,131J 

•~607 
1,7'7 

32,225 

•,.... 
2.,,.., 

174,1'9 
!>87,QM 
:$,20.! 

2111 
3,0(111 

l~IGI 
'19,ffl 

4',216 

(lOS,38!1) 
(~280) 

(~C'IJ"6) 

ug,4siJ -(~ 
:f;Jtll 

(I=0 

(I 

",3111 =(117,=
(IQ 

T*--__...,,,._ 
=-........-,
N~m.,_..MIW)'lllilll 

T .... ~-
T_,..Pdma,y_ $ 

!,129.8111 ~""' .,..,..- :>41,326 
14,$211 

165,m ·~2.1!!!! !22! 
4!!,1:lll !!!!.!'4 

d.'83567 s 81132 s 

l,"7,!!g 

15.m s 

J9,.l!! 

~116) 
]a, 

3:!.CMI 

1213!1 

!l.063.""1 

13.>0,4") 

2,IMO 
lo.Ml .. -~!!!! • ~· 

13.lltll.095) 

7,IMO 
)~30 
'3,00II.. 
!1,483 

fe,I08,812! 

comp(llllffllVnb 
Uloiwnlly ofl!anil--~,,,,._. 
~~~ 

Tl:lllll~UAitl ----
s 1...,..., s 

m.m 
)S6,!>U 

204 

• ·-- • 

213,021--GlJ!l 

• - s ,...., 
2;1llS 

.....,.• • 

..,.,.. 
22,35$ 
15,214 

1...... 

s l3ll.m) 

..695 
(1ll,lM6) 
~ 

!!!!!~ 

Gmnl:RfflmUM: 
r-

a--..i ....-. 
Ntt:mcol'Mia-~mdinrfMhall·--"'"""""""' 

,,,....., 
I,_,_ 7,14!,<03..._.·-Tswiimlaocoa I ti t.ot, 110,723 uo;m 

T"""°ondliqaor -
l,pfllol... 
t.....,.........,-......... ___......,...V.W.-..i&MMil~IIX 

,,,_,.. 
°"""' 

128,912
s:i;m. 
84,812 ....-38,$lO 
~191-

128,912 
81,133 
84,812 
S4,057.,... 
38,flD 
3~191 -Im:rmtd..---~ 

Sjlelal-•(lwU)---,~=--...- Ua!!D 

27~714 

!l!l! 

!11,020 

!!,I~ 

(J,S2?) 
CIO<t 

S2SJ81 
~•l 

TOIIIG•""IR....., 
a..,illNet~ 

4U2Sff 

4J~ 

211e 
!l,'70 

!,41!!.l!!! 

'!&Im- $41~ 

1,1,m 

N,o.,__..,._.,...,.__ $,1'.11,611 2,3'11,441 l,!l90,1411 

--1) 1.W 
NttASNU-....,_.u,..._.,.,...__..,... 

$ 
~.641 
6Jf,10Z $ 

?.m,441 

2.46'Jlll $ 

&2MJIIII 

upup s 
l,!!I~ 

2JM' 

soc..........,..y;.,,--.10,_.filwmillllltlllmllnll. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

ASSETS 
General 

Fund 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Fonds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

Cash and short-term investments (note 3) $ 153,227 $ 53,075 $ 164,812 $ 371,114 

Receivables: 
Taxes 
Accrued interest 
Notes and loans, net 
Federal government 
Other 

338,300 
3,600 
6,324 

1,579 177 

7,100 
3,900 

225,680 
37,500 
3,418 

345,400 
7,500 

232,004 
37,500 

5,174 

Due from other funds (note 8) 131,168 184 131,352 

Due from Proprietary Funds (note 8) 1,239 1,239 

Due from Component Units (note 8) 20,000 20,000 

Investments (note 3) 478,199 315,000 927,142 1,720,341 

Other assets I I 

Total Assets $ 1,132,397 $ 369,491 $ 1,369,737 $ 2,871,625 

LIAlUIJ.III~ AND FUND )MLAN~E!i 

LlabDlttes: 
Vouchers and contlllets payable 
Other accnied liabilities 
Due tn other funds (note 8) 
Due tn Component Units (note 8) 
Payable from restricted assets - matured bonds 

and interest payable 
Deferred revenue 

$ 85,918 
57,899 

184 
9,026 

13,800 

$ 3,308 

89,900 

$ 21,083 
8,520 

41,268 

803 

$ 110,309 
66,419 

131,352 
9,026 

803 
13,800 

Total Liabilities 166,827 93,208 71674 331,709 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Continuing appropriations 
Receivables and advances 
Federal aid highway projects encumbrances 
Bond redemption and other 

Unreserved for major funds: 
Designated for future expenditures 
Undesignated 

Unreserved for nonmajor Special Revenue Funds: 
Designated for future expenditures 
Undesignated 

213,464 
6,336 

30,701 
715,069 

712,459 

179,587 

(615,763) 

383,447 
225,680 

51,351 

291,684 
345,901 

1,309,370 
232,016 
179,587 
51,351 

30,701 
99,306 

291,684 
345,901 

Total Fund Balances 965,570 276J83 1,298,063 2,539,916 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 1,132,397 $ 369,491 $ 1,369,737 $ 2,871,625 

See accompanying notes tn basic financial statements. 
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STATE OF HAWAll 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Assets 

June 30 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Total Fund Balance- Governmental Funds $ 2,539,916 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ofnet assets 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land and land improvements 
Inftastructufe 
Construction in progress 
Buildings, improvements, and equipment 
Accumulated depreciation 

$ 2,379,192 
7,731,002 

793,421 
3,173,950 

(4,981,573} 

9,095,992 

Accrued interest and other payables are not recognized in governmental funds. (296,100) 

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and 
are deferred, or not recognized, in govennnental funds, such as deferred 
tax revenue. 122,200 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of: 

General obligation bonds payable 
Accrued vacation payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs 
Claims and judgments payable 
Capital lease obligations 

(4,256,633) 
(174,128) 
(319,305) 
(89,100) 

(220,800) 
(61,340} 

(5,121J06} 

Net Assets ofGovernmental Activities $ 6,3401702 

See accompanying notes to bssic financial statements. 
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STATE OF HAWAil 

Governmental Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Pmld - Capital 
Projeca 

Pmld 

Other 
Govenuna,u 

Pmlds 

Total 
~-ta: 

Pmlds 
Revenuest 

T8Jte8: 
General excise ta, 
Net mcornc Wt - corporations and individual 
Public service companies w 
Transimt-1111 
Tobacco and liquor"""'
Liquid fuel 1llll 
Tax on premiums ofinsumnce comparda 
Vehicle weight and::.·-011 ta; 
Rental m-v cle surcharge bl 
Franchise tax 
Others 

$ 2,139,798 
1,484,664 

108,686 
12,689 

127,805 

83,0TI 

36,520 
25J!!J. 

$ s 5,805 

98,034 
1,177 

82,733 
1_745 

54,057 
43,950 
2,000 
8&21 

$ 2,145,603 
1,484,664 

108,686 
110,723 
128,982 
82,733 
114,822 
54,057 
43,950 
38,520 
34191 

Total1lo<e& 4,018,536 298,395 4,316,931 

Interest and investment income 
Cba,ges for Cllll"elll ""'"""' 
lntcrgovenunenta: 

Fines, lmfei- and pemltic:t -LiC<rlSffl! and fee, 
Revenues from priwte so~ 
Other 

25,170 
69,215 
10,729 
5,852 

21,316 
1,209 
3,274 

4;!,822 

33,(166 
229,455 

1,564,170 
22,880 
6,166 

26,088 
38,562 
SM6S 

58,236 
298,670 

1,574,899 
28,732 
27,482 
27,297 
41,836 

I0IJ87 
Total Revenues 4,12!,123 2:?,.77~7 !!,475,470 

Expenditures: 
Cummt 

GenmJ government 
Publicsalbt)
Highways 
~ofnaturalresoW'Cef 
Healtb 
Welfare 
Lower education 
Bisher education 
Other ed,,cation 
Culture and recreati'"1 
U!ban redevcl- and housin! 
Economic development and assistanci 
Otber 

Debt service 

384,203 
204,390 

26,841 
389,984 
623,S99 

1,434,862 
510,194 

4,197 
38,485 
7,246 

29,791 

63,805 
6,033 

156,214 
6,188 
4,049 
2,497 

83,843 
49,185 
4,109 
8,830 

30,000 
13,330 

60,146 
80,946 

145,570 
41,159 

170,774 
988,463 
279,503 

11,361 
26,459 
15,452 

171,256 
4,784 

321~ 

508,154 
291,369 
301,784 
74,188 

564,807 
1,614,559 
1,798,208 

559,379 
19,667 
73,774 
52,698 

214,377 
4,784 

321~ 

Total Expendilll!Cs J,653,m 428,083 2,317~1 6,399,696 

Excess (Deficiency) ofl\evenocs over Expendilll!Cs 544J31 (428.!l!!:!l (1!!,474! 7S774 

Other Fblandng Soan:es (Ilse,): 
Issuance ofgeneral oblipdon and refunding general obligali~ 
-7:., (notes sand 7)

1....... general oblipijon and refunding general obligation bonds. 
premium (notes sand 7) 

Jssuance ofrevenue and refimding NIVODUC bonds-par (ootes 6 and 7,. 
Issuance ofm-enue and refunding rcvenoe b'"1ds-prcmimn (notes 6 and 7. 
Faymems to rdlmded bond escro,, -·(notes 5, 6, and 7)
Tmnsfm in (DOie 9) 
Transfers out (note 9) 
Otber 

30,375 

68,225 
(296,458) 

450,000 

60,000 

124,525 
(5,890) 
1755 

741,310 

70,845 
123,915 

lS,000 
(947,869) 
302,348 

(192,750) 
(4,602l 

1,191,310 

101,220 
183,915 
15,000 

(947,869) 
495,l)98 

(495,098)
(2.847) 

Total Other Financins Source$ (Uses) (197,85!) 630J90 l!!l!,197 540729 

Net Change in Fund Balances 346,473 202,307 67,723 616,503 

Fllnd 8-..S-Begiludng 619,097 73976 1(!,_3().341) •~dt3 
Fund Balante1-Ending $ 965 570 $ 276.283 $ 1,298,063 $ 2,539.!116 

Sec accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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STATE OF HAWAIi 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activitie~ 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds $ 616,503 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ofactivities 
are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds; 
however, in the statement ofactivities, the cost ofcapital assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. Ir 
the cmrent period, these amounts are: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense (note 4) 

$ 443,086 
(296,289) 

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 146,797 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resouroes to governmental funds; 
however, issuing debt increases long-tenn liabilities in the statement of 
net assets. In the CUITellt period, this is the amount ofproceeds received 
from general obligation and revenue bonds issued. (1,491,445) 

Repayment oflong-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of 
net assets. In the CUITellt year, these amounts consist of: 

Bond principal retirement 
Capital lease payments 
Claims and judgment payments 

1,030,159 
3,145 

30000 

Total long-term debt repayment 1,063,304 

Revenue timing differences result in greater revenue in the government-wide 
financial statements. 31,000 

Bond issue and deferred costs reflected as other financing uses in governmental 
funds and reported in the statement ofnet assets. 68,075 

Some expenses reported in the statement ofactivities do not require the use of 
cmrent financial resouroes and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds: 

Change in claims and judgments payable 
Change in accrued vacation payable 
Change in reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs 

(14,200) 
(15,373) 
14 400 

Change in Net Assets ofGovernmental Activities 

(15,173) 
$ ___4_19.:,;;0,_61__ 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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STATEOFHAWAil 

General Fund 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 302 2005 
(Amounts in thousands: 

Actual Variana,-
Original 
Bo!!&!! 

Final 
Bu!!&!! 

(Budgetary 
Buis} 

Over 
(!!nder} 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Cleneml excise tax 
Net income tu: 

$ 1,949,538 $ 2,027,592 $ 2,130,798 $ 103,206 

~':"' 37,960 
1,248,142 

62,835 
1,329,134 

85,604 
1,381,260 

22,769 
52,126 

lnherium<e and estale ta> 
L' pennits and tax 
Pu"E:service companies 1a1 
Tobacco tax 

S,468 
43,822 

138,713 
94,469 

S,954 
42,892 

107,449 
83;62S 

12,712 
43,737 

108,686 
84,068 

6,758 
845 

1,237 
443 

Tax an premiums ofinsurance companl• 
Fnmohise tax (banks and Olber finanoial institutioru 
Transient accommodations tax 
Other taxes, primarily conveyances ta: 

73,000 
9,784 

10,374 
5,!!_70 

78,000 
33,738 
12,635 
9670 

83,077 
36,520 
12,389 
12.;!85 

S,077 
2,782 
(246) 
~915 

Total Taxes 3,616,940 3,793.;!24 3,991,436 197,912 
Non~taxes: 

intenlstandlnwstmentincom 
Charges for current servicei 
Jntergovermneuto: 
Rentals 

25,007 
141,749 

3,157 
7,219 

19,371 
147,328 

S,412 
5,832 

21,823 
150,998 

6,439 
5,852 

2,452 
3,670 
1,027 

20 
Fines, forfeltun!s, and penaltie: 
Licenses and lee: 
Revenues from private source 
Debt service requirement, 
Other 

19,200 
962 

1,499 
45,728 

117724 

20,058 
1,010 
2,552 

40,607 
122,909 

21,316 
1,209 
3,274 

41,617 
147 040 

1,258 
199 
722 

1,010 
~131 

Total Nou-taxes 36~45 365,079 399.;!68 34489 

Total Reveu.., 3,979,185 ~158,603 4.;!91,004 232,401 
Expenditures: 

Generalgoveinmerr 
Publicsalety 
Highway,
Conservsdon ofnatural resoun,e 
Health 

571,814 
207,448 

26,655 
350,753 

662,159 
217,424 

611 
27,950 

381,539 

633,172 
187,822 

26,767 
379,424 

28,987 
29,602 

611 
1,183 
2,115 

Hospi1als 
Welfare 
Low« educstion 

27,848 
604,541 

1,487,490 

38,689 
607,593 

1,549,800 

38,410 
60S,567 

1,518,890 

279 
2,026 

30,910 
Higher educati011 
Other education 
CU1ture and recreati011 
Urban redevelopment and housin/ 
Economic development and assistanc 
Housin@ 
Social security and pension contribution 
Other 

475,172 
3,819 

36,950 
1,277 

27,444 
7,49S 

170,541 

510,382 
3,861 

38,300 
824 

28,909 
7,S16 

176,945 
4103 

510,352 
3,847 

37,160 
726 

27,581 
6,345 

176,94S 
4003 

30 
14 

1,140 
98 

1,328 
1,171 

100 
Total Expettditures 3,999J:.47 ~S6160S ~157,011 99J94 
Exeess (Deficiency) ofReveoues over Expenditures (20,062) (98,002) 233,993 132,807 

Other Flnaucing Sources: 
Tnmsfets in 12455 72,143 9SJS4 23J:.ll 

Excess (Deficiency) ofReveuues and Other Sourcea over Expenditures $ (7.607) $ (25.859) $ 329,347 $ 156 018 

See accotnpanying notes to basjc financial statements. 
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STATE OF HAWAll 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement ofNet Assets 

June 30 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

A5&III5. 
Carrnt Assets: 

Cub and short-....1n...-<- 3: 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Accounts and accrued - (net ofallowance fbr 

doubtful - of$20,685) (- 10)
Promissory notc recelvablt 
Fcderalg<mmmcn1 
Other 

lnvcntoJy of.......is and supplies 

Pn,p,id oxpenses and other,_ 
Reslriored ......, 

Cub and short-.... inv-C-3 and fi 
- ... ,_c1,ase _.,.. and ccrtili.ata ol 

deposh (oou:s 3and 6) 
p,_ filcility •twiies rcceivabl 

Tomi CummtAssets 
NOIIClllfflll Assets: 

Capi1>1 asse1:I c.-4 and 6) 
Land and land hnj>rovemenu 
ConsUudinn in prollffll 
Buildinpand improvemeaO 
Equipment 

Less accumulawl depreclatiol 
Net Capi1>I Assets 

Bond issue costs, net 
Restriored ,_- net ditect finaucing leasea (DOie l0) 

Tomi Noncum,nt Assets 

To1>1AIHUI 

s 

s 

AkDOrb 

537,795 

17,361 
6,024 
4,508 

296 
215 

178,048 

75,252 
:!,717 

&'22 216 

315,260 
90,821 

2.041,980 
175,516 

{l,197~ 
1,426,271 

4,247 

39,125 

1,469,643 

2,291,859 

s 

s 

-
89,202 

8,402 

724 
177 

28 

24 

92,108 

190.665 

240,558 
34,731 

472,524 
9,991 

{173.Q!!ID 

584,730 

2,491 

587~1 

m.83§ 

s 

$ 

Unemployment 
eom-adon 

411,643 

38,700 

450343 

450343 

s 

s 

Nomaajor 
Pro=I') 

n,046 

77046 

n046 

s 

$ 

Toa.I 
Proprielar)

Funds 

1,115,686 

38,700 

25,763 
6,024 
5,232 

473 

243 

24 

270,156 

75,252 
:!,717 

t,540~0 

555,818 
125,552 

2,514,504 
185,513 

{IJ70J!!§l 
2,011,001 

6,738 

39125 

:!,056,864 

3,597,134 

See accompanying...,, to basie financial..........., 
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TURlTITIES 
Cammi Llabllltie,: 

Vouchm and oomracts p,eyabl, 
Olhcr IIOOflled liabilitie 
Dne to Capital Projects Fund (note 8) 
Pn,peld airport use cbqe ftm< 
Ilefmedmenue 
Oeoeral obligation boods payable, current po,1ion (IIOles Sand 7 
Accnled vacation, current po,1ion (note T, 
Reserveforloase$andt...acljusto,ent-.(notc7 

Total Cumnl Liabllides 

Liabilities Payable l'rom llestri<led-
c ....... payable, IIOOflled inten,st, and -
Matured bonds and intmstpayabk 
R<wem,c bonds payable (notes 6 and 7) 
Oenfflll oblipdon bonds payable (notes Sand 7 

Total Liabilities Payable from Rm1ricted Assets 

NODCarrent IJabiHdel! 
Genml obligatloo boods payable (notes 5 and 7 
Aecroed va<alion (note 7)
hvenue bonds p,eyable (net .r ..... ortized bood premium, 

bood cliscount, and loss on n!fundlng) (notes 6 and T, 
Reserve fur los,es and !...adjustment- (IIOIC 7 
Olhcr 

$ 

AIIDOIII 

17,437 
4,591 

4,208 
3,530 

9 
2,196 

883 
3:!,854 

25,1)44 

26,215 

51~9 

47 
5,406 

707,605 
3,217 

953 

$ 
--

2,609 

1,239 

595 
149 

:M92 

12,681 
s 

8,475 
21 

21182 

90 
1,785 

175,847 
304 

$ 

Unemployme111 
ComoenutloD 

49,900 

49~ 

$ 

NOlllllljGr
Proprlellr),_ 

447 
76,235 

76,682 

$ 

T...i 
Proprlellr)

llnnds 

70,393 
80,826 

1,239 
4,208 
3,530 

9 
2.791 
1032 

164,028 

37,725 
5 

34,690 
21 

7:!,441 

137 
7,191 

883,452 
3,521 

953 

Total Long~Term Liabilitiee: 
Tola! Liabilities 

717~ 

801~1 

178.026 

203.§!l!! 49900 7§,682 
895~ 

1,131,723 

NETAffiTS 
- in capilal ....... net oftelltod debt 
RestriCl<Od for bood reqoi- and othe! 
Unnostriebod 

Tola! Net Affitl $ 

783,916 
178,195 
528.407 

114901518 $ 

402,787 
lo,898 

160,401 
574086 $ 

400443 

m443 $ 364 $ 

1,186,703 
189,093 

1,089,215 
21465,411 
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STATE OF HAWAil 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund 
Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 301 2005 
(Amoun1ll in thoUBands) 

AlrPorts Barbon 
Unemploym,a1 
com,..,...11on 

Noamajor 
ProprlewJ

Fund 

Tobll 
Proprlelar] 

Fund, 

Operating lleven-(note I0): 
Conocssion f'ee!i s 116,879 s - $ - s - s 116,879 
Un!"'ll"oymenl oompcnsolion w 
Aviation fuel to 3,434 

165,337 165,337 
3,434 

Afrport... cbaqe, 

StrvictS and othm -· 35,463 
66,584 

656 
2(),256 
52,923 

35,463 
86,840 
53,579 

01her 3141 IJ47 2975 7463 

Total Operating Revenues ~157 74526 16SJ37 2975 ~995 
Operating Espe...., 

Petsonne1 sttvi~ 88,730 11,541 1,255 101,526 
llepffl:iallon (note 4) 
Repairs and maint:eoencc 
Airports operatiom 
llmbors "l"""ions 
F"ueboat operatiom 

UnemplO)'IIIODt _._,..,.. --
77,491 
21,869 
30,546 

10,499 

15,998 
9!179 

10,824 
1,597 
4,810 

112,329 

93,489 
31,848 
30,546 
10,824 
1,597 

IS,309 
112,329 

01her 473 1628 2101 

Total Opcrating Expenses 229.!!2!! 54749 112J29 ,!,1133 399J69 

Operating Income (Loss) Q,4Sll 19m 53008 92 69426 

N_.dngitefflluet (E:lpwes):
Interest income 
Interest elJ)eDS' 
Fcderalgnm~ 
Loss on=of oapi1al...., 
-- i1y tiluqt01her 

22,992 
(43,054) 

1,523 
(126) 

15,169 
(l~Zl 

4,792 
(9,819)-

(171) 

27,784 
(52,873) 

1,523 
(297) 

15,169 
(l~Zl 

Total NonoperaDD/j Expenses !~783l (511!/§l !9,!161! 

lnoomo (Loss) before CapJtal Contnbulions (8,234) 14,579 S3,008 92 59,445 

Capital Con1rilmtlom 33,140 385 33J25 

Change in Net Assets 24,906 14,!IM 53,008 92 92$>70 

Net Anett -Beginning 1,465,612 559,122 347 435 272 2,3B,441 

Net Anett -Eliding $ t,490,518 $ 574086 $ 400443 $ 364 s 2,465,411 

Soc OC<Olllpanying notes to ba,ic financial ,.._ 
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STATEOFHAWATI 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

CnhFlowsftomOpendngAct:Mdes: 
Casbn:ceivedfiom""'""""' 
Cash received from taxa 
Cash n:ceived fiom employee, 
Cash paid to "'PPlicn 
Cash pald to emplO)""' 
Cash pald for uncmployn,ent -do, 

Net Cash Provided by Operating /\ctivities 

Cash Flows Pi-..tded by N..capltal Flnandng 
Acttrity: 

Proceeds from fcdml operating -
Cub Flows ftom Capltal and Related 

Fhwldli& A-
Acquisidon and """""1<tion ofcapital -
P-tomlmd=uebcmds 
Repayment ofg<rnmll! obligation bond princip,; 
Repayment of menue bond prin<ipa 
Intuestpaldonbood, 
Proceeds from -fiacillty clurrges prop 
Proceeds from federal, state, and copital IJl'IIIII 

Net Cash US<d in C.pital and 
Rclaled P-mancing Aetivitie 

CuhFlofflftomllmo1lngActtvltla: 
Purchase of Investment! 
Proceeds from sales and maturities ofInvestment 
ln1erest from invcstmcntt 

Net Cash Provided by Investing 
Activities: 

Net lncmlse (ilomase) in Cash and Cash 
EqulvalenlS 

Cull ,ud C11h Eqalvalena, Inmdmg R.,tri,ted 
Ammmta-Jleghmln@ 

Cada and Caah Eqnlvlllenta, lnclndlng Ratrieted 
.Amounts-1:udmg 

s 

$ 

AlrDom 

218,124 

(Y3,67ll) 
(51,748) 

7UIJ7 

1833 

(53,621) 
(69,300) 

(9) 
(10,765) 
(41,821) 
12,452 
30,421 

(132,643} 

(75,252) 
85,284 
l!!,253 

28.985 

(29,128) 

744.[11 

71S~3 

$ 

s 

Barban 

78,286 

(23,480) 
(11,032) 

43774 

(13,454) 

(8,575) 
(8,306) 

701 

G9,63:!l 

4420 

4420 

18,560 

l§b750 

181~10 

$ 

$ 

u_,..,,..,. 
eom.....u.m 

160,637 

!107,029} 

53608 

53,608 

358m5 

411~3 

s 

$ 

Nonmajor 
Proprletvj 

F1md 

35,514 
(4,19'2) 

31.:!22 

31,322 

45724 

77046 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Proprietal') 

Fandl 

296,410 
160,637 
35,514 

(121,351) 
(62,780) 

(107~ 

201401 

1.§:!3 

(67,075) 
(69,300) 

(9) 
(19,340) 
(50,127) 
12,452 
31,122 

(162.277) 

(75,252) 
85,284 
23J73 

33405 

74,362 

lJll,480 

113851842 
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STATE OF HAWAil 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows (Cont'd) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

R,condllallon ofOpenting-(Lon) to 
Net Cult Pmlded by OpenliDg Acdvltlet 

Operating - (I••·
A~to ""'°'1Cile opel1l10lg income (los, 

to ... - provided by operating aclivitie! 
l'roYisioo for uneollecbole """"'11 
Oepreclation 
o.cq,aymmtofauport""' charge to bettansfemod 

to the pn,paid auporl USC charge fund 
Dccrcue (IDCffllSO) in -

Receiwblo, 
l11Vtll!Oly ofmaterials and supplie 

1-(-)inliabilitiei 
Voocber., and -payabk 
Other accrued liabllitie 
Pnopmdauportu,echargc liml--Net Cash Provided by Opmtitla AA:tivities 

Noneub mesdnr, C.pltal, ..dFtnudn& 
Aellvltlet: 

Amonizatioe ofbond diS<:ount, bood issue ...... hon< 
pmnium, and defmed loaa on n:fimdn\! 

Project-written off 
Contracts payltblc aoc:rnal for the acquisition o· 

capilalassel! 

Cepitaliud -Principlll peymems n:1aling to _.,J filcility revenoe boPI 
Interest _,.mating to special facility ..,,.... bone 

$ 

$ 

s 

Ah1>or1I 

(3,451) 

2,3SS 
77,491 

l,08S 

(5,834) 
(24) 

2,S13 
1,737 

(1,348) 
!1,830} 
1URT 

2,559 
126 

6,600 
2,591 
1,135 
2,857 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Bar!,on 

19.777 

6,999 
15,998 

(3,348) 
17 

3,661 
670 

43774 

616 

$ 

$ 

s 

Unemploymml 
ComDtDsatlon 

53,008 

(4,700) 

5,300 

53.§2! 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Nonmajor 
Proprietar) 

Fund 

92 

(1,309) 
32,539 

31,322 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Proprietar)

Funds 

69,426 

9,354 
93,489 

1,088 

(13,882) 
(7) 

10,165 
34,946 
(1,348) 
!1,l!~ 

201401 

3,175 
126 

6,600 
2,591 
1,135 
2,857 

See aecODl]»ll)'ing ,,_,.basic fimmclal ,_ 
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STATE OF HAWAIi 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 

June 30 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and short-term investments (note 3) 

Receivables: 
Taxes 
Accrued interes1 

Total Receivables 

Investments (note 3): 
Repurchase agreement! 
U.S. government securitiei 

Total Investments 

Total Assets 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 

Trost Fund 

1691941 

4 
800 

804 

4,607 

4607 

175,352 

$ 

$ 

Agency 
Funds 

147,963 

8,400 
400 

8 800 

3,864 
11 

3,875 

160,638 

LIAB!LrI'ffiS AND NET ASSETS 

Vouchers payable $ 103 $ 1,407 
Due to individuals, businesses, and countie, 159,231 

Total Liabilities 103 $ 160,638 

Net assets - held in trust $ 175 249 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

45 



This page intentionally left blank. 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thou.sands) 

Additions: 
Charges for current semce1 
Rentals 
Interest and investment incom, 
Hawaiian Home Lands Trust settlement (note 12 
Other 

Total Additions 

Deductions: 
Personal service! 
Other 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning 
Net Assets - Ending 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust Fund 

$ 634 
5,483 
8,961 

30,000 
l 

45079 

2,918 
30757 

33,675 

11,404 

1631845 

$ 175,249 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Component Units 
Statement of Net Assets 

June30 2005 
(Amounts in thol188llds: 

Housingaad 
Commuaity 

Development 
Hawaii 
Health Hawaii Total 

~ 
Ualvenlty 
ofHawaii 

Corporation 
ofHawall 

Systems 
Con,oradoa 

Hurricane 
RellefFund 

Compoueat 
Uaits 

Cash and short-term investments $ 115,930 $ 159,944 s 20,554 s 3,961 $ 300,389 
Receivables: 

Accounts and accrued inlm,st (net of 
allowance for doubtful acoounls of 
$94,787) 89,281 5,033 50,343 1,455 146,112 

Notes, loans, and 111ortgages (net of 
allowance for doubtful ar;conats of 
$5,251) 27,868 72,349 100,217 

Federal gnvemment 9,173 9,173 
Other 

Due from Prima,y Goverrunent (,_ s: 9,026 
27,461 378 27,839 

9,026 
Investments 372,466 8,083 185,137 565,686 
Inventories: 

Developments in progresa and dwelling uni~ 
Materials and supplies 13,024 

20,961 
871 8,908 

20,961 
22,803 

Net invesbnent in financing le.,. 16,841 16,841 
Prepaid expenses and other assel> 19070 1865 6~ 27183 

646,665 322,581 86,053 190,!!31 l~,230 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and short-term investmeal> 13,442 SS,146 69,188 
Investments: 

U.S. go~securitie1 
Guaranl<ed invesllnent contract, 

7,332 
100 

7,332 
100 

Mortgage-backed securitle, 205,382 205,382 
Repurchase agreements 
Private debt obligatioru 

144,383 
848 

144,383 
848 

Deposits, funded reserves, and othei 7456 I 706 9162 

Total Restrieted Assets 13,442 421~47 1,706 436,395 

Capital assets: 
Land and land improvement! 
lnftastructurc 

11,827 
45,308 

46,519 5,181 63,527 
45,308 

Coostruction in prog,es, 
Buildings, improvements, and equipme,r 

183,626 
1,383,980 

66,595 
614,730 

30,385 
339,623 

280,606 
2,338,333 

Less acoumulated depreciation (655,llSl '328,058) (179,396) (l,l62,569l 

Total Capital Assets, Net 969,626 399,786 195 793 1156SJOS 

Other assets: 
Bond jssue costs 2 706 ~706 

Total Assets $ 1,629,733 $ 1,146,320 $ 283,552 $ 190,931 s 3J501536 

See accmnpanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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LIABILITIES 
Current Liabllltles: 

Voucher$ and contracts payabl< 
Other accrued liabiliti;; 
Due to Primary Government (notes: 
Due to federal govemment 
Defem:d revenue 
Estimated future costs ofland sold 
General obligation bonds payable (note s: 
Notes, mortgages, and installment cootracts 

payable 
Acctued vacation and retirement benefits 

payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Reserve for losses and loss adjustmeet CO.st! 
Capillll leaae obligations 
Derem,d commitment fees 
Olher liabilitie, 

Tollll Cumot Liabilities 

Noncu.rrent Liabilities: 
General obligation bonds payable (note 5: 
Notes, mortgages, and installment oontracts 

payable 
Accrued vacation and nmrement benefit 

payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment cost, 
Capillll leaae obligations 
Derem,d commitment fees 

Tollll Long-Tenn Liabilities 

Tollll Liabilities 

$ 

University 
otBawali 

52,328 
53,246 

6,000 

23,511 

4,241 

593 

17,755 
3,610 
4,179 

395 

11,616 

177 474 

6).67 

514 

31,440 
160).80 
10,035 
14,670 

223).06 

400680 

$ 

Housing and 
CommUJlity 

Development 
Corporation 

oflhwail 

15,586 
23,097 

7 
1,526 

30,027 

39 

42,399 

615 
2,392 

115 688 

6,683 

415,821 

2J33 

424,837 

5401225 

$ 

lhwali 
Health 
liyltema 

Co!J!!radon 

33,002 
20,123 
14,000 

694 

829 

25,283 
7,739 

1,276 

102,946 

11,536 

24,480 

27,351 

63J67 

166J13 

s 

lhwail 
Hurrieane 

ReUefFund 

31 

31 

31 

$ 

Total 
Component 

Unib 

100,947 
96,466 
20,000 

7 
25,037 
30,027 

4,241 

1,326 

18,584 
46,009 
29,462 

8,134 
615 

15~84 

396,139 

6).67 

18,733 

55,920 
576,101 

10,035 
42,021 

2,333 

711410 

1,107~9 

NETASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (deficit; 

Total Net Assets $ 

811,583 
219,877 
1971293 

IJi/;_91053 $ 

288,923 
421,248 

!104~76) 
605,795 $ 

148,472 
1,302 

(321235) 
117).39 $ 

190,2!20 

1901900 $ 

1,248,978 
642,427 
251~82 

2,142,987 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Component Units 
Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Assets 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 301 2005 
(Amounts in thousand( 

Housblgaud 
Commnnlty Ha....U 

University 
of Hawaii 

Development 
Corporation 

ofHa....U 

Health 
Systema 

CO!]!Oration 

Hawali 
Hurricane 

RellefFnnd 

Total 
Component 

Units 

Expenses $ 1,025,891 $ 173,835 $ 356,936 $ 204 $ 1,!l56,866 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for cummt service, 213,921 86,289 320,921 621,131 
Operating grants and contrfbutiow 343,298 74,886 2,695 420,879 
Capital grants and contnoutions 87,334 22,355 15,274 12:!,963 

Total Progran, Revenues 644,!l53 183,!l30 338,890 1,166,973 

Net Progran, Revenues (Expenses) !381,33Bl 9695 !18,046) !204) (389,893) 

General Revenues (Expenses):
Interest and investment UlCODM 22,058 253 4,192 26,503 
Special ilem (note 15) 
Exhaonlinary ilem (note 15) 
Payments from (to) the Stat, 

(300) 
491,850 (10) 

(3,527) 

38,408 (5,147) 

(3,527) 
(300) 

525,101 
Other !8~6!!l 1,917 !6.;!51l 

Net General Revenues (Expenses) 505.;!40 11oi 37,051 (25~ 541,426 

Change in Net Assets 124,002 9685 19005 (I,159l 151~33 

Net Assets -
reported 

Begiunlng, as previously 
1,105,051 596,110 98,234 190,754 1,990,149 

Adjustment! (note 1) 1,305 1.;!05 

Net Assets -Beginning, .. reslllted 1,105,051 596,110 98~ 192,059 1,991,454 

Net A8se1ll - Endlllg $ 1&91053 $ 605,795 $ 117,239 $ 190,900 2,142,987 

See acoompanying notes to basic financial stalements. 
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STATE OF HAWAll 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The basic financial statements of the State of Hawaii (the State) have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the State's accounting policies are 
described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The State has defined its reporting entity in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial 
Reporting Entity. The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial activity of the 
State (Primary Government) and its Component Units, entities for which the Primary Government is 
considered to be financially accountable. Discretely presented Component Units are legally separate 
organizations for which the Primary Government is financially accountable or for which the nature 
and significance of their relationship to the Primary Government are such that exclusion would cause 
the State's reporting entity to be misleading or incomplete. 

Primary Government 

The following branches and departments are included in the State's reporting entity because of the 
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the State. 

Executive: 

Accounting and General Services 
Agriculture 
Attorney General 
Budget and Finance 
Business, Economic Development and Tourism 
Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
Defense 
Education 
Hawaiian Home Lands 
Health 
Human Resources Development 
Human Services 
Labor and Industrial Relations 
Land and Natural Resources 
Public Safety 
Taxation 
Transportation 

Judicial 

Legislative 
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STATE OF HAWAil 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

The Component Units column in the basic financial statements includes the financial data of the 
State's discretely presented Component Units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize 
that they are legally separate from the State. The governing bodies of these discretely presented 
Component Units are appointed by the Governor. The discretely presented Component Units are as 
follows: 

University ofHawaii 

The State's public institutions of higher education provide instruction and conduct research in, and 
disseminate knowledge of, agriculture, economics, history, languages, literature, mathematics, 
mechanical arts, natural sciences, philosophy, political and social sciences, physics, and such other 
branches of advanced learning as the Board of Regents of the University of Hawaii (UH) may 
prescribe and the federal government require. 

Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) Chapter 304 governs the activities of the UH. The activities of the 
UH are under the general management of the Board of Regents consisting of 12 members who are 
appointed and may be removed by the Governor. 

Housing and Community DeveJopment Corporation of Hawaii 

The Housing and Community Development Corporation of Hawaii (HCDCH) was established as a 
corporate body to be placed within the Department of Human Services for administrative purposes. 
The HCDCH's housing programs include performing housing finance, housing development, and 
residential leasehold functions; and clearing, replanning, and reconstructing areas in response to the 
State Legislature's determination that there exists a criooal shortage of safe and sanitary, affordable 
housing units for lower income residents. The State has the ability to influence the budget and 
programs ofthe HCDCH. 

HRS Chapter 201G states that the HCDCH shall be a public body and a body corporate and politic. 
The statute provides that the HCDCH shall be headed by a Board of Directors comprised of 
eight members. The eight members consist of the following: 

• Five public members appointed by the Governor (one appointed at large, and the remaining 
four appointed from each ofthe counties ofHonolulu, Hawaii, Kauai, and Maui); 

• The Director ofBusiness, Economic Development and Tourism; 

• The Director ofHuman Services; and 

• The Representative ofthe Governor's Office. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

Hawaii Health Systems Corporation 

The Hawaii Health Systems Corporation (HHSC) was established as a corporate body to be placed 
within the Department of Health for administrative purposes. The HHSC, consisting of the state 
hospitals, was created to provide quality health care for all of the people in the State, including those 
served by small rural facilities, by freeing the facilities from unwarranted bureaucratic oversight. 

Act 262, Session Laws of Hawaii (SLH) of 1996, states that the HHSC shall be a public body 
corporate and politic and an instrumentality and agency of the State. The HHSC commenced 
operations on July 1, 1996. The statute provides that the HHSC shall be governed by a Board of 
Directors. The Board consists ofthe following 13 members: 

• Ten members appointed by the Governor: 

- One member from each of the counties ofHonolulu, Kauai, and Maui; 

- Two members from the county ofHawaii; 

- One member from either the county of Kauai, or the county of Maui ( district of 
Hana or island ofLanai); and 

- Four at-large members; 

• The chairperson of the executive public health facility management advisory committee, as 
an Ex Officio voting member; 

• A physician appointed by the executive public health facility management advisory 
committee;and 

• The Director ofHealth, as an Ex Officio voting member. 

The State provides significant operating subsidies to the HHSC. Accordingly, a financial 
benefit'burden relationship exists between the State and the HHSC. 

Negotiations between the HHSC and the State relating to the allocation ofassets, liabilities, and fund 
balances between the Department of Health and the HHSC pursuant to Act 262 were ongoing as of 
June 30, 2005. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the HHSC reflected in the 
accompanying basic financial statements at June 30, 2005 may be significantly different from those 
included in the final settlement. 

In fiscal 2005, the HHSC created a new division, the Yukio Okutsu Veterans Care Home, to develop 
and operate a long-term care facility for veterans in Hilo, Hawaii (see note 15). 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

The HHSC is comprised ofthe following state hospitals: 

Hale Ho'ola Hamakua Lanai Community Hospital 
Hilo Medical Center Leahi Hospital 
Ka'u Hospital Samuel Mahelona Memorial Hospital 
Kauai Veterans Memorial Hospital Maluhia 
Kohala Hospital Maui Memorial Medical Center 
Kona Community Hospital Yukio Okutsu Veterans Care Home 
Kula Hospital 

Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund 

The Hawaii Hurricane Relief Fund (IIllRF) was organized pursuant to, and operates in accordance 
with, HRS Chapter 431P. The HHRF, which began its operations on July 1, 1993, was established as 
a public body and a body corporate and politic to be placed within the Department ofCommerce and 
Consumer Affairs for administrative purposes. The HHRF was primarily organized to provide 
hurricane property insurance policies in Hawaii in the event the private insurance market does not 
make such policies readily available to consumers in Hawaii. 

Due to the increase in the availability of hurricane property insurance coverage from the private 
sector, the HHRF ceased writing hurricane property insurance policies effective December 1, 2000. 

In conjunction with the HHRF's cessation of providing hurricane property insurance coverage, 
servicing carriers are exempted from the 3.75% assessment of their gross direct written premiums for 
property and casualty insurance in Hawaii, once they begin to offer their own policies. All remaining 
carriers are exempted effective September 30, 2001. Further, the collection of the special mortgage 
recording fees from mortgagers has also been suspended as ofJuly 1, 2001. 

Although the HHRF no longer functions in its capacity to provide hurricane property insurance 
coverage subsequent to November 2001, it has been determined at this time that the HHRF should 
not be dissolved in the event it may need to re-enter the insurance market. 

The HHRF is administered and operated by a Board of Directors. The Board consists of the 
following seven members: 

• The Insurance Commissioner, as an Ex Officio voting member, appointed by the Governor; 
and 

• Six members appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent ofthe Senate: 

- Two members appointed by the Governor; 

- Two members appointed by the Governor from a list of nominations submitted by 
the President of the Senate; and 

- Two members appointed by the Governor from a list of nominations submitted by 
the Speaker of the House ofRepresentatives. 

Information for obtaining financial statements for the discretely presented Component Units may be 
obtained from the Department ofAccounting and General Services. 

:54 (Continued) 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

The Employees' Retirement System of the State of Hawaii (ERS), which is administered on behalf 
ofpublic employees for both the state and county governments, and the Office of Hawaiian Affairs 
(OHA), which exists for the betterment of the conditions ofnative Hawaiians, are excluded from the 
State's reporting entity because those agencies, based on the fiscal independence and/or separate 
legal entity status criteria of GASB Statement No. 14, are not accountable to the State. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information of all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Primary Government and its 
Component Units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
government-wide statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the Primary Government is reported 
separately from the legally separate Component Units for which the Primary Government is 
financially accountable. 

The statement ofactivities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function, 
segment, or component unit are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function, segment, or component unit. Program revenues include 
charges to customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a 
given function, segment, or component unit. Program revenues also include grants and contnbutions 
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function, 
segment, or component unit. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. Resources that are dedicated internally are reporled as 
general revenues rather than as program revenues. The State does not allocate general government 
(indirect) expenses to other functions. 

Net assets are restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are 
imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Internally imposed designations of 
resources are not presented as restricted net assets. When both restricted and unrestricted reso\ll'Ces 
are available for use, generally it is the State's policy to use restricted reso\ll'Ces first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary 
Funds, and major Component Units. However, the Fiduciary Funds are not included in the 
government-wide financial statements. Major individual Governmental Funds and major individual 
Proprietary Funds are reported as separate columns in the fund fmancial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, aud Financial Statement Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements -The government-wide fmancial statements are reported 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements have been met. 
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Governmental Funds Fmanclal Statements - The Governmental Funds financial statements are 
reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified-accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues 
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the State considers revenues other 
than federal grants and assistance awards to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the 
end of the current fiscal year. Revenues suscepttole to accrual include taxpayer-assessed tax 
revenues. Taxpayer-assessed tax revenues primarily consist of income and general excise taxes. 
Other revenues which are not considered susceptible to accrual, and therefore, are not accrued 
include fines, forfeitures and penalties, licenses, permits, and franchises. 

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as 
revenue when available and entitlement occurs which is generally within 12 months of the end ofthe 
current fiscal year. All other federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as intergovernmental 
receivables and revenues when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred and funds are 
available. 

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is in=d, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Encumbrances are recorded obligations in the form ofpurchase orders or contracts. The State records 
encumbrances at the time purchase orders or contracts are awarded and executed. Encumbrances 
outstanding at fiscal year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not 
constitute expenditures or liabilities. 

Proprletary Funds, Fiduciary Funds, and Component Units Flnandal Statements - Tbe 
financial statements of the Proprietary Funds, Fiduciary Funds, and Component Units are reported 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the 
government-wide financial statements descnoed above. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary 
Funds and Other Gavernmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the State has 
elected not to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB. 

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a Proprietary Fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

D. Fund Accounting 

The financial activities of the State are recorded in individual funds, each of which is deemed to be a 
separate accounting entity. The State uses fund accounting to report on its financial position and 
results of operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or 
activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 
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The financial activities of the State that are reported in the accompanying fund financial statements 
have been classified into the following major and nonmajor Governmental and Proprietary Funds. In 
addition, a description ofthe Fiduciary Funds and Component Units are as follows: 

GU11ernmental Fund Types 

The State reports the following major Governmental Funds: 

General Fund 

This fund is the State's primmy operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Capital Projects Fund 

This fund accounts for substantially all of the financial resources obtained and used for the 
acquisition or construction of the State's capital assets and facilities. Such resources are 
derived principally from proceeds of general obligation and revenue bond issues, federal 
grants, and transfers from the Special Revenue Funds. 

The nonmajor Governmental Funds are comprised ofthe following: 

Special Revenue Funds 

These funds account for the financial resources obtained from specific revenue sources and 
used for restricted purposes. 

Debt Service Fund 

This fund accounts for the financial resources obtained and used for the payment ofprincipal 
and interest on general and revenue long-term bond obligations. 

Proprietary Fund Type- Enterprise Funds 

The major Enle!prise Funds are comprised ofthe following: 

Department of Transportation -Airports Division (Airports) 

Airports operates the State's airports and air navigation facilities and is responsible for general 
supervision ofaeronautics within the State. 

Department of Transportation - Harbors Division (Harbors) 

Harbors maintains and operates the State's commercial harbors system. 

Unemployment Compensation Fnnd 

This fund accounts for the unemployment compensation benefits to qualified recipients. 
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The nonmajor Entexprise Fund is comprised of the Health Fund. This fund accounts for the Hawaii 
Employer-Union Health Benefits Trust Fund (EUTF), which includes medical, dental, and life 
insurance coverage. 

Fiduciary Fund Types 

Private-Purpose Trust Fund 

Act 14, Special SLH of 1995, was approved by the Governor on June 29, 1995 and obligates 
the State to make 20 annual deposits of $30,000,000, or their discounted value equivalent, into 
the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Fund beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. The 
primary pmpose ofAct 14 is to resolve controversies and claims related to the Hawaiian Home 
Lands trust, which arose between August 31, 1959 and July l, 1988. Act 14 also established in 
the State Treasury a trust fund known as the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Fund. 

Agency Funds 

These funds account for assets held by the State in an agency capacity. 

Component Units 

Component Units are comprised of (1) the UH, which is comprised of the State's public 
institutions of higher education; (2) the HCDCH which provides dwelling units for low- and 
moderate-income residents of the State; (3) the HHSC, which was established to provide 
quality health care for all of the people of the State; and ( 4) the HHRF which funds, assesses, 
and provides, when necessary, hurricane property insurance to residents of the State. 

E. Cash and Short-Term Investments 

Cash and short-term investments include all cash, repurchase agreements, and U.S. government 
securities with original maturities ofthree months or less, and all time certificates of deposit. 

For pmposes of the statement of cash flows, the State has defined cash equivalents to be all highly 
liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or Jess when 
purchased. 

F. Receivables and Payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as interfund receivables/interfund payables. Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances. 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance 
reserve account in the applicable Governmental Funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

All tax and other receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and estimated 
refunds due. 
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G. Investments 

Investments in U.S. government securities, corporate debt, and equity securities are carried at fair 
value based on quoted nuuket prices. Investments in time certificates of deposit and repurchase 
agreements are carried at cost 

H. Inventories 

Inventories of developments in progi:ess and units available for sale are stated at the lower ofcost or 
estimated net realizable value, with cost being determined by the specific-identification method. All 
estimated carrying costs to the anticipated date of disposition are considered in the determination of 
estimated net realizable value. Units available for sale include constructed units, developed lots, and 
repurchased units available for sale. Developments in progi:ess include construction in progress and 
land held for future development. 

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being 
determined principally using the first-in, first-out method. 

Inventories in the Governmental Funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than 
when purchased. 

I. Restricted Assets 

Revenue bond indentures authorize the State's trustees to invest monies in time certificates of 
deposit, money market funds, and investment securities, including U.S. government or agency 
obligations, certain municipal bonds, and repurchase agreements. Uninsured time certificates of 
deposit are required to be collateralized by investment securities of an equal or greater market value. 
The underlying securities for repurchase agreements are required to be U.S. government or agency 
obligations ofan equal or greater market value held by the State's agent in the State's name. 

J. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land and land improvements, infrastructure assets ( e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), buildings and improvements, and equipment, are reported in the 
applicable governmental and business-type activities columns, as well as the Component Units 
column, in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their 
estimated fair market value at the date ofdonation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed to the 
extent the State's capitalization thresholds are met. Interest incurred during the construction phase of 
the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset 
constructed, net ofinterest earned, on the invested proceeds over the same period. 

The State's capitalization thresholds are $5,000 for equipment, and $100,000 for land and land 
improvements, infrastructure, and buildings and improvements. Maintenance and repairs are charged 
to operations when incurred. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase 

59 (Continued) 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of capital 
assets, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation, as applicable, are removed from the 
respective accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement ofactivities. 

Capital assets of the Primary Government, as well as the Component Units, are depreciated or 
amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Infrastructure 12 to 50 years 
Buildings and improvements 15 to 30 years 
Equipment 5 to 7 years 

Works ofart and historical treasures held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance 
of public service, rather than financial gain, are not capitalized. These items are protected, kept 
encumbered, conserved, and preserved by the State. It is the State's policy to utilize proceeds from 
the sale ofthese items for the acquisition ofother items for collection and display. 

K. Compensated Absences 

It is the State's policy to pennit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave 
benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since sick leave is not convertible to 
pay upon termination of employment. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government­
wide, Proprietary Funds, and Component Units financial statements. A liability for these amounts is 
reported in the Governmental Funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee 
resignations and retirements. 

L. Long-Term Obligadons 

In the government-wide financial statements and Proprietary Fund Type in the fund financial 
statements, as well as in the Component Units financial statements, long-tenn debt, and other long­
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, Proprietary Fund Type, or Component Units statement of net assets. Initial-issue bond 
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the effective-interest method. The difference between the reacquisition price of 
refunding bonds and the net carrying amount of refunded debt ( deferred amount on refunding) is 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunding debt or the remaining life of the refunded debt. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the unamortized portion of applicable premium, discount, or 
deferred amount on refunding. Bond issuance costs, including underwriters' discount, are reported as 
deferred bond issuance costs. Amortization of bond premiums or discounts, issuance costs, and 
deferred amounts on refunding is included in interest expense. 

In the fund financial statements, Governmental Funds recognize bond premiums, discounts, and 
issuance costs during the period issued. The face amount ofdebt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received are reported as other financing sources, while discounts are reported as 
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, 
are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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M. Net Assets and Fund Eqnity 

In the government-wide financial statements and Proprietary Funds and Component Units financial 
statements, net assets are reported in three categories: net assets invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. Restricted net assets represent net assets 
restricted by parties outside ofthe State (such as creditors, grantors, and contributors), or imposed by 
law through enabling legislation, and include unspent proceeds of bonds issued to acquire or 
construct capital assets. 

In the fund financial statements, Governmental Funds report reservations of fund balance for 
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for 
a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are 
subject to change. 

Portions of fund balances are reserved in the fund financial statements for the following: 

• Continuing appropriations which are comprised of encumbrances and unencumbered 
allotment balances. Encumbrances represent outstanding commitments which generally are 
liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Unencumbered allotment balances represent 
amounts that have been released and made available for encumbrance or expenditure and are 
legally segregated for a specific future use. 

• Notes and loans receivable, advances, and investments which are not currently available for 
expenditure at the Governmental Funds' balance sheet date. 

• Fedeml aid highway projects encumbrances. 

• Bond redemption and other. 

• Private-Purpose Trust Fund balances which are restricted to the purpose ofthe accounts. 

Portions of the unreserved fund balances are designated for future capital and operating 
expenditures. Those designated fund balances represent appropriations which have not been allotted 
and are established to reflect tentative plans for the future use offinancial resources. 

N. Nonexchange Transactions 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Nonexchange 
Transactions, which establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange 
transactions involving financial or capital resources, the Enterprise Funds and Component Units 
recognize contributed capital as nonoperating revenues. 

0, Medicare and Medicaid Reimbursements 

Revenues from services reimbursed under Medicare and Medicaid programs are recorded at the 
estimated reimbursable amounts. Final determination of the amounts earned is subject to review by 
the fiscal intermediary or a peer review organization. The State has the opinion that adequate 
provision has been made for any adjustments that may result from such reviews. 
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P. Risk Management 

The State is exposed to various risks of Joss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets; errors or omissions; and workers' compensation. The State generally retains the first 
$250,000 per occurrence of properly losses, the first $3 million with respect to general liability 
claims, and the first $500,000 of losses due to crime. Losses in excess of those retention amounts are 
insured with commercial insurance carriers. The limit per occurrence for property losses is 
$100 million, except for flood and earthquake which is $25 million and terrorism which is 
$50 million. The annual aggregate for general liability losses and losses due to crime per occurrence 
is $10 million. The State also has an insurance policy to cover medical malpractice risk in the 
amount of $20 million per occurrence and in the aggregate. The State is generally self-insured for 
workers' compensation and automobile claims. 

The estimated reserve for losses and loss adjustment costs includes the accumulation ofestimates for 
losses and claims reported prior to fiscal year-end, estimates (based on projections of historical 
developments) of claims incurred but not reported, and estimates of costs for investigating and 
adjusting all incurred and unadjusted claims. Amounts reported are subject to the impact of future 
changes in economic and social conditions. The State believes that, given the inherent variability in 
any such estimates, the reserves are within a reasonable and acceptable range of adequacy. Reserves 
are continually monitored and reviewed, and as settlements are made and reserves adjusted, the 
differences are reported in current operations. A liability for a claim is established if information 
indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the basic financial 
statements and the amount ofthe loss is reasonably estimable. 

Q. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The State offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all state employees, permits employees to defer a 
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees 
until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 

All plan assets are held in a trust fund to protect them from claims of general creditors. The State has 
no responsibility for loss due to the investment or failure of investment of funds and assets in the 
plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. 
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the State's deferred compensation plan are not reported in 
the accompanying basic financial statements. 

R. Estimates and Restatements 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial statements 
and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
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The financial statements of the HHRF as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 were 
a(ljusted from amounts previously reported to correct interest income transferred to the State's 
General Fund. A summary of adjustments to net assets at July I, 2004 and the change in net assets 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Net assets at 
Jull 112004 

Balance as previously reported $ 190,754 
Correction of interest income transferred to the State's 

General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 1,305 

Balance as restated $ 192!059 

(2) BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 

The budget of the State is a detailed operating plan identifying estimated costs and results in relation to 
estimated revenues. The budget includes (1) the programs, services, and activities to be provided during 
the fiscal year; (2) the estimated revenues available to finance the operating plan; and (3) the estimated 
spending requirements of the operating plan. The budget represents a process through which policy 
decisions are made, implemented, and controlled. Revenue estimates are provided to the State Legislature 
at the time of budget consideration and are revised and updated periodically during the fiscal year. 
Amounts reflected as budgeted revenues in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balance - budget and actual (budgetary basis) - general fund are those estimates as compiled by the 
Council on Revenues and the Director of Finance. Budgeted expenditures are derived primarily from the 
General Appropriations Act of 2003 (Act 200, SLH of 2003), and as amended by the Supplemental 
Appropriations Act of 2004, and from other authorizations contained in the State Constitution, the HRS, 
and other specific appropriations acts in various SLH. 

All expenditures of appropriated funds have been made pursuant to the appropriations in the fiscal 2003-
2005 biennial budget 

The General Fund and Special Revenue Funds have legally appropriated annual budgets. The Capital 
Projects Fund's appropriated budgets are for projects that may extend over several fiscal years. 

The final legally adopted budget in the accompanying statement ofrevenues and expenditures - budget and 
actual (budgetary basis) - general fund represents the original appropriations, transfers, and other legally 
authorized legislative and executive changes. 

The legal level of budgetary control is maintained at the appropriation line item level by department, 
program, and source of funds as established in the appropriations acts. The Governor is authorized to 
transfer appropriations between programs within the same department and source of funds; however, 
transfers of appropriations between departments generally require legislative authorization. Records and 
reports reflecting the detail level of control are maintained by and are available at the Department of 
Accounting and General Services. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, there were no expenditures 
in excess ofappropriations in the individual funds. 
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To the extent not expended or encumbered, the General Fund's appropriations generally lapse at the end of 
the fiscal year for which the appropriations are made. The State Legislature specifies the lapse dates and 
any other contingencies which may terminate the authorizations for other appropriations. 

Budgets adopted by the State Legislature for the General Fund are presented in the statement ofrevenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance - budget and actual (budgetary basis) - general fund. The 
State's annual budget is prepared on the modified-accrual basis of accounting with several differences, 
principally related to (1) the encumbrance of purchase order and contract obligations and equipment 
acquired through long-term financing (basis difference) and (2) the accounting for transfers of debt service 
payments through the General Fund (perspective difference), which represent departures from GAAP. 

A reconciliation of the budgetary to GAAP basis operating results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 
follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

General Fund 

Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses -
actual (budgetary basis) 329,347 

Reserve for encumbrances at fiscal year-end* 172,022 
Expenditures for liquidation of prior fiscal year encumbrances (179,030) 
Revenues and expenditures for unbudgeted programs and capital 

projects accounts, net 6,871 
Tax refunds payable (16,200) 
Accrued liabilities (2,345) 
Accrued revenues 35,808 

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ ==3=46..,,4=7...,3= 

•Amount reflects the encumbrance balances (inc luded in continuing appropriations) for budgeted 
programs only. 

(3) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Director of Finance is responsible for the safekeeping of all monies paid into the State Treasury. The 
Director of Finance pools and invests any monies of the State which in the Director's judgment are in 
excess of the amounts necessary for meeting the specific requirements of the State. Investment earnings are 
allocated to the Primary Government based on its equity interest in the pooled monies. Legally authorized 
investments include obligations of or guaranteed by the U.S. government, obligations of the State, 
federally-insured savings and checking accounts, time certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements 
with federally-insured financial institutions. 
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A. Cub 

The State maintains approximately 20 bank accounts for various pwposes at locations throughout the 
State and the nation. Bank deposits are under the custody of the Director of Finance. For financial 
statement reporting pwposes, cash and short-term investments consist of cash, time certificates of 
deposit, and money market accounts. Cash and short-term investments also include repurchase 
agreements and U.S. government securities with original maturities of three months or less. 

The canying amount of the State's unrestricted and restricted deposits (cash, time certificates of 
deposit, and money market accounts) as of June 30, 2005 was $1,486,800,000 and $270,156,000, 
respectively, for the Primary Government and $317,904,000 for the Fiduciary Funds. 

Information relating to the bank balance, insurance, and collateral ofcash deposits is determined on a 
statewide basis and not for individual departments or divisions. Total bank balances of deposits for 
the Primary Government and Fiduciary Funds amounted to $1,674,107,981 at June 30, 2005. 0fthat 
amount, $1,244,375,669 represent bank balances covered by federal deposit insurance or by 
collateral held either by the State Treasuxy or by the State's fiscal agents in the name of the State. 
The remaining bank balances of $429,732,312 represent deposits with the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury for the State's Unemployment Trust Fund, which were uncollateralized and the Special 
Revenue Funds' and Proprietary Funds' cash in bank, which was uninsured and uncollateralized. The 
Special Revenue Funds' and Proprietary Funds' cash balances were held by fiscal agents in the 
State's name for the pwpose of satisfying outstanding bond obligations. Accordingly, these deposits 
were ex.posed to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the State's deposits may not be returned to it. For demand or checking accounts and time 
certificates of deposit, the State requires that the depository banks pledge collateral based on the 
daily available bank balances to limit its exposure to custodial credit risk. The use of daily available 
bank balances to determine collateral requirements results in the available balances being under­
collateralized at various times during the fiscal year. All securities pledged as collateral are held 
either by the State Treasury or by the State's fiscal agents in the name of the State. The State also 
requires that no more than 60% of the State's total funds available for deposit and on deposit in the 
State Treasury may be deposited in any one financial institution. 
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B. Investments 

The State holds inves1ments both for its own benefit and as an agent for other parties. The State's 
investment of funds not required for immediate payments are predominantly comprised of U.S. 
government securities. 

The following tables present the State's inves1ments and maturities at June 30, 2005 (amounts 
expressed in thousands). 

Matnrl!): !In ;i:ean} 
Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 30 

Investments - Prlmary: 
Government: 

Certificates of deposit 68,299 $ 53,299 $ 15,000 $ 
U.S. government securities 1,374,700 1,374,700 
ReplUl:hase agreements 352,594 337,062 15 532 

1,795,593 390,361 1,405,232 
Less: 

Restricted assets 
investments ps,2s2i !75,252l 

$ 1,720,341 $ 3151109 $ 1,405~32 $ 

Investments - Fiduciary Funds: 
U.S. government securities $ 11 $ $ $ 11 
Repurchase agreements 8471 8346 125 

$ 8482 $ 8346 $ 125 $ 11 

Interest Rate Risk: As a means oflimiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, the State's inves1ment policy generally limits maturities on investments to not more than five 
years from the date ofinves1ment. 

Credit Risk: The State's investment policy limits investments in state and U.S. Treasury securities, 
time certificates of deposit, U.S. government or agency obligations, repurchase agreements, 
commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, and money market funds and student loan resource 
securities maintaining a Triple-A rating. As of June 30, 2005, the State held short-term inves1ments 
in student loan resource securities maintaining a Triple-A rating. 

Custodial Risk: For an inves1ment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the State will not be able to recover the value of its inves1ments or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The State's investments are held at broker/dealer firms 
which are protected by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation {SIPC) up to a maximum 
amount. In addition, excess-SIPC coverage is provided by the firms' insurance policies. In addition, 
the State requires the institutions to set aside in safekeeping, certain types of securities to 
collateralize repurchase agreements. The State monitors the market value of these securities and 
obtains additional collateral when appropriate. 
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Concentration of Credit Risk: The State's policy provides guidelines for portfolio diversification by 
placing limits on the amount the State may invest in any one issuer, types of inves1ment instrwnents, 
and position limits per issue ofan inves1ment instrument. 

(4) CAPITAL ASSETS 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, capital assets activity for the Primary Government (governmental 
activities and business-type activities) was as follows ( amounts expressed in thousands): 

Governmental Activities 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and land improvements 
Construction in progress 

Total eapital assets not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
lnftasttucture 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets 

Balanee, 
.July 1, 2004 Additions Deletions 

Balance, 
.June 30, 2005 

$ 2,338,636 
796,235 

$ 4-0,907 
339,683 

$ (351) 
(342,497) 

$ 2,379,192 
793,421 

3,134,871 380,590 (342,848) 3,172,613 

7,603,818 
2,686,252 

221,585 

127,184 
245,059 
32,750 

(2,090) 
(9,606) 

7,731,002 
2,929,221 

244,729 

10,511,655 404,993 

(3,134,930) (187,409) 
(1,385,921) (91,015) 

(174,635) (17,865) 

(11,696) 10,904,952 

1,488 
8,714 

(3,322,339) 
(1,475,448) 

(183,786) 

(4,695,486) (296,289) IO 202 (4,981,573) 

8,951,040 $ 489,294 $ (344,342) S ==9-,09=5=,9=9=2= 

67 (Continued) 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

Balance, 
J!!!z 112004 

Business-Type Activities 

Additions Deletions 
Balance, 

June 30, 2005 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and land improvements 
Construction in progress 

$ 551,413 
86,479 

$ 4,405 
70436 

$ 
(31,363) 

$ 555,818 
125,552 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 637,892 74841 (31,363) 681,370 

Cspital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

2,496,766 
182,835 

17,738 
8889 (6,211) 

2,514,504 
185,513 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 2,679,601 26,627 (6d112 2i700,011 

Less accumulat.ed depreciation: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

(1,123,349) 
(159,483) 

(87,014) 
(6,475) S 935 

(1,210,363) 
(160,023) 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 11,232,s32l !93,489l 5935 (1~70,38~ 

Total capital assets $ 2,034,661 $ 7979 $ (31,639) $ 2,0ll,001 

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 was charged to functions/programs of the 
Primary Government as follows: 

Govemmenlal Activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways 
Conservation ofnatural resources 
Health 
Welfare 
Lower education 
Culture and recreation 
Urban redevelopment and housing 

$ 19,201 
11,199 

187,544 
7,%1 
4,456 
1,415 

47,018 
944 

16,551 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 296,289 

Business-Type Activities: 
Airports 
Harbors 

$ 77,491 
15 998 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 93,489 
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(5) GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE 

The State issues general obligation bonds primarily to provide for the acquisition and construction ofmajor 
capital facilities. Although certain general obligation debt is being retired from the resources of the 
Proprietary Funds and Component Unit - UH and is recorded in those funds, all general obligation bonds 
are backed solely by the full faith and credit ofthe State. 

All issues except Series BL, issued December 6, 1988; certain maturities of Series BQ, issued 
November 28, 1989; Series BW, issued March 1, 1992; Series BZissued October 1, 1992; Series CA and 
CB, issued Jamwy 1, 1993; Series CH and CI, issued November 1, 1993; Series CM, issued December 1, 
1996; Series CO, issued March 1, 1997; Series CS, issued April 1, 1998; and Series DC, issued 
September 16, 2003, contain call provisions (call prices range from $100 to $103). Stated interest rates 
range from 2.625% to 8.0%. 

In fiscal 2005, the State issued $225,000,000 of general obligation bonds, Series DE, dated November 10, 
2004, with interest rates ranging from 2.625% to 5.00%. Bonds maturing on and after October 1, 2014 are 
subject to redemption at the option of the State at any time on and after October 1, 2014 at a prn:e equal to 
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The bonds were issued for the 
purpose offinancing public improvement projects. 

In fiscal 2005, the State issued $225,000,000 ofgeneral obligation bonds, Series DF, dated June 15, 2005, 
with interest rates ranging from 3.00"/o to 5.00%. Bonds maturing after July 1, 2015 will be subject to 
redemption at the option of the State at any time on and after July 1, 2015 at a price equal to the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The bonds were issued for the purpose of 
financing the Hawaiian Horne Lands settlement and public improvement projects. 

On June 15, 2005, the State issued $722,575,000 and $18,735,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
of 2005, Series DG and DH, with an interest rate of 5.00% to advance refund $753,930,000 of certain 
outstanding general obligation bonds previously issued. The net proceeds of $808,623,839 (including a 
premium of $70,844,362 and after payment of $3,530,523 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other 
issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the previously 
issued outstanding general obligation bonds. As a result, these bonds are considered to be defeased, and the 
liability for these bonds has been removed from the government-wide financial statements. 

As a result of the advance refunding, the State reduced its total debt service payments over the next 
13 years by $55,363,424 and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt 
service payments on the old and new debt) of$37,769,514. 
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Additionally, the Series DG bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2015 are subject to redemption at the 
option of the State at any time on and after July 1, 2015 at a price equal to the principal amount thereof, 
plus accrued interest to the redemption date. The Series DH bonds will mature on June 1, 2006, with 
interest payable at maturity. 

At June 30, 2005, the general obligation bonds consisted of the following (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 

Callable 
Noncallable 

$ 3,318,575 
948,733 

Total general obligation bonds outstanding 4,267,308 

Less amount recorded as a liability of; 
Proprietary Funds (business-type activities), including 

$21 payable from restricted assets $ 167 
Component Unit - UH 10,508 

10,675 

Amount recorded in the governmental 
activities ofthe Primary Government $ 4,256,633 
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A SU1lllllllIY of general obligation bonds outstanding by series as of June 30, 2005 follows (amounts 
expressed in thousands): 

Date of Interest Amount 
Series Issue Rates Matorlty Dates Oulstandlnf! 

X August !, 1972 4.000% August I, 2005 - 2007 $ 900 
BL December 6, 1988 7.681% December I, 2005 -2008 16,250 
BQ November 28, 1989 7.100%-7.150"/4 December I, 2005 - 2009 22,223 
BW March I, 1992 6.250"/4 - 6.400"/4 March I, 2006-2012 27,680 
BZ October I, 1992 5.800%-6.000% October I, 2005-2012 100,000 
CA January I, 1993 5.500%- 8.000% January I, 2006-2013 40,000 
CB January I, 1993 5.500%-5.750% January 1, 2006 - 2008 24,885 
cc Februacy I, 1993 5.125% Februacy 1, 2007 - 2009 71,745 
CG July 1, 1993 4.900%- 5.000% July 1, 2005 - 2006 2,725 
CH November I, 1993 4.750%- 6.000% November 1, 2005 - 2013 124,990 
Cl November 1, 1993 4.500% - 4.900"/4 November 1, 2005 - 2010 126,750 
CK September I, 1995 5.000% September 1, 2005 5,555 
CL March I, 1996 5.100"/4- 6.000% March I, 2006-2010 27,775 
CM December I, 1996 6.000"/o - 6.500"/4 December I, 2005 - 2016 99,990 
CN March I, 1997 6.000%- 6.250"/4 Marcl! 1, 2006 -2009 75,610 
co March I, 1997 6.000% September 1, 2005-2010, 

March 1, 2006-201 I 135,430 
CP October 1, 1997 5.500"/4- 5.500"/4 October I, 2005 - 2017 90,065 
CR April 1, 1998 5.000"/4- 5.750% April I, 2006 - 2008 37,505 
cs April 1, 1998 5.000%- 5.250% April I, 2006- 2009 206,805 
er September 15, 1999 5.250%- 5.625% September I, 2005-2012 73,350 
cu October I5, 2000 4.600%- 5.750% October I, 2005 - 2012 55,805 
CV August !, 2001 4.800"/o- 5.500% August 1, 2005 -2021 254,785 
cw August I, 2001 3.400%- 5.500% August I, 2005 - 2015 151,720 
ex Februacy 15, 2002 3.600%- 5.500% Februacy I, 2007-2022 201,645 
CY February 15, 2002 3.600"/o- 5.750"/o Februacy !, 2007 - 2015 317,740 
CZ November 26, 2002 2.650"/4- 5.500"/4 July I, 2007 - 2020, 2022 170,980 
DA September 16, 2003 2.800%-5.250% September I, 2008 - 2023 217,885 
DB September 16, 2003 2.800%- 5.250% September!, 2008-2016 188,650 
DC September 16, 2003 3.000% September I, 2005 23,730 
DD Msy 13, 2004 3.500%-5.250% May I, 2011 -2024 182,825 
DE November 10, 2004 2.625%- 5.000"/4 October I, 2009 - 2024 225,000 
DF June 15, 2005 3.000%-5.000"/4 July I, 2009- 2024 225,000 
DG June 15, 2005 5.000"/4 July 1,2009-2017 722,575 
DH June 15, 2005 5.000"/4 June I, 2006 18 735 

$ 4!267~08 
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A summary ofdebt service requirements to maturity follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Principal Interest Total 

Fiscal year: 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011-2015 
2016-2020 
2021-2025 
2025-2026 

$ 286,639 
310,120 
323,825 
338,569 
319,910 

1,443,900 
802,290 
423,010 

19,045 

$ 212,024 
221,554 
207,844 
193,100 
161,174 
505,389 
203,491 
51,446 

462 

$ 498,663 
531,674 
531,669 
531,669 
481,084 

1,949,289 
1,005,781 

474,456 
19,507 

$ 4,267,308 $ 1,756,484 $ 6,023,792 

The State defeased general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust 
to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts and 
the refunded bonds are not included in the State's basic financial statements. At June 30, 2005, 
$1,360,620,000 ofbonds outstanding is considered defeased. 

The State Constitution limits the amount of general obligation bonds which may be issued. As required by 
law, the Director of Finance has confinned that the State was within its legal debt limit on the 
aforementioned issues. The legal debt margin at June 30, 2005 was $231,475,000. 

At June 30, 2005, general obligation bonds authorized but unissued was approximately $676,372,000. 

(6) REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE 

A. Governmental Activities 

On March 15, 2005, the Department of Transportation - Highways Division (Highways) issued 
$60,000,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of 2005, Series A, with interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% and 5.00% to finance certain highway capital improvement projects and related 
projects. The bonds are payable semiannually on January and July I through 2025. 

On March 15, 2005, Highways issued $123,915,000 of State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of 
2005, Series B, with interest rates of 5.00"/4 and 5.25% to advance refund $128,705,000 of certain 
outstanding highway revenue bonds previously issued. The net proceeds of$139,248,017 (including 
a premium of $15,000,441 and after payment of $1,068,439 in underwriting fees, insurance, and 
other issuance costs), along with an additional $1,401,015 ftom the debt service reserve account, 
were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable 
trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the previously issued 
outstanding highway revenue bonds. As a result, these bonds are considered to be defeased, and the 
liability for these bonds has been removed from the government-wide financial statements. 
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AB a result of the advance refunding, the State reduced its total debt service payments over the next 
17 years by $12,042,106 and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of 
the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of$8,943,887. 

On March 25, 2003, Highways issued $44,940,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 2003, with an average interest rate of4.33% to advance refund $45,350,000 of outstanding 
State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of 1993, with an average interest rate of 4.42%. 
The bonds are payable semiannually on January and July 1 through 2014. 

On October 25, 2001, Highways issued $70,000,000 of State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 2001. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.375% and are payable 
semiannually on January 1and July I through July 2022. 

On October 31, 2000, Highways issued State ofHawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of2000, in 
the principal amount of $45,360,000. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.40% to 5.50% 
and mature in annual installments through fiscal 2011. 

On January 15, 1999, the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL) issued revenue bonds, 
Refunding Series of 1999, in the principal amount of $13,370,000. Bond proceeds related to this 
issue amounted to $13,334,000. The difference in the principal amount and proceeds relates to bond 
discount and accrued interest. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.80% to 4.45% and 
mature in increasing annual installments through fiscal 2012. The proceeds from tbe bonds were 
used to advance refund certain maturities of the Series of 1991 bonds. The bonds are payable from 
and secured by the DHHL's revenues from available lands. 

On July I, 1998, Highways issued State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of 1998, in tbe 
principal amount of $94,920,000. Bond proceeds related to this issue amounted to $97,542,000, of 
which $71,921,000 is to be used to fiuance certain highway improvements and other related projects 
for the state highways system, and $25,621,000 was used to refund certain outstanding State of 
Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds. The difference in the principal amount and proceeds relates to 
bond premium and accrued interest. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.50% 
and mature in annual installments through fiscal 2019. 

On September I, 1996, Highways issued $55,000,000 in State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1996. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.80% to 6.00% and mature in 
increasing annual installments through fiscal 2010. 

The bonds are payable solely from and collateralized by the revenues consisting primarily of 
highway fuel taxes, vehicle registration fees, vehicle weight taxes, and rental motor vehicle and tour 
vehicle surcharge taxes. 

In addition to the proceeds from the State ofHawaii Highway Revenue Bonds of2005, Series B, tbe 
proceeds of the State of Hawaii Highway Revenue Bonds, Series of 2003, DHHL's revenue bonds, 
Refunding Series of 1999, and a portion of the proceeds of the State of Hawaii Highway Revenue 
Bonds, Series of 1998 (see above), were placed in irrevocable trusts and used to purchase securities 
of the U.S. government to meet the debt service requirements of the refunded bonds. 
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The liabilities for the refunded bond issues and the related securities and trust accounts are not 
included in the accompanying basic financial statements, as the DHHL and Highways defeased its 
obligations for payment of those bonds upon completion of those refunding transactions. As of 
June 30, 2005, bonds outstanding considered defeased amounted to $133,600,000. 

The following is a summary of Highways' and DHHL's revenue bonds issued and outstanding at 
June 30, 2005 (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Interest Maturity Outstanding 
Series Date of Issue Rates Dates Amount 

Highways: 
1996 September l, 1996 6.00%, July 1, 2007 July 1, 2009 $ 8,500 
1998 July 1, 1998 4.50%- 5.50% July 1, 2005 July l, 2018 38,920 
2000 October 31, 2000 3.75% July 1, 2005-July 1, 2010 12,515 
2001 October 25, 2001 4.00%- 5.25% July 1, 2005 July 1, 2022 24,490 
2003 April 15, 2003 2.50%- 5.00% July l, 2005-July 1, 2013 41,065 
2005A March 15, 2005 3.00%- 5.00"/4 July 1, 2006-July 1, 2025 60,000 
2005B March 15, 2005 3.00%-5.25% July 1, 2010-July 1, 2021 123,915 

DHHL: 
1999 January 15, 1999 3.80%-4.45% July 1, 2005-July 1, 2011 9900 

$ 319,305 

Debt service requirements to maturity on the DHHL's and Highways' revenue bonds are aggregated 
below ( amounts expressed in thousands): 

Princll!al Interest Total 

Fiscal year: 
2006 $ 13,050 $ 12,947 $ 25,997 
2007 15,595 14,165 29,760 
2008 16,240 13,528 29,768 
2009 16,905 12,826 29,731 
2010 17,615 12,049 29,664 
2011-2015 95,380 47,986 143,366 
2016 2020 102,760 22,883 125,643 
2021-2025 37,290 4,756 42,046 
2026 4470 101 4,571 

$ 319,305 $ 141,241 $ 460,546 
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B, Business-Type Activities 

Revenue bonds are backed by a pledge of resources derived from users of the related facilities and 
are not supported by the full faith and credit ofthe State. 

Airports System Revenue Bonds 

The Ailports system revenue bonds are payable solely from and collateralized by airport revenues, 
which include all aviation fuel taxes levied. The Airports system revenue bonds are subject to 
redemption at the option of the Department of Transportation (DOT) and the State during specific 
years at prices ranging from $102 to $ 100. 

On January 5, 2005, Airports redeemed $69,300,000 ofAirports System Revenue Bonds, Refunding 
Series of 2003. As a result, the liability has been removed from the accompanying basic financial 
statements. 

The following is a summary of Airports system revenue bonds issued and outstanding at June 30, 
2005 ( amounts expressed in thousands): 

Fina) Original 
Interest Maturity Amount Outstanding 

Serles Rat.es Dat.e (J!!Jl 1) oflssoe Amooot 

1994, first refunding 
2000A, refunding 
2000B, refunding 
200I, refunding 
2003, refunding 

4.15%- 5.60% 
5.50%- 6.00% 
5.00% - 8.00% 
4.00%-5.75% 
2.00"/4 -vary 

2004 $ 
2021 
2020 
2021 
2013 

63,455 $ 
26,415 

261,465 
423,255 

801900 

26,415 
249,275 
423,255 

$ 855,490 698,945 

Add unamortized premium 
Less: 

Unamortized discount 
Deferred loss on refunding 
Cumnt portion 

13,121 

(862) 
(16,244) 
(2s,2sol 

Noncw:rent portion $ 669,710 

The liabilities for the refunded bond issues and the related securities and trust accounts are not 
included in the accompanying basic financial statements as Airports defeased its obligations for 
payment ofthose bonds upon completion ofthose refunding transactions. As ofJune 30, 2005, bonds 
outstanding considered defeased amounted to $74,030,000. 
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The certificate providing for the issuance of revenue bonds provides for the levying and collection of 
minimum net revenues to service and provide reserves for maturing debt principal, interest, sinking 
fund, and replacement and maintenance reserve requirements, and also provides for the maintenance 
of certain insurance coverages for fire, workers' compensation, and public liability. At June 30, 
2005, $183,525,000 was on credit in the revenue bond debt service sinking fund and reserve 
accounts. 

Airports Special Facility Revenue Bonds 

Airports has four special facility lease agreements with Delta Airlines, Inc. in 1987, Continental 
Airlines, Inc. in November 1997 and July 2000, and Caterair International Corporation in December 
1990, which was subsequently assigned to Sky Chefs, Inc. effective January 2002. The construction 
of the related facilities was financed by special facility revenue bonds issued by Airports in the 
amounts of $2,300,000, $25,255,000, $16,600,000, and $6,600,000, respectively. Those bonds are 
payable solely from and collateralized solely by certain rentals and other monies derived from the 
special facilities and aggregated to $38,860,000 at June 30, 2005. 

The following is a SUilllllal)' of pertinent information on Airports special facility revenue bonds at 
June 30, 2005: 

$1,300,000 Issue 

The bonds with a stated maturity date ofJune 1, 2005 were repaid in full on June 1, 2005. 

SlS,255,000 Issue 

The bonds bear interest at 5.625% and are subject to redemption at the option of Airports, upon the 
request of Continental Airlines, Inc., at prices ranging from $101 to $100, depending on the dates of 
redemption, or at $100 plus interest ifthe facilities are destroyed or damaged extensively. 

Interest only payments are due semiannually on May 15 and November 15 of each year until the 
bonds mature on November 15, 2027, at which time the entire principal amount is due. 

$16,600,000 Issue 

On July 15, 2000, Airports issued $16,600,000 of term special facility bonds (Continental Airlines, 
Inc.), Refunding Series of 2000, with an interest rate of 7.00%, due June l, 2020, to, in part, refund 
$18,225,000 of its outstanding Series of 1990 bonds (Continental Airlines, Inc.), with interest rates 
ranging from 9.60% to 9.70%. The bonds are subject to redemption on or after June 1, 2010, at the 
option ofAirports, upon the request of Continental Airlines, Inc. or, if the facilities are destroyed or 
damaged extensively, at 100% ofprincipal plus interest. 

$6,600,000 Issue 

The bonds bear interest at 10.125% and are subject to redemption on or after December 1, 2000, at 
the option ofAirports, upon the request of Caterair International Corporation, at prices ranging from 
$103 to $100, depending on the dates of redemption, or at $100 plus interest if the facilities are 
destroyed or damaged extensively. 
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The special facility leases are accounted for and recorded as direct financing leases. The remaining 
lease payments to be paid by the lessees (including debt service requirements on the special facility 
revenue bonds) are recorded as a restricted asset, and the special facility revenue bonds outstanding 
are recorded as a liability in the accompanying basic financial statements. 

Harbors Revenue Bonds 

The Harbors revenue bonds are collateralized by a charge and lien on the gross revenues of the 
commercial harbors system and upon all improvements and betterments thereto, and all funds and 
securities created in whole or in part from revenues or from the proceeds of any bonds issued. The 
Harbors revenue bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the DOT and the State during 
specific years at prices ranging from $102.50 to $100. 

On June 10, 2004, Harbors issued $5,730,000 of Harbors Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2004, and 
$46,300,000 of Harbors Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2004. The Series A of 2004 bonds will mature 
through the year 2008 at an average interest rate of 4.20%, and the Series B of 2004 bonds will 
mature through the year 2024 at an average interest rate of 5.12%. The 2004 bonds, totaling 
$52,030,000, were issued at an average interest rate of4.98% to refund $5,760,000 of Series of 1993 
bonds (average interest rate of 6.09%) and $45,765,000 of Series of 1994 bonds (average interest 
rate of 6.20%). Total net proceeds of $52,474,330 (including a premium of $1,285,009 and after 
payment of $840,679 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs), along with an 
additional $5,323,718 from the debt service reserve account, were deposited into an irrevocable trust 
with an escrow agent to provide for the redemption of the refunded portion of the Series of 1993 and 
Series of 1994 bonds, on July 1, 2004. 

Although the refunding resulted in the recognition ofa deferred loss of$2,184,199, Harbors in effect 
reduced its aggregate debt service payments by approximately $7,573,128 over the next 20 years and 
obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 
payments) ofapproximately $4,129,526. 

The liabilities for the refunded bond issues and the related securities and trust accounts are not 
included in the accompanying basic fmancial statements as Harbors defeased its obligations for 
payment of those bonds upon completion of those refunding transactions. Accordingly, as of 
June 30, 2005, bonds outstanding considered defeased amounted to nil. 
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The following is a summary ofthe Harbors revenue bonds as ofJune 30, 2005 (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 

Current 
Prlnclpal 

Final Original Principal Due 
Year Redemption Interest Amount of Due January 1, 

oflssue Date Rates Issue J!!!z 1, 2005 2006 Total Noneurrent 

1997 
2000 
2002 
2004 

July I, 2027 
July 1, 2029 
July I, 2019 
January I, 2024 

3.95%- S.15% $ 
4.50%- 6.00% 
3.00%-5.50% 
2.50% - 6.000/4 

56,290 
79,405 
24,420 
52,030 

$ 485 
2,140 
2,010 

$ 

4,390 

$ 485 
2,140 
2,010 
4J90 

$ 52,915 
66,145 
18,290 
43,515 

$ 212,145 4,635 4,390 9,025 180,865 

Add unamortized premium 231 963 

Less: 
Unamortized discount 
Unamortized deferred loss on refunding 

(141) 
(640l 

(1,770) 
(4,211) 

$ 4,635 $ 4390 $ 8475 $ 175,847 

Harbors Special Facility Revenue Bonds 

In 1980, the State Legislature authorized the issuance of special facility revenue bonds for the 
construction, acquisition, remodeling, furnishing, and equipping of state-owned special facilities for 
lease to parties engaged in maritime operations. 

Pursuant to this authorization, $15,700,000 of 8-1/2% special facility revenue bond anticipation 
notes were issued in 1981 to finance the construction of container terminal facilities on Sand Island 
for the exclusive use of Matson Terminals, Inc. In 1983, special facility revenue bonds of 
$16,750,000 were issued to refund the notes and to provide additional funds for construction. On 
April 15, 1993, special facility revenue bonds of $16,500,000 were issued to refund the outstanding 
Series of 1983 bonds. The bonds, which bear interest at 5.75% per annum, mature on March 1, 2013, 
subject to optional redemption on or after March 1, 2003, at prices ranging from $102 to $100 of 
face value. Payment of the principal and interest on the bonds has been guaranteed by Matson 
Navigation Company, Inc., parent company of the lessee. 

On September 18, 2003, the bonds were redeemed in full at a price of 102% of the principal together 
with interest accrued to the redemption date. The remaining net investment in direct lease financing 
on the date ofredemption was reclassified into buildings. 
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Debt service requirements to maturity on the business-type activities revenue bonds for fiscal years 
ending June 30 are aggregated below (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Princil!al Interest Total 

Fiscal year: 
2006 $ 40,875 $ 51,941 $ 92,816 
2007 43,053 49,755 92,808 
2008 31,680 47,401 79,081 
2009 31,403 45,686 77,089 
2010 33,270 43,912 77,182 
2011-2015 247,850 182,785 430,635 
2016 2020 364,303 93,325 457,628 
2021-2025 68,223 16,847 85,070 
2026-2029 34,960 4,533 39,493 

$ 895,617 $ 536,185 $ 1,431,802 

C. Revenue Bonds Authorized Bnt Unissued 

At June 30, 2005, revenue bonds authorized but unissued was approximately $2,826,191,000. 

D. Special Purpose Revenue Bonds 

HRS Chapter 39A authorizes the State (with legislative approval) to issue special-pUipose revenue 
bonds. Proceeds from those bonds are loaned to certain enterprises for projects deemed to be in the 
public interest. The bonds are not general obligations of the State and are payable solely from monies 
received by the State under project agreements with the recipients of the bond proceeds. 
Accordingly, 1he State has not included those bonds in its basic financial statements. Bonds 
outstanding at June 30, 2005 amounted to $1,481,501,000. At June 30, 2005, special pUipOse 
revenue bonds of$1,259,809,000 were au1horized but unissued. 

E. Improvement District Bonds 

The Hawaii Community Development Authority is authorized to issue improvement district bonds 
under HRS Chapter 206E. Proceeds from the bond issues are utilized to finance the redevelopment 
ofdistricts designated by the State Legislature. The bonds are not general obligations ofthe State and 
are payable solely by assessment liens on the real property of the designated district Accordingly, 
the State has not included those bonds in its basic financial statements. Bonds outstanding as of 
June 30, 2005 amounted to $900,000. 
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(7) CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Changes in the long-term liabilities for the Primary Government (governmental activities and business-
type activities) were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Governmental Activities 
Bahmee, 

Jull 1, 2004 Additions Deductions 
Balanee, 

Jone 301 2005 
Doe within 
onezear 

General obligation bonds payable, 
net (note S) 

Accrued vacation payable 
Revenue bonds payable (note 6) 
Reserve for losses and loss 

adjustment costs (note 13) 
Claims and judgments payable 

(note 12) 
Capital lease obligations (note I0) 

$ 3,954,192 
158,755 
276,680 

103,500 

236,600 
64,485 

$ 1,191,310 
88,093 

183,915 

9,800 

14,200 

$ (888,869) 
(72,720) 

(141,290) 

(24,200) 

(30,000) 
(3,145) 

$ 4,256,633 
174,128 
319,305 

89,100 

220,800 
61J40 

$ 282,368 
57,689 
13,050 

68,600 

30,000 
3305 

Total $ 4,794,212 $ l,487J18 $ (1,160,224) $ 5,121,306 $ 455,012 

Balance, 
July 122004 Additions 

Buslness-Trpe Acti

Deductions 

vities 
Balance, 

June 30, 2005 
Doe within 
onelear 

General obligation bonds payable, 
net (note 5) 

Accrued vacation and nrtirement 
benefits payable 

Revenue bonds payable (note 6) 
Reserve fur losses and loss 

adjustment costs 

$ 196 

9,083 
1,017,445 

4,100 

$ 

4,755 

1,556 

$ (29) 

(3,856) 
(89,750) 

(1,103) 

$ 167 

9,982 
927,695 

4,553 

$ 30 

2,791 
35,240 

I 032 

1,030,824 6,311 (94,738) 942,397 39,093 

Add unamortized premium 
Less: 

Unamortized net discount 
Deferred amount on refunding 

16,536 

(2,980) 
(24,875) 

(2,217) 

204 
3,779 

14,319 

(2,776) 
(21,096) 

231 

(141) 
(640) 

$ 1,019,505 $ 6 311 $ (92,972) $ 932,844 $ 38,543 

The accrued vacation liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated by the State's 
Governmental Funds. Approximately 80% and 18% of the accrued vacation liability has been paid by the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds, respectively, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. 
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(8) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

lnterfund receivables and payables consisted of the following at June 30, 2005 (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 

Due From DueTo 

Governmental Funds: 
General Fund: 

Capital Projects Fund $ 89,900 $ 
Nomnajor Governmental Funds 41,268 184 
UH 6,000 9,026 
HHSC 14,000 

151,168 9,210 

Capital Projects Fund: 
General Fund 89,900 
Harbors 1,239 

1,239 89,900 

Nomnajor Governmental Funds: 
General Fund 184 411268 

Proprietary Funds: 
Harbors: 

Capital Projects Fund 1,239 

Component Units: 
UH: 

General Fund 9026 6,000 

HHSC: 
General Fund 14,000 

$ 161 617 $ 161,617 

The due from Capital Projects Fund in the General Fund consists primarily offunds transferred prior to the 
issuance ofbonds. Remaining interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that interfund 
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded, and 
payment between funds are made. 
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(9) TRANSFERS 

Transfers between funds occur when a fund receiving revenues transfers resources to a fund where the 
resources are to be expended or when nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds occur. 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, transfers by fund were as follows (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
Governmental Funds: 

General Fund: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 68,225 $ 296,458 

Capital Projects Fund: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 124,525 5 890 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 
General Fund 296,458 68,225 
Capital Projects Fund 5,890 124225 

3021348 192,750 

$ 495,098 $ 495,098 

The General Fund transferred approximately $257,700,000 to the Nonmajor Governmental Funds fbr debt 
service payments and approximately $37,900,000 to subsidize various Special Revenue Funds programs. 
Approximately $124,500,000 of llighways receipts were transferred from the Nonmajor Governmental 
Funds to the Capital Projects Fund to finance capital projects. 

(10) LEASES 

A. Lease Commitments 

Governmental Activities 

The State leases office facilities and equipment under various operating leases expiring through 
fiscal 2028. Future minimum lease commitments for noncancelable operating leases as of June 30, 
2005 were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2006 $ 6,078 
2007 4,647 
2008 3,168 
2009 1,911 
2010 1,267 
2011-2015 5,450 
2016-2020 4,210 
2021-2025 1,931 
2026 2028 112 

Total future minimum lease payments $ ==2=8=7=74= 
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Rent expenditures for operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 amounted to 
approximately $47,000,000. 

In November 1998, the State issued $54,850,000 in Certificates of Participation (COPS) to purchase 
the Kapolei State Office Buildiog (Kapolei Buildiog). The proceeds of the COPS were remitted to 
the Kapolei Building's developer. The holders of the COPS are the current owners of the Kapolei 
Building. Accordingly, the State's rental payments for the use of the Kapolei Buildiog are paid to a 
trustee, who then remits those amounts to the holders of the COPS. Payments commenced on May 1, 
1999 and continue through May 1, 2018, with interest rates ranging from 3.10"/o to 5.25%. Title to 
the Kapolei Building will transfer to the State upon the payment ofall required rents. 

In December 2000, the State issued $23,140,000 in COPS to purchase the No. 1 Capitol District 
State Office Building (Capitol District Building). The proceeds of the COPS were remitted to the 
former owners of the Capitol District Buildiog. Accordingly, the State's rental payments for the use 
of the Capitol District Buildiog are paid to a trustee, who then remits those amounts to the holders of 
the COPS. Payments commenced on May 1, 2002 and continue through May 1, 2020, with interest 
rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.375%. Title to the Capitol District Buildiog will transfer to the State 
upon the payment ofall required rents. 

Future minimum lease payments for these capital leases are as follows (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2006 6,357 
2007 6,352 
2008 6,347 
2009 6,354 
2010 6,350 
2011-2015 31,752 
2016 2020 22,956 

Total future minimum lease payments 86,468 

Less amount representing interest (25,128) 

Present value ofnet minimum lease payments $ 61,340 
-====---

B. Lease Rentals 

Ai,ports -Ai,port-Airline Lease Agreement 

Airports had an airport-airline lease agreement with certain major airline carriers ( signatory airlines) 
which expired on July 31, 1992. The expired lease agreement provided the lessees with the 
nonexclusive right to use the Airports system facilities, equipment, improvements, and services, in 
addition to occupying certain premises and facilities. From August 1, 1992 through June 30, 1993, 
the signatory airlines continued operations under monthly negotiated agreements with the DOT. 
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In January 1994, the DOT and the signatory airlines executed a letter agreement to extend the 
expired airport-airline lease agreement to June 30, 1994. Under the terms of the Jetter agreement, the 
signatory airlines would continue to operate under the terms of the expired airport-airline lease 
agreement, with an adjus1ment for terms and provisions relating to Airports system rates and 
charges, which include landing fees, nonexclusive joint-use premise charges for terminal rentals 
(overseas tenninal, new interisland terminal, and the international arrivals building), exclusive use 
premise rentals, and Airports system support charges. The letter agreement further stipulated that the 
aggregate ofall such rates and charges, together with aviation fuel taxes (as adjusted for aviation fuel 
tax credits), payable to the DOT by the signatory airlines would not exceed $84,175,000. The 
foregoing rates and charges were adjusted retroactively to July 1, 1993. 

In June 1994, the DOT and the signatory airlines executed a lease exteusion agreement to extend the 
expired airport-airline lease agreement effective July 1, 1994 to June 30, 1997. Under the terms of 
the lease extension agreement, the signatory airlines would continue to operate under the terms ofthe 
expired airport-airline lease agreement, with an adjus1ment for terms and provisions relating to 
Airports system rates and charges. The nature of these charges is similar to those of the expired Jetter 
agreement; however, the lease extension agreement does not stipulate a maximum amount for 
aggregate Airports system charges. Instead, the lease extension agreement's residual rate-setting 
methodology provides for a final year-end reconciliation containing actual Airports system cost data 
to determine whether Airports system charges assessed to the signatory airlines were sufficient to 
recover Airports system costs, including debt service requirements under the certificate providing for 
the issuance of revenue bonds. Annual settlements based on this final reconciliation are made in 
accordance with the terms ofthe lease extension agreement. 

The DOT and the signatory airlines have mutually agreed to continue to operate under the terms of 
the lease extension agreement, which provides for an automatic extension on a quarterly basis unless 
either party provides 60 days written notice to the other party of termination. 

Airpurts -Prepaid Airporl Use Charge Fund 

The DOT and the signatory airlines entered into an agreement in August 1995 to extend the prepaid 
airport use charge fund (PAUCF). During fiscal 2000, the parties agreed to transfer the signatory 
airlines' net excess payments into the PAUCF. Net excess payments for fiscal years 1996 through 
2005 have been transferred to the PAUCF. Airports paid $1,348,000 out of the PAUCF to the 
signatory airlines in fiscal 2005. 

Airports -Aviation Fuel Tax 

In May 1996, the Department ofTaxation issued a tax information release which stated that effective 
July 1, 1996, the Hawaii fuel tax will not apply to the sale of bonded aviation/jet fuel to air carriers 
departing for foreign ports or arriving from foreign ports on stopovers before continuing on to their 
final destination. The aviation fuel tax amounted to $3,434,444 for fiscal 2005. 
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Airports - System Rates and Charges 

Signatory and nonsignatory airlines were assessed the following rates and charges: 

• Landing fees, net ofaviation fuel tax credits, amounted to $35,463,143 for fiscal 2005 based 
on a computed rate per 1,000-pound units of approved maximum landing weight for each 
aircraft used in revenue landings. 

• Nonexclusive joint-use premise charges for terminal rentals amounted to $26,465,067 for 
fiscal 2005. For fiscal 2004, the State waived the signatory airlines' underpayment of 
nonexclusive joint-use premise charges of $1,637,867 and transferred $414,657 of 
overpayments into the PAUCF in fiscal 2005. Overseas and interisland joint-use premise 
charges were established to recover Airports system costs allocable to the overseas and 
interisland tenninals joint-use space based on tenninal rental rates and are recovered based 
on a computed rate per revenue passenger landing. 

• Exclusive use premise charges amounted to $27,661,775 for fiscal 2005 and were computed 
using a fixed rate per square footage. Exclusive use premise charges for terminal rentals 
amounted to $15,418,791 for fiscal 2005. 

• Airports system support charges amounted to $655,759 for fiscal 2005. The charges were 
established to recover residual costs of the Airports system and are based on a computed rate 
per 1,000-pound units of approved maximum landing weight for each aircraft used in 
revenue landings. The Airports system inter-island support charges for nonsignatory airlines 
are set at 32% ofAirports system support charges for overseas flights. 

Airports - Other Operating Leases 

Airports leases building spaces and improvements to concessionaires, airline caniers, and other 
airport users. The terms of those leases range from 4 to 15 years for concessionaires and up to 
65 years for other airport users. Concessionaire lease rentals are generally based on the greater of a 
percentage of sales or a basic minimum rent. Percentage rent included in concession fees revenues 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 was approximately $51,740,336. 

Concession fees revenues from the DFS Group L.P. (DFS), which operates the in-bond (duty free) 
concession, the Honolulu International Airport retail concession, and the Kona International Airport 
at Keahole retail concession, accounted for approximately 44% of total concession fees revenues for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. 

As of June 30, 2003, DPS was in significant arrears in the rents due to Airports. A significant 1:ause 
of DFS's fiuancial difficulty stemmed from the downturn in Hawaii's economy as a result of the 
decrease in international visitor travel. Although the Governor had granted temporary rent relief to 
Airports' concessionaires throughout fiscal 2002 and 2003, the major concessionaire was unable to 
bring the rent due to a current basis. 
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After a significant amount of negotiation between Airports and DFS, both parties entered into a 
Withdrawal and Settlement Agreement (Agreement) effective August 1, 2003. Under the terms of 
the Agreement, DFS would bring current the amounts due for the in-bond concession and retail 
concessions, based on compromised amounts. DFS would execute a promissory note to the State for 
the underpaid rent from January through May 2003 under the in-bond lease. In addition, the current 
in-bond concession lease would be terminated early and rebid in September 2003. DFS would be 
required to submit the minimum amount of the bid set by Airports. 

DFS was the only bidder on the new in-bond concession and was awarded the contract on 
September 29, 2003. The new contract provides for a minimum annual guarantee rent, as well as 
percentage rent on annual gross receipts exceeding certain levels. 

The DFS concession contracts provide for quarterly advance payments due on March 1, June 1, 
September 1, and December 1 ofeach year. 

Harbors -Aloha Tower Complex Development 

The Aloha Tower Development Corporation (ATDC) is a state agency established under HRS 
Chapter 206J, primarily to redevelop the Aloha Tower complex. The complex encompasses Piers 5 
to 23 of Honolulu Harbor. In September 1993, Hmbors entered into a lease with the ATDC 
transferring to the ATDC portions of the Aloha Tower complex. The ATDC is required annually to 
reimburse Harbors for any losses in revenues during the term ofthe lease caused by any action of the 
ATDC or the developer and to provide replacement facilities for maritime activities at no cost to 
Harbors. 

In September 1993, the ATDC subleased lands surrounded by Piers 8 and 9 and a portion of land 
surrounded by Pier 10 to a developer and entered into a capital improvements, maintenance, 
operations, and securities agreement (Operations Agreement) with the developer and Harbors. The 
Operations Agreement allows Harbors to operate the harbor facilities at Piers 8, 9, and 10. The lease 
between the ATDC and the developer requires the developer to construct, at the developer's cost, 
various facilities, including a marketplace. 

The developer later went into bankroptcy. The subsequent operator of the marketplace assumed the 
obligations of the sublease and the Operations Agreement in March of 1998. This replacement 
operator has also gone through a bankruptcy proceeding and there is a new operator who has 
assumed the same obligations. Although the marketplace construction was substantially completed, 
several items on Harbors' construction punchlist have yet to be completed and are being pursued 
with the new operator. 

Discussions have been on-going between Harbors and the ATDC to revise the provisions in the lease 
requiring the ATDC to annually reimburse Harbors for any losses in revenues during the term of the 
lease. The outcome of these discussions may result in an amendment of the lease which will alter the 
obligations ofthe ATDC to reimburse Harbors on an annual basis from and airer July I, 2004. 

The loss in revenues for fiscal 2005 amounted to $1,848,086 and has been included in Harbors' 
rentlll revenues. As of June 30, 2005, the amount due to Harbors was $9,899,449. Accordingly, 
Harbors have fully provided an allowance for such amounL 
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Harbors -Leasing Operations 

Harbors leases land, wharf, and building spaces under month-to-month revocable permits and long­
term leases. The long-term leases expire during various years through fiscal 2058. Those leases 
generally call for rental increases every five to ten years based on independent appraisals of the fair 
rental value ofthe leased property. 

The following schedule presents the approximate future minimum lease rentals under noncancelable 
operating leases of the Proprietary Funds as ofJune 30, 2005 ( amounts expressed in thousands): 

Proprietary Funds 
Airports Harbors Total 

Fiscal year: 
2006 $ 59,522 $ 9,052 $ 68,574 
2007 49,595 8,473 58,068 
2008 14,360 8,291 22,651 
2009 9,047 8,356 17,403 
2010 8,503 8,276 16,779 
Thereafter 88,215 313,155 401,370 

$ 229,242 $ 355,603 $ ...........ss...4=,84=5-=-

C. Net Investment In Direct Financing Leases 

Certain leases of state-owned special facilities to parties engaged in airline operations are accotmted 
for as direct fmancing leases. At June 30, 2005, net direct financing leases of Airports consisted of 
the following (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Total minimum lease payments receivable $ 72,660 
Less amount representing interest (37,486) 

35,174 

Cash with trustee and other 3,951 

$ -====3=9=,1..2s.... 
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Minimum future rentals to be received under direct financing leases of Airports as of June 30, 2005 
consisted ofthe following (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Fiscal year: 
2006 $ 3,470 
2007 3,425 
2008 3,383 
2009 3,357 
2010 3,398 
Thereafter 59,578 

$ 76,611 

(11) RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

A. Plan Description 

All eligible employees of the State and counties are required by HRS Chapter 88 to become 
members of the ERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement plan. The ERS 
provides retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. The ERS is governed by a 
Board of Trustees. All contnbutions, benefits, and eligibility requirements are established by HRS 
Chapter 88 and can be amended by legislative action. The ERS issues a comprehensive annual 
financial report that is available to the public. That report may be obtained by writing to the ERS at 
201 Merchant Street, Suite 1400, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. 

Prior to June 30, 1984, the plan consisted of only a contributory option. In 1984, legislation was 
enacted to add a new noncontributory option for members of the ERS who are also covered under 
Social Security. Police officers, firefighters, judges, elected officials, and persons employed in 
positions not covered by Social Security are precluded from the noncontn'butory option. The 
noncontributory option provides for reduced benefits and covers most eligible employees hired after 
June 30, 1984. Employees hired before that date were allowed to continue under the contributory 
option or to elect the new noncontributory option and receive a refund of employee contributions. 
All benefits vest after five and ten years of credited service under the contributory and 
noncontn'butory options, respectively. 

Both options provide a monthly retirement allowance based on the employee's age, years of credited 
service, and average final compensation (AFC). The AFC is the average salary earned during the 
five highest paid years of service, including the vacation payment, if the employee became a member 
prior to January I, 1971. The AFC for members hired on or after that date is based on the 
three highest paid years ofservice, excluding the vacation payment. 

88 (Continued) 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

B, Funding Policy 

Most covered employees of the contributory option are required to conln"bute 7.8% of their salary. 
Police officers, firefighters, investigators of the departments of the County Prosecuting Attorney and 
the Attorney General, narcotics enforcement investigators, and public safety investigators are 
required to contribute 12.2% of their salary. The funding method used to calculate the total employer 
contribution requirement is the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method. Under this method, 
employer contributions to the ERS are comprised ofnonnal cost plus level annual payments required 
to liquidate the unfunded actuarial liability over the remaining period of 27 years from June 30, 
2002. 

The State's contn"bution requirements as of June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were approximately 
$251,685,000, $181,614,000, and $158,622,000, respectively. The State contributed 100% of its 
required contn"butions for those years. Act 233, SLH of 2002, increased the 2003 contribution by 
providing a one-time lump-sum pensioner bonus to retirees who were 70 years and older with at least 
20 years of credited service as of June 30, 2002. Also, Act 284, SLH of 2001, provided an increase 
in the pension benefits effective 2003 to retirees with military service. Covered payroll for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2005 was approximately $2,079,054,000. 

C. Post-Retirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

In addition to providing pension benefits, the State, pursuant to HRS Chapter 87, provides certain 
health care and life insurance benefits to all qualified employees. 

For employees hired before July 1, 1996, the State pays the entire monthly health care premium for 
employees retiring with ten or more years of credited service, and 50% of the monthly premium for 
employees retiring with fewer than ten years ofcredited service. 

For employees hired after June 30, 1996, and who retire with fewer than 10 years of service, the 
State makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least 10 years but fewer than 15 years of 
service, the State pays 50% of the retired employees' monthly Medicare or non-Medicare premium. 
For employees hired after June 30, 1996, and who retire with at least 15 years but fewer than 
25 years ofservice, the State pays 75% ofthe retired employees' monthly Medicare or non-Medicare 
premium; for those retiring with over 25 years of service, the State pays the entire health care 
premium. 

There are currently approximately 25,000 state retirees receiving such benefits. Free life insurance 
coverage for retirees and free dental coverage for dependents under age 19 are also available. 
Retirees covered by the medical portion of Medicare are eligible to receive reimbursement of the 
basic medical coverage premium. Contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. During fiscal 
2005, expenditures of $177,691,000 were recognized for post-retirement health care and life 
insurance benefits, approximately $35,876,000 ofwhich is attributable to the Component Units. 

Effective July 1, 2003, the EUTF replaced the Hawaii Public Employees Health Fund under Act 88, 
SLH of 2001. The EUTF was established to provide a single delivery system of health benefits for 
state and county employees, retirees, and their dependents. 
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(12) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCms 

A. Commitments 

General Obligation Bonds 

The State has issued general obligation bonds in which repayments, including interest, are 
reimbursed from specific revenue sources of the Special Revenue Funds with terms corresponding to 
that of the related general obligation bonds (see note 5). At June 30, 2005, outstanding commitments 
to repay general obligation bonds consisted ofthe following ( amounts expressed in thousands): 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Economic Development 265,674 
Highways 94,784 
Agriculture 8,129 
Natural Resources 7,926 
All Other 7,423 
Administrative Support 1,096 _____,..$ 385,032 

Accumulated Sick Leave 

Sick leave accumulates at the rate of one and three-quarters working days for each month of service 
without limit, but may be taken only in the event of illness and is not convertiole to pay upon 
termination of employment However, a state employee who retires or leaves government service in 
good standing with 60 days or more ofunused sick leave is entitled to additional service credit in the 
ERS. At June 30, 2005, accumulated sick leave was approximately $1,258,181,000. 

Intergovernmental Expenditures 

In accordance with Act 250, SLH of 2002, 45% of revenues generated by the transient 
accommodations tax are to be distributed to the counties. 

Guarantees ofIndebtedness 

The State is authorized to guarantee indebtedness of others at a maximum amount of approximately 
$191,000,000 for aquacultural loans, Hawaiian Home Lands loans, various projects involving 
mortgage loans for rental homes made by private nonprofit corporations or governmental 
corporations, mortgage loans for housing projects, and rental assistance obligations of Component 
Unit - HCDCH. The State has not paid, nor does it expect to pay, any amounts as a result of such 
guarantees as ofJune 30, 2005. 

B. Proprietary Fund Type - Enterprise Funds 

Construction and Service Contracts 

At June 30, 2005, the Enterprise Funds had commitments of approximately $120,467,000 for 
construction and service contracts. 

90 ( Continued) 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

C. Contingencies 

The State has been named as defendant in numerous lawsuits and claims arising in the nonnal course 
of operations. To the extent that the outcome of such litigation has been detennined to result in 
probable financial loss to the State, such loss has been accrued in the basic financial statements. Of 
the remaining claims, a number ofclaims may possibly result in adverse judgments against the State. 
However, such claim amounts cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. The litigation payments 
relating to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 approximated $1,200,000, 
$6,200,000, and $14,000,000, respectively. 

Tobacco Settlement 

In November 1998, the State settled its tobacco lawsuit as part of a nationwide settlement involving 
46 other states and various tobacco industry defendants. Under the settlement, those tobacco 
companies that have joined in the Master Settlement Agreement will pay the State approximately 
$1.3 billion over a 25-year period. Through June 30, 2005, the State has received approximately 
$38,008,000. The State is to receive proceeds from this settlement in January and April of the 
subsequent year through 2004 and thereafter on April 15 of each subsequent year. As of June 30, 
2005, the State expects to receive $18,700,000 for the first six months of2005. 

Office ofHawaiian Affairs 

In 1898, the Republic of Hawaii transferred certain lands to the United States. Upon Hawaii's 
admission to the Union in 1959, the United States reconveyed title to those lands (collectively, the 
ceded lands) back to the State to be held as a public trust for five purposes: (1) public education; 
(2) betterment of the conditions ofnative Hawaiians; (3) development of farm and home ownership; 
(4) making public improvements; and (5) provision of land for public use. In 1978, the State 
Constitution was amended expressly to provide that the ceded lands were to be held as a public trust 
for native Hawaiians and the general public, and to establish OHA to administer and manage the 
proceeds and income derived from a pro rata portion ofthe ceded lands for native Hawaiians. 

In 1979, the State Legislature adopted HRS Chapter 10, which, as amended in 1980, specified, 
among other things, that OHA expend 20% ofall funds derived by the State from the ceded lands for 
the betterment ofthe conditions ofnative Hawaiians. 

In 1987, in Trustees ofthe Office ofHawaiian Affairs v. Yamasaki, 69 Haw. 154 (1987), the Hawaii 
Supreme Court concluded that HRS Chapter IO was insufficiently clear regarding the amount of 
monies OHA was entitled to receive from the public trust lands. 

In 1990, in response to Yamasaki, the State Legislature adopted Act 304, SLH of 1990, which 
(1) defined jjublic land trust'and l't:venue,'\2) specified that 20% of the l't:venue''derived from 
the jjublic land trust''was to be expended by OHA for the betterment of the conditions of native 
Hawaiians, and (3) established a process for OHA and the Director of Finance to jointly determine 
the amount ofmonies which the State would pay OHA to retroactively settle all ofOHA's claims for 
the period from June 16, 1980 through June 30, 1991. Since fiscal 1992, the State, through its 
departments and agencies, has been paying 20% ofl't:venue'to OHA on a quarterly basis. 
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In 1993, the State Legislature enacted Act 35, SLH of 1993, appropriating $136.5 million to pay the 
amount detennined to be OHA's claims, with interest, for the period from June 16, 1980 through 
June 30, I 991. 

In January 1994, OHA and its Board of Trustees (the Plaintiffs) filed suit against the State (OHA, et 
al. v. State ofHawaii, et al., Civil No. 94-0205-01 (First Circuit) ( OHA I)), claiming that the amount 
paid to OHA was inadequate and alleging that the State had failed to properly account for and fully 
pay the pro rata share of proceeds and income derived from the public land trust. Among other 
things, the Plaintiffs seek an accounting ofall proceeds and income, funds and revenue derived from 
the public land trust since 1978, and restitution or damages amounting to 20% of the proceeds and 
income derived from the public land trust, as well as interest thereon. In its answer to OHA's 
complaint, the State denied all of the Plaintiffs' substantive allegations, and asserted its sovereign 
immunity from suit and other jurisdictional and claim-barring defenses. 

The Plaintiffs thereafter filed four motions for partial summary judgment as to the State's liability to 
pay OHA 20% of monies it receives from (I) Airports' in-bond duty-free airport concession 
(including receipts from the concessionaire's off-airport sales operations); (2) the state-owned and 
operated Hilo Medical Center; (3) the State's public rental housing projects and affordable housing 
developments; and (4) interest income, including investment earnings (collectively, the Sources). In 
response, the State filed a motion to dismiss on the basis of sovereign immunity and opposed 
Plaintiffs' four motions on the merits and raised several affirmative defenses. 

On October 24, 1996, the Circuit Court of the First Circuit of the State of Hawaii (First Circuit 
Court) filed an order denying the State's motion to dismiss and rajecting its affirmative defenses. 
Also on October 24, 1996, the First Circuit Court filed an order granting the Plaintiffs' four motions 
for partial summary judgment with respect to the State's liability to pay OHA 20% of the monies it 
receives from each of the Sources, and deferred establishing amounts owed from those Sources for 
further proceedings or trial. The State's motion for leave to file an interlocutory appeal from both the 
order denying its motion to dismiss and the order granting the Plaintiffs' four motions for partial 
summary judgment was granted, and all proceedings in the suit have been stayed pending the Hawaii 
Supreme Court's disposition of the State's appeal. 

On September 12, 2001, the Hawaii Supreme Court concluded OHA /by holding in OHA v. State of 
Hawaii, 96 Haw., 388 (2001) that Act 304 was effectively repealed by its own terms, and that there 
were no judicially manageable standards by which to determine whether OHA was entitled to the 
revenue it sought from the Sources because the repeal of Act 304 revived the law which the Hawaii 
Supreme Court in Yamasaki had previously concluded was insufficiently clear to establish how much 
OHA was entitled to receive from the ceded lands. See OHA v. State, 96 Haw., 388 (2002). The 
Hawaii Supreme Court dismissed the case for lack of justiciability noting that it was up to the State 
Legislature to enact legislation to give effect to the right of native Hawaiians to benefit from the 
ceded lands under the State Constitution. The State Legislature took no action during the 2002 
legislative session, and the State's payments of 20% of !'evenue"were discontinued as of the 
first quarter in fiscal 2002. 

The State Legislature took no action during the 2002 and 2003 legislative sessions to establish a new 
mechanism for establishing how much OHA was entitled to receive from the ceded lands. On 
January I 0, 2003, and pending legislative action to establish such a mechanism, the Governor issued 
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Executive Order No. 03-03 directing state agencies to resume transferring 20% of receipts from 
leases, licenses, and pennits indisputably paid for the use of improved or unimproved parcels of 
ceded lands to OHA, if federal or state law did not preclude all or any portion of the receipts from 
being used to better the conditions of native Hawaiians, and the transfer of all or any portion of the 
receipts to OHA would not cause the state agency to renege on a preexisting pledge, rate covenant, 
or other preexisting obligation to holders of revenue bonds or other indebtedness of the State or state 
agency. During the 2003 legislative session, the State Legislature appropriated monies from the 
various funds into which the ceded lands receipts had been deposited after the decision in OHA I was 
issued and the state agencies ceased making payments to OHA, and directed the state agencies to pay 
themtoOHA. 

OHA continues to pursue its claims for a portion of the revenues from the Sources and other ceded 
lands that it made in OHA I. On July 21, 2003, OHA filed a new lawsuit, OHA, et al. v. State of 
Hawaii, et al., Civil No. 03-1-1505-07 (OHA II). There follows additional background information 
pertinent to OHA D. In September 1996, the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department 
of Transportation (DOT) issued a report (the IG Report) concluding that from 1992 to 1995, the 
Hawaii Department of Transportation's payment to OHA of$28.2 million was a diversion of airport 
revenues in violation of applicable federal law as OHA provided no airport services in return. The 
Hawaii Attorney General disagreed with the IG Report's conclusion, stating in November 1996 that 
the payments to OHA were simply an operating cost of the airports, and thus not a diversion of 
airport revenues in violation of federal law. In April 1997, the Acting Administrator of the FAA 
concurred in writing (the FAA Memorandum), with the IG Report and opposed the Hawaii Attorney 
General's position. In support of its appeal of the First Circuit Court's OHA I decision to the Hawaii 
Supreme Court, but differing with the original position of the Hawaii Attorney General, the State 
noted in its May 1997 amended opening brief that llnless the federal government's position, set 
forth in the IG Report, changes, Act 304 prohibits the State from paying OHA airport-related 
revenues.To its June 1997 reply, the State stated that the t>OT Inspector General's determination 
shows that the federal government is on its way to finding such payments illegal and requiring the 
State to reimburse past payments of airport-related revenues to OHA.''ln October 1997, Public Law 
105-66, 1997 HR 2169 (the Forgiveness Act) was enacted into federal law. The Forgiveness Act 
essentially provides that in exchange for there being no further payments of airport revenues for 
claims related to ceded lands, any such payments received prior to April 1, 1996 need not be repaid. 
The Hawaii Attorney General submitted the Forgiveness Act to the Hawaii Supreme Court (Court) in 
December 1997, !'or the Court's use'in conjunction with the OHA I appeal, whereupon the Court 
requested the parties submit supplemental briefs to address whether the Forgiveness Act affected the 
Court's interpretation ofAct 304. The State, in its March 1998 supplemental brief, stated, inter alia, 
that paying OHA a pro rata share of airport monies violated federal law, and that there was no live, 
ripe controversy regarding those payments because the Forgiveness Act relieved the State and OHA 
ofany obligation to retum improper past payments. 

Despite the adverse OHA I decision, the Plaintiffs in OHA II have now sued the State for alleged 
breaches of fiduciary duties as purported trustee of the ceded lands public trust, alleged violations of 
Act 304, Chapter 10, and Article XII, Sections 4, 5, and 6 of the Hawaii Constitution, alleged 
violations of the Contract Clause of the U.S. Constitution, and alleged misrepresentation and non­
disclosure, by the following alleged acts (but not limited to these acts): (1) failing to oppose positions 
set forth in the FAA Memorandum; (2) resolving its dispute with the FAA by obtaining a forgiveness 
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of the prior $28.2 million payments in exchange for a promise not to make future airport revenue 
payments to OHA and not to appeal the positions set forth in tbe FAA Memorandum; (3) breaching 
the trust duty of impartiality by not opposing the positions set forth in the FAA Memorandum in 
order to use as a sword in OHA I; (4) failing to timely advise OHA that the State was not going to 
continue to oppose the positions set forth in the FAA Memorandum or IG Report, and that it was 
planning to settle with the federal government, in order to provide OHA with a fair opportunity to 
take measures to step into the State's position to oppose the FAA; and (5) failing to obtain 
instructions from the Court on how to proceed given the State's conflict between defending the State 
against OHA in OHA I, and having a duty to oppose the positions set forth in the FAA 
Memorandum. 

OHA further alleges that these alleged Breaches, erro rs, and omissions'\vere substantial factors that 
resulted in the passing of the Forgiveness Act and the issuance of the Hawaii Supreme Court's 
opinion in OHA I. Plaintiffs claim that, accordingly, the State is liable to OHA for damages 
including, but not limited to: (!) the damages alleged by OHA in OHA I and (2) amounts payable 
under Act 304 that have not been paid, including but not limited to, airport landing fees. Plaintiffs 
also seek declaratory and injunctive relief ordering the State to reinstate Act 304, pay airport-related 
revenues to OHA from sources other than airport revenues ( and enjoining the State and its agents, 
employees, and officials from opposing any of the above), and seeks appointment ofan independent 
trustee to temporarily replace the State as trustee of the native Hawaiian public trust with respect to 
matters relating to reinstatement of Act 304 and the payment of airport-related revenues to OHA 
from the sources other than airport revenues. The State filed a motion to dismiss OHA's complaint 
in OHA II which the court granted in an order filed on December 26, 2003. The court entered a final 
judgment on May 19, 2004, encompassing the order dismissing the complaint and several procedural 
orders. On June 8, 2004, OHA filed a notice of appeal from the portions of the May 19, 2004 
judgment dismissing its complaint in OHA II, denying leave to amend the complaint and denying a 
request for bifurcation of OHA's claims for liability and damages. The Court affirmed the First 
Circuit Court's order dismissing OHA's complaint in a decision issued September 9, 2005. On 
December 23, 2005, the Court granted OHA's motion for reconsideration. 

In a second lawsuit, OHA filed a complaint for declaratory and injunctive relief on November 4, 
1994 (OHA v. Housing Finance and Development Corporation, et al., Civil No. 94-4207-11 
(First Circuit)) to enjoin the State from alienating any ceded lands or, alternatively, to preclude the 
extinguishing ofany rights native Hawaiians may have in ceded lands which may be alienated. 

Alternatively, OHA sought a declaration that the amounts the Housing Finance and Development 
Corporation (the Corporation) and the State paid to OHA for ceded lands the Corporation planned to 
use to develop and sell housing units pursuant to Act 318, SLH of 1992, were insufficient. Act 318 
established a separate process for valuing the ceded lands the Corporation used for its two housing 
developments at Kealakeke and Labaina, and quantifying the amounts of income and proceeds from 
the ceded lands that the Corporation and State were required to pay OHA for conveying and using 
the parcels for the Corporation's two projects. 
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In December 2002, following a trial on the issues, the trial court confinned the State's authority to 
sell ceded lands, denied the declaratory ruling that the sale of ceded lands did not directly or 
indirectly release or limit native Hawaiians' claim to those lands which the Plaintiff requested, and 
ordered that judgment be entered in the State's and the Corporation's favor as to Counts I, ll, and m 
of the Amended Complaint The Plaintiffs moved for and were granted leave to file immediate 
appeals from the trial court's ruling to the Hawaii Supreme Court Those appeals are now pending. 
Trial to determine the sufficiency of the proceeds paid to OHA by the Corporation and the State from 
the sale ofparticular parcels ofceded lands at issue has not been scheduled. 

In a third lawsuit, OHA filed suit against the Hawaii Housing Authority (the HHA), the executive 
director of the HHA, the board members of the HHA, and the Director of Finance on July 27, 1995 
(OHA v. HHA, et al., Civil No. 95-2682-07 (First Circuit)) to secure additional compensation and an 
itemized accounting of the sums previously paid to OHA for five specifically identified parcels of 
ceded lands which were transferred to the HHA for its use to develop, construct, and manage 
additional affordable public rental housing units under HRS Chapter 201G. On January 11, 2000, all 
proceedings in this suit were stayed pending the Hawaii Supreme Court's decision in the State's 
appeal in OHA v. State ofHawaii, Civil No. 94-0205-01 (First Circuit). The repeal and revival of the 
pre-Yamasaki law by the Hawaii Supreme Court's September 12, 2001 decision in OHA v. State 
should also require dismissal of the claims OHA makes in OHA v. HHA, and the case remains 
pending. 

The State intends to vigorously defend against all of OHA's claims. It is currently unable to predict 
with reasonable certainty the magnitude of its potential liability for such claims, ifany. Accordingly, 
no estimate of loss has been made in the accompanying basic financial statements. However, 
resolution of all ofOHA's claims in OHA's favor could have a material adverse effect on the State's 
financial condition. 

Department ofEducation and Department ofHealth 

Felix v. Lingle, Civil No. 93-00367 (U.S. District Court for the District of Hawaii) (Felix). This case 
involves the State's responsibility under federal law to provide mental health services as a related 
service to children and adolescents who need such services to benefit from special education. After 
the U.S. District Court granted partial summary judgment as to liability in the Plaintiffs' favor, the 
parties entered into a consent decree which allowed the State to plan and implement a new system of 
care. Under the consent decree and the supervision of the U.S. District Court, the State has been 
implementing a plan to improve the provision of such services. Because of the failure of the State to 
timely complete the implementation plan approved by the U.S. District Court, the State was held in 
contempt of court and the consent decree was extended to June 30, 2001 for completion of 
infrastructure to support the delivery of services and December 31, 2001 for substantial compliance 
with the consent decree. 
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The State avoided the U.S. District Court's imposition of a federal court-appointed receiver by 
meeting the court's revised benchmarks and conditions which the State was ordered to fulfill. At a 
hearing held on November 30, 2001, the U.S. District Court determined that the State had made 
significant progress in meeting the terms of the consent decree and, therefore, that a federal receiver 
was not necessary. On September 10, 2002, the court ruled that the State was in substantial 
compliance with the consent decree as ofJune 30, 2002. However, the court ordered the federal court 
supervision to continue until December 31, 2003. 

Due to the scheduling needs of the U.S. District Court and the parties, stipulations were entered into 
by the parties extending U.S. District Court oversight and control over the Revised Consent Decree 
until April 30, 2004. At a hearing on April 8, 2004, the U.S. District Court approved the parties' 
stipulation, which provides for the termination of jurisdiction 30 days after the publication of the 
State's fifth quarterly sustainability report (anticipated to be on or about May 30, 2005). The federal 
court's oversight of special education (Felix) ended with the securing ofa judgment and dismissal of 
the Felix case. The federal court's jurisdiction terminated on May 31, 2005. The case has been 
resolved. 

Department ofHawaiian Home Lands 

Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Fund 

Act 14, Special SLH of 1995, was approved by the Governor on June 29, 1995 and obligates 
the State to make 20 annual deposits of $30,000,000, or their discounted value equivalent, into 
the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Fund beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. The 
primary purpose ofAct 14 is to resolve controversies and claims related to the Hawaiian Home 
Lands trust which arose between August 31, 1959 and July 1, 1988. Act 14 also established in 
the State Treasury a trust fimd known as the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Fund. 

The State transferred $30,000,000 to the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Fund during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2005. 

As of June 30, 2005, the State has transferred approximately $300,000,000 to the Hawaiian 
Home Lands Trust Fund. The State's remaining $300,000,000 obligation discounted at 6% and 
assuming annual payments of $30,000,000 over the remaining term of the obligation is 
approximately $220,800,000. Such amount has been included in claims and judgments payable 
in the accompanying statement ofnet assets. 

Transfer ofProperty 

Act 95, SLH of 1996, authorizes the transfer of certain parcels of land to the DHHL. The 
properties were conveyed in fiscal 1997 and the allocated costs were charged against 
contributed capital. The estimated future costs of those parcels will be recognized as 
contributions returned to the State and others when costs are incurred. The estimated allocated 
project costs incurred to date of those parcels ofland were approximately $18,740,000. 
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Individual Claims 

In 1991, the State Legislature enacted HRS Chapter 674, entitled Individual Claims 
Resolution Under the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust," which established a process for 
individual beneficiaries of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920 to file claims to 
recover actual economic damages they believed they suffered from a breach of trust caused by 
an act or omission of an official of the State between August 21, 1959, when Hawaii became a 
state, and June 30, 1988. Claims were required to be filed no later than August 31, 1995. There 
were 4,327 claims filed by 2,753 individuals. 

The process was a three-step process which (1) began with informal proceedings presided over 
by the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust Individual Claims Review Panel (the Panel) to provide the 
State Legislature with non-binding findings and advisory opinions for each claim; (2) provided 
for the State Legislature's review and consideration of the Panel's findings and advisory 
opinions, and appropriations of funds to pay the actual economic damages the State 
Legislature deemed appropriate by October 1, 1999; and (3) allowed claimants to bring de 
novo civil actions by December 31, 1999 if they were not satisfied with the Panel's findings 
and advisory opinions, or the State Legislature's response to the Panel's recommendations. 

Legislation to allow the Panel and the State Legislature until September 30, 2000 to act on all 
claims, and postpone the deadline for unsatisfied claimants to file suit until December 31, 
2000, was adopted by the State Legislature, but vetoed by the Govemor in the 1999 legislative 
session, and the Panel unseated on December 31, 1999. As of September 30, 1999, claims 
from 1,376 claimants had not been reviewed by the Panel, and all but the claims of 
two claimants had not been acted upon by the State Legislature. In 1997, the State Legislature 
declared it to be its intent to postpone acting upon the Panel's recommendations until all 
claims had been reviewed and forwarded to it. 

On September 30, I 999, three claimants filed a suit for declaratory and injunctive relief in the 
U.S. District Court to secure an injunction prolu"biting the enforcement of the notice and suit 
filing deadlines specified in HRS Chapter 674. Kalima, et al. v. Cayetano, 
Civil No. 99-00671HG/LEK. A motion for preliminary injunction was heard on November 15, 
1999 and denied as moot on September 28, 2000. By stipulation filed on November 13, 2000, 
the action was dismissed without prejudice. 

On December 29, 1999, the same three claimants filed a class motion lawsuit in the First 
Circuit Court for declaratory and injunctive relief and for general, special, and punitive 
damages for breach of trust or fiduciary duty under HRS Chapters 674 and 673, violation of 
the due process, equal protection and native rights clauses of the State Constitution, and breach 
of contract under HRS Chapter 661. Kalima, et al. v. State of Hawaii, et al., 
Civil No. 99-4771-12VSM (First Circuit Court) (Kalima I). Five other claimants filed similar 
individual claims actions for themselves on or before December 31, 1999. Aguiar v. State of 
Hawaii, et al., Civil No. 99-612 (Third Circuit Court); Silva v. State ofHawaii, et al., Civil 
No. 99-4775-12 (First Circuit Court); Wilhelm v. State ofHawaii, et al., Civil No. 99-4774-12 
(First Circuit Court); Williamson v. State ofHawaii, et al., Civil No. 99-4773-12 (First Circuit 
Court); Hanohano v. State ofHawaii, et al., Civil No. 99-4775-12 (First Circuit Court). The 
Plaintiffs in these other actions have stipulated to stay all proceedings in their actions pending 
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the resolution of all questions of law in Kalima I that are common to the questions of law 
presented in their suits. Plaintiff Hanohano has since stipulated to the dismissal of her action 
without prejudice. 

On March 30, 2000, the three named-plaintiffs in Kalima I filed a second class action lawsuit 
in the First Circuit Court for declaratoxy and injunctive relief, and for damages under HRS 
Chapter 673, for the Panel's and the State Legislature's alleged failure to remedy their breach 
of trust claims under HRS Chapter 674. Kalima, et al. v. State of Hawaii, et al., 
Civil No. 00-1-1041-03 (First Circuit Court) (Kalima ll). All proceedings in this action were 
stayed by stipulation, pending the resolution of those questions of law in Kalima I that are 
common to both Kalima I and Kalima IL 

On August 30, 2000, the First Circuit Court entered an order in Kalima I granting Plaintiffs' 
motion for summary judgment and declaratory relief as to Count I of the Complaint, and 
denying Defendants' motion for judgment on the pleadings. Essentially, the First Circuit Court 
rejected Defendants' sovereign inununity, lack of subject matter jurisdiction, and no-cause of 
action defenses, and ruled that the Plaintiffs and those similarly situated to them (by an order 
filed on August 29, 2000, a class was so certified for pmposes of Count I) could pursue their 
claims for damages and other relief under HRS Chapters 674 and 661. 

The First Circuit Court allowed the State to take an interlocutory appeal from the August 30, 
2000 order to the Hawaii Supreme Court, and entered an order staying all proceedings in 
Kalima I pending the Hawaii Supreme Court's disposition of the appeal. By an order entered 
on September 20, 2001; however, that appeal was dismissed by the Hawaii Supreme Court for 
lack ofappellate jurisdiction. Since then, the State has secured a certification offinality for the 
August 30, 2000 order from the court, and filed another notice of appeal of the orders so that 
the questions of law the court decided can be reviewed by the Hawaii Supreme Court prior to 
trial. All briefs have been filed and the parties are awaiting oral argument or a decision from 
the court in this second appeal. All proceedings in Kalima I in the court remain stayed, and no 
trial date has been set in either Kalima I or any of the other individual claims cases. 

At the present time, the State is not able to estimate with any reasonable certainty the 
magnitude of the potential liability related to these individual claims cases. Accordingly, no 
estimate of loss has been made in the accompanying basic fmancial statements. However, an 
ultimate decision against the State could have a material adverse effect on the financial 
position ofthe State. 

98 (Continued) 



STATE OF HAWAII 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2005 

(13) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The State records a liability for risk financing and insurance related losses if it is determined that a loss has 
been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The State retains various risks and insures 
certain excess layers with commercial insurance companies. The excess layers insured with commercial 
insurance companies are consistent with the prior fiscal year. Settled claims have not exceeded the 
coverage provided by commercial insurance companies in any of the past three fiscal years. A summary of 
the State's underwriting risks is as follows: 

A. Property Insurance 

The State has an insurance policy with a variety of insurers in a variety of layers for property 
coverage. The deductible is $250,000 per occurrence. The deduct:t"ble for coverage is 3% of loss 
subject to a $250,000 per occurrence minimum. This policy includes windstorm, earthquake, flood 
damage, tsunami, and volcanic action coverage with a deductible of3% ofloss subject to a $250,000 
minimum. The limit of loss per occurrence is $100,000,000, except for flood and earthquake which 
is $25,000,000. This policy also includes terrorism coverage whose limit of loss per occurrence is 
$50,000,000 with a deductible of$250,000 per occurrence. 

The State also has a crime insurance policy for various types of coverages with a limit of loss of 
$10,000,000 per occurrence with a $500,000 deductible per occurrence. Losses not covered by 
insurance are paid from legislative appropriations ofthe State's General Fund. 

B. General Liability (including Torts) 

Claims under $10,000 are handled by the risk management office of the Department of Accounting 
and General Services. All other claims are handled by the Department of the Attorney General. The 
State has personal injury and property damage liability, including automobile and public errors and 
omissions, insurance policy in force with a $3,000,000 deductible per occurrence. The annual 
aggregate per occurrence is $10,000,000. 

Losses under the deductible amount or over the aggregate limit are paid from legislative 
appropriations of the State's General Fund. 

C. Medical Insurance 

The State's community hospitals included in the HHSC are insured by a comprehensive hospital 
professional liability policy. The policy covers losses from personal injury, professional liability, 
patient property damage, and employee benefits. This policy covers losses up to a limit of 
$20,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate. 

D. Self-Insured Risks 

The State generally self-insures its automobile no-fault and workers' compensation losses. 
Automobile losses are administered by third-party administrators. The State administers its workers' 
compensation losses. 
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E. Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Costs 

A liability for workers' compensation and general liability claims is established if infonnation 
indicates that a loss has been incurred as of June 30, 2005 and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. The liability also includes an estimate for amounts incurred but not reported. 
The amount of the estimated loss is recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets as those 
losses will be liquidated with future expendable resources. The estimated losses will be paid from 
legislative appropriations of the State's General Fund The following table represents changes in the 
amount of the estimated losses and the loss adjustment costs at June 30 (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 

2004 

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment costs at the beginning 
ofthe fiscal year $ 103,500 $ 102,100---~--

Incurred losses and loss adjustment costs: 
Provision for insured events of current fiscal year 11,400 18,800 
Increase (decrease) in provision for insured events 

ofprior fiscal years (1,600) 200 

Total incurred losses and loss adjustment 
costs 9,800 19,000 

Payments: 
Losses and loss adjustment costs attributable to 

insured events ofcurrent fiscal year (2,600) (2,000) 
Losses and loss adjustment costs attributable to 

insured events ofprior fiscal years (21,600) (15,600) 

Total payments (24,200) (17,600) 

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment costs at the 
end of the fiscal year $ 89,100 $ 103,500 

======-
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(14) SPECIAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 

In fiscal 2005, the HHSC received $5,169,021 from the State for construction of the new veterans' long­
tenn care facility. Of this amount, $1,641,894 was expended fur planning and design costs, and is included 
in construction in progress in the statement of net assets. The remaining $3,527,127 was expended to 
demolish an old, existing building on the campus site, and is included as a special item in the statement of 
activities, due to tbe infrequent nature ofsuch expenditures by the HHSC. 

The UH at Manoa campus experienced significant flooding as a result of heavy rains that fell on 
October 30, 2004. Approximately 35 buildings and their contents sustained moderate to severe damage. 
The UH received disaster aid in tbe form of a $22.0 million appropriation from the State Legislature, as 
well as $500,000 in State Civil Defense monies to help in the clean-up, repair, and replacement of 
infrastructure, books, and equipment Clean-up and repair expenditures amounted to approximately 
$20.7 million, or 90.8%, ofthe $22.8 million flood expenditure total. 

For fiscal 2006, an additional $31.0 million was appropriated by the Sate Legislature to the UH fur on­
going flood repairs. 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue souroes that are legally 
restricted for specific purposes. Certain Special Revenue Funds are presented separately in the accompanying 
combining financial statements, with the remainder grouped as a single entity. The Special Revenue Funds are as 
follows: 

llighways - accounts for programs related to maintaining and operating land transportation facilities. 

Natural Resources - accounts for programs related to the conservation, development, and utilization of 
agriculture, aquaculture, water, land, and other natural resources of the State. 

Wastewater - accounts for programs related to the water sanitation ofthe State. 

Health - accounts for programs related to mental health, nutrition services, communicable disease, and for other 
public health services. 

Med-Quest - accounts for the programs related to the health care programs ofthe State. 

Human Services - accounts for social service programs which include public welfare, eligibility and disability 
determination, and housing assistance. 

Education - accounts for programs related to instructional education, school food services, and student driver 
education. 

Economic Development - accounts for programs related to the development and promotion of industry and 
international commerce, energy development and management, economic research and analysis, and the 
utilization ofresources. 

Employment - accounts for programs related to employment and training, disability compensation, placement 
services, and occupational safety and health. 

Regulatory - accounts for programs related to consumer protection, business registration, and cable television 
regulation. 

Hawaiian Programs - accounts for programs related to the betterment ofthe conditions ofnative Hawaiians. 

Administrative Support - accounts for programs ofcertain administrative agencies. 

All Other - accounts for programs related to water recreation, inmate stores, and driver training and education. 

Debt Service Fund 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general 
obligation bonds serviced by the General Fund and general obligation bonds and revenue bonds serviced by the 
Special Revenue Funds. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 301 2005 
(Amounts in thousands· 

- - Niiirai-- SpmdRefflmePucls- ......,...Wwtewatit 
u..... 
Sell'deet -= Geocnlc:x.cixtax 

Trmsimt W'ODllllflderior1 m,......, ...__ I I 
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li!!!!7 
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7~22 
3,331 
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22~57,.... 
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68S,. 

1~9 
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7,457 
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2;187 

az271 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amoun18 in thousands) 

....... v-...--I""......., O\'e" 
Ila.... -1 (I]""') 

lle'Veaelt 
Tws: 

l.lquid fuel ,ax; 
$ 75,342 $ 80,913 $ 5,511 

Vehicle n1gistration fee tax 18,680 20,238 1,558
llml1al =-____... 4,04$S"'° whiclc wdsht WI 26,783 30.828 

38,913 43,9~ 5,037 
llmpJoyment and ummg fund .......... 
Gc:ttetal excise tax 
Tobaooom __,..Ccnveyme$ WI 

-tu 
Transient accommodatic:ms tu 
Tax on pmniums ofinstlrance emipanies 

Tobit.... 159718 175929 1~11 

Non-tws: 
Inmllt and ilMstml!:nt moor:ue 11/)00 9,082 (2,818) 
Charges fur cumnt stmc:a 984 2,151 1,167 
.._..ta) 154,402 135,81$ (18,587) 

3 (3) 
Fmca, fixf.,._ and pm,1ti,s 1,145 1,18S 43 -Licemles and files 1,796 2,162 366 

30 30 --~......Otber 2§.230 28930 

Total NQIM:!ttel 170,230 179J58 9128 

Total- )29948 l55J87 25,339 

bflOdbm~ 
o-nl govonrment 
Public safety 
Highways 214,747 164,233 50,'14 
Co:aservatioll ofnatW1lreSOlll'Ce:S 
Health 
We1f>n 
Lower-cm 
Otber-
CUltuR and recreation 
Uffln""""1-811dllousma 
Ecoo.omic development and asaistaDoe 
Other 

Total El<p<Ddi- 214 747 164,233 50 514 

&,e,, (DcficieD<)') .ra.,,_,. aver E,pendl- ___,_,s_£_,__ s____ ...._s ____1_s~-~--s ,9_1,l)Sl 

See accompanying independent auditors' rq,ort. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) (Cont'd) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

........, 
T""" 

Liquid llu:I tax: 
s s- $ 

V~t,,.,. 2,991 2,991 
SW. vehicle welsllt"' 
Rolllal-,ohicleSWllliarg<... 
Emplo:-mlllld ttainlnsfimd........., 
- """"taxTobooootax 
c.nv.y.ncestax 
Envitttlmental respoue tax 1,800 1,867 61 
Fnncbiaetax 
Transient aecorrn:nod11tiom tu 
Tax 011 pMlliums of-""'l)a1lie, 

Total Taxes 1800 ~858 3.i!:!!l 
Ncm-taxes: 

Iutemltandinvestmentinoome 1,436 2,064 628 
CharBa ft, cumnt- 11,377 56,657 45,280 

95,451 IOS,588 10,137 

F""" fud'ei,- 811d peaaltia 647 1,3()0 6S3 -LiceMes 811d"" 690 813 123 
Revenues fh:m private IKlU'CCS 20,023 38,008 17,985 
Otber 79 2438 ~59 

Total Non-taxes 129 703 206~8 77165 

Total Revenues 131,503 211726 80~ _, 
Geuenlgov­
Publi< safety
Highways
Comervation ofnatuta1 n:souroc1 ISO ISO 
H,alth 230,JISS 194,570 
Wel&o, 
Lower educati<m 
Other­
Culture and recreation 
U!ban ffllevel- 811d bou,mg 
""""""'elev~and_ 
Other 

TOlal E,peadi..., 231 OOS 194 7Z0 36,tlJS 
Excas (Deficimcy) oflbwenues av« E,peadi- s___~_._so_y_s ____,,_~__ s___u_G&....,_ 

See~~-·-

no 
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23~ 
59~ 

400 
(4!13,507) 

23422 

(469,679) 

229,986 
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8S0 

231180 
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16 

763,037 
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34038 

797~ 

162 
16 

533,051 

(213) 

33188 
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529144 S946S (469.!!!l 231180 7!>7d84 S66~ 

575,251 S/!2,670 12.S81 318,703 273Pl6 4S,097 

11,902 10,343 1,SS9 

--~57~5~,2.l=I_ S62 670 ____.12,'=8._I_ 33Q,605 283 949 46.656 

__...,<._46.,.1.071..,_S ---"<S0;.3;:;.2;.0Sl... S (457,098) $ ___.C99..,.A=25l"- S __....;s.13..4._3_,s_s __...,6_1_.2.s.ro.... 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) (Cont'd) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

llffemHI: 
'l'a:e• 

Uquid fuel tax: 
m,hway, 
Booting

Vehicle regutration fee tu 
State vehicle weight tax 
Rental moklr/tour vehicle surclur:rge m 
Emp!oymmODd lraiDmgfulld"""""""
Gtileral.excisctax 
Tobaccotmt __...Collveyaoccstu _,.. 
Transient accommodatioDS tu 
Tax m pmniums of-"""'P'W" 

TOlal Taxe, 

Non-taxes: 
_ODd-.,.-.,. 
c::huges fcJ: cummt se;n,jce:s 
~ 

Fmea, filrfeiluml,ODdpenaltle, 
Licemt:Sand&es 
Revmmes Bun priwte 1110WCe$ 
-
00,, 

TotalN~ 
T01alRevoDues 

it.....-,.., 

Publio,alllty -­llighway,
Conservation ofnatural~ 
lloalth 
Welilm: 
Lower education 
Other education 
Culture and reerea1ion 
Ulbanredevel-ODdhousmg 
-
00,, 

d...i,pmentandaasi-.:e 

TOlalE,q,ondmu,, 
E=sa (l)eficieDCY) ofRm:nues """Expeodi..,. 

See accamp,nying"'1q,m,dmtauditon' -

Edautloa 

Badget 

$ s $ 

478 
22,374 

147,()23 
36 

588 
SIS 

1110 

172,124 

172124 

S2S 
31,400 

227/116 
36 

727 
114 

7769 

2/J7,M,7 

2671547 

47 
9,0U 

80,053 

139 
(401) 
~9 

95~23 

95~23 

444,460 

s.sss 
270,026 

3,870 

174,434 

2,015 

s 
450,345 

C27&.22l) 
273 896 176449 

$ __....,16.249!;;;'-"- S ___2;,:7,11,l972"1.-
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Emloak Dnelopla.t Emolo,aenl....... V-­ ....... Vutanice:-
(l.ladpOary Over (B......., Over 

Buis) (U•der) Blldpt -) (Under) 

$ $ $ s s 

800 947 147 

?3,812 ?tl,334 2,S22 

?3812 ~34 800 947 147~ 

1,37? 1,!>SI 572 !170 1,025 55 
S~?:! 

3(),353 
4,830 

16,089 
(1,002) 

(14,264) 
20,000 
57,317 

15,311 
43,537 

(4.68?) 
(13,780) 

13,363 8,635 (4,728) 
70 588 SIS 

6,120 ?734 3 614 6 I 004 9?8 

57107 41~? (1$~ 78~ 61~ (1618!!) 

ISO 919 137 S73 (13,3'§) 79163 62,412 (16,751) 

1,100 39 1,()61 2,121 l,?34 187 

174,562 141,481 33,081 111,883 62,798 49,085 

175 662 141 S20 34 142 111:z004 64 732 49_272 
s ___%,a7_43")_s ___~(3~?4.n... s 20796 $ ----%'-'84'-'l)_ S (2.320) $ ____3H3aa;._l_ 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) (Cont'd) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Tax.es: -
~tax: s $ 

Baatiria 
Vdlklt,qpmticoll,,tax 
s...-.weight .. 
R-i--...iwsc... 
Empl-lllldtninlllgfilnd&SSeSSIIIODI 
General excise: 1mt 
r ......... __...Conveyaoces tax 

2.000 2,000 - ... 
Tax m prmnim:m ofinuance oompauiea 1100 1745 64S 

Total Taxes 3100 3745 64S 

Non.ta.ea: 
JnteJestand~incoo1e 1,034 1.034 
Cbarscsfilroum,ot­ 14,536 IS.182 646 
-1'11 

--... 

Fino$, flnf- mu! peaal... 636 674 38 
1,217-Liceme, mu! fees 8,672 9,889 

RflYellUeS ftom private aoun:ea 
0th,, 2,827 ~13 Q14) 

Total Non-taxta 26,671 29~92 2,621 

Total Revenues 29nl 33037 3,1§6 .,.,._.._ 
Public safety 42,280 31,719 10,561 -­lllghway, 
COiDservatic:m ofDltUral t'C90atffl' 

Welfilre -I..owo:teducatioo 
Otber-
Culture and JtlCl'eatioD 
llrball--lllldbous!Dg
EcOD(IDlC development and 8$Si$tatQ 
0th,, 

TOia! Ellpeodi- 42,280 31 m 10 soi 
E><ffl (l)ellcl,ncy) ofltov"""' over Ellpeoditures s__~1~12,~~~n-s ___9~t~8-$--~13*~~..... 

See IICCOlllpaYUl8 independ,nt auditms' MpOfl. 
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A<tud V-­

(Badgmry Onr 
Bpi (I)-) ll1lllgd 

$ $ $ $ s 

1,350 5,805 4,455 
11)47 1,177 130 

840 
I 

3,581 
6,7Sl! 

3~ 

1,1)15 235 
I 

7,144 3,563 
3,610 (3,178) 

4400 1160 

2J97 

1,194 
28,460 
30,950 

8,095 
301 

10,708 
350 

13 828 

6.982 

1,387 
69,536 
24,192 
6,343 

191 
11,252 

350 
57~442 

4.5ll5 

193 
41,1)76 
(6,758) 
(1,752) 

(104) 
544 

560614 

14450 I~ I 780 931!86 687.§'12. 593813 

1~450 I~ 1780 96.1.IB 6941!!1 598,'.!98 

399,241 
21,314 

373,881 
9,934 

25,360 
11,;!80 

315 
70 

14,837 
5,548 

25 
23 

9,980 
5,548 

350 
47 

4,857 

23,128 12,117 11,011 
12,302 

48 
~859 

10,316 

46 
24564/l 

1,986 

2 
20~14 

s 
23128 

!!¥67!2 I 
1~17 
4113 s 

11,Qll 

13i791 s 
719J94 

(623.3112 s 
6SS~98 

39al s 
64196 

662.594 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule ofRevenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) (Cont'd) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 301 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

All Otha: 
v......-

Owr 
Budpt (Under) 

Ta=: -Liquid lud tax; 
mghwoy, s s 
11..,;,,g 1,300 1,577 m 

Vebicle~fi,e"" _____... 
- I 

Slato vebicl8 weigbt tu 

&,ploymentand~-­
Genemlml,em 
Tobacco"" o.w.,,..... ... 
BllviNllmxmtal. mpcme tax -Tnmsient arc«rrmodarions... tax 
Tax. on premiums ofinsnrance campanits 

TOl81 l'lllles 1300 1,577 'J:77 

Nm-taxes: 
Interest and~ DlCQPle 286 307 21 
Charges for cmrent scrvim 12,400 15,731 3,331 

27.477 32,048 4,571 
RCDtals 1,115 1,196 81 
Fillos, fhrfel,- and penalties 2,425 2,06$ 00)) 
U-and fees 395 430 35 

-"" 
Roveau0$tiunprmm,SOUJQCt 
Othe,- 6~34 7.239 905 

Total Noo-taxcs 5-0 432 59016 8~ 

Total~& SI 732 !!Q293 8861 

~ 
10,258 8,084 2,174 

Geneml -·Publico,f«y 65,962 36,702 29,260 
lllghways 
Conse:t'Y1l1icoofnatnral~ 

800 800 w,_ 55-0 312 238 -Lower-
Otber-
Cul... and ""'"'1ion 15,908 9,519 6,389 
tllB1'dovelopmenlandbowling

--""'­Othe,-

93478 55417 38061 

s ,41l~ $ 5 176 I 461222 
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Total- V--
(llodseOlry °"' Ba.... -i (l!Jm) 

s 75,562 
1,300 

18,680 

s 81,156 
1,577 

23,229 

$ S,594 
m 

4,549 
26,783 
38,913 

800 

30,828 
43,950 

947 

4,045 
S,037 

147 
1,350 
1,047 

5,805 
1,177 

4,455 
130 

2,686 6,080 3,394 
1,800 1,867 67 
2,000 

03,812 
2,000 

97,334 3,S22 
1100 1745 645 

mJ!l3 "91695 31862 

28,203 28,311 108 
133,975 229,456 95,481 

1,337,144 1,415,207 78,063 
31,470 

S,25S 
22,880 
6,166 

(8,500) 
911 

23,880 26,1)89 2,209 
20,889 
47031 

38,561 
71~ 

17fi/2 
669,l!!l3 

t,627&,7 ~~ 855~7 

118931680 2,100~9 117J19 

412,784 384,984 27,800 
136,582 81,723 S4,8S9 
214,747 164,233 50,514 
SS,SIS 38,873 19,642 

327,411 204,117 123,300 
909,341 846,568 62,773 
450,008 

11,902 
275,574 

10,343 
174,434 

1,559 
40,282 
23,128 

28,753 
12,117 

11,5"9 
11,011 

288,156 
265 859 

205,499 
24564S 

82,657 
20Jl4 

l,ll!!,721 2498429 ~92 
$ P.34510412 s 282470 $ 1.527,11 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Reconciliation of the Budgetary to GAAP Basis 

June 30, 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures - actual (budgetary basis) $ 282,470 

Reserve for encumbrances at year-end* 232,992 
Expenditures for liquidation ofprior fiscal year encumbrance (251,092) 
Expenditures for unbudgeted programs, principally expenditures for capital projeci 

accounts and revolving funru (59,548) 
Transrers 100,291 
Accrued liabilitie! (198,931) 
Accrued revenue! 175,143 

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures - GAAP basis s =-=--2s_1.,,J,._2s... 

• Amount reflects tbe encumbrance balances (included in continuing appropriations) for budgeted 
programs only. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Fiduciary Funds 
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets -Agency Funds 

June 30 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Tax 

Collections 

A11en9: Funds 

Custodial Other 

Total 
Agency 
Funds 

Cash and short-term investments $ 2461 $ 106,904 $ 38598 $ 147,963 

Receivables: 
Taxes 
Accrued interest 296 

8,400 
104 

8,400 
400 

Total Receivables 296 8,504 8800 

Investments: 
Repurchase agreements 
U.S. government securities 

Total Investments 

2,876 

2876 

988 
11 

999 

3,864 
11 

3 875 

Total Assets $ 2,461 $ 110,076 $ 48101 $ 160,638 

lJABILITIES 
Vouchers payable 
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 

Total Liabilities 

$ 

$ 

48 
2413 

2461 

$ 

$ 

965 
109,111 

110,076 

$ 

$ 

394 
47707 

48,101 

$ 

$ 

1,407 
159,231 

160,638 

See accompanying independeot auditors' ieport. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Fiduciary Funds 
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 301 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Balance, Balance, 
Ju!z 11 2004 Additions Deductions June 301 2005 

Tax Collections: 
Assets: 

Cash and short-lean investments $ 8,984 $ 5,131,617 $ (5,138,140) $ 2,461 

Total Assets $ 8,984 $ 5,131,617 $ ~5,138,140! $ 2,461 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers payable $ 7,978 $ 48 $ (7,978) $ 48 
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties I 006 5,131,617 {5,130,210) 2,413 

Total Liabilities $ 8,984 $ 5,131,665 $ ,5,1381188! $ 2,461 

Custodial: 
Assets: 

Cash and short-lean investments $ 134,514 $ 2,942,763 $ (2,970,373) $ 106,904 
Receivables 296 296 
Investments 2,876 2876 

Total Assets $ 134,514 $ 219451935 $ ,219701373) $ 110,016 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers payable $ 222 $ 965 $ (222) $ 965 
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 134,292 2,943,059 {2,968,240) 109,111 

Total Liabilities $ 134 514 $ 219441024 $ ,21968,462! $ 1101076 

Other: 
Assets: 

Cash and short-term investments $ 34,836 $ 23,156 $ (19,394) $ 38,598 
Receivables 7,600 8,504 (7,600) 8,504 
Investments 90 999 (90) 999 

Total Assets $ 42,526 $ 32,659 $ '27,084) $ 48101 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers payable 
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 

$ 97 
42429 

$ 394 
24,060 

$ (97) 
(18,782) 

$ 394 
47707 

Total Liabilities $ 421526 $ 244S4 $ (18,879) $ 48 101 

Total-All Agency Funds: 
Assets: 

Cash and short-lean investments 
Receivables 

$ 178,334 
7,600 

$ 8,097,536 
8,800 

$ (8,127,907) 
(7,600) 

$ 147,963 
8,800 

Investments 90 3 875 (90) 3 875 

Total Assets $ 186,024 $ 8,110,211 $ ~ 113S,59:!2 $ 160,638 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers payable $ 8,297 $ 1,407 $ (8,297) $ 1,407 
Due to individuals, businesses, and counties 177 727 81098,736 {8,117,232) 159,231 

Total Liabilities $ 186,024 $ s1100,143 $ (8,125,529) $ 1601638 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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PARTIII: STATISTICAL SECTION 



STATE OF HAWAil 

Schedule of Government-Wide Revenues 

Last Three Fiscal Years 
(Am01mts in thousands; 

F'lscal Year Ended 
Jane 30. 

2005 
2004 
2003 

PROGJIAMIIEVENUES 
Clwga fur Operating Capital 

Cnrnnt Granbond G...,.1ad 
Contrlbatloas - Contribudom 

$ 839,832 $ 1,667,492 $ 178,231 
766,453 1,687,923 64,254 
729,516 1,586,719 97,543 

$ 

GENERAL REVENUES 
tneeracaad 

Tues -
4,321,167 S -92,020 S 
3,745,883 66,662 
3,441,398 94,419 

Other 

(3,144) 
(9,658) 
9,760 

S 

Total 
1,095,598 
6,321,517 
5,959,355 

See accompanying indepeodent audi""'' report. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Government-Wide Expenses by Function 

Last Three Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in thousands) 

General government 
Public safety 
Highways 
Conservation ofnatural resource! 
Health 
Welfare 
Lower education 
Higher educatior 
Other education 
Culture and recreation 
Urban redevelopment and housini 
Economic development and assistanc 
Interest expensE 
Airports 
Harbors 
Unemployment compensatiOJ 
Nonmajor proprietary fund 

Total 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

2005 

$ 494,174 $ 
248,685 
282,339 
79,545 

561,155 
1,615,721 
1,758,596 

559,379 
19,667 
72,920 
53,077 

214,842 
169,738 
273,949 

64,568 
112,329 

21883 

$ 6,583,567 $ 

2004 2003 

427,820 
239,932 
413,215 

69,693 
520,433 

1,547,732 
1,795,482 

480,296 
23,092 
64,052 
59,394 

214,206 
179,357 
273,546 

54,432 
176,135 

2496 

6,541,313 

$ 

$ 

475,517 
252,741 
439,923 
48,918 

515,492 
1,418,224 
1,660,595 

537,709 
38,161 
71,738 
42,713 

231,605 
200,864 
291,871 
61,448 

204,344 
789 

6,492,652 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Revenues by Source -
All Governmental Fund Types 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in millions) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended Janel~ 
l!!!.!!m 2005 2004 ..l!!!L 2002 1001 _.!J!!!Lm i!J!Jil Im 1996 

Tues: 
General excise $ 2,146 s 1,900 $ 1,780 $ 1,651 s 1,642 s 1,542 s 1,448 $ 1,417 s 1,430 $ 1,426 
Income 1,485 1,254 1,051 1,082 1,187 1,132 1,110 1,128 1,()23 l,o«i 
lnherillmce and- 13 10 16 17 18 23 29 20 22 17 
Liquor
Public service oompanjes 
Tobacco 

44 
109 

8S 

41 
100 
79 

41 
114 
72 

39 
93 
65 

38 
135 
55 

39 
119 
42 

39 
121 
42 

39 
120 
36 

38 
114 
36 

38 
104 
40 

lnsarance companies• 
pmniums 85 79 74 69 72 69 53 87 75 8S 

Franchise 37 l 23 5 7 10 16 13 16 
Tnmsient accommodatiOIIS 111 102 92 87 108 93 55 26 26 24 
Llquidll!el 83 81 77 75 74 71 70 70 71 71 
M-vehicle 98 88 85 78 81 75 39 38 37 37 
Hospital and nursing 

fi>cllity(l) 
Other __2_1_ __1_8_ __1_3_ __1_3_ __13_ __1_4_ 34 

3 
__32_ 

12 
_Ji. 

10 
__33_ 

Total Taxes 4,317 3,753 3,438 3,274 3,423 3,226 3,050 3,032 2,931 2,947 

Non-tues: 
-andio.-

income 58 42 61 71 150 69 91 89 82 92 
Charges forcummt 

services 299 229 215 165 236 240 220 233 207 204 
In...-govemmental 
Rentals 

1,575 
29 

1$8 
31 

1,362 
28 

1,258 
31 

1,120 
29 

1,070 
23 

1,091 
22 

1,080 
24 

1,170 
22 

1,128 
29 

F~forfeitures, 
and peoaltios 

Licecses and r-
27 
21 

30 
26 

24 
27 

24 
24 

23 
23 

25 
22 

23 
20 

23 
19 

21 
16 

18 
16 

Other _ill.. _ill_ _,ill_ _,lli_ -1.iL _fil.. 134 -2!!.. _!.!L _ill.,_ 
Total Revenues-AD 

aovermn-1 
Fund Types s~ $ ~ $ ~ $ ~ $ ~ $ ~ $ 4651 $~$~$~ 

(1) Effective July I, 1993, the hospital and nursing facility tax levied was authorized by Act 31 S, SLII of 1993. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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STATE OF HAWAll 

Schedule of Expenditures by Function -
All Governmental Fund Types 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in millions) 

For the Plscol Year Ended Ju•• 3~ 
!!'.!mSll!!a 2005 2004 21lii! 2002 'loot ~m 1!198 Im 19!16 

General government $ 508 $ 451 $ 429 474 $ 483 $ 442 $ 489 s 413 $ 404 $ 404 
Public safety 291 265 257 240 201 203 199 185 165 164 
Highways 302 223 255 236 131 115 111 111 115 94 
Conservation ofnatunll 

74 65 66 51 51 41 45 37 36 33 
Health 565 519 513 500 431 399 386 329 311 279 -Welfare 1,615 1,545 1,418 1,334 1,243 1,226 1,222 1,210 1,278 1,236 
Education 2;377 2,262 2,321 2,134 1,050 1,035 1,007 949 888 891 
Cu1tun, and """"'1iou 74 67 71 68 51 56 52 52 55 57 
Uman redevelopmeut 

and housing 53 55 17 12 10 11 15 21 26 
Economic development and 

assislauce 214 215 231 267 192 166 155 163 176 
Social security and pension 

contributions 91 85 159 222 226 222 
Iutmgovemmental 3 3 
Debt service 322 302 394 363 402 384 390 406 426 416 
Capital outlay 335 376 376 373 611 488 
Other __5_ __3_ __13_ __9_ __28_ 28 20 __16_ 

Total Expenditures­
All Oovemmenta1 
FuudTypes $ 6,400 SJi2E..S~$~S..!i!2l,S~$~$~$ 4,722 $ 4,505 

See accompanying iudependent audi-• report. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Ratio of Net General Obligation 
Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in thousands except ratio data) 

General 
Obligation Less Debt Net General 
Bonded Service Monies Obligation 

Fiscal Year PoJ.!ulation!l; Deb!!2M3) Avallable(2) Bonded Debt 

2005 1,278 $ 4,256,633 $ 184 $ 4,256,449 $ 
2004 1,263 3,954,192 72 3,954,120 
2003 1,249 3,634,738 148 3,634,590 
2002 1,241 3,568,001 79 3,567,922 
2001 1,225 3,225,635 110 3,225,525 
2000 1,212 3,278,479 258 3,278,221 
1999 1,210 3,166,880 223 3,166,657 
1998 1,215 3,363,517 338 3,363,179 
1997 1,212 3,075,862 435 3,075,427 
1996 1,204 2,841,069 240 2,840,829 

(1) Source: Hawaii State Department ofBusiness, Economic Development and Tourism. 
(2) Source: Hawaii State Department ofAccounting and General Services, Accounting Divisio: 
(3) Excludes Enterprise Funds and Component Unit - UH general obligation bond 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Net General 
Obligation 

Bonded Debt 
PerCaJ.!lta 

3,331 
3,128 
2,910 
2,884 
2,629 
2,705 
2,670 
2,824 
2,580 
2,399 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Ratio of Annual Debt Service 
for General Obligation Bonded Debt to 
Total General Expenditures 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in thousands except ratio data) 

Interest 
Fiscal Year Prlncil!al and Fees 

2005 $ 128,378 $ 193,570 
2004 139,227 162,288 
2003 242,378 151,945 
2002 233,117 129,483 
2001 210,518 190,993 
2000 193,075 190,497 
1999 202,836 186,762 
1998 231,756 174,577 
1997 268,683 156,890 
1996 260,156 155,888 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Total Debt 
Service 

$ 321,948 
301,515 
394,323 
362,600 
401,511 
383,572 
389,598 
406,333 
425,573 
416,044 

Ratio or 
Total Debt Service 

General to General 
E!J.!enditures Exl!enditures 

$ 6,399,696 5.03% 
5,972,173 5.05 
5,971,576 6.60 
5,684,875 6.38 
4,703,420 8.54 
4,572,956 8.39 
4,641,159 8.39 
4,485,334 9.06 
4,721,851 9.01 
4,504,746 9.24 
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STATE OF HAWAIJ 
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage* 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Amounts in thousands except coverage data) 

Alrporu 
Net Revenue 

Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements 
Fiscal Year Reveu•es!ll E!J!!nses(l) Debt Service l"rlnc12a1m 1n1erest{4l Total Coversee(Sl 

2005 
2004 

$ 245,464 
234.287 

s 150,332 
151,717 

$ 95,132 
82,570 

$ 25,250 
22,365 

$ 21,516 
18,814 

$ 46,766 
41,179 

203% 
201 

2003 265,714 95,132 98,603 19,550 15,536 35,086 281 
2002 218,359 141,409 76,950 27,185 6,275 33,460 230 
2001 334,511 123,973 210,538 48,810 48,020 96,830 217 
2000 
1999 

332,264 
285,353 

135,125 
127,136 

197,139 
158,217 

52,120 
41,705 

53,()46 
35,349 

105,166 
77,054 

187 
205 

1998 294,078 125,007 169,071 37,100 39,416 76,516 221 
1997 317,943 126,612 191,331 37,595 59,440 97,035 197 
1996 314,647 120,632 194,01S 42,578 S9,24S 101,823 191 

Harbors 
Debt Service 

Gross Operadng 
Net Revenue 
Available for 

Requirements 
Doring the 

Additional 
Debt Service 

Fiscal Year Reven•~ E:,penses!7l Debt Service Flscal Year Regulremeuts Total Covenee(8l 
200S $ 79,319 $ 36,0S3 $ 43,266 $ 19,224 $ s 19,224 225% 
2004 78,433 26,809 51,624 21,317 21,317 242 
2003 77,571 35,214 42,357 19,652 19,652 216 
2002 70,873 20,992 49,881 20,093 20,093 248 
2001 
2000 

75,353 
68,931 

26,525 
21,917 

48,828 
47,014 

30,590 
31,347 

30,590 
31,347 

160 
ISO 

1999 64,729 22,891 41,838 30,152 30,152 139 
1998 65,659 24,348 41,311 16,815 16,815 246 
1997 55,496 20,824 34,672 16,444 16,444 211 
1996 52,791 20,568 32,223 15,686 15,686 205 

(I) Tomi operating revenues plus interest income and fedeml opetating grants, exclusiw of in-earned on investment in financing leases. 
(2) Tomi operating expenses other than depreciation less (plus) excess ofactual disbunemeuts over (under) n,quired rese,ve fur majo 

msintcoanoe, renewal, and replacemeut plus ll1IIOWlt1 requiml to be paid into tho General Fund for general obligation bood requirement 
(3) On Jaouary S, 2005, Aiiports disbw:sed $69,300 from the Airport Revenue Fund to die paying agent to redeem tho outstanding bo!IIIICI 

ofdie Aiiports System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series of2003 in its entirecy 
(4) For fiscal 2005, Aiiports deposited $20,000 ofavailable funds into tho Airport Rewnue Fund for credit to die interest acco1l!ll in di 

current year to reduee tho amount n,quiml punuant to tho provisioos of Section 6.01 to be paid or credited during fiscal 2005 b 
tho interest account as requiml in tho "Certificate of the Director ofTransportation Providing fur the Issuance ofState ofHawai 
Ailpons System Reveoue Bonds: 

(5) Airports reveoue bood indenluml require a minimum debt service coverage pereentage of 12So/, 
(6) Tomi operating Bnd nonopetating revenues exclusive of interest income on in-in finaocing leases and special facilit 

conatroction fund and revenue fund investments 
(7) Total operating expenses od!er than depreciation less State ofHawaii surclwge for central service expenae! 
(8) Harbon revenue bood indenturos require a minimum debt service coverage percentage of 125o/. 

Source: 
Airports: Audited Financial Statements aod Schedules ofdie State ofHawaii Depariment ofTransportation, Airports Divisio, 
Harbon: Audited Finaocial Statements and Schedules ofd!e State ofHawaii Department ofTnmsportation, Harbors Divisim 

• lnfurmation fur die revenue bonds issued by die Component Units- UH and Entetprise Funds is not available. 

See accompaoying independent auditors' report. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Legal Debt Margin 

June30 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Average General Fund revenues of the three preceding fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2003, 2004, and 2005 $ 4,043,868 

Constitutional debt limit percentage 18.50% 

Constitutional debt limit for total principal and interest payable in a 
current or future year 748,116 

Less total principal and interest payable on outstanding general 
obligation bonds in highest debt service year (fiscal year endin 
June 30, 2009) (516,641) 

Legal debt margin $ =-2...3..,1,4..,7=5= 

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VII, Section 13 of the State Constitution. 

See accompanying independent auditors' reporl 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance -
Statutory (Cash) Basis to GAAP Basis - General Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 301 2005 
(Amounts in thousands) 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Excess ofRevenues over Expenditures 

Other Changes in Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance: 
Add continuing appropriations, July l, 200<l 
Deduct continuing appropriations, June 30, 200~ 

Excess ofRevenues over Expenditures and Other Changes in 
Unreserved- Undesignated Fund Balano 

Unrese,ved- Undesignated Fund Balance. July 1, 2004, 
on a statutory (cash) basl! 

Unrese,ved- Undesignated Fund Balance, June 30, 2005, 
on a statutory (cash) basi, 

Adjustments from statutory (cash) basis to GAAP basis: 
Accrued revenuei 
Accrued expenditure! 
Tax refund liability 

Unrese,ved- Undesignated Fund Balance, June 30, 2005, 
on a GAAP basis 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

$ 4,486,359 

4,1621689 

323,670 

219,830 
241,698 

{211868} 

301,802 

184,582 

486,384 

384,100 
(99,415) 
!561000} 

$ 715,069 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Demographic Statistics 

Last Ten Years 
(Population amounts expressed in thousands) 

Per Capita School Unemployment 
Year Population(l) Income(2) Enrollment(3) Rate(4) 

2005 1,278 $ NA NA 2.78% 
2004 1,263 NA 183,185 3.40 
2003 1,249 30,589 183,609 3.90 
2002 1,241 29,628 183,829 4.40 
2001 1,225 28,603 184,546 4.40 
2000 1,212 28,417 NA 4.50 
1999 1,210 26,973 185,860 5.60 
1998 1,215 26,132 188,069 6.20 
1997 1,212 25,587 189,887 6.40 
1996 1,204 25,024 186,581 6.40 

(1) Source: Hawaii State Department ofBusiness, Economic Development and Tourism. 
(2) Source: U.S. Department ofCommerce, Bureau ofEconomic Analysis printouts. 
(3) Source: Hawaii State Department ofEducation records. Data represents September enrollment 

for public schools. 
(4) Source: Hawaii State Department ofLabor and Industrial Relations records. 2005 is based on data 

for the first nine months. 

NIA Not available for 2005, 2004, and 2000. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Bank Deposits 

Last Ten Calendar Years 
(Amounts in millions) 

Bank 
Calendar Year Deposits 

2005 NA 
2004 $ 18,568 
2003 17,442 
2002 16,708 
2001 15,763 
2000 16,741 
1999 16,107 
1998 16,038 
1997 14,541 
1996 14,033 

Source: Hawaii State Department ofCommerce and Consumer Affairs. Data represents deposits in state 
chartered banks. 

NIA Not available for the calendar year 2005. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
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STATE OF HAWAII 

Schedule of Ten Largest Private Employers 

June30 2005 

Company 
Aloha Airgroup, Inc. 
Banc West Corporation 
Hawaii Pacific Health 
Hawaiian Airlines, Inc. 
Hawaiian Electric Industries, Inc. 
Kaiser Permanente Medical Care Program 
Kyo-ya Company, Ltd. 
Marriott International 
McDonald's Restaurants ofHawaii 
The Queen's Health System 
Starwood Hotels and Resorts Hawaii 

Listed alphabetically. 

Source: Hawaii Business, August 2005. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

Industry 

Air transportation 
Financial services 
Health care services 
Air transportation 
Energy and financial services 
Health care services 
Hotel, food, retail sales, and insurance 
Hotels and resorts 
Quick-service restaurants 
Health care services 
Hotels and resorts 
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STATEOFHAWAIJ 

Schedule ofMiscellaneous Statistics 

June30 2005 

Date of statehood 
Form ofgovemme1r 
Number ofstate employees**' 
Area in square miles*' 

Miles ofstreets and highways*** 

Recreation and cuJtnre: 
Number ofparks and historic sites**' 
Total acreage••• 
Number of libraries**' 

Public safety: 
Number offire personnel**' 
Number ofpolice personnel**' 

Sewage (millions of gallons)*** 

Water system: 
Number of services**' 
Consumption (millions ofgallons)** 

Education: 
Number ofpublic schools' 
Number of teachers**' 

Hospitals: 
Number of hospitals**' 
Number of beds**' 

Represents 2004 data 
Represents 2000 data 
Represents 1995 data 

1959 
Legislative-Executive-Judicia 

71,500 
6,423 

4,316 

69 
27,116 

51 

1,896 
3,442 

50,969 

254,036 
78,345 

246 
11,010 

68 
7,685 

Source: Internet (2005) revised as ofAugust 31, 2005, except for public safety personnel and 
number ofpublic schools. Public safety personnel reflects data from the counties 
comprehensive annual financial reports, and number ofpublic schools reflects data from 
Hawaii State Department ofEducation records 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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APPENDIXC 

EXTRACT FROM THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF HAWAIi 

ARTICLE VII 

TAXATION AND FINANCE 

LAPSING OF APPROPRIATIONS 

Section 11. All appropriations for which the source is general obligation bond funds or general funds shall 
be for specified periods. No such appropriation shall be made for a period exceeding three years; provided that 
appropriations from the state educational facilities improvement special fund may be made for periods exceeding 
three years to allow for construction or acquisition of public school facilities. .Any such appropriation or aoy portion 
of aoy such appropriation that is unencumbered at the close of the fiscal period for which the appropriation is made 
shall lapse; provided that no appropriation for which the source is general obligation bond funds nor aoy portion of 
any such appropriation shall lapse if the legislature determines that the appropriation or any portion of the 
appropriation is necessary to qualify for federal aid financing and reimbursement. Where general obligation bonds 
have been authori7.ed for an appropriation, the amount of the bond authorization shall be reduced in ao amount equal 
to the amount lapsed. 

DEFINITIONS; ISSUANCE OF INDEBTEDNESS 

Section 12. For the puiposes of this article: 

1. The term "bonds" shall include bonds, notes aod other instruments of indebtedness. 

2. The term "general obligation bonds" means all bonds for the payment of the principal and interest 
of which the full faith and credit of the State or a political subdivision are pledged and, unless otherwise indicated, 
includes reimbursable general obligation bonds. 

3. The term "net revenues" or "net user tax receipts" means the revenues or receipts derived from: 

a. A public undertaking, improvement or system remaining after the costs of operation, 
maintenance and repair of the public undertaking, improvement or system, and the required payments of the 
principal of and interest on all revenue bonds issued therefor, have been made; or 

b. .Any payments or return on security under a loan program or a loan thereunder, after the costs 
of operation and administration of the loan program, and the required payments of the principal of and interest on all 
revenue bonds issued therefor, have been made. 

4. The term "person" means an individual, firm. p811nership, corporation, association, cooperative or 
other legal entity, governmental body or agency, board, bureau or other instrumentality thereof, or aoy combination 
of the foregoing. 

5. The term ''rates, rentals and charges" means all revenues aod other moneys derived from the 
operation or lease of a public undertaking, improvement or system, or derived from any payments or return on 
security under a loan program or a loan thereunder; provided that insurance premium payments, assessments and 
surcharges, shall constitute rates, rentals and charges of a state property insurance program. 

6. The term ''reimbursable general obligation bonds" means general obligation bonds issued for a 
public undertaking, improvement or system from which revenues, or user taxes, or a combination of both, may be 
derived for the payment of the principal and interest as reimbursement to the general fund and for which 
reimbursement is required by law, aod, in the case of general obligation bonds issued by the State for a political 
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subdivision, general obligation bonds for which the payment of the principal and Interest as reimbursement to the 
general fund is required by law to be made from the revenue of the political subdivision. 

7. The llem! "revenue bonds" means all bonds payable from the revenues, or user tmtes, or any 
combination of both, of a public undertaking, improvement, system or loan program and any loan made thereunder 
and secured as may be provided by law, including a loan program to provide Joans to a state property insurance 
program providing hurricane insurance coverage to the general public. 

[Subsections 8 and 9 are omitted.) 

The legislature, by a majority vote of the members to which each house is entitled, shall authoriz.e the 
issuaoce of all general obligation bonds, bonds issued under special improvement statutes and revenue bonds issued 
by or on behalf of the State and shall prescribe by general law the manner and procedure for such issuance. The 
legislature by general law shall authoriz.e political subdivisions to issue general obligation bonds, bonds issued under 
special improvement statutes and revenue bonds and sball prescribe the manner and procedure for such issuance. 
All such bonds issued by or on behalf of a political subdivision shall be authorized by the governing body of such 
political subdivision. 

Special purpose revenue bonds shall only be authoriz.ed or issued to finance facilities of or for, or to loan 
the proceeds of such bonds to assist: 

1. Manufacturing, processing or industrial enteiprises; 

2. Utilities serving the general public; 

3. Health care facilities provided to the general public by not-for-profit corporations; 

4. Early childhood education and care facilities provided to the general public by not-for-profit 
corporations; 

5. Low and moderate lncome government housing programs; or 

6. Not-for-profit private nonsectarian and sectarian elementary schools, secondary schools, colleges 
and universities, 

each of which is hereinafter referred to ln this paragraph as a special purpose entity. 

The legislature, by a two-thirds vote of the members to which each house is entitled, may enact enabling 
legislation for the issuance of special purpose revenue bonds separately for each special purpose entity, and, by a 
two-thirds vote of the members to which each house is entitled and by separate legislative bill, may authorize the 
State to issue special purpose revenue bonds for each single project or multi-project program ofeach special purpose 
entity; provided that the issuance of such special purpose revenue bonds is found to be ln the public interest by the 
legislature; and provided further that the State may combine lnto a single issue of special purpose revenue bonds two 
or more proposed issues of special purpose revenue bonds, separately authorized as aforesaid, ln the total amount of 
not exceeding the aggregate of the proposed separate issues of special purpose revenue bonds. The legislature may 
enact enabling legislation to authorize political subdivisions to issue special purpose revenue bonds. If so 
authorized, a political subdivision by a two-thirds vote of the members to which its governing body is entitled and 
by separate ordinance may authorize the issuance of special purpose revenue bonds for each single project or multi­
project program of each special purpose entity; provided that the issuance of such special purpose revenue bonds is 
found to be in the public interest by the governing body of the political subdivision; and provided further that the 
political subdivision may combine into a single issue of special purpose revenue bonds two or more proposed issues 
of special purpose revenue bonds, separately authorized as aforesaid, in the total amount of not exceeding the 
aggregate of the proposed separate issues of special purpose revenue bonds. No special purpose revenue bonds sball 
be secured directly or Indirectly by the general credit of the issuer or by any revenues or taxes of the issuer other 
than receipts derived from payments by a person under con1ract or from any security for such con1ract or special 
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pmpose revenue bonds and no moneys other than such receipts shall be applied to the payment ~f. The 
governor shall provide the legislature in November of each year with a report on the cumulative amount of all 
special pmpose revenue bonds authorized and issued, and such other information as may be necessary. 

DEBT LIMIT; EXCLUSIONS 

Section 13. General obligation bonds may be issued by the State; provided that such bonds at the time of 
issuance would not cause the total amount of principal and interest payable in the cwrent or any future fiscal year, 
whichever is higher, on such bonds and on all outstanding general obligation bonds to exceed: a sam equal to twenty 
percent of the average of the general fund revenues of the State in the three fiscal years immediately preceding such 
issuance until June 30, 1982; and thereafter, a sum equal to eighteen and one-half percent of the average of the 
general fund revenues of the State in the three fiscal years immediately preceding such issuance, Effective July 1, 
1980, the legislature shall include a declaration of findings in every general law authorizing the issuance of general 
obligation bonds that the total amount of principal and interest, estimated for such bonds and for all bonds 
authorized and unissued and calculated for all bonds issued and outstanding, will not cause the debt limit to be 
exceeded at the time of issuance. Any bonds issued by or on behalf of the State may exceed the debt limit if an 
emergency condition is declared to exist by the governor and concurred to by a two-thirds vote of the members to 
which each house of the legislature is entitled. For the pwpose of this paragraph, general fund revenues of the State 
shall not include moneys received as grants from the federal government and receipts in reimbursement of any 
reimbursable general obligation bonds which are excluded as permitted by this section. 

A sum equal to fifteen percent of the total of the assessed values for tax rate pwposes of real property in 
each political subdivision, as determined by the last tax assessment rolls pursuant to law, is established as the limit 
of the funded debt ofsuch political subdivision that is outstanding and unpaid at any time. 

All general obligation bonds for a term exceeding two years shall be in serial form maturing in substantially 
equal installments of principal, or maturing in substantially equal installments of both principal and interest. The 
first installment of principal of general obligation bonds and of reimbursable general obligation bonds shall mature 
not later than five years from the date of issue of such series. The last installment on general obligation bonds shall 
mature not later than twenty-five years from the date of such issue and the last installment on general obligation 
bonds sold to the federal government, on reimbursable general obligation bonds and on bonds constituting 
instruments of indebtedness under which the State or a political subdivision incurs a contingent liability as a 
guarantor shall mature not later than thirty-five years from the date of such issue. The interest and principal 
payments of general obligation bonds shall be a first charge on the general fund of the State or political subdivision, 
as the case may be. 

In determining the power of the State to issue general obligation bonds or the funded debt of any political 
subdivision under section 12, the following shall be excluded: 

I. Bonds that have matured, or that msture in the then current fiscal year, or that have been 
irrevocably called for redemption and the redemption date has occurred or will occur in the then fiscal year, or for 
the full payment of which moneys or securities have been irrevocably set aside. 

2. Revenue bonds, if the issuer thereof is obligated by law to impose rates, rentals and charges for the 
use and services of the public undertaking, improvement or system or the benefits of a loan program or a loan 
thereunder or to impose a user tax, or to impose a combination of rates, rentals and charges and user tax, as the case 
may be, sufficient to pay the cost of operation, maintenance and repair, if any, of the public undertaking, 
improvement or system or the cost of maintaining a loan program or a loan thereunder and the required payments of 
the principal of and interest on all revenue bonds issued for the public undertaking, improvement or system or loan 
program, and if the issuer is obligated to deposit such revenues or tax or a combination of both into a special fund 
and to apply the same to such payments in the amount necessary therefor. 

3. Special purpose revenue bonds, if the issuer thereof is required by law to contract with a person 
obligating such person to make rental or other payments to the issuer in an amount at least sufficient to make the 
required payment of the principal of and interest on such special pmpose revenue bonds. 
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4. Bonds issued under special improvement statutes when the only security for such bonds is the 
properties benefited or improved or the assessments thereon. 

5. General obligation bonds issued for assessable improvements, but only to the extent that 
reimbursements to the general fund for the principal and interest on such bonds are in fact made from assessment 
collections available therefor. 

6. Reimbursable general obligation bonds issued for a public undertaking, improvement or system 
but only to the extent that reimbursements to the general fund are in fact made from the net revenue, or net user tax 
receipts, or combination of both, as determined for the immediately preceding fiscal year. 

7. Reimborsable general obligation bonds issued by the State for any political subdivision, whether 
issued before or after the effective date of this section, but only for as long as reimbursement by the political 
subdivision to the State for the payment of principal and interest on such bonds is required by law; provided that in 
the case of bonds issued after the effective date of this section, the consent of the governing body of the political 
subdivision has first been obtained; and provided further that during the period that such bonds are excluded by the 
State, the principal amount then outstanding shall be included within the funded debt of such political subdivision. 

8. Bonds constituting instruments of indebtedness under which the State or any political subdivision 
incurs a contingent liability as a guarantor, but only to the extent the principal amount of such bonds does not exceed 
seven percent of the principal amount of outstanding general obligation bonds not otherwise excluded under this 
section; provided that the State or political subdivision shall establish and maintain a reserve in an amount in 
reasonable proportion to the outstanding loans guaranteed by the State or political subdivision as provided by law. 

9. Bonds issued by or on behalf of the State or by any political subdivision to meet appropriations for 
any fiscal period in anticipation of the collection of revenues for such period or to meet casual deficits or failures of 
revenue, if required to be paid within one year, and bonds issued by or on behalf of the State to suppress 
insurrection, to repel invasion, to defend the State in war or to meet emergencies caused by disaster or act of God. 

The total outstanding indebtedness of the State or funded debt of any political subdivision and the 
exclusions therefrom permitted by this section shall be made annually and certified by law or as provided by law. 
For the p111poses of section 12 and this section, amounts received from on-street parking may be considered and 
treated as revenues of a parldng undertaking. 

Nothing in section 12 or in this section shall prevent the refunding of any bond at any time. 

[The remainder of this page left blank] 

C-4 



APPENDIXD 

GENERAL OBUGATION FUNDED DEBT OF THE STATE OF HAWAIi 
as ofFebnuuy I, 2006 

ISSUED AND OIJTSTANDING 

Gcoeral Obligation boJxls and general obligation mfunding baods of the s-ofHawaii 
Issued and OU18tandiog. 

Original Principal and Ra!Oof Outstanding Maturity 0.... Ootstamllng 

Date oflisoe De!Jcription and Amount Doe~ Ptincie1 

$5,125.000, Serles X, callable 4.000% August 1, 2006 @ 300,000.00 
_,4.000% August 1, @ 315,000.00 615,000.00 

Decombor6,l988 $65,000,954.43, Series Bl, ""'""'1lable 7.681'll> =-1. 2006 @ 4,065,206.24 
_,(compound lDoost bonds) 7.681'll> llec,,mber I, @ 4,000,531.65 

7.68l'll> =- l, 2008 @ 4,065,()39.05 12,190,776.94 

$80,005,159.73, Serie, SQ, calJabJo 7.lOO'll> December I, 2006 @ 4,444,323.52 
_,(omain maturities bear .,.,_and 7.lSO'll> ])ece-., 1, @ 4,444,776.00 

in....._ uon-callable) 7,ISO'll> =- 1, 2008 @ 4,444.(12,49 

7,lSO'll> Dec,,mber 1, 2009 @ 4,444,540.00 17,778,072.01 

Mareh l, 1992 $ 100,000,000, Series BW, noncallable 6.300'll> -1. 2006 Ii 5,!ISS,000.00 

6.400'll> Matdtl, _, - 2008 @ S,!ISS,000.00 

6.37S'll> Mlmhl, 2011 @ s,460.cm.oo 
6.2SO'll> M-1, 2012 Ii 5,555,000.00 27,680,000,00 

Oclobct I, 1992 $ 200,000,000 Serles BZ noncallable S.900'll> Oc1obct 1, 2006 @ 12,500,000.00 

6.000% Oclobe, I, '11Xf/-20121i 12,500.000.00 87,500,000.00 

January 1, 1993 $ 90,000,000 Serles CA, noncallablt s.~ January 1, _, - 2008 @ 5,000,000.00 

6.00011> January 1, 2009 @ 5,000,000,00 

5.7SO'll> January 1, 2010- 2011 Ii 5,000,000.00 

S.SOO'll> January 1, 2012 @ S,000,CXIO.OO 

8.000% January 1, 2013 Ill 5,000,000.00 35,000,000.00 

lan1181)' 1, 1993 $ 107,845,000 Series CB, uoncallable S.1SO'll> J'"""l'l, '11Xf/-2008@ 8,295,000.00 16,590,000.00 

(reflmdJng) 

February 1, 1993 $ 334,860,000 Series CC, callable S.12S'll> February 1, 2007-2009@ 23,915,000.00 71,745,000.00 

-g) 

JIily 1, 1993 $21,500,000 Series CG, callable 5.000% JIily I, 2006 1,320,000.00 1,320,000.00 

(ll:funding) 

November I, 1993 $ 2.S0,000,000, Series CH, noncallabJe 6.000% November 1, 2006-2009 Ii 13,890,000.00 

6.00011> Now:mbcr l, 201-0 @ 13,885,000.00 
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Date ofIssue 

Original Principal and 

Description 

l(a,,of-4.7SO'll 

OutstandingMlllU!ityD-

and-Due 

Novemblr 1, 2011 •2013'11 13,885.000.00 

Outstandlns-111.100,000.00 

Novemb!r 1, 1993 $316,915,000, Serie& Cl, noncallable 

(Jd\mdiog) 

4.600% 

4.700'II, 

4,750\I, 

4.900\I, 

Novemb!r 1, 

No-1, 

Novemb!r 1, 

Novembct 1, 

2006 Iii 

2007 (// 

2008-2009@ 

20!0 @ 

21,125,000.00 

21,125,000.00 

21,125,000.00 

21,125,000.00 105,625,000.00 

Man,hl,1996 $ 100,000.000, Serilos CL, callablo 5.100\1, 

6,000\I, 

6.000\I, 

Mao:bl, 

Mao:bl, 

Mao:bl, 

2006 Iii 

2007-2009@ 

2011 II 

5,sss.ooo.oo 

s.sss,000.00 

5.SSS.000.oo 27,775,000.00 

Decelllberl,1996 $ 150,000.000. Serie& CM, ooncallable 6.000\I, 

6.00011> 

6.50011, 

Decombor 1, 

llc<cmbcrl, 

Decomborl, 

2006-2010@ 

2011-2012@ 

2013-201611 

8,335,000.00 

8,3!0.000.00 

8,330,000.00 91,655,000.00 

Mao:bl,1!197 $350,000,000. Series CN, callablo 6.2$1)\1, 

6,2$0\I, 

6,2$0\I, 

6,000\I, 

Mao:bl, 

Man.:b 1, 

March 1, 

Mao:bl, 

2006 

2007 

2008 

200'} 

II 

(// 

(// 

411 

17,410,000.00 

18,500.000.00 

I9,655,000.00 

20,045,000.00 75,610,000.00 

Mardi I, 19'17 $ 231,755,000. Series CO, ooncailable 

(refllodlng) 

6.00011, Man,hl, 2006 

6.00011> .-,. 2006 

6,00011, -·· 2007 

6.000\I, September I, 2007 

6.000\I, March 1, 2008 

6,000\I, September I, 2008 

6.00011, Marcl& 1, 200'} 

6.00011, ~I. 200'} 

6.00011, Muehl, 2010 

6.000\I, Seplember I, 2010 

6.000\I, Marchi, 2011 

Iii 

411 

411 

411 

411 

@ 

@ 

@ 

@ 

@ 

411 

9,830,000.00 

10,125,000.00 

10,425,000.00 

10,740,000.00 

11,060,000.00 

11.395,000.00 

11,735,000.00 

12,000,000.00 

12,450,000.00 

)2,82$,000.00 

13,210,000.00 125,885,000.00 

Octobet ), 19'17 $ 200,000,000. Series CP, callable 5.50011> 

S.50011> 

5,500\I, 

5.50011> 

5.50011, 

5.00011, 

5.00011, 

5,00011, 

5.000\I, 

5,000\I, 

S.000\I, 

5.000\I, 

October 1, 

Octobet 1, 

Octobet I, 

Octobet I, 

Ottober I, 

Ottober I, 

Octobetl, 

Octobet 1, 

Octobet 1, 

Ottober I, 

October 1, 

October 1, 

2006 

2007 

2008 

200'} 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

@ 

Iii 

@ 

II 

Ill 

411 

@ 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

Ii!/ 

Ill 

9,355,000.00 

9,885,000.00 

10.445,000.00 

11,035,000.00 

11,660,000.00 

3,525,000.00 

3,705,000.00 

3,895,000.00 

4,095,000.00 

4,305,000.00 

4,525,000,00 

4,755,000.00 81,185,000.00 

April I, 1998 $300,000,000, Series CR, callable 5.50011, April I, 2006 Ill 14,380,000.00 
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Date of Issue 

Original Prillcipal and 

-· 
Ra1e or- OutslaJlding Mawrity Dallos 

and-Due 

Ouls""1dlng 

Prillcili!l 

5.500% April I, = Iii 15,171),000.00 

5.750l'I, April I, 2008 Iii 7,955,000.00 37,505,000.00 

April I, 1998 $336,620,000. S<nes cs. noncaJJable S.250\I, April I, 2006 Ill 47,89.5,000.00 

(rcfinldlng) 5.000% April I, 'JliXT1 Iii S0,405,000.00 

5.000\I, April I, 2008 @ 52,930,000.00 

5.000\I, April I, 2009 Ill 55,575,000.00 :w6,8(),l,000.00 

SeptemberlS,1999 $ mooo.ooo. Serieo er, caUablo S.SOO\I, September I, 2006 II 12,870,000.00 

S.250l'f, Scplember I, = @ 13.580,000.00 

5.250\I, September I, 2008 II 14,310,000.00 

5.250\I, September I, 2009 II IS,0!!0,000.00 

5.625% Seplomber I, 2012 Iii 5,315,000.00 61,155,000.00 

Ocrober IS. 2000 $150,000,000, S<nes CU, callable 4.625% October I, 2006 @ 6,080,000.00 

S.750l'I, October I, 'JliXT1 Iii 4,500,000.00 

4.700'J> October I, 'JliXT1 Iii 1,895,000.00 

5.750\I, October!, 2008 II 4,565,000.00 

4.750% October I, 2008 Iii 2,190,000.00 

5,750l'f, Oct<>ber I, 2009 @ 6,110,000.00 

4.875111 October 1, 2009 @ l,025,000.00 

S.750\I, October I, 2010 II 6,980,000.00 

4,900'.1, Oct<>ber I, 2010 Ill 575,000.00 

S.750l'f, October I, 2011 II 6,795,000.00 

5.000\I, Oct<>ber I, 2011 @ 825.000.00 

5.750\I, October I, 2012 Ill 5,98!1,000.00 

5.IOOIII October I, 2012 Iii 2,470,000.00 49,995,000.00 

August I, 2001 $300,000,000. S<nes CV, callable S.000\I, August 1, 2006 @ 11,680,000.00 

5.500III Aug,,,tl, 'JliXT1 @ 12,310.000.00 

5.500'1f> August 1, 2008 Ill 13,005,000.00 

5.500III August 1, 2009 @ 13,745,000.00 

5.500\I, August 1, 2010 @ 14,520,000.00 

5.500111 August 1, 2011 Ill 15,340,000.00 

S.315'1f, August I, 2012 Iii 16,200,000.00 

5.375111 Augast 1, 2013 Iii 17,095,000.00 

5.37596 August 1, 2014 @ 18,035,000.00 

4.8()()'1f, August J, 2016 @ 705,000.00 

5.37596 August 1, 2016 Iii 6,860,000.00 

5.125111 August 1, 2017 @ 7,495,000.00 

5.37596 August 1, 2018 @ 22,305,000.00 

4.90096 Augusll, 2019 @ 2,385,000.00 

5.3,S'lf, August 1, 2019 @ 21,145,000.00 

S.OOO'lf> August 1, 2020 II 24,775,000.00 

5.000\I, August I, 2121 @ 5.590,000.00 

S.2SO'lf> AU,ust l, 2121 @ 20,485,000.00 243,673,000.00 
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Original Priucipal .... Rateof Ou~M-ty Dales o.u,a,11lmg ,_l>aleofls$ue l>e8cription &DdAmowrtDuo Principal 

August t. 2001 $156,7S0.000. SericsCW, callahle 3.600'JI, August 1, 2006 @ 11,515,000.00 

(refllnding) 3.600'11, 2007 @ 7,345,000.00""""' '· 3.800'11, All8ual 1, 2007 Ill 4,705,000.00 

5.SOO'i!, August I, 2008 Ill 6,505,000.00 

4.000'II, Aligml 1, 2008 @ 6,110,000.00 

5.sDO'i!, Augvst I, 2009 @ 2,275,000.00 

4'11)()'11, August 1, 2009 @ lQ,990,000.00 

5.500'11, Aligmtl, 2010 Ill 2,420,000.00 

4.200'11, August!, 2010 @ ll.s<,0,000.00 

4.300\t, Aagust 1, 2011 Ill 3,365,000.00 

5.SOO'i!, August t, 2011 Ill 11,370,000.00 

4.41)()'11, A- 1, 2012 Ill 1,045,000.00 

5.375'11, A-II, 2012 @ 14,400,000.00 

4,51)()'11, Au,ust 1, 2013 @ 1,680,000.00 

5.375'11, Aupst t, 2013 @ 14,700,000.00 

4,61)()'11, August 1, 2014 @ 225,000.00 

5.375'11, August 1, 2014 @ 17,050,000.00 

4.71)()'11, August 1, 2015 Ill 720,000.00 

5.375'11, A-ti, 2015 II 12,475,000.00 140,605,000.00 

February 1, 2002 $ :(l(),000,000, Serie, CX, callable 3.600'11, Pebruaiy 1, 2007 @ 10,850,000.00 

3.800'11, Fcbruaiy I, 2008 @ 11,240,000.00 

4.000'11, Fcbruaiy 1, 2009 @ 11,665,000.00 

4.125<,t, Fcbruaiy 1, 2010 @ 6,840,000.00 

5,250\t, Pebruaiy I, 2010 @ 5,290,000.00 

4.2SO'il, Fcbruaiy I, 2011 @ 6,095,000.00 

5.2SO'i1, February I, 2011 l!I 6,595,000.00 

4..31)()'11, February I, 2012 @ 6,135,000.00 

S.250\t, February I, 2012 @ 7,165,000.00 

4.500<,t, Februaiy I, 2013 @ 1,525,000.00 

5,SOO'i!, Pebruaiy I, 2013 Ql> 12,415,000.00 

4.600'JI, February I, 2014 Ill 2,140,000.00 

5.500'11, February 1, 2014 II 140,000.00 

4.625'11, Pebruaiy I, 2015 @ <IB0,000.00 

5.SOO'i!, Fcbruaiy I, 2015 @ 790,000.00 

4'750\t, Februaiy I, 2016 @ 410,000.00 

5.500\t, February I, 2016 Ill 9,0SS,000.00 

4.800\t, February I, 2017 Ql> 725,000.00 

5,51)()'11, February I, 2017 l!I 9,255,000.00 

5.000'II, Fcbruaiy I, 2018 @ 10,520,000.00 

5,00()'II, February I, 2019 @ 19,065,000.00 

5.11)()'11, Februaiy I, 2020 @ 20.0IS,000.00 

5.500'11, February I, 2021 @ 21,040,000.00 

5.125<,t, Februaiy I, 2022 @ 22,195,000.00 201,645,000.00 
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Original Principal and ~of Outstanclins Malllrity Dates • Ontstfmding 

Dateoflssue Pe,criodon andAmowltDue.l!!!!!!!!!. PrinclJ>.!! 

Februaryl,2002 $319,290,000, Series CY, noncallable 

(tel\uuliug) 

November 26, 2002 S300.000.000. Series CZ. callablo 

$ S250,000,000 Series DA, callableSeptember 16, = 

D-S 

3.600% February!, = Iii 11,000,000.00 

S.2509, February!, = Iii 17,78:5,000.00 

S.250% February I, 2008 Iii 30,115,000.00 

4.000!\ Febtuary 1, 2009 Iii 10.69l,000.00 

5.2509, February I, 2009 Iii 21,000,000.00 

S.250% February I, 2010 Iii 31,675,000.00 

S.5009, February I, 2011 Iii 34,970,000.00 

5.500% February I, :Wl2 Iii 36,895,000.00 

S.1SO% Febma,y I, :W13 @ 38,920,000.00 

5.750% February I, 2014 Ill 41,160,000.00 

5.7509, February 1, 2015 Ill 43,525,000.00 317,746,000.00 

2.6509, July 1, = Ill 10.015,000.00 

4.000!\ July 1, = @ 2.905,000.00 

2.900% July I, 2008 Iii 7,895,000.00 

S.OOO'II\ July I, 2008 Iii S.470,000,00 

3.125% July I, 2009 Iii 4,315,000,00 

3.250% July I, 2009 @ 9,520,000.00 

3.300'll, July I, :WI0 @ 3,340,000.00 

5.2509, July I, :WI0 Ill 11,065,000.00 

3.500%- July 1, 2011 Iii 1,175,000.00 

S.250% July I, :WII @ 13,965,000.00 

3.600% July I, 2012 Iii 3.SI0,000,00 

5.250% July I, 2012 Iii 12,405,000.00 

3.750% Joly 1, :Wl3 Ill 1,945,000.00 

S.SOO'i', July 1, :Wl3 lit 14,800.000.00 

3.900% July I, 2014 @ 1,360,000.00 

5.500% July 1, :Wl4 @ 16,305,000,00 

4.000!\ Ju1y l, :WIS @ 2.305.000,00 

5.250% July I, :WIS @ 16,310,000.00 

4,150% July I, 2016 @ 210,000.00 

S.2509, JuJy I, 2016 @ 16,805,000,00 

4,2SO'i', July I, 2017 @ 375,000.00 

5.250% July I, :Wl7 @ 20,280,000.00 

4.300% July I, 2018 @ 60,000.00 

5.250% July I, :WIS Iii 21,705,000.00 

4.SOO'i', July I, = @ 1,160,000.00 

4.800% July I, 2022 Iii 8,370,000.00 17,!ll!0,000.00 

2.800% September I, 2008 Iii 9,970,000.00 

3,125% September I, 2009 @ 10,270;000.00 

3.SOO'i', September I, 2010 Iii 3.S70,000.00 

4,000'II\ Sepb:mber I, 2010 @ 7,060,000.00 

3.750% September I, 2011 @ 7.S70,000.00 

4,000!\ Sepb:mber I, :WII Iii 3,475,000.00 

3.900% September I, 2012 @ 830,000.00 



- -Orlginal Principol and Ralloof Oubtanding Matmity Dales 0.UWlding 

Date of Issue llcso!t>tion 

4.00()% Seplember I, 

4,250% September 1, 

4.0IJO% Seplember 1, 

4.200% Seplember 1, 

5.250'11, Scplember 1, 

4.300'#, September I, 

5.250% Septombcr I, 

4.4()0'll, Seplember 1, 

5.250% Scplember I, 

4..500\I, Seplember I, 

5.250'#, Scplember 1, 

4.600'll, Seplelllber 1, 

S.250% September!, 

5.250% Sepu,mbet I, 

4.150'll, Seprember I, 

5.250% Septombcr I, 

4.800'#, Seplember 1, 

S.250!1, Seplember 1, 

4.900!!, Seplember 1, 

5.250% September 1, 

4,900!!, Septombcr 1, 

S.250'11, Seplember 1, 

and AmountDue 

2012 Ill 

2012 Ill 

2013 Ill 

2014 Ill 

2014 Ill 

2015 Ill 

2015 II 

2016 Ill 

2016 @ 

2011 @ 

2011 Ill 

2018 Ill 

2018 Ill 

2019 @ 

2020 @ 

2020 Ill 

2021 @ 

2021 Ill 

2022 Ill 

2022 Ill 

2023 Ill 

2023 @ 

10,110,000.00 

550,000.00 

11,955,000.00 

4,355,000.00 

8,145,000.00 

1,475,000.00 

11,670,000.00 

10,000.00 

13,835,000.00 

3S0,000.00 

1,125,000.00 

1,240,000.00 

14,135,000.00 

16.195,000.00 

35,000.00 

17,005,000.00 

500,000.00 

11,490,000.00 

250,000.00 

18,710,000.00 

4,675,000.00 

15,295,000.00 217,885,000.00 

September 16. 2003 $ 188,650,000. Series DB, callablo 2.800!!, Seplember 1, 

4.0IJO% Seplember 1, 

4.0IJO% Seprember I, 

S.OIJO% Seplember I, 

S.000!1> Seplember 1, 

S.OIJO% Seplember 1, 

S.OIJO% Seplember I, 

4.250% September 1, 

5.250% September 1, 

4.0IJO% Seplember 1, 

5.250% Sep1ember I, 

5.250% Septombcr 1, 

S.250% Sept,:mbtr 1, 

2008 

2008 

2009 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2013 

2014 

2014 

2015 

2016 

Ill 

@ 

@ 

@ 

@ 

Ill 

@ 

Ill 

@ 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

6.065,000.00 

11,100,000.00 

6.m,000.00 

11,370,000.00 

18,770,000.00 

19,130,000.00 

20,74D,OOO.OO 

3,380,000.00 

18,435,000.00 

5,000,000.00 

17,945,000.00 

24,150,000.00 

25.450,000.00 188,650,000.00 

May 13, 2004 $225,000,000, Series DD, callable 3.500% 

3.700% 

S.000% 

3.800% 

5.000'#, 

4.000% 

S.250% 

4.125!1> 

5.250% 

May I, 

May 1, 

May!, 

May!, 

May 1, 

May 1, 

May 1, 

Mayl, 

May!, 

2011 

2012 

2012 

2013 

2013 

2014 

2014 

2015 

2015 

@ 

Ill 

II 

@ 

Ill 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

@ 

2,140,000.00 

1,195,000.00 

9,825,000.00 

1,090,000.00 

10,465,000.00 

4,060,000.00 

8,055,000.00 

2,295,000.00 

10,410,000.00 
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- -Original l'rillcipal ...i RalOof Outsbmdir!g Mtimly 0- ~. 
Dalooflssue Description "'1-Due 

4.200% 

5.000\I, 

4.2SO'JI, 

5.000\I, 

4.300% 

S.000% 

··-5.000% 

4.5()()'1, 

S.000\I, 

5.000% 

5.250% 

4.750% 

5.250'!) 

4.800% 

5.250% 

May!, 

May!, 

May 1, 

Mayl, 

May!, 

May!, 

Mayl. 

May!, 

May!, 

May!, 

May!, 

May 1, 

Mayl, 

May 1, 

May!, 

May I, 

2016 

2016 

2017 

2017 

2018 

2018 

2019 

2019 

2020 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2023 

2024 

2024 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

@ 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

790,000.00 

1;ns,ooo.ooo 
575,000.00 

13,430,000.00 

460,000.00 

S,230,000.00 

610,000.00 

14,825,000.00 

250.000.00 

15,950.000.00 

17,010,000.00 

17,860,000.00 

1,150,000.00 

17,645.000,00 

2,045.000.00 

17,735.000.00 182,825,000.00 

N°"'mber 10. 2004 $ 225.000.000 Series DE, callahlo 5.000% 

2.625% 

5.000% 

3.000% 

S.000% 

3.000% 

5.000% 

3.250% 

5.000% 

3.375% 

5.000% 

3.SOO'J, 

5.000% 

3.600% 

S.000\I, 

3.625% 

S.000% 

3.750% 

S.000% 

3.800% 

5.000% 

3.875% 

5.000% 

4.000% 

5.000% 

4.000% 

S.000% 

4.125% 

5.000% 

October 1. 

October I, 

October I, 

October I, 

October I, 

October 1, 

October I, 

October 1, 

October I, 

October I, 

Ocwba' I, 

October I, 

October I, 

Oowba-1, 

October I, 

October t, 

October 1. 

October I, 

October I, 

October I, 

October!, 

October l, 

Ocwba'I, 

October I, 

October l, 

October 1, 

October I, 

October l, 

October 1, 

2009 

2009 

2010 

2010 

2011 

2011 

2012 

2012 

2013 

2013 

2014 

2014 

2015 

2015 

2016 

2016 

2017 

2017 

2018 

2018 

2019 

2019 

2020 

2020 

2021 

2021 

2022 

2022 

2023 

II 

@ 

Ill 

II 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

II 

II 

Ill 

@ 

II 

Ill 

Ill 

@ 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

II 

@ 

Ill 

@ 

Ill 

@ 

Ill 

@ 

@ 

2,960,000.00 

6,815,000.00 

5,090,000.00 

5,050,000.00 

5,715,000.00 

4,845,000.00 

8,250,000.00 

2,775,000.00 

I0,610,000.00 

950,000.00 

7,420,000.00 

4,685,000.00 

11,665,0(XI.OO 

1,020,000.00 

11.600,000.00 

1,715,000.00 

13,SSS,000.00 

130,000.00 

14,380,000.00 

32D,OOO.OO 

13,955,000.00 

1,490,000.00 

15,435,000.00 

785,000.00 

16,675,000.00 

315,000.00 

14,360,000.00 

3,545,000.00 

17,270.000.00 
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Original Principal and Rao,of Outstanding Matmity Dal>s Outsamdlng 

Dale oflssue Desciiolion lnteresl andAmountDue Princil!!! 

4.200ll> Octobot I, 2023 Ill 1,530,000.00 

5.00011, Octobot I, 2024 @ 12,565,000.00 

4.300\I, Octobot 1, 2024 @ 7,165,000.00 225,000,000.00 

JWII! 15,2005 $225,000.000 Series DF, callal>lc 3,00011, July 1,2009 @ 9,060,000.00 

3.l25'll, July 1, 2010 Ill 9,340,000.00 

3.250\I, Julyl,2011 Ill 9,645,000.00 

3.375% July 1, 2012 @ 2,165,000.00 

S.000\I, July I, 2012 @ 7,865,000.00 

3.50()\I, July 1, 2013 Ill 1,855,000.00 

5.000\I, July 1, 2013 @ 8,6(,0,000.00 

3.6()()11, July 1, 2014 @ 955,000.00 

S.000\I, Joly 1,2014 Ill 10,075,000.00 

3.62511, July I, 201S Ill 1,800,000.00 

S.000\I, Joly I, 201S Ill 9,780.000.00 

3.7SOII> Joly 1,2016 (II 60,000.00 

S.000\I, July I, 2016 @ 12,100,000.00 

3.800\I, Joly 1,2017 @ 25,000.00 

S.000\I, Joly I, 2017 (II 12,755,000.00 

3.800\I, Joly 1, 2018 Ill 25,000.00 

5.000% Joly 1, 2018 @ 13,410,000.00 

3.87511, Joly I, 2019 Ill 70,000.00 

S.000\I, July 1, 2019 @ 14,0SS,000.00 

5.00011, July 1, 2020 Ill 14,850,000.00 

3.875% July 1, 20'.!I @ 185,000.00 

5.000% July I, 20'.!I Ill 15,4:!S,000.00 

4.000'll, Joly I, 20'.!2 @ IZS,000.00 

5.000'll, July 1, 20'.!2 @ 16,285,000.00 

5.000% July I, 20'.!3 @ 17,250,000.00 

4.000% July 1, 20'.!4 Ill 270,000.00 

5.000\I, July 1,20'.!4 Ill 17,865,000.00 

4.00011, JIiiy I, 20'.!5 @ 2,900,000.00 

5.00011, July 1, 20'.!5 @ 16,145,000.00 225,000,000.00 

June 15, 2005 $722,575,000 Series 00 S.00011> July 1,2009 
@ 

65,185,000.00 

5.00011, July 1,2010 
@ 

68,530,000.00 

5.00011, July 1,2011 
@ 

72,040,000.00 

5.00011, July 1,2012 
@ 

75,735,000.00 

5.00011, July 1,2013 
@ 

79,620,000.00 

5.00011, July 1,2014 
@ 

83,705,000.00 

5.00011, July 1,2015 
@ 

87,995,000.00 

5.00011, July I, 2016 
@ 

92,510,000.00 

5.000\I, July I, 2017 
@ 

97,255,000.00 722,575,000.00 

June 15, 2005 $18,735,000 Series DH 5.000II> June 1,2006 @ 18,735,000.00 18,735,000.00 

Tolal Stale of Hawaii genora1 obliplion bonds and geneml obliplion refunding bonds issued and -Ing 4,100,028,848.95 
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APPENDIXE 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERmICATE 

State of Hawaii 

Dated ___.....,2006 

$350,000,000 
General Obligation Bonds 

of 2006, Series DI 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (this "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by the State 
of Hawaii (the ''State") in connection with the issuance of its $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of State of 
Hawaii General Obligation Bonds of 2006, Series DI, (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the 
authority of the Constitution and laws of the State, including, in particular, certain acts of the Legislature of the 
State, as implemented by that certain Certificate of the Director of Finance of the State of Hawaii providing for the 
issuance of the Bonds (the "Bond Certificate"). Pursuant to Section 403 of the Bond Certificate, the State covenants 
and agrees as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose ofDisclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed and delivered 
by the State for the benefit of the Holden; and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating 
Underwriters in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b )(5). 

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the defimtions set forth in the Bond Certificate, which apply to any 
capitalized tenn used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized 
tenns shall have the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the State pursuant to, and as described in, 
Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or 
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through 
nominees, depositories or other intermediaries) or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax 
purposes. 

"Dissemination Agent' shall mean the Director of Finance or any successor Dissemination Agent 
designated in writing by the State and which has filed with the State a written acceptance of such designation. 

"listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in subsection 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"National Repository" shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository 
for purposes of the Rule. The National Repositories cmrently approved by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission are set forth at http//www.sec.gov/info/municipaVnrmsir.htm. 

"Participating Underwriters'' shall mean any original underwriter of the Bonds required to comply with the 
Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

"Repository" shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository. 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

''State" shall mean the State of Hawaii. 
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"State Repository" shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as a state 
repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the Securities and Exchange Commission. As of 
the date ofthis Disclosure Certificate, there is no State Repository. 

Section 3. Provision ofAnnual Reports. (a) The State shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not 
later than nine months after the end of the State's fiscal year (presently June 30), commencing with the report for the 
F"lllC8.i Year ending June 30, 2005, to eacb Repository an Annual report which is consistent with the requirements of 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 
documents comprising a package and may cross-reference other infonnation as provided in Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Certificate, provided that the audited financial statements of the State may be submitted separately from 
the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they 
are not available by that date. If the State's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same 
manner as for a Listed Event under subsection 5(c). 

(b) Not later than 15 Business Days prior to said date, the State shall provide the Annual Report to the 
Dissemination Agent (if other than the State). If the State is unable to provide to the Repositories an Annual Report 
by the date required io subsection (a) above, the State shall send a notice to each Repository, the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaldng Board and the State Repository, if any, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name and 
address of each National Repository and the State Repository, if any; and 

(ii) (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the State), file a report with the State certifying 
that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was 
provided and listing all the Repositories to which it was provided. 

Section 4. Contents ofAnnual Reports. The State's Annual Report shall contain or include by reference 
information of the type included in Appendix B to the final Official Statement (the "Official Statement'') dated 
May 25, 2004, relating to the Bonds. 

The audited financial statements of the State for the prior fiscal year shall be prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the State's audited financial statements are not available by the time 
the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to subsection 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited 
financial statements io a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the 
audited financial statements shall be filed io the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available. 

Any of such information may be included by specific reference to other documents, including official 
statements of debt issues of the State or related public entities, which have been submitted to each of the 
Repositories or the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official 
statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The Stare shall clearly identify 
each such other document so included by reference. 

Section 5. Reporting ofSignificant Events. (a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the State shall 
give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if 
material: 

l. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults; 

3. modifications to rights of Bondholders; 
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4. bond calls; 

5. defeasances; 

6. rating changes; 

7. adverse tllX opinions or events affecting the mx-exempt status of the Bonds; 

8. unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

9. unscheduled draws on the credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

10. Substitution of the credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform; or 

11. release, substitution or sale ofproperty securing repayment ofthe Bonds. 

(b) Whenever the State obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Llsted Event, the State shall as soon 
as possible determine lf such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(c) If the State determines that knowledge of the occun:ence of a Llsted Event would be material 
under applicable federal securities laws, the State shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board and the State Repository. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Llsted Events 
described in Subsections (a)(4) and (5) above need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if 
any) of the underlying event is given to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Bond Certificate. 

Section 6. Termination ofReporting Obligation. The State's obligations under this Disclosure Certificate 
shall terminate upon the legal defeasance or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such tennination occurs prior to 
the final maturity of the Bonds, the State shall give notice of such tennination in the same manner as for a Llsted 
Event under subsection 5( c ). 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The State may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination 
Agent to assist it in canying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such Agent, 
with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in 
any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the State pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. 

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the 
State may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, 
provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection 3(a), Section 4 or 
subsection 5(a), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the 
Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

{b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the original 
issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any 
change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the Bonds in the same manner 
as provided in the Bond Certificate for amendments to the Bond Certificate with the consent of Holclers or (ii) does 
not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds. 
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In the event of any amendment or Waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the State shall describe such 
amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the 
amendment or waiver and its impact on the type ( or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the 
presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the State. In addition, if the amendment 
relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall 
be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under subsection 5( c ), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in 
which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) 
between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the 
basis of the former accounting principles. 

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to prevent the 
State from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure 
Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice 
of occorrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the State 
chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to 
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the State shall have no obligation under this 
Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence 
of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the State to comply with any provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the State to comply with its 
obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an 
event of default under the Bond Certificate with respect to the Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure 
Certificate in the event of any failure of the State to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to 
compel performance. 

Section 11. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the State, the 
Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the 
Bonds and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

Section 12. Governing Law. This Disclosure Certificate shall be construed and interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Hawaii, and any suits and actions arising out of this Disclosure Certificate shall be 
instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Hawaii; provided, however, that to the extent this 
Disclosure Certificate addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Agreement shall be 
construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof. 

STATE OF HAWAII 

By:--------------
GEORGINA K. KAWAMURA 
Director of Finance 
State of Hawaii 
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EXBIBITA 

FORMOF 

NOTICE OF REPOSITORIES OF 

FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of Issuer: State of Hawaii 

Names of Bond Issues: State of Hawaii General Obligation Bonds of 2006, Series DI 

Date oflssuance: 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the State bas not provided an Annual Report with :respect to the above-named 
Bonds as required by its C-Ontinuing Disclosu:re Certificate dated _____.. [The State anticipates that the 
Annual Report will be filed by ________, 

Dates: 

STATEOFHAWAil 

By:.__________________ 

Title:,_________________ 
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APPENDIXF 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

[Oosing Date] 

State of Hawaii 
Honolulu, Hawaii 

Re: State of Hawaii General Obliption Bonds of 2006. Series Pl <Flllal Qpjnjon) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance by the State of Hawaii (the ''State'') of $350,000,000 
aggregate principal amount of State of Hawaii General Obligation Bonds of 2006, Series DI, {the "Bonds"), 
pursuant to the provisions of Part I of Chapter 39, Hawaii Revised Statutes, a Certificate of the Director ofFinance 
of the State dated _____ (the "Certificate"), and various acts of the Legislature of the State identified in the 
Certificate. 

In such connection, we have reviewed the Certificate, the Tax Certificate of the State, dated the date hereof{the 
''Tax Certificate"), certificates and opinions of the Attorney General and certificates of other officers of the State, 
and such other documents, opinions and matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth 
herein. 

Certain agreements, requirements and procednres contained or referred to in the Certificate, the Tax Certificate and 
other relevant docnments may be changed and certain actions {including, without limitation, the defeasance of the 
Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the circomstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in snch 
documents. No opinion is expressed herein as to any Bond or the interest thereon if any snch change occurs or 
action is taken or omitted upon the advice or approval of counsel other than ourselves. 

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions and 
cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities. Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or 
omitted or events occurring after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, 
whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur or any other matters come to our attention after the 
date hereof. Our engagement with respect to the Bonds has concluded with their issuance, and we disclaim any 
obligation to npdate this letter. 

We have assnmed the genuineness of all docnments and signatures presented to us (whether as originals or as 
copies) and the due and legal execution and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any parties other than the State. 
We have assumed, without undertaking to verify, the accuracy of the factual matters represented, warranted or 
certified in the documents, and of the legal conclusions contained in the opinions, referred to in the second 
paragraph hereof. Furthermore, we have assnmed compliance with all covenants and agreements contained in the 
Certificate and the Tax Certificate, including {without limitation) covenants and agreements compliance with which 
is necessary to ensure that future actions, omissions or events will not cause interest on the Bonds to be included in 
gross income for federal income tax pw:poses. 

We call attention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Certificate and the Tax Certificate 
and their enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent 
conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of equitable 
principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against 
the State of Hawaii. We express no opinion with respect to any indemnification, contribution, penalty, choice of 
law, choice of forum, waiver or severance provisions contained in the foregoing documents. Finally, we undertake 
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no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness ofthe Official Statement or other offering material 
relating to the Bonds and express no opinion with respect thereto. 

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the following 
opinions: 

1. The Bonds constitute valid general obligations of the State. 

2. The Certificate has been duly executed and delivered by the Director of Finance and constitutes 
the valid obligation of the State. 

3. Interest and principal payments on the Bonds are a first charge on the general fund of the State to 
the punctual payment of which the full faith and credit of the State are pledged. 

4. That under existing law, interest on the Bonds is not includable in the gross income of the owners 
thereof for Federal income tax purposes. If there is continuing compliance with the requirements 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"), we are of the opinion that interest on the 
Bonds will continue to be excluded from the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal 
income tax pmposes. We are further of the opinion that the Bonds are not "private activity bonds" 
within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code. Accordingly, interest on the Bonds is not an 
item of tax preference for pmposes of computing individual or corporate alternatiVP. minimum 
taxable income. However, interest on the Bonds is includable in corporate earnings and profits 
and therefore must be taken into account when computing co,porate alternative minimum taxable 
income for purposes of the co,porate alternative minimum tax. The Bonds and the income 
therefrom are exempt from all taxation by the State of Hawaii or any county or other political 
subdivision thereof, except inheritance, transfer and estate taxes; provided that no opinion is 
expressed with respect to the franchise tax imposed on banks and other financial institutions. We 
express no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition 
of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. 

Very truly yours, 

KATIEN MUCHIN ROSENMAN LLP 
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APPENDIXG 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

General. DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered 
securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee). One fully registered Bond certificate 
will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be 
deposited with DTC. 

DTC and Its Participants. DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New Y ode 
Banking Law, a ''banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a "clearing agency'' registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934. DTC holds securities that its participants (''Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the 
settlement among Participants of securities transactions in deposited securities, such as transfers and pledges, 
through elec1ronic computerized Book-Entry changes in Participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for 
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations, and certsin other organizations. DTC is owned by a number of its Direct 
Participants and by the New Yode Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct 
Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). The roles applicable to DTC and its Participants 
are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Purchase ofOwnership Interests. Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through 
Direct Participants, which will receive credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Bond (for the purposes of the discussion onder "Book-Entry System," a ''Beneficial Owner") is 
in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written 
confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations 
providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect 
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants actiog on behalf of Beneficial Owners. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event 
that use of the Book-Entry System for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in the name 
of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration ln the name of 
Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of 
the Bonds; DTC' s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are 
credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping 
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Notices and Other Communicadons. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct 
Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds. Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the State as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.' s consenting or votiog rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on 
the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Principal and Interest Payments. Principal of and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to DTC. 
DTC' s practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts on the payment date in accordance with their respective 
holdings shown on DTC's records unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not receive payment on the payment 
date. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
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practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street 
name,'' and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, or the State, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and int.erest to DTC is the 
responsibility of the State, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, 
and disbursement of soch payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect 
Participants. 

Discontinuance of Book-Entry System. DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities 
depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Stale. Under soch 
circumstances, in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be 
printed and delivered. 

The State may decide to discontinue use of the system of Book-Entry transfers through DTC ( or a 
successor securities depository). ln that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered. 

Use ofCertain Terms in Other Sections ofthe Official StaJement. In reviewing this Official Statement it 
should be understood that while the Bonds are in the Book-Entry System, references in other Sections of this 
Official Stalement to owners or holders should be read to include the person for whom the Participant acquires an 
interest in the Bonds, but (i) all rights of ownership must be exercised through DTC and the Book-Entry System and 
(ii) notices that are to be given to owners or holders by the Stale will be given only to DTC. DTC will forward ( or 
cause to be forwarded) the notices to the Participants by its usual procedures so that such Participants may forward 
( or cause to be forwarded) such notices to the Beneficial Owners. 

DTC and Book-Entry Information. Information concerning DTC and the Book-Entry System contained in 
this Official Statement has been obtained from DTC and other sources that the State and the Underwriters believe to 
be reliable, and is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a representation 
by, the Underwriters or the State. 

Neither the Stale nor the Underwriters will have any responsibility or obligation to Direct Participants, to 
Indirect Participants or to Beneficial Owners with respect to (i) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC, any 
Direct Participants or Indirect Participants, (ii) the payment by DTC, any Direct Participants or any Indi=t 
Participants of any amount in respect of principal of or interest on the Bonds, (iii) any notice which is permitted or 
required to be given to owners (except such notice as is required to be given by the Stale to DTC), (iv) any consent 
given or other action taken by DTC as Owner of the Bonds or (v) any other event or purpose. 
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SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POUCY 
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P FiNANCIAL •.. MUNICIPAL
SECURl1Y INSURAN·~Ee 

ISSUEl'l: 

BONDS: 

. FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURA • 
hereby UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREV 
agent (the 'Paying Agent') (as set forth I 
the Bonds) for the Bonds, for the 
each Owner,· 1Ubject only to 
por11on of the princi~ of 
unpaid by reason of No 

On 
.Business D 

e 
upon vest In 

Day if It Is. 
deemed reoeived 

Fliib!lal Security Is Incomplete, ft 
!ht! preceding sentence • 

•.W Owner, as appropriate,.who 
, 1'11$p$Ct. of a· Bond,. Fi!ianclal 

, :Ifie(~'nd or right to receipt of 
lly subrogatetfto the rights.:of the Owner, 
, to the jlldent of any payment by financial 

or Paying Agent. for ,the benefit of the • 
. of Financial Securily under this Policy. • 

mo by an endorsement hereto; the following terms shall have 
of this Policy. 'Business Day' mearis any day other than· (a) .a 

a day on • lch banking Institutions in the State of New York or the lnsuFe(s 
a autliorlz d or d by law or executlve order to remain clasecl. •.ooue forPeymenl' 

'll!IE1111f'st,errin9 the ncipal of a Sond, payable on the staied maiurity date lhereof or the date 
e shall v II duly called for mandatory sltJklng fund redl/!llplion and does not refer 
e on payment Is due by lliiBSQn of call fonedempllon (other than by mandatory . 

tion), acceleration or other advalleerllem of maturity- unless Fjnanclaf Securily shall' 
ol dlllcretion, to pay such princiJlal due. upon 1Ubh acceleratii>n together wlth any accrued • 

of acceleration and (b) when refemng to intel'ilst on a Bond,. payable on. the stated date 
rest. 'Nonpayment' means, .in'.rii~.of ·a Bond, the failure of the Issuer to tiave 

s cient funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payment In full of 
• al and interest that Is Due !or Payment on such Bond; 'Nonpayment' shall also Include, In 
of a Bond, any payment of principal or Interest that is Due for Payment made lo an Owner by or 011 
of lhe Issuer which has been recovsred from such ~r pursuant to the, 
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United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee In bankruptcy in accon:tance with 
of a ,;ourt hS:Ving COfrflelent jurisdiction. 'Notice" means telephonic or t 
confirmed In a signed writing, or written notice by registered or certifled , 
or the Paying Agent to Financial Security Which notice shall spec (a the 
claim, (b) the Polley Number, (c) the claimed amount and (d) the s cl • 
for Payment. 'Ownet" means, in respect of a Bond, the perso r e 
Is entitled under the terms of such Bond to payment the f, ~ 
Issuer or any p111$on or entity whose direct or lndirecl o • • con 
Bonds. • 

Financial Security may appoi 
Polley by gMng written notice to the 
addresa of the lnsure(s Fiscal Ag 
the Paying Agent, (a) copies 
Policy shall be sirtMJltaneous 
not be deemed receiv 
Security under this Pol 
behalf of Fll18hclal S 
lnsurefs Fiscal 
any fail11re 
under this 

brogation, 
o Financial 

provisions of 

, and shall not be modified, 
lldl~AJ.any modlflcation or amendment 

hereto, .(a) any premium paid In 
including payment, or provision being 

(b) h ollcy may not be canceled or revoked. 
E TY ASUAL'TY INSURANCE SECURITY FUND 
U CELAW. 

Al'TY ASSURANCE INC. has caused this Policy to be 

FINANCIAL SECUAl'TY ASSURANCE INC. 

By------------
Authorized Officer 

•Br¥ of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. (:212) 826-0100 
Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10022-6022 
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